
           
THROUGH THESE DOORS WALK ONLY THE FINEST PEOPLE – THE CITIZENS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY. DECISIONS
ARE MADE IN THIS ROOM AFFECTING THE DAILY LIVES OF OUR PEOPLE. DIGNIFIED CONDUCT IS APPRECIATED.   CHAMBER RULES
1. IF YOU WISH TO SPEAK, YOU WILL BE HEARD.
2. YOU MUST SIGN UP TO SPEAK. SIGN-UP SHEETS ARE AVAILABLE AT THE BACK OF THE ROOM.
3. YOU ARE REQUESTED TO KEEP YOUR REMARKS BRIEF AND FACTUAL.
4. BOTH SIDES ON AN ISSUE WILL BE GRANTED UNIFORM/MAXIMUM TIME TO SPEAK.
5. DURING QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS (I.E., REZONINGS), CONDUCT IS VERY FORMAL AND REGULATED BY
SUPREME COURT DECISIONS.

PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL BCC MEETINGS ARE RECORDED AND TELEVISED
 

AGENDA
Board of County Commissioners

Regular Meeting – September 3, 2015 – 5:30 p.m.
Ernie Lee Magaha Government Building – First Floor

             
1. Call to Order. 

Please turn your cell phone to the vibrate, silence, or off setting.

The Board of County Commissioners allows any person to speak regarding an
item on the Agenda. The speaker is limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise
determined by the Chairman, to allow sufficient time for all speakers. Speakers
shall refrain from abusive or profane remarks, disruptive outbursts, protests, or
other conduct which interferes with the orderly conduct of the meeting. Upon
completion of the Public comment period, discussion is limited to Board members
and questions raised by the Board.

 

2. Invocation – Commissioner Barry.
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

4. Are there any items to be added to the agenda?

Recommendation: That the Board adopt the agenda as prepared (or duly
amended).

 

5. Commissioners’ Forum.
 



             
6. Presentations - Certificates of Recognition to the following members of the

Storm-Water Advisory Team:

Nathan White (District 1) 02/05/2015 – 08/20/2015
Glen Niblock (District 2) 10/09/2014 – 07/31/2015 
Mary Gutierrez (District 3) 10/09/2014 – 08/20/2015
Garrett Walton (District 4) 10/09/2014 – 08/20/2015 
John E. Cheney (District 5) 10/09/2014 – 08/20/2015
Dr. Elizabeth D. Benchley, City of Pensacola 10/09/2014 – 08/20/2015
Phil Turner, City of Pensacola 10/16/2014 – 08/20/2015

 

7.   Proclamations.

Recommendation:  That the Board adopt the following Proclamations:

A. The Proclamation commending and congratulating Jeremy Fowler,
Maintenance Technician, Facilities Management Department, Maintenance
Division, on his selection as "Employee of the Month" for September 2015; and

B. The Proclamation proclaiming September 2015 as "Library Card Sign-Up
Month" in Escambia County and calling upon all residents of this great County
to join us in utilizing the West Florida Public Libraries.
 

 

8. Did the Clerk’s Office receive the proofs of publication for the Public Hearing(s)
on the agenda and the Board’s Weekly Meeting Schedule?

Recommendation: That the Board waive the reading of the legal advertisement(s)
and accept, for filing with the Board’s Minutes, the certified affidavit(s)
establishing proof of publication for the Public Hearing(s) on the agenda, and the
Board of County Commissioners – Escambia County, Florida, Meeting Schedule.

 

9.   5:31 p.m. Public Hearing for consideration of adopting an Ordinance amending
Chapter 42, Section 42-66 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances to
clarify the firearms exemption to the County Noise Abatement Ordinance. 

Recommendation:  That the Board adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 42,
Section 42-66 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances to clarify the
firearms exemption to the County Noise Abatement Ordinance. 

 



             
10. Reports:
 

 
 

CLERK & COMPTROLLER'S REPORT

Backup Not Included With The Clerk's Report Is Available For Review In
The Office Of The Clerk To The Board

Ernie Lee Magaha Government Building, Suite 130
 

I.  Consent Agenda
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning Acceptance of Documents Provided to the
Clerk to the Board's Office

That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following
documents provided to the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. Closing documents relating to the sale of real property, located at 2708
West Bobe Street, to Yolanda J. Ortiz, as approved by the Board on April 20,
2006, and February 4, 2010, and received in the Clerk to the Board's Office
on August 11, 2015; and

B.  Closing documents relating to the sale of real property, located at 6622
Hampton Road, to Larry Williams, Sr., as approved by the Board on
November 15, 2012, and April 2, 2013, and received in the Clerk to the
Board's Office on August 17, 2015.

 



             
2.   Recommendation Concerning Minutes and Reports Prepared by the Clerk to

the Board's Office

That the Board take the following action concerning Minutes and Reports
prepared by the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A.  Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Agenda Work
Session held August 20, 2015; 

B.  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held August 20, 2015;

C. Approve the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting held August 13, 2015;
and

D. Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Committee of
the Whole Workshop held August 13, 2015.

    (BACKUP TO BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER)
 



             
GROWTH MANAGEMENT REPORT

 

I.   Public Hearing
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Rezoning Case Heard by the
Planning Board on August 4, 2015

That the Board take the following action concerning the rezoning case heard by
the Planning Board on August 4, 2015: 

Review and either adopt, modify, or overturn the Planning Board’s
recommendation for Rezoning Case Z-2015-14 or remand the case back
to the Planning Board; and

A.

Authorize the Chairman to sign the Order of the Escambia County Board
of County Commissioners for the rezoning case that was reviewed.

B.

1. Case No.: Z-2015-14
Address: 3245 West Fairfield Drive
Property Reference No.: 16-2S-30-1001-020-004
Property Size: 0.48 (+/-) acres
From: HDR, High Density Residential district (18

du/acre)
To: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25

du/acre)
FLU Category: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban
Commissioner District: 3
Requested by: John Watson, Agent for Downtown Investment

Properties, LLC, Owner
Planning Board
Recommendation:

Approval

Speakers: Ralph Neal
 

2.   5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing for Consideration of Adopting an Ordinance
Amending the Official Zoning Map

That the Board adopt an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map to
include the rezoning case heard by the Planning Board on August 4, 2015,  and
approved during the previous agenda item and to provide for severability,
inclusion in the code, and an effective date.

 

3.   5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing to Review an Ordinance Amending LDC Chapter



3.   5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing to Review an Ordinance Amending LDC Chapter
2, Development and Compliance Review

That the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) review and adopt an
Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC) Chapter 2, Section 2-7.2,
"LDC Zoning Map and Text amendments," to clarify the procedures related to
rezoning applications and requirements for board action.

 

II. Consent Agenda
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of Public Hearings

That the Board authorize the scheduling of the following Public Hearings:

A. Thursday, September 24, 2015

5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing - Density and Uses Savings Clause Ordinance

B. Thursday, October 8, 2015

1. 5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing to amend the official Zoning map to include the
following Rezoning cases heard by the Planning Board on September 1, 2015.

a. Case No.: Z-2015-12
Address: 9600 Block Tower Ridge Road
Property
Reference No.:

01-1S-32-1000-070-003; 01-1S-32-1000-050-003;
01-1S-32-1000-050-004; 01-1S-32-1000-110-003;
01-1S-32-1000-080-003; 01-1S-32-1000-120-004

Property Size: 78.72 (+/-) acres
From: RMU, Rural Mixed-use district (two du/acre)
To: LDMU, Low Density Mixed-use district (seven du/acre)
FLU Category: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban
Commissioner
District

1

Requested by: Kerry Anne Schultz, Agent for The Busbee Limited
Partnership and Murphy J. Jacob Trust

b. Case No.: Z-2015-13
Address: Detailed Specific Area Plan
Property
Reference No.:

Multiple

Property Size: 950 (+/-) acres



From: Agricultural district (Agr), density of one dwelling unit per 20
acres and Rural Mixed-use district (RMU), density of two
dwelling units per acre. 

To: Low Density Residential district (LDR), Detailed Specific
Area Plan (DSAP) Land Use Conservation Neighborhood
with a maximum density of 3 dwelling units per net acre; 
Medium Density Residential district (MDR), DSAP Land
Use Suburban Garden, with a maximum density of 10
dwelling units per acre; High Density Residential district
(HDR), DSAP Land Use Traditional Garden, with a
maximum density of 15 dwelling units per acre; High
Density Residential district (HDR), DSAP Land Use
Traditional Village, with a maximum density of 20 dwelling
units per acre; High Density Mixed-use district (HDMU),
DSAP Land Use Neighborhood Center, with a maximum
gross floor area of 15,000 square feet; Commercial
district (Com), DSAP Land Use Village Center, with a
maximum gross floor area of 200,000 square feet.

FLU Category: AG, Agriculture and RC, Rural Community
Commissioner
District

5

Requested by: J. Dan Gilmore, Agent for Exit 3 Investments, LLC, Owner

2. 5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing - Comp Plan Text Amendment - OBJ CIE 1.2
Five-Year Schedule - CPA-2015-07 (first of two public hearings)

3. 5:47 p.m. - A Public Hearing - CRA Overlay Standards Ordinance

4. 5:48 p.m. - A Public Hearing - Small Scale Amendment 2015-06 - Saufley
Field Road

5. 5:49 p.m. - A Public Hearing - SRIA Setback Ordinance (first of two public
hearings)

6. 5:50 p.m. - A Public Hearing - SRIA Flood Plain Management Ordinance

7. 5:51 p.m. - A Public Hearing - Height Ordinance
 



             
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

 

I.   Technical/Public Service Consent Agenda
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Obsolete Property
for the State of Florida Department of Health, Escambia County Health
Department - John J. Lanza, MD, PhD, MPH, FAAP, Director

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the
State of Florida Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department,
and authorize the disposition of all the assets described in the list provided.  All
of the assets listed are County assets held and utilized by the State of Florida
Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department and have been
found to be of no further usefulness to the County; thus it is requested that the
items be auctioned as surplus or disposed of properly.

 

2.   Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Vehicles for the
State of Florida Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department -
John J. Lanza, MD, PhD, MPH, FAAP, Director

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the
State of Florida Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department,
and authorize the disposition of all vehicles described on the Request Form. 
All of the assets listed are County assets held and utilized by the State of
Florida Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department and have
been found to be of no further usefulness to the County; thus it is requested
that the items be auctioned as surplus or disposed of properly.

 

3.   Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property by the
State of Florida Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department -
John J. Lanza, MD, PhD, MPH, FAAP, Director

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the
State of Florida Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department,
and authorize the disposition of all assets described on the Request Form.  All
of the assets listed are County assets held and utilized by the State of Florida
Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department and have been
found to be of no further usefulness to the County.  

 

4.   Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the



4.   Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the
Public Safety Department - Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety Department
Director

That the Board approve the three Request for Disposition of Property Forms
for the Public Safety Department, for property described and listed on the
Request Forms, with reasons for disposition stated.

 

5.   Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of a Public Hearing - Donald R.
Mayo, Building Official/Building Services Department Director

That the Board authorize the scheduling of a Public Hearing on September 24,
2015, at 5:31 p.m., concerning the review of Amendments to an Ordinance
pertaining to the Contractor Competency Board - Chapter 18, Article II, Division
2, Section 18-56 and Chapter 18, Article II, Division 3, Section 18-80, of the
Escambia County Code of Ordinances.

 

6.   Recommendation Concerning Reappointments to the BID Inspections Fund
Advisory Board (IFAB) - Donald R. Mayo, Building Official/Building Services
Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the Home Builders
Association of West Florida's recommendation for reappointment of two
members to the BID Inspections Fund Advisory Board (IFAB):

A. Waive the Board's Policy, Section I, Part B.1.(D), Appointment Policy and
Procedures; and

B. Reappoint the following two members for a three-year term, beginning
October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2018:
  
1. John M. Harold, Builder, J. M. Harold Construction, Inc.; and
2.  Karen Polk Wright, Senior Vice President - Commercial Banking, ServisFirst
Bank.

The BID Investment Fund Advisory Board is governed under the the Escambia
County Code of Ordinances Number 2004-56, Chapter 46, Article VI, Section
46-286.  Members are appointed by the Board of County Commissioners with
the names of individuals to be submitted by the Home Builders Association of
West Florida.  Members serve a three year term and may be re-appointed to
serve additional terms in accordance with the Escambia County Code of
Ordinances, Section 46-286(f)(2).

 



             
7.   Recommendation Concerning the Adoption of a Maintenance Map for a Portion

of Crary Road in Century, Florida - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works
Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning adoption of a Maintenance
Map for a portion of Crary Road in Century, Florida:

A. Adopt the Florida Department of Transportation Maintenance Map F.P. No.
4322881, for a portion of Crary Road (approximately 140 feet in length), going
north off of Byrneville Road and located south of Tedder Road in Century,
Florida.  This map delineates the extent of County maintenance to define
County property in areas where the County maintains roads without having
deeded right-of-way;

B. Approve said areas shown on the Maintenance Map for continued
maintenance, pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 95.361; and

C. Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to accept the Maintenance Map
as of the day of delivery of the Map to the Chairman or Vice Chairman, and
authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Map for recording at
that time.

 

8.   Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the
Public Works Department - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department
Director

That the Board approve the eight Request for Disposition of Property Forms for
the Public Works Department, listing 32 items to be disposed of properly,
which are described with reasons for disposition stated.

 



             
9.   Recommendation Concerning the Conveyance of a Subordination of County

Utility Interests to the Florida Department of Transportation for the State Road
95 (U.S. 29) Improvement Project - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works
Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the conveyance of a
subordination of County utility interests, to the Florida Department of
Transportation (FDOT), for their planned improvement project for the portion
of State Road 95 (U.S. 29), from Interstate 10 (I-10) to 9 1/2 Mile Road:

A. Adopt the Resolution authorizing the conveyance of a subordination of
County utility interests to FDOT, for their planned improvement project for the
portion of State Road 95 (U.S. 29), from Interstate 10 (I-10) to 9 1/2 Mile
Road; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Subordination of County Utility
Interests and the Resolution, related to this conveyance, without further action
of the Board.

 

10.   Recommendation Concerning an Appointment to the CareerSource Escarosa
(Formerly Workforce Escarosa, Inc.) Board of Directors - Tonya Gant,
Neighborhood and Human Services Department Director

That the Board confirm the appointment of Robert Gravley, Chairman/CEO of
the Gulf Coast Veterans Advocacy Council, Inc., to the CareerSource
Escarosa (formerly Workforce Escarosa, Inc.) Board of Directors, to serve as
the replacement for Valera Young, who recently resigned due to a change of
employment.  The term of this appointment will be for three years effective
September 24, 2015, through September 24, 2018.

 



             
11.   Recommendation Concerning an Agreement with the Florida Department of

Economic Opportunity for a Community Resiliency Initiative Pilot Project to
Develop a Coastal Hazards Vulnerability Assessment and Adaptation Plan for
Escambia County - Keith T. Wilkins, Director, Department of Natural
Resources Management

That the Board take the following action concerning an Agreement (Number
F1128) with the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) for a
Community Resiliency Initiative Pilot Project to develop a Coastal Hazards
Vulnerability Assessment and Adaptation Plan for Escambia County:

A. Approve the Agreement (Number F1128) with the Florida DEO for a
Community Resiliency Initiative Pilot Project to develop a Coastal Hazards
Vulnerability Assessment and Adaptation Plan for Escambia County; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreement and any other subsequent
Agreement-related documents, including no-cost extensions, pending Legal
review and approval, without further action from the Board.

 

12.   Recommendation Concerning ARCADIS U.S., Inc., Permission to Enter
Property at Saufley Construction and Demolition Debris Landfill - Patrick T.
Johnson, Waste Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the Permission to Enter
Property Agreement, submitted by ARCADIS U.S., Inc., for permission to
enter Saufley Construction and Demolition Debris (C&DD) Landfill, located at
5660 Saufley Field Road, Pensacola, Florida, for the purpose of
environmental investigation activities by its agents, representatives, or
contractors, as outlined in the agreement:

A. Approve the Permission to Enter Property Agreement, submitted by
ARCADIS U.S., Inc., granting access to the Saufley C&DD Landfill, located at
5660 Saufley Field Road, Pensacola, Florida;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreement. 
 



             
13.   Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the

Neighborhood & Human Services Department - Tonya Gant, Neighborhood &
Human Services Director

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the
Neighborhood & Human Services Department, indicating the item to be
disposed of properly, which is described and listed on the Request Form, with
reason for disposition stated.

 

14.   Recommendation Concerning the Board's Appointment of a Designee to the
Community Economic Development Association of Pensacola and Escambia
County, Inc., Board - Jack R. Brown, County Administrator

That the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) appoint Amy Lovoy,
Escambia County Assistant County Administrator, in place of Jack R. Brown,
Escambia County Administrator, as the BCC's designee to be a
Governmental Entity Director on the Community Economic Development
Association of Pensacola and Escambia County, Inc. (CEDA) Board, in
accordance with the CEDA Bylaws, Article IV, Board of Directors, 1.2.2
Governmental Entity Director.

 



             
II.  Budget/Finance Consent Agenda

 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the Federal Fiscal Year 2015 Edward Byrne
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program - JAG Countywide - State
Solicitation – Catherine A. White, Drug Court Manager

That the Board take the following action concerning the Federal Fiscal Year
(FY) 2015 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program - JAG
Countywide - State Solicitation:

A. Approve the following Subgrant Applications which will be submitted for
funding under the Federal FY 2015 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance
Grant Program - JAG Countywide - State Solicitation, administered by the
Florida Department of Law Enforcement:

1. ESCAMBIA COUNTY DRUG COURT TREATMENT PROGRAM - The Court
Administrator’s Office is seeking funding for treatment services for drug
offenders.  The amount of the Grant request is $32,976.  THE APPLICATION
WILL BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER.; and

2. PENSACOLA STATE COLLEGE POLICE DEPARTMENT - Pensacola State
College Police Department is seeking to purchase body cameras for each
patrol officer in order to strengthen community/campus policing.  The amount
of the Grant request is $11,175; and

B. Authorize the Chairman, as the County’s representative, to sign
amendments and requests for payment or other related documents as may be
required.

[Funding:  The funds are made available through the Federal FY 2015 Edward
Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program - JAG Countywide - State
Solicitation for the period beginning October 1, 2015, and terminating
September 30, 2016; there is no cost to the County]

 



             
2.   Recommendation Concerning the Agreement between the First Judicial Circuit

of Florida and Escambia County for the Existing Veterans Court Coordinator
Position - Will Moore, Trial Court Administration, Admin Services Manager

That the Board take the following action concerning the Agreement between
the First Judicial Circuit of Florida and Escambia County for the Existing
Veterans Court Coordinator Position:

A. Approve the Agreement for the Funding of Court Personnel between the
First Judicial Circuit of Florida and Escambia County, Florida, for the existing
Veterans Court Coordinator Position as outlined in Exhibit "A"; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreement.

[The County agrees to provide funding for the existing Veterans Court
Coordinator Position through Court Innovation Article V, Local Option portion of
the $65 Court Fee according to Florida Statute 939.185(1)(a); whereas the
Court agrees to reimburse the County for salary and benefits not to exceed the
amounts outlined in Exhibit "A"]

 

3.   Recommendation Concerning State Road 30 (US 98) Navy Boulevard - State
Environmental Impact Report - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works
Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning State Road (SR) 30 (US
98) Navy Boulevard - State Environmental Impact Report (SEIR):

A. Adopt and authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution supporting the
procurement of consultant services to develop an SEIR for SR 30 (US 98),
Navy Boulevard, from SR 295 (New Warrington Road) to Bayou Chico Bridge,
Project # 216830-2-22-01); 

B. Approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the Locally Funded Agreement
(LFA), between the State of Florida Department of Transportation and
Escambia County, (Project #218630-2-22-01); and 

C. Approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the Three Party Escrow
Agreement

[Funding:  Local Option Sales Tax: $1,500,000 (Fund 352, LOST III; Funding
Source 220102)]

 



             
4.   Recommendation Concerning the Public Transportation Supplemental Joint

Participation Agreement Number 1, Providing Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Funding
to Escambia County Area Transit for the Transit Urban Corridor Project on
Davis Highway - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the State of Florida
Department of Transportation, Public Transportation Supplemental Joint
Participation Agreement (JPA), Number 1, Financial Project Number 4222601
84 01, providing Fiscal Year 2015/2016 funding to Escambia County Area
Transit (ECAT) for the Transit Urban Corridor Project on Davis Highway:

A. Approve the Supplemental JPA Number 1, Financial Project Number
4222601 84 01, providing for Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT)
participation, in the amount of $420,000, for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 funding
to ECAT for the Transit Urban Corridor Project on Davis Highway;

B. Adopt the Resolution authorizing the acceptance and application of these
funds; and

C. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Resolution, Public Transportation
Supplemental JPA, and all other required documents pertaining to this JPA,
including Notifications of Funding, without further action of the Board.

With the Davis Highway north/south corridor considered one of the most
traffic-congested areas in the Pensacola area, the Florida Department of
Transportation has agreed to continue funding the Transit Urban Area Corridor
Project to increase mass transit service in an effort to alleviate the current
traffic congestion.  The JPA will provide mass transit operations funding for
ECAT in Fiscal Year 2015/2016.  Funds are allocated to mass transit systems
by FDOT annually and must be accepted by the receiving agency.

[Funding:  Funds are budgeted in Fund 104, "Mass Transit"]
 



             
5.   Recommendation Concerning the Pensacola Beach Congestion Management

Plan and the Pensacola Beach Master Plan Drainage Projects - Joy D.
Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board consider the following action concerning the Pensacola Beach
Congestion Management Plan and the Pensacola Beach Master Plan Drainage
Projects:

A. Authorize the transfer of funds from the Local Option Sales Tax (LOST)
Reserves Cost Center 110267 to the Transportation and Drainage Cost Center
210107, in the amount of $450,000, to fund the Pensacola Beach Congestion
Management Plan;

B. Authorize the transfer of funds from the LOST Reserves Cost Center
110267 to the Transportation and Drainage Cost Center 210107, in the amount
of $1,250,000, to fund the Pensacola Beach Master Plan Drainage Projects;
and 

C. Authorize the Public Works staff to begin the Request for Letters of Intent
(RLI) purchasing procurement process for the Pensacola Beach Congestion
Management Plan and to begin the purchasing procurement process for the
Pensacola Beach Master Plan Drainage Projects.

[Funding:  It is anticipated that the Congestion Management Plan will cost
$450,000, and the design and construction of the Master Plan Drainage
Projects will cost $1,250,000, which would decrease the LOST Reserves Cost
Center 210107 by $1,700,000]

 
 



             
6.   Recommendation Concerning Speed Reduction on Multiple Roadways - Joy D.

Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the filing of traffic
restrictions - speed reduction, per the requirements of Ordinance Number
2003-26, which authorizes the County Engineer to place restrictions on the
movement of traffic on County roadways and streets:

A. Adopt the Resolution establishing the speed limit for the reduction in speed,
from 30 miles per hour to 25 miles per hour, for the following roadway
segments:

1.  Bucklebury Drive, from Kingsport Avenue to end of road (D2);
2.  Bradfield Drive, from Weller Avenue to Kingsport Avenue (D2); and
3.  Boxford Court, from Bradfield Drive to end of road (D2); and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution.

[Funding:  Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 211201,
Object Code 53401, for Sign Installations]

 

7.   Recommendation Concerning the Purchase of One Truck, Cabover Style Crew
Cab & Chassis, Dual Rear Wheel for the Road Division - Joy D. Blackmon,
P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board authorize the county to award a Purchase Order to Ward
International Trucks, in the amount of $57,100 for one 2016 Isuzu Cabover
Style Crew Cab & Chassis, Dual Rear Wheel Truck, for the Road Division,
according to the specifications of VE14-15.031.

The Purchasing Department posted the request on the Escambia County
Website for 30 days, beginning July 21, 2015.  One additional
responsive quote was obtained from Ward International Trucks, Pensacola.

[Funding:  Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 210405, Object
Code 56401]

 



             
8.   Recommendation Concerning the Purchase of Two 3/4 Ton Crew Cab Pickup

Trucks for the Road Division - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works
Department Director

That the Board authorize the county to utilize the Florida Sheriff’s Association
Contract #14-22-0904 and award a Purchase Order to Duval Ford, in the
amount of $70,920, for two 2016 Ford F250 3/4 Ton 2WD Crew Cab Pickup
Trucks for the Road Division, according to the specifications of VE14-15.033.

The Purchasing Department posted the request on the Escambia County
Website for 30 days, beginning July 21, 2015.  No other responsive quotes
were received.

[Funding:  Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 210405, Object
Code 56401]

 

9.   Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #228 -
Stephan Hall, Budget Manager, Management and Budget Services

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget
Amendment #228, Escambia Restricted Fund (101), in the amount of $4,500,
to recognize reimbursements the County will be receiving from the
Southeastern States Manhunt Field Trial Teams, and to appropriate these
funds for related operational expenses.

 

10.   Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #231 -
Stephan Hall, Budget Manager, Management and Budget Services

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget
Amendment #231, General Fund (001), in the amount of $147,187, to
recognize the Sheriff's Department off-duty officer, insurance, firing range,
and miscellaneous reimbursements/fees, and to appropriate these funds for
the purchase of computer security software to support the Sheriff's law
enforcement activities in Escambia County.

 

11.   Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #233
- Stephan Hall, Budget Manager, Management and Budget Services

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget
Amendment #233, Transportation Trust Fund (175), in the amount of $67,600,
to recognize revenue over budget from the Road Prison Inmate Commissary,
and to appropriate these funds to pay the food services vendor and other
Commissary vendors, due to increased inmate population for the remainder of
Fiscal Year 2014-2015.



 

12.   Recommendation Concerning Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for
Sale of Surplus Real Property Located at 106 Brandon Avenue - Stephan
Hall, Budget Manager, Management and Budget Services

That the Board take the following action concerning reduction of the minimum
bid required for sale of surplus real property located at 106 Brandon Avenue,
due to the Property Appraiser's reassessed value:

A. Authorize the sale of surplus real property located at 106 Brandon Avenue,
Account Number: 08-1223-000, Reference Number: 50-2S-30-5060-020-006,
to the bidder with the highest offer received at or above the reassessed
minimum bid of $9,500, in accordance with Section 46.134, of the Escambia
County Code of Ordinances, without further action of the Board; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign all documents related to the sale.
 

13.   Recommendation Concerning Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for
Sale of Surplus Real Property Located at 20 West Washington Street -
Stephan Hall, Budget Manager, Management and Budget Services

That the Board take the following action concerning reduction of the minimum
bid required for sale of surplus real property located at 20 West Washington
Street, due to the Property Appraiser's reassessed value:

A. Authorize the sale of surplus real property located at 20 West Washington
Street, Account Number: 08-1479-000, Reference Number:
51-2S-30-6000-000-008, to the bidder with the highest offer received at or
above the reassessed minimum bid of $5,422, in accordance with Section
46.134, of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, without further action of
the Board; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign all documents related to the sale.
 



             
14.   Recommendation Concerning Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for

Sale of Surplus Real Property Located at 2400 North "S" Street - Stephan
Hall, Budget Manager, Management and Budget Services

That the Board take the following action concerning reduction of the minimum
bid required for sale of surplus real property located at 2400 North "S" Street,
due to the Property Appraiser's reassessed value:

A. Authorize the sale of surplus real property located at 2400 North "S" Street,
Account Number: 06-2114-000, Reference Number: 17-2S-30-1500-019-026,
to the bidder with the highest offer received at or above the reassessed
minimum bid of $4,505, in accordance with Section 46.134, of the Escambia
County Code of Ordinances, without further action of the Board; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign all documents related to the sale.
 

15.   Recommendation Concerning Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for
Sale of Surplus Real Property Located at 1011 West Desoto Street - Stephan
Hall, Budget Manager, Management and Budget Services

That the Board take the following action concerning reduction of the minimum
bid required for sale of surplus real property located at 1011 West Desoto
Street, due to the Property Appraiser's reassessed value:

A. Authorize the sale of surplus real property located at 1011 West Desoto
Street, Account Number:  15-0429-000, Reference Number: 
00-0S-00-9060-011-034, to the bidder with the highest offer received at or
above the reassessed minimum bid of $3,622, in accordance with Section
46.134, of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, without further action of
the Board; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign all documents related to the sale.
 



             
16.   Recommendation Concerning Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for

Sale of Surplus Real Property Located at 240 Juniper Street - Stephan Hall,
Budget Manager, Management and Budget Services

That the Board take the following action concerning reduction of the minimum
bid required for sale of surplus real property located at 240 Juniper Street, due
to the Property Appraiser's reassessed value:

A. Authorize the sale of surplus real property located at 240 Juniper Street,
Account Number: 12-3533-360, Reference Number: 02-4N-33-4101-000-008,
to the bidder with the highest offer received at or above the reassessed
minimum bid of $1,097, in accordance with Section 46.134, of the Escambia
County Code of Ordinances, without further action of the Board; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign all documents related to the sale.
 

17.   Recommendation Concerning the Annual Certified Budget for the Mosquito
Control Division, Fiscal Year 2015-2016 - Keith T. Wilkins, Director,
Department of Natural Resources Management

That the Board take the following action concerning annual Grant funding
received from the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services
for Mosquito Control:

A. Approve the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Annual Certified Budget for the
Mosquito Control Division, Natural Resources Management; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Budget.

[Funding:  Fund 106, Mosquito and Arthropod Control, Cost Center 220703,
State One Funds]

 



             
18.   Recommendation Concerning the 4-H Club Toilet Building - Claudia

Simmons, Purchasing Manager, Office of Purchasing

That the Board award Contract PD 14-15.073, for the construction of the 4-H
Club Toilet Building, to Zechiel Construction, in the amount of $78,750.

In May 2014, the Board entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with
UF/IFAS Extension Service and the Escambia County 4-H Foundation,
wherein the Board allocated Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) funds to
construct a restroom facility on the property at 5600 Chalker Road.  

[Funding:  Fund 352, LOST III, Cost Center 110267, Object Code 56301,
Project #14PF2695]

 

19.   Recommendation Concerning Main Jail Admission, Classification, and
Release Modifications - Claudia Simmons, Purchasing Manager, Office of
Purchasing

That the Board award Contract PD 14-15.076, for Main Jail Admission,
Classification, and Release (ACR) Modifications, to Berkshire Johnstone,
LLC, in the base bid amount of $171,000, including add Alternate #1, Cased
Opening at $2,400, for a total award of $173,400.

[Funding:  Fund 352, LOST III, Cost Center 290407, Object Code 56201,
Project #14SH2728] 

 



             
20.   Recommendation Concerning Change Order #4 to Purchase Order No.

141508, for Professional Services to Provide Title V Compliance Reporting for
the Perdido Landfill - Patrick T. Johnson, Waste Services Department Director

That the Board approve and authorize the County Administrator to execute
the following Change Order #4 to Purchase Order No. 141508, Stearns,
Conrad, and Schmidt, Consulting Engineers, Inc., (d/b/a SCS Engineers), in
the amount of $79,794, per the Terms and Conditions of the continuing
Contract PD 13-14.038, Professional Services to Provide Title V Compliance
Reporting for the Perdido Landfill, and per Florida Statute Chapter 287_055:

Department: Waste Services
Division: Engineering & Environmental

Quality
Type: Addition
Amount: $79,794
Vendor: SCS Engineers, Inc.
Project Name: Professional Services to Provide

Title V
Compliance Reporting for Perdido
Landfill

Contract: PD 13-14.038
Purchase Order (PO)#: 141508
Change Order (CO)#: 4
Cost Center for CO: 230304
Original PO Amount: $102,400
Cumulative Amount of Change Orders
thru #4:

$91,418

New PO Total: $193,818

[Funding: Fund 401, Solid Waste Fund, Cost Center 230304, Object Code
53101]

 



             
21.   Recommendation Concerning the Humana Specialty Benefits Vision Care

Contract - Thomas G. "Tom" Turner - Human Resources Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the renewal of the
Humana Specialty Benefits Vision Care Contract:

A. Approve the adjustment to the present Contract with Humana Specialty
Benefits Vision Care at reduced rates and added additional benefits; and 

B. Authorize the County Administrator to sign the Humana Specialty Benefits
Annual Renewal Information letter. 

 

22.   Recommendation Concerning Approval of the Workforce Escarosa (d/b/a
CareerSource Escarosa) Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget - Tonya Gant,
Neighborhood & Human Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action:

A. Adopt and authorize the Chairman to sign a Resolution supporting
CareerSource Escarosa's request to waive the ITA/Training Expenditure
requirement of 50% and to establish the ITA/Training Expenditure
requirement at 35%.  Due to the requirement of an indirect cost rate and the
method used to determine the rate funds for Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-2016,
training fund allocations will be significantly impacted as to what services may
be reduced or no longer available for the approximately 500 students per
semester, projected to be served with program funds; and

B. Approve the CareerSource Escarosa FY 2015-2016 Budget, in the amount
of $6,474,286.

 

23.   Recommendation Concerning the Purchase of One Cabover Style, Regular
Cab Chassis, Dual Rear Wheel Truck for the Road Division - Joy D.
Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board authorize the County to award a Purchase Order to Ward
International Trucks, in the amount of $53,400, for one 2016 Isuzu Cabover
Style, Regular Cab & Chassis, Dual Rear Wheel Truck, for the Road Division,
according to the specifications of VE14-15.032.

The Purchasing Department posted the request on the Escambia County
Website for 30 days, beginning July 21, 2015.  One additional responsive
quote was obtained from Ward International Trucks, Pensacola.

[Funding:  Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 210405, Object
Code 56401]



 

24.   Recommendation Concerning the Contract for Blue Springs/Crescent Lake
April 2014 Flood Emergency Repairs - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works
Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the Contract PD
13-14.072, Blue Springs/Crescent Lake April 2014 Flood Emergency Repairs:

A. Approve June 5, 2015, as the date of Substantial Completion for this
project; and

B. Approve assessing liquidated damages to the contractor, Hewes and
Company, LLC, in the amount of $21,000, per the terms of Contract PD
13-14.072, Blue Springs/Crescent Lake April 2014 Flood Emergency Repairs.
 
[Funding:  Funds are available in Fund 112, "Disaster Recovery Fund," Cost
Center 330492, Object Code 56301, Project #ESCPW17]

 



             
III. For Discussion

 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the Escambia-Pensacola Human Relations
Commission - Jack R. Brown, County Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning the Escambia-Pensacola
Human Relations Commission:

A. Waive the Board’s Policy, Section I, Part B 1. (D), Appointment Policy and
Procedures, and reappoint Ebbin Spellman, for a two-year term, effective
retroactively August 17, 2015, through August 16, 2017; 
  

OR

B. Appoint one of the following applicants for a two-year term, effective
September 3, 2015, through September 2, 2017;

1. Brandon J. Hollins;
2. Kathleen Nolde-Martin;
3. Megan N. Walters; or
4. Ava Abney.

 

2.   Recommendation Concerning the Donation of a Dodge Durango to the
Escambia County Healthy Start Coalition - Commissioner Steven Barry, District
5

That the Board adopt and authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution
authorizing the donation of a 2000 Dodge Durango, Vin
#1B4HR28Y3YF268819, to the Escambia County Healthy Start Coalition, a
not-for-profit Florida Corporation.

 



             
3.   Recommendation Concerning Two Parcels of Real Property (With

Improvements) Located at 6511 North "W" Street and 952 Marcus Pointe
Boulevard - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board authorize and direct staff to obtain appraisals, environmental
site assessments, surveys, title insurance commitments, and to complete all
other requirements in Section 46-139, Escambia County Code of Ordinances,
in accordance with Board of County Commissioners (BCC) Policy dated June
2, 2011, regarding Real Property Acquisitions, in anticipation of purchasing two
parcels of real property (with improvements).  The two parcels are located at
6511 North "W" Street (owned by McVay Motors, Inc.) and 952 Marcus Pointe
Boulevard (owned by William Harvey Cardwell).  These parcels could be
utilized by the Public Safety Department for additional vehicle repair and
storage space.

[Funds for meeting the requirements of Section 46-139, Escambia County
Code of Ordinances are available in Funding Source:  Fund 408, Emergency
Services, Cost Center 330302, EMS Operations, Object Code 53101]

 



             
COUNTY ATTORNEY'S REPORT

 

I.   For Action
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE)
Financing Programs - Florida Green Finance Authority.

That the Board adopt a resolution authorizing the creation of the Florida Green
Energy Works program pursuant to the Party Membership Agreement with the
Florida Green Finance Authority.

 

2.   Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of a Public Hearing to Consider
Adopting the Santa Rosa Island Authority Buildings and Building Regulations
Ordinance Creating Sections 14-61 through 14-65 of Chapter 14, Article III of
the Escambia County Code of Ordinances 

That the Board authorize the scheduling of a Public Hearing for September 24,
2015, at 5:32 p.m. for consideration of adopting an Ordinance creating sections
14-61 through 14-65 of Chapter 14, Article III, Buildings and Building
Regulations, applicable to Pensacola Beach under the control of the Santa
Rosa Island Authority.

 

3.   Recommendation Concerning Adopting the Local Option Fuel Tax Resolution
and Authorizing the Chairman to Sign the Letter to the Department of Revenue

That the Board take the following action:

A.  Adopt the Local Option Fuel Tax Resolution listing the distribution formula
for dividing the proceeds of this tax as allowed under section 336.025(4)(a),
Fla. Stat.; and

 B.  Authorize the Chairman to sign the letter to the Department of Revenue
with a copy of Escambia County's Ordinance 2015-26 and the Resolution
adopting the distribution formula.

[RESOLUTION AND LETTER TO BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER
SEPARATE COVER]

 



             
II. For Information

 

1.   Recommendation Concerning Helen P. Scarbrough and Linda H. Dunson
Banta v. Escambia County Board of County Commissioners, Case No.: 17
2015 CA 000399

That the Board accept the following informational report concerning Helen P.
Scarbrough and Linda H. Dunson Banta v. Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners, Case No.: 17 2015 CA 000399.

 



             
11. Items added to the agenda.
 

12. Announcements.
 

13. Adjournment.
 



   
AI-8850     Proclamations      7.             
BCC Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Adoption of Proclamations
From: Jack Brown, County Administrator 
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Proclamations.

Recommendation:  That the Board adopt the following Proclamations:

A. The Proclamation commending and congratulating Jeremy Fowler, Maintenance
Technician, Facilities Management Department, Maintenance Division, on his selection
as "Employee of the Month" for September 2015; and

B. The Proclamation proclaiming September 2015 as "Library Card Sign-Up Month" in
Escambia County and calling upon all residents of this great County to join us in utilizing
the West Florida Public Libraries.
 

BACKGROUND:
On March 21, 2013, the Board approved the "Employee of the Month and Employee of
the Year Awards Program."  Each Department will submit one employee to be
nominated as the "Employee of the Month."  The County Administrator will then select
one employee from the nominations.  The employee who is selected will receive a check
in the amount of $250, a Proclamation, and a plaque that will hang in the lobby of the
Ernie Lee Magaha Government Building for that month.

Various departments, outside agencies, special interest groups, civic and religious
organizations in recognition of specific events, occasions, people, etc., request
Proclamations.

Information provided on the Proclamation is furnished by the requesting party and placed
in the proper acceptable format for BCC approval by the County Administration staff. 
Board approval is required by Board Policy Section I, A (6).

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The Employee of the Month Award Program will cost $250 per month; the Employee of



The Employee of the Month Award Program will cost $250 per month; the Employee of
the Year Award Program will cost $500 per year.  Funding is available through Fund
001, General Fund, Cost Center 150101, Object code 55201.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Human Resources Department and the County Administrator's Office will work
together to coordinate this program.

Attachments
Proclamations







   
AI-8897     Public Hearings      9.             
BCC Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: 5:31 p.m. Ordinance amending Chapter 42, Section 42-66 of the

Escambia County Code of Ordinances
From: Kerra Smith, Assistant County Attorney 
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
5:31 p.m. Public Hearing for consideration of adopting an Ordinance amending Chapter
42, Section 42-66 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances to clarify the firearms
exemption to the County Noise Abatement Ordinance. 

Recommendation:  That the Board adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 42, Section
42-66 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances to clarify the firearms exemption to
the County Noise Abatement Ordinance. 

BACKGROUND:
At its August 20, 2015 meeting, the Board approved setting the Public Hearing for
consideration of adopting the above-referenced ordinance. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
This proposed Ordinance was drafted by Assistant County Attorney, Kerra A. Smith.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
A copy of the Ordinance will be filed with the Department of State.  A copy of the



A copy of the Ordinance will be filed with the Department of State.  A copy of the
ordinance will also be provided to the Escambia County Sheriff's Office and the State
Attorney's Office for enforcement. 

Attachments
Ordinance
Proof of Publication



ORDINANCE 2015-_

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA; AMENDING
PART 1 OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, AS
AMENDED, AMENDING CHAPTER 42, ARTICLE III, "NOISE,"
SECTION 42-66, "EXEMPTIONS," TO CLARIFY THE FIREARMS
EXEMPTION TO THE COUNTY NOISE ABATEMENT ORDINANCE;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN
THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Article II, Section 7, of the Constitution of the State of Florida requires
adequate laws for the abatement of excessive and unnecessary noise; and,

WHEREAS, Section 125.01, Florida Statutes, authorizes the Board of County
Commissioners to exercise all powers and privileges not specifically prohibited by law,
and perform any lawful acts that are in the common interest of the people of the county;
and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has determined that clarifying the
firearms exemption to the County Noise Abatement Ordinance serves an important
public purpose and is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA:

SECTION 1. Chapter 42, Article III, Section 42-660) of the Escambia County Code of
Ordinances is hereby amended as follows:

Sec. 42-66. Exemptions.

Sounds caused by the following are exempt from the prohibitions set out in sections
42-64 and 42-65 and are in addition to the exemptions specifically set forth in section
42-65:

0)
Firearms. Noise caused by the discharge of firearms. However, this oxomption
This section exempts only noise resulting directly from the actual expulsion of
a projectile from a firearm and shall not be construed to extend to noise from
explosions, detonations, or other vociferous eruptions caused bv a projectile
strike or authorize the discharge of any firearm in contravention of state law.



SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY.

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid
or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no
way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

SECTION 3. INCLUSION IN THE CODE.

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of
this Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Fla. Stat. (2015); and
that the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be
renumbered or relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section",
article", or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such

intentions.

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State.

DONE AND ENACTED this day of , 2015.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS

Clerk of the Circuit Court

By:

Deputy Clerk

(SEAL)

By:

ENACTED:

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Steven Barry, Chairman

Approved as to form and legaJ
sufficiency.

By/Title:
Dale:
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pnj .com

Published Daily-Pensacola, Escambia County, FL

PROOF OF PUBLICATION

State of Florida

County of Escambia:

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared
Veronica l)e Voc-Goldsmith who, on oath, says that
she is a personal representative of the Pensaeola News
Journal, a daily newspaper published in Escambia
County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement,
being a Legal in the matter of:

Notice of Intent

Was published in said newspaper in the issue(s) of:

AUGUST 23rd, 2015

Affiant further says that the said Pensaeola News Journal
is a newspaper published in said Escambia County.
Florida, and that the said newspaper has heretofore been
published in said Escambia County, Florida, and has been
entered as second class matter at the Post Office in said

Escambia County, Florida, for a period of one year next
preceding the first publication of the attached copy of
advertisement; and affiant further says that she has neither
paid nor promised any person, firm or corporation any
discount, rebate, commission or refund for the purpose of
securing this advertisement for publication in the said
newspaper.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 25TH day of
AUGUST, 2015, by. Veronica I)e Voc-Goldsmith. who is
personally kn^fft^wne^3

Affiant

J/f- /tfcttZX, Notary Public

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADOPT ACOUNTY ORDINANCE

NOTICE IS HEREBY OIVEN of the intention of the Board of
Courty Commissioners of Escambia County Fonda at a
nuhlic hearina to be held on Sept«mb«r 3, 2015 »t MiSm In the BCC Meeting Room. Ernie Loe Magaha Govern
ment Building 221 Palafox Place. First Boor, to condor the
adoption of the following ordinance:

ftH ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA;
AMENDING PART 1 OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF
nnDlNANCES AS AMENDED, AMENDING CHAPTER 42, AR-
?irLE III "NOISE -SECTION 42-66, -EXEMPTIONS,- TO
CLARIFY"THE FIREARMS EXEMPTION TO THE COUNTYNOISE ABaWmENT ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE
CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Any interested party may appear at the> Pu%n°ra™9fa"e
ha hoard reaartfinq the proposed ordinance. A draft ot mePSXA is/vaifable 'or ™ew at the En* L»
Magaha Government Building. Deputy Clerks omce. ddi
P^JSjra^S. who decides to appeal any^decision
made with respect to any matter considered at me pub c
"earing will need a record of the proceedings of the meot-
nn <mra the Board of County Commissioners does not'mike verbatim records of its Meetings such.person may
need to independently secure a rec^. wh^h shouw in
elude the testimony or evidence on which the app«anso
be based In accordance with the Americans with Disab"
Ms AcTpersons needing a special accommoda^ticfl^in-
eroreter to participate in the public hearing should contact
Angela Crav/ey, Program Coord.nator. County Administra-
ton (850) 595-4900Tat least seven days pnor (o the date of
hearing.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Legal No. 1646325 1T August 23. 2015

MICHELE M. POTTER
Notary Public - State of Florida
Cornm.ExpiresJune 30, 201S

Comi-.. No FF 137641



   
AI-8882     Clerk & Comptroller's Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Acceptance of Documents
From: Pam Childers, Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller 
Organization: Clerk & Comptroller's Office

Recommendation:
Recommendation Concerning Acceptance of Documents Provided to the Clerk to the Board's
Office

That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following documents
provided to the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. Closing documents relating to the sale of real property, located at 2708 West Bobe
Street, to Yolanda J. Ortiz, as approved by the Board on April 20, 2006, and February 4,
2010, and received in the Clerk to the Board's Office on August 11, 2015; and

B.  Closing documents relating to the sale of real property, located at 6622 Hampton
Road, to Larry Williams, Sr., as approved by the Board on November 15, 2012, and April
2, 2013, and received in the Clerk to the Board's Office on August 17, 2015.

Attachments
Closing Documents































































   
AI-8802     Clerk & Comptroller's Report      10. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Minutes and Reports
From: Pam Childers, Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller 
Organization: Clerk & Comptroller's Office

Recommendation:
Recommendation Concerning Minutes and Reports Prepared by the Clerk to the Board's Office

That the Board take the following action concerning Minutes and Reports prepared by
the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A.  Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Agenda Work Session
held August 20, 2015; 

B.  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held August 20, 2015;

C. Approve the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting held August 13, 2015; and

D. Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Committee of the Whole
Workshop held August 13, 2015.

    (BACKUP TO BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER)

Attachments
20180820 Agenda Work Session
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA WORK SESSION 
HELD AUGUST 20, 2015 

BOARD CHAMBERS, FIRST FLOOR, ERNIE LEE MAGAHA GOVERNMENT BUILDING 
221 PALAFOX PLACE, PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 

(9:03 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.) 
 

Present: Commissioner Steven L. Barry, Chairman, District 5 
   Commissioner Grover C. Robinson IV, Vice Chairman, District 4 
   Commissioner Lumon J. May, District 3 
   Commissioner Wilson B. Robertson, District 1 
   Commissioner Douglas B. Underhill, District 2 
   Honorable Pam Childers, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller 
   Jack R. Brown, County Administrator 
   Alison Rogers, County Attorney 
   Susan Woolf, General Counsel to the Clerk 
   Lizabeth Carew, Administrative Specialist, Clerk and Comptroller's Office 
   Judy H. Witterstaeter, Program Coordinator, County Administrator's Office 
 
 
 1. FOR INFORMATION:  The agenda for the August 20, 2015, Regular Board Meeting, 

was reviewed as follows: 
 
  A. Judy H. Witterstaeter, Program Coordinator, County Administrator's Office, reviewed 

the Regular BCC agenda; 
 
  B. Honorable Pam Childers, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller, reviewed the 

Clerk's Report; 
 
  C. Horace Jones, Director, Development Services Department, reviewed the Growth 

Management Report; 
 
  D. Judy H. Witterstaeter, Program Coordinator, County Administrator's Office, reviewed 

the County Administrator's Report (CAR), with comments from David Wheeler 
regarding CAR II-9, a recommendation concerning the Agreement with the City of 
Pensacola for Interruptible Natural Gas Service, and CAR II-20, a recommendation 
concerning the Contract Award for a Design Criteria Professional for the new 
Escambia County Correctional Facility; Wes Moreno and Assistant County 
Administrator Amy Lovoy regarding CAR II-15, a recommendation concerning 
Budget Amendment Request #225; Thomas "Tom" Turner regarding CAR II-19, a 
recommendation concerning Group Medical Insurance; and Michael Tidwell, Larry 
Goodwin, and Joy Blackmon regarding CAR III-1, a recommendation concerning the 
acquisition of three contiguous parcels of real property located at 6400 North "W" 
Street; and 

 
  F. County Attorney Rogers reviewed the County Attorney's Report. 



   
AI-8734     Growth Management Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Review of Rezoning Case Heard by the Planning Board on August 4,

2015
From: Horace Jones, Department Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Rezoning Case Heard by the Planning
Board on August 4, 2015

That the Board take the following action concerning the rezoning case heard by the
Planning Board on August 4, 2015: 

Review and either adopt, modify, or overturn the Planning Board’s recommendation for
Rezoning Case Z-2015-14 or remand the case back to the Planning Board; and

A.

Authorize the Chairman to sign the Order of the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners for the rezoning case that was reviewed.

B.

1. Case No.: Z-2015-14
Address: 3245 West Fairfield Drive
Property Reference No.: 16-2S-30-1001-020-004
Property Size: 0.48 (+/-) acres
From: HDR, High Density Residential district (18 du/acre)
To: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)
FLU Category: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban
Commissioner District: 3
Requested by: John Watson, Agent for Downtown Investment Properties,

LLC, Owner
Planning Board
Recommendation:

Approval

Speakers: Ralph Neal

BACKGROUND:
The above case was owner initiated and heard at the August 4, 2015, Planning Board



The above case was owner initiated and heard at the August 4, 2015, Planning Board
Meeting. Under the Land Development Code (LDC) 2.08.00.E.1., “the Board of County
Commissioners shall review the record and the recommendation of the Planning Board
and either adopt the recommended order, modify the recommended order as set forth
therein, reject the recommended order, or remand the matter back to the Planning Board
for additional facts or clarification. Findings of fact or findings regarding legitimate public
purpose may not be rejected or modified unless they are clearly erroneous or
unsupported by the record. When rejecting or modifying conclusions of law, the Board of
County Commissioners must state with particularity its reasons for rejecting or modifying
the recommended conclusion of law and must make a finding that its substituted
conclusion of law is as or more reasonable than the conclusion that was rejected or
modified. However, the Board of County Commissioners may not modify the
recommendation to a more intensive use requested by the applicant and advertised. The
review shall be limited to the record below. Only a party of record to the proceedings
before the Planning Board or representative shall be afforded the right to address the
Board of County Commissioners and only as to the correctness of the findings of fact or
conclusions of law as based on the record. The Board of County Commissioners shall
not hear testimony."
 
To further the County’s policy of “decreasing response time from notification of citizen
needs to ultimate resolution,” the Board is acting on both the approval of the Planning
Board recommended order and the LDC Map Amendment for this month’s rezoning
case. This report item addresses only the review and upholding of the Planning Board’s
recommendation. The next report item will address the Public Hearing for the LDC
Zoning Map Amendment.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This action may increase the ad valorem tax base for Escambia County.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The recommended order is the result of deliberations by the Planning Board based on
staff analysis, public testimony, and knowledge of the Comprehensive Plan and Land
Development Code as well as case law and Florida Statutes.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Chairman will need to sign the Order of the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners either denying or approving the rezoning request. 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION: 
The case under review is presented to the Planning Board for collection of evidence. The
Planning Board conducts a quasi-judicial public hearing and issues a recommended
order to the Board.
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environment.  The proposed rezoning will not 1

increase the probability of any significant 2

adverse impacts on the natural environment.  3

At the beginning of each case, as long as 4

there are no objections from the applicant 08:40AM 5

we'll allow the staff to briefly present the 6

location and zoning map, as well as 7

photography for the property. 8

(Mr. Pyle enters.)  9

MR. BRISKE:  Next we will hear from the 08:40AM 10

applicant, and any witness that they may wish 11

to call.  Then we will hear from the staff and 12

any witnesses that they may wish to call.  13

Finally we'll hear from members of the public 14

who have filed a speaker request form.  08:40AM 15

The rezoning hearing package for August 16

4th, 2015 with the Findings-of-Fact has 17

previously been provided to all the Board 18

members.  The Chair will now entertain a 19

motion to accept the rezoning hearing package 08:40AM 20

with the Findings-of-Fact and the legal 21

advertisement into evidence.  22

Do I have a motion. 23

MR. LOWERY:  So moved. 24

MR. WINGATE:  Second. 08:40AM 25
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MR. BRISKE:  Motion by Mr. Lowry and 1

second by Mr. Wingate. 2

All those in favor, say aye.3

(Board members vote.) 4

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?08:40AM 5

(None.) 6

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries. 7

(The Motion passed unanimously.) 8

MR. BRISKE:  Good morning.  Would note 9

that Mr. Pyle has joined the meeting now.  I 08:41AM 10

earlier said we had all our members here.  11

That was an error.  Mr. Pyle just arrived to 12

the meeting, so we'll have a correction on 13

that.  14

MR. PYLE:  I apologize for the delay. 08:41AM 15

MR. BRISKE:  No problem.  16

The rezoning hearing package with the 17

Findings-of-Fact and legal advertisement will 18

be marked and included in the record as 19

Composite Exhibit A for all of today's cases.  08:41AM 20

(Composite Exhibit A, Rezoning Hearing 21

Package, was identified and admitted.) 22

We just have one case this morning.  23

(Transcript continues on Page 11.)24

     *    *   *25
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CASE NO:  Z-2015-141

Applicant:       John Watson, Agent for Downtown  2
                 Investment Properties, LLC   
Address:         3245 West Fairfield Drive3
Property Size:   0.48(+/-acres)
From:            HDR, High Density Residential    4
                 District (18 du/acre)
To:              HDMU, High Density Mixed-use     5
                 District (25 du/acre)
_____________________________________________________6

MR. BRISKE:  And the first rezoning case 7
for consideration is Case Number Z-2015-14, 8
which requests the rezoning of the property 9
from HDR, High Density Residential, to HDMU, 08:41AM 10
High Density Mixed-Use.  11

As I understand, we have a new agent, 12
Mr. Ralph Neal, who has taken over for 13
Mr. Watson.  Staff members, have we received 14
the appropriate documentation to appoint 08:42AM 15
Mr. Neal as the agent?  16

MS. BOHAN:  Yes, sir.  17
MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  Before we call 18

Mr. Neal forward, members of the Board, has 19
there been any ex parte communication between 08:42AM 20
you, the applicant, agents, attorneys, 21
witnesses, Planning Board members or anyone 22
from the general public prior to this hearing?  23
I will also ask that you disclosed if you have 24
visited the subject property or if you are a 08:42AM 25
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relative, business associate of the applicant 1

or the applicant's agent.2

Good morning, Ms. Oram. 3

MS. ORAM:  Good morning.  No to all. 4

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  Mr. Pyle?  08:42AM 5

MR. PYLE:  Likewise.  6

MR. BRISKE:  No, to all; is that correct? 7

MR. PYLE:  Yes.  I'm familiar with the 8

site. 9

MR. BRISKE:  All right.  Thank you, sir.08:42AM 10

MR. LOWERY:  I visited the site.  No to 11

all.  12

MR. BRISKE:  The Chairman.  No to all.  13

MR. TATE:  No to all.14

MR. CORDES:  No to all.  08:43AM 15

MR. WINGATE:  No to all.  I just drove by 16

and made a visit.  17

MR. BRISKE:  Mr. Rushing.18

MR. RUSHING:  No to all.19

MS. SMITH:  Mr. Chairman? 08:43AM 20

MR. BRISKE:  Yes. 21

MS. SMITH:  The documentation that was 22

submitted to substitute Mr. Neal as the agent, 23

if you would take a vote to include that into 24

the hearing packet. 08:43AM 25

850.434.5954/800.321.5954 - REPORTERS@TAYLORREPORTINGSERVICES.COM 
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MR. BRISKE:  Okay.  And could you describe 1

that document?  2

MS. SMITH:  Sure.  It is an affidavit of 3

owner and limited power of attorney that is 4

dated July the 27th of this year. 08:43AM 5

MR. TATE:  Move to accept. 6

MR. LOWERY:  Second. 7

MR. BRISKE:  Mr. Tate and Mr. Lowry.  8

All those in favor, say aye. 9

(Board members vote.) 08:43AM 10

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?11

(None.) 12

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries. 13

(Motion passed unanimously.) 14

MR. BRISKE:  Staff, was notice of the 08:43AM 15

hearing sent to all interested parties?  16

MR. HOLMER:  Yes, sir, it was. 17

MR. BRISKE:  Was that notice also 18

correctly posted on the subject property?  19

MR. HOLMER:  It was.  08:43AM 20

MR. BRISKE:  Mr. Neal, if there are no 21

objections, we'll now present the maps and the 22

photography for the case.  23

MR. NEAL:  Okay. 24

MR. BRISKE:  He's indicated none.  Who 08:44AM 25
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will be presenting this morning? 1

MR. HOLMER:  Allyson. 2

MR. BRISKE:  Allyson, if you will state 3

your name and position.4

(Presentation of Maps and Photography.)08:44AM 5

MS. CAIN:  Allyson Cain, Urban Planner.  6

This is the location map of the site located 7

on Fairfield Drive.  This is the zoning map 8

showing the HDR current zoning with some of 9

the surrounding HC/LI.  This is the Future 08:44AM 10

Land Use Map, Mixed Use Urban.  This is the 11

existing land use map.  This is the aerial 12

photography showing the parcel in red.  This 13

is the CRA overlay in green showing the 14

Englewood Overlay.  08:44AM 15

This is our public hearing sign.  This is 16

the site of the subject property on Fairfield.  17

This is looking west along Fairfield Drive 18

from the subject property.  This is looking 19

northwest across Fairfield.  This is looking 08:45AM 20

directly across Fairfield from the subject 21

property.  This is another angle from the 22

subject property looking northeast.  Looking 23

east directly on Fairfield Drive.  This is 24

looking at the adjacent property to the west 08:45AM 25
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fronting Fairfield Drive just a little bit 1

right next to the subject property.  This is 2

looking into the subject property from 3

Fairfield and this is also looking at St. John 4

Street on the other side.  This is on the back 08:45AM 5

side of the property down St. John Street.  6

MR. TATE:  Just a correction, St. John 7

Street is actually in another part of town.  8

That Johns Street. 9

MS. CAIN:  I apologize.  Johns Street.  08:46AM 10

Looking west on Johns Street.  Looking south 11

on Matthew Lane.  Looking north on Matthew 12

Lane toward Fairfield.  13

This is our 500-foot radius map from Chris 14

Jones.  This is our 500-foot mailing list that 08:46AM 15

was sent out.  And that's the end of our 16

presentation.  17

MR. BRISKE:  Board members, any questions 18

on the maps or photography?  19

Mr. Neal, please come forward.  Good 08:46AM 20

morning.  We'll have you sworn in and then 21

please state your name and address for the 22

record.  23

(Ralph Neal sworn.) 24

MR. BRISKE:  Good morning, sir.  08:46AM 25
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MR. NEAL:  Good morning.  My name is Ralph 1

Neal.  I'm with Watson Realty.  Our physical 2

address is 32 -- 6321 Piccadilly Square Drive, 3

Suite D, Mobile, Alabama 36609.  4

MR. BRISKE:  Have you received a copy of 08:47AM 5

the Rezoning Hearing Packet with the 6

Findings-of-Fact?  7

MR. NEAL:  I have. 8

MR. BRISKE:  Do you understand that you 9

have the burden of providing substantial 08:47AM 10

competent evidence that the proposed rezoning 11

is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, 12

furthers the goals, objectives and policies of 13

that Comp Plan and is not in conflict with any 14

portion of the County's Land Development Code?  08:47AM 15

MR. NEAL:  Correct, I do.  16

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir.  You may 17

proceed. 18

MR. TATE:  Mr. Neal?  19

MR. NEAL:  Yes, sir. 08:47AM 20

MR. TATE:  Could I interject just for a 21

moment before you get too deep?  We've had the 22

opportunity to review the package that you 23

provided and that the County provided to us 24

and at this point the only person who has 08:47AM 25
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signed up to speak is you, and as a result, 1

this is, if you would allow us to, we can 2

expedite this, if you would like.  By that I 3

mean we can accept staff's Findings-of-Fact, 4

if that's what you would like to accept, that 08:48AM 5

they've been in favor of this change all along 6

and take a vote and be done. 7

MR. NEAL:  I'm in favor of that, yes.  8

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Mr. Tate.  Before 9

you do that, is there anyone else from the 08:48AM 10

public that wishes to speak on this matter?  11

MS. SMITH:  Mr. Chairman, before the vote 12

is taken, I notice that this particular 13

property is in an overlay district.  The CRA 14

is not here, but I do have email 08:48AM 15

correspondence from the CRA acknowledging that 16

they are not in opposition to the rezoning.  17

It is correspondence between Ms. Cain and 18

Clara Long, dated between July the 14th and 19

July 22nd.  I think Ms. Cain can authenticate 08:48AM 20

the emails and I would like to have them 21

included in the package just for completeness 22

of the record. 23

MR. BRISKE:  Very good.  Thank you.24

Board members, first of all, let's have 08:49AM 25
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Ms. Cain explain what those are and how you 1

acquired them and printed them and everything.  2

MS. CAIN:  Yes, sir.  I did send an email 3

to Ms. Long and gave her the information for 4

the rezoning.  Actually, I sent her the 08:49AM 5

application package from the applicant and I 6

asked her to review the application package 7

and if she had any concerns or questions, that 8

they were in the Englewood Overlay District, 9

and if she would look at the rezoning and 08:49AM 10

respond to me.  And she asked for our staff 11

findings and she said that she was fine with 12

the overlay and redevelopment area.  She had 13

no concerns at this time with the rezoning to 14

HDMU. 08:49AM 15

MR. JONES:  Clare Long, she is the 16

division manager for the CRA area.  She's a 17

division manager for Escambia County CRA.18

MS. SMITH:  Ms. Cain, I do note that you 19

have before you what you've been discussing.  08:50AM 20

Are these copies in your hand true and 21

accurate copies of the correspondence you had 22

with Ms. Long?  23

MS. CAIN:  Yes, they are.  I just printed 24

them from the email this morning. 08:50AM 25

850.434.5954/800.321.5954 - REPORTERS@TAYLORREPORTINGSERVICES.COM

19

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Ms. Smith.  1

The Chair will entertain a motion to 2

accept that as part of the record. 3

MR. RUSHING:  So moved. 4

MR. WINGATE:  Second.  08:50AM 5

MR. BRISKE:  Mr. Rushing and Mr. Wingate.6

All those in favor, say aye.  7

(Board members vote.) 8

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?  9

(None.) 08:50AM 10

MR. BRISKE:  Please enter those into the 11

record as evidence in this case. 12

(Motion passed unanimously.)13

MR. BRISKE:  Mr. Tate, you have the floor.  14

MR. TATE:  Mr. Neal, thank you.  We can 08:50AM 15

make this painless or we can stretch it on for 16

hours.  Our goal is to as we can or when we 17

can complete these quickly and efficiently.  18

(Motion by Mr. Tate.) 19

MR. TATE:  I would like to move that this 08:50AM 20

Board find in favor of Case Z-2015-14 and 21

recommend that we rezone this from HDR, High 22

Density Residential, to HDMU, High Density 23

Mixed Use, and move our recommendation to the 24

Board of County Commissioners. 08:51AM 25
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MR. BRISKE:  We have a motion by Mr. Tate. 1

MR. LOWERY:  Second. 2

MR. BRISKE:  A second by Mr. Lowry.  3

Any further discussion?  All those in 4

favor, say aye.  08:51AM 5

(Board members vote.) 6

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?  7

(None.) 8

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries.  9

(Motion passed unanimously.) 08:51AM 10

MR. BRISKE:  Was that easy or what? 11

MR. NEAL:  That was easy.  Great.  Thank 12

y'all.  13

MR. BRISKE:  Good luck to you, sir. 14

All right.  Is there any additional 08:51AM 15

business for the rezoning hearing this 16

morning?  17

MR. TATE:  Mr. Chair, I have one thing 18

that's not directly related to anything 19

specific, but just to this one today.  I think 08:51AM 20

this is the first time that we actually 21

haven't had a letter from the CRA as part of 22

our package when a rezoning has been part of a 23

redevelopment area.  I mean, procedurally 24

obviously you notify them, but do we have a 08:52AM 25
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placeholder?  1

MR. JONES:  Mr. Tate, it should have been 2

in there.  Normally they would have -- the 3

email and everything should have been in the 4

backup. 08:52AM 5

MR. TATE:  Right.6

MS. CAIN:  That was an oversight on my 7

part.  8

MR. TATE:  I mean, I know the procedures 9

went through, so I just want to make sure we 08:52AM 10

have it in general.  Thank you.  11

MR. BRISKE:  Anything else for the 12

quasi-judicial hearing?  Hearing none, then we 13

are in adjournment. 14

(The proceedings concluded at 8:52 a.m.).08:52AM 15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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      CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER1
2

STATE OF FLORIDA 3
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA 4

5
          I, LINDA V. CROWE, Court Reporter and 6
Notary Public at Large in and for the State of 7
Florida, hereby certify that the foregoing Pages 2 8
through 21 both inclusive, comprise a full, true, and 9
correct transcript of the proceeding taken on 10
Tuesday, August 4, 2015; that said proceeding was 11
taken by me stenographically, and transcribed by me 12
as it now appears; that I am not a relative or 13
employee or attorney or counsel of the parties, or 14
relative or employee of such attorney or counsel, nor 15
am I interested in this proceeding or its outcome. 16
          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my 17
hand and affixed my official seal on August 14, 2015.  18
                      19
                 _________________________20
                 LINDA V. CROWE, COURT REPORTER
                 Notary Public - State of Florida 21
                 My Commission No.:  EE 860695
                 My Commission Expires:  02-05-201722

23
24
25
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Planning Board-Rezoning   5. A.           
Meeting Date: 08/04/2015  
CASE : Z-2015-14
APPLICANT: John Watson, agent for Downtown Investments, LLC 

ADDRESS: 3245 W. Fairfield Dr 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 16-2S-30-1001-020-004
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed Use Urban  
DISTRICT: 3  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 09/03/2015 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: HDR, High Density Residential district (18 du/acre)

TO: HDMU, High Density Mixed use district (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469
(Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan,
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and
policies of the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any of the
plan's provisions.
Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New
development and redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be
consistent with the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land
Use Map (FLUM).
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CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.  The Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U)
Future Land Use (FLU) category is intended for an intense mix of residential and
nonresidential uses while promoting compatible infill development and the
separation of urban and suburban land uses within the category as a whole.
Range of allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and Services, Professional
Office, Light Industrial, Recreational Facilities, Public and Civic. The maximum
residential density is 25 dwelling units per acre.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to High Density Mixed-Use (HDMU) is consistent with
the Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use category Mixed-Use Urban
(MU-U).  The MU-U category promotes the use of public services, existing roads
and infrastructures.  The increase in maximum residential density is  consistent
with the allowable uses of the Urban future land use category, to promote
compact development and allow a mix of residential and non-residential uses.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and
is consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.
Sec. 3-2.8      High Density Residential district (HDR)
(a) Purpose.  The High Density Residential (HDR) district establishes appropriate
areas and land use regulations for residential uses at high densities within urban
areas.  The primary intent of the district is to provide for residential neighborhood
development in an efficient urban pattern of well-connected streets and at greater
dwelling unit density and diversity than the Medium Density Residential district. 
Residential uses within the HDR district include most forms of single-family,
two-family and multi-family dwellings.  On residential uses within the district are
limited to those that are compatible with urban residential neighborhoods
Sec. 3-2.9 High Density Mixed-use district (HDMU).
(a) Purpose. The High Density Mixed-Use (HDMU) district establishes
appropriate areas and land use regulations for a complimentary mix of high
density residential uses and compatible non-residential uses within urban areas.
The primary intent of the district is to provide for a mix of neighborhood retail
sales, services and professional offices with greater dwelling unit density and
diversity than the Low Density Mixed-Use district. Additionally, the HDMU district
is intended to rely on urban street connectivity and encourage vertical mixes of
commercial and residential uses within the same building to accommodate a
physical pattern of development characteristic of village main streets and older
neighborhood commercial areas. Residential uses within the district include all
forms of single-family, two-family and multi-family dwellings.
(f) Location criteria.  All new non-residential uses proposed within the HDMU
district that are not part of a predominantly residential development or a planned
unit development, or are not identified as exempt by district regulations, shall be
on parcels that satisfy at least one of the following location criteria:
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(1) Proximity to intersection.  Along an arterial or collector street and within 200
feet of an intersection with another arterial or collector.
(2) Proximity to traffic generator.  Along an arterial or collector street and within
a one-quarter mile radius of an individual traffic generator of more than 600 daily
trips, such as an apartment complex, military base, college campus, hospital,
shopping mall or similar generator.
(3) Infill development.  Along an arterial or collector street, in an area where
already established non-residential uses are otherwise consistent with the HDMU
district, and where the new use would constitute infill development of similar
intensity as the conforming development on surrounding parcels.  Additionally, the
location would promote compact development and not contribute to or promote
strip commercial development.
(4) Site design.  Along an arterial street and at the intersection with a local street
that serves to connect the arterial street to another arterial, and all of the following
site design conditions:
a. Any intrusion into a recorded residential subdivision is limited to a corner lot
b. Access and stormwater management is shared with adjoining uses or
properties to the extent practicable.
c. Adverse impacts to any adjoining residential uses are minimized by placing the
more intensive elements of the use, such as solid waste dumpsters and truck
loading/unloading areas, furthest from the residential uses.
(5) Documented compatibility.  A compatibility analysis prepared by the
applicant provides competent substantial evidence of unique circumstances
regarding the parcel or use that were not anticipated by the alternative criteria,
and the proposed use will be able to achieve long-term compatibility with existing
and potential uses.  Additionally, the following conditions exist:
a. The parcel has not been rezoned by the landowner from the mixed-use,
commercial, or industrial zoning assigned by the county.
b. If the parcel is within a county redevelopment district, the use will be consistent
with the district’s adopted redevelopment plan, as reviewed and recommended by
the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA).
(g) Rezoning to HDMU.   High Density Mixed-use zoning may be established only
within the Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) or Commercial (C) future land use
categories.  The district is suitable for areas where the intermixing of uses has
been the custom, where future uses are uncertain, and some redevelopment is
probable.  The district inappropriate to provide transitions between areas zoned or
used for medium or high density residential and areas zoned or used for
commercial.  Rezoning to HDMU is subject to the same location criteria as any
new non-residential use proposed within the HDMU district.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. The parcel is along West Fairfield Drive, an arterial roadway
with heavy commercial traffic and is adjacent to other parcels with similar
commercial uses.  Due to the mixed use characteristics of the surrounding area,
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commercial uses.  Due to the mixed use characteristics of the surrounding area,
the proposed zoning would be considered infill development and meet  the
locational criteria.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses
Whether all land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the
proposed zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities
and conditions and able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a stable fashion
over time such that no use, activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The
appropriateness of the rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be
proposed but is evident for all permitted uses of the requested zoning.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the
area.
Within the 500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts
HDR, HC/LI and Com . The surrounding parcels are a mixture of commercial and
residential uses.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Changed conditions
Whether the area to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, or is
changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to encourage new uses,
density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.

FINDINGS
Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or
property(s).

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Development patterns
Whether the proposed rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and
orderly development pattern.

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development
pattern. The parcel is on an arterial roadway and is in close proximity to
commercial properties and would be compatible with the permitted uses listed in
the HDMU zoning.

Criterion f., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Effect on natural environment;
Whether the proposed rezoning would increase the probability of any significant
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adverse impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not 
indicated on the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site
Plan Review process will be necessary to determine if there would be any
significant adverse impact on the natural environment.

Attachments
Z-2015-14
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Public Hearing signPublic Hearing sign
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Subject property
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Looking west along Fairfield Dr from subject propertyLooking west along Fairfield Dr from subject property
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Looking northwest across Fairfield DrLooking northwest across Fairfield Dr
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Looking directly across Fairfield Dr from subject propertyLooking directly across Fairfield Dr from subject property
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Looking northeast across Fairfield Dr from subject propertyLooking northeast across Fairfield Dr from subject property
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Looking east on Fairfield DrLooking east on Fairfield Dr
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Looking at adjacent parcel to the west fronting Fairfield DrLooking at adjacent parcel to the west fronting Fairfield Dr.
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L ki i t bj t t f F i fi ld DLooking into subject property from Fairfield Dr.
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Looking into back of property from John StLooking into back of property from John St
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Looking east on John St; behind propertyLooking east on John St; behind property
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Looking west on John StLooking west on John St
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Looking south on Matthews LaneLooking south on Matthews Lane
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Looking North on Matthews LaneLooking North on Matthews Lane
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RECEIPT

Development Services Department

Building Inspections Division
3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, Florida, 32505

(850) 595-3550

Molino Office - (850) 587-5770

CASTILLSCashier ID :

07/06/2015Date Issued. : 639557Receipt No. :

Application No. : PRZ150600012

Project Name : Z-2015-14

Method of Payment Reference Document Amount Paid Comment

PAYMENT INFO

Check

$1,270.501757 App ID : PRZ150600012

$1,270.50 Total Check

Received From :

Total Receipt Amount :

Change Due :

DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

$1,270.50

$0.00

Job AddressBalanceInvoice AmtInvoice #Application #

APPLICATION INFO

3245 W FAIRFIELD DR, PENSACOLA, 32505PRZ150600012  730538 $0.00 1,270.50

Total Amount : $0.00
Balance Due on this/these 

Application(s) as of 7/8/2015
 1,270.50

Page 1 of 1Receipt.rpt
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AI-8737     Growth Management Report      10. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Public Hearing             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: 5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing to Amend the Official Zoning Map
From: Horace Jones, Department Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing for Consideration of Adopting an Ordinance Amending the Official
Zoning Map

That the Board adopt an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map to include the
rezoning case heard by the Planning Board on August 4, 2015, and approved during the
previous agenda item and to provide for severability, inclusion in the code, and an
effective date.

BACKGROUND:
Rezoning case Z-2015-14 was heard by the Planning Board on August 4, 2015. Under
the Land Development Code (LDC), the Board of County Commissioners reviews the
record and the recommended order of the Planning Board and conducts a Public
Hearing for adoption of the LDC Zoning Map Amendment. 
 
As a means of achieving the Board’s goal of “decreasing response time from notification
of citizen needs to ultimate resolution,” the Board is acting on both the approval of the
Planning Board’s recommendation and the LDC Map Amendment for this month’s
rezoning case.
 
The previous report item addresses the Board’s determination regarding the Planning
Board’s recommendation. This report item addresses only the Public Hearing and
adoption of the Ordinance amending the LDC Official Zoning Map.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impacts are expected as a result of the recommended Board action.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
A copy of the standardized Ordinance has initially been provided to the County
Attorney’s office for review regarding compliance with rezoning requirements in Florida
Statutes and the Land Development Code.



PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are anticipated for the implementation of this recommended
Board action.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Board Chairman will need to sign the Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the Land Development Code Official Zoning Map, will be filed
with the Department of State following adoption by the Board.
 
This Ordinance is coordinated with the County Attorney’s Office, the Development
Services Department and interested citizens. The Development Services Department
will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance
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ORDINANCE NUMBER 2015-______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART III OF THE 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 
AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 3, ARTICLE 1, SECTION 3-1.3(b), 
THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent. 

The Official Zoning Map of Escambia County, Florida, as adopted by reference and 
codified in Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 
Code of Escambia County, Florida, as amended:  Chapter 3, Article 1, Section 3-1.3(b), 
and all notations, references and information shown thereon as it relates to the following 
described real property in Escambia County, Florida, is hereby amended, as follows. 
 

Case No.:   Z-2015-14 
Address: 3245 West Fairfield Drive 
Property Reference No.: 16-2S-30-1001-020-004 
Property Size: 0.48 (+/-) acres 
From: HDR, High Density Residential district (18 

du/acre) 
To:  HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 

du/acre) 
FLU Category: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban 

Section 2. Severability. 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 

Section 3. Inclusion in Code. 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2014); and that the sections, 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 



 

2 

Section 4. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 

DONE AND ENACTED by the Board of County Commissioners of  

Escambia County Florida, this ________day of __________________, 2015. 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
        ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
____________________________ 

Steven Barry, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:  PAM CHILDERS 
       CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 
 
                ____________________________ 
                                  Deputy Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ENACTED: 
 
FILED WITH DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:   



   
AI-8738     Growth Management Report      10. 3.             
BCC Regular Meeting Public Hearing             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: 5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing to Review an Ordinance Amending Chapter

2, LDC Development and Compliance Review
From: Horace Jones, Department Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing to Review an Ordinance Amending LDC Chapter 2, Development
and Compliance Review

That the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) review and adopt an Ordinance to the
Land Development Code (LDC) Chapter 2, Section 2-7.2, "LDC Zoning Map and Text
amendments," to clarify the procedures related to rezoning applications and
requirements for board action.

BACKGROUND:
Since the adoption of the LDC on April 16, 2015, it has been the goal of the County to
clarify the procedures to be used for the rezoning applications and requirements for
board action on rezoning requests.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Kerra
Smith, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached
herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared in cooperation with the Development Services
Department, the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The Development
Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance
Clean Ordinance
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ORDINANCE NUMBER 2015-____ 1 
 2 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA; 5 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2, SECTION 2-7.2, “LDC ZONING MAP AND 6 
TEXT AMENDMENTS” TO CLARIFY THE PROCEDURES RELATED 7 
TO REZONING APPLICATIONS AND THE REQUIREMENTS FOR 8 
BOARD ACTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 9 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 10 
DATE. 11 
 12 
WHEREAS, Section 125.01, Florida Statutes empowers the Escambia County 13 

Board of County Commissioners  to establish, coordinate, and enforce zoning 14 
regulations for the protection of the public; and  15 

 16 
WHEREAS, through its Land Development Code, the Board desires to preserve 17 

the county as a desirable community in which to live, vacation and do business; and  18 
 19 
WHEREAS, the Board finds that clarifying the procedures to be used for 20 

rezoning applications and the requirements for board action on rezoning requests 21 
serves an important public purpose;  22 

 23 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 24 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 25 
 26 
Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land 27 
Development Code of Escambia County, Chapter 2, Section 2-7.2(b) is hereby 28 
amended as follows: (words underlined are additions and words stricken are deletions): 29 
 30 
Sec. 2-7.2 LDC zoning map and text amendments.   31 
 32 
(b) Zoning map amendment (Rezoning application)  33 

(1) Application. An application for a rezoning shall be submitted to the clerk of the 34 
Planning Board at least 30 business days prior to the scheduled board meeting. 35 
If the application concerns property under the jurisdiction of the Santa Rosa 36 
Island Authority (SRIA), the application shall be submitted to the clerk of the 37 
SRIA at least 30 business days prior to the scheduled board meeting.

(2) Public participation. 

 A pre-38 
application meeting of the applicant with the staff for the board is recommended 39 
to discuss the process and review county and applicant responsibilities.  40 

 41 
Hearings to consider a rezoning application shall be open 42 

to the public. Prior to any such hearing, the clerk of the reviewing board shall 43 
provide reasonable notice to the public as required by Florida Statutes and the 44 
Comprehensive Plan. The clerk of the Planning Board shall ensure that adequate 45 
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public notice is consistent with Florida Statutes and the Comprehensive Plan 1 
provided.  2 

 3 
(3) Compliance review. The Planning Board shall conduct a A quasi-judicial public 4 

hearing shall be conducted by the appropriate reviewing board to consider the a 5 
requested rezoning according to the provisions of this article. At the conclusion of 6 
the hearing, based on the record of evidence, the Planning reviewing Bboard 7 
shall submit a recommendation to the BCC for rezoning approval, denial, or if 8 
possible appropriate and acceptable to the applicant, approval of a district with 9 
less intensive uses than the requested zoning.  10 

 11 
(4) Approval conditions. The applicant has the burden of presenting competent 12 

substantial evidence to the Planning Board reviewing board that establishes each 13 
of the following conditions: 14 
a. Consistent with Comprehensive Plan. The proposed rezoning is consistent 15 
with the goals, objectives, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and not in 16 
conflict with any of its provisions.  17 
b. Consistent with LDC. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the stated 18 
purposes and intent of the LDC and not in conflict with any of its provisions.  19 
c. Compatibility. All land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed 20 
by the proposed zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, 21 
activities and conditions and are able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a 22 
stable fashion over time such that no use, activity, or condition negatively 23 
impacts another. The appropriateness of the rezoning is not limited to any 24 
specific use that may be proposed but is evident for all permitted uses of the 25 
requested zoning. This condition shall not apply to any conditional uses of the 26 
proposed district or compatibility with nonconforming or unapproved uses, 27 
activities, or conditions.  28 
d. Changed conditions. The area to which the proposed rezoning would apply 29 
has changed, or is changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to 30 
encourage new uses, density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.  31 
e. Development patterns. The proposed rezoning would contribute to or result 32 
in a logical and orderly development pattern.  33 
f. Effect on natural environment. The proposed rezoning would not increase 34 
the probability of any significant adverse impacts on the natural environment.  35 
 36 

(5) Board Action. When the reviewing board finds from the record of the hearing 37 
that the applicant has presented competent substantial evidence establishing the 38 
required conditions, Tthe reviewing board shall recommend approval of the 39 
rezoning request to the BCC, unless the reviewing board determines that 40 
maintaining the current zoning designations shall will prevent the following:  41 
a. Premature development or sprawl. The land uses and development 42 
activities allowed by the proposed rezoning are not premature, and or the 43 
rezoning would not likely create or contribute to an urban sprawl pattern of 44 
development more than the current zoning.  45 
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b. Isolated districts. The proposed rezoning would not create or contribute to an 1 
isolated zoning district that is neither related to the adjacent and nearby zoning 2 
districts nor an appropriate transition between them.  3 
c. Intrusion of non-residential uses. The proposed rezoning would not allow an 4 
intrusion of commercial or industrial uses into a platted residential subdivision or 5 
other established residential area more than the current zoning.  6 
d. Property value impacts. The land uses, development activities and 7 
conditions allowed by the proposed rezoning would not likely result in significant 8 
adverse impacts upon the property values of adjacent properties or those in the 9 
immediate area more than the types of use, activities, and conditions permitted 10 
by the current zoning.  11 
e. Nuisance-based impacts. The land uses, development activities and 12 
conditions allowed by the proposed rezoning would not likely adversely impact 13 
the character of existing development or quality of life in the general area or 14 
neighborhood by creating excessive traffic, noise, lights, vibration, fumes, odors, 15 
dust, physical activities, or other detrimental effects or nuisances more than the 16 
types of uses, activities and conditions permitted by the current zoning.  17 
 18 

(6) Final determination. The BCC at its scheduled hearing shall adopt, modify, or 19 
reject the recommendation of the Planning Board or SRIA or return the rezoning 20 
case to the board with instructions for additional facts or clarification. The staff of 21 
the recommending board shall inform the board of all formal actions taken by the 22 
BCC on the rezoning request.  23 

 24 
(7) Appeals. Actions by the BCC adopting, rejecting, or modifying the recommended 25 

rezoning of the reviewing board are final. Any party seeking judicial review of the 26 
final determination shall do so according to the general provisions of Article 1. 27 
Additionally, written notice of the filing of any such petition for judicial review shall 28 
be promptly provided by the petitioner through the county to each owner of real 29 
property with any portion within a 500-foot radius of the rezoning subject 30 
property. 31 

 32 
Section 2.     Severability.  33 
 34 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 35 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 36 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 37 
 38 
Section 3. Inclusion in Code. 39 
 40 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 41 
ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the 42 
sections, subsections and other provisions of this ordinance may be renumbered or re-43 
lettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 44 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 45 
 46 
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Section 4. Effective Date. 1 
 2 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 3 
 4 
 5 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2015. 6 
 7 
       BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 8 
       OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 9 
  10 
 11 
                                                                        By: ______________________________ 12 
             Steven Barry, Chairman 13 
 14 
ATTEST:    Pam Childers                                             15 
    Clerk of the Circuit Court 16 

 17 
By: __________________________    18 
   Deputy Clerk  19 
 20 
(SEAL) 21 
 22 
ENACTED: 23 
 24 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    25 
 26 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  27 
 28 

 29 
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ORDINANCE NUMBER 2015-____ 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2, SECTION 2-7.2, “LDC ZONING MAP AND 
TEXT AMENDMENTS” TO CLARIFY THE PROCEDURES RELATED 
TO REZONING APPLICATIONS AND THE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
BOARD ACTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 125.01, Florida Statutes empowers the Escambia County 

Board of County Commissioners  to establish, coordinate, and enforce zoning 
regulations for the protection of the public; and  

 
WHEREAS, through its Land Development Code, the Board desires to preserve 

the county as a desirable community in which to live, vacation and do business; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds that clarifying the procedures to be used for 

rezoning applications and the requirements for board action on rezoning requests 
serves an important public purpose;  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land 
Development Code of Escambia County, Chapter 2, Section 2-7.2(b) is hereby 
amended as follows: (words underlined are additions and words stricken are deletions): 
 
Sec. 2-7.2 LDC zoning map and text amendments.   
 
(b) Zoning map amendment (Rezoning application)  

(1) Application. An application for a rezoning shall be submitted to the clerk of the 
Planning Board at least 30 business days prior to the scheduled board meeting. 
If the application concerns property under the jurisdiction of the Santa Rosa 
Island Authority (SRIA), the application shall be submitted to the clerk of the 
SRIA at least 30 business days prior to the scheduled board meeting. A pre-
application meeting of the applicant with the staff for the board is recommended 
to discuss the process and review county and applicant responsibilities.  

 
(2) Public participation. Hearings to consider a rezoning application shall be open 

to the public. Prior to any such hearing, the clerk of the reviewing board shall 
provide reasonable notice to the public as required by Florida Statutes and the 
Comprehensive Plan. The clerk of the Planning Board shall ensure that adequate 



2 
 

public notice is consistent with Florida Statutes and the Comprehensive Plan 
provided.  

 
(3) Compliance review. The Planning Board shall conduct a A quasi-judicial public 

hearing shall be conducted by the appropriate reviewing board to consider the a 
requested rezoning according to the provisions of this article. At the conclusion of 
the hearing, based on the record of evidence, the Planning reviewing Bboard 
shall submit a recommendation to the BCC for rezoning approval, denial, or if 
possible appropriate and acceptable to the applicant, approval of a district with 
less intensive uses than the requested zoning.  

 
(4) Approval conditions. The applicant has the burden of presenting competent 

substantial evidence to the Planning Board reviewing board that establishes each 
of the following conditions: 
a. Consistent with Comprehensive Plan. The proposed rezoning is consistent 
with the goals, objectives, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and not in 
conflict with any of its provisions.  
b. Consistent with LDC. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the stated 
purposes and intent of the LDC and not in conflict with any of its provisions.  
c. Compatibility. All land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed 
by the proposed zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, 
activities and conditions and are able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a 
stable fashion over time such that no use, activity, or condition negatively 
impacts another. The appropriateness of the rezoning is not limited to any 
specific use that may be proposed but is evident for all permitted uses of the 
requested zoning. This condition shall not apply to any conditional uses of the 
proposed district or compatibility with nonconforming or unapproved uses, 
activities, or conditions.  
d. Changed conditions. The area to which the proposed rezoning would apply 
has changed, or is changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to 
encourage new uses, density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.  
e. Development patterns. The proposed rezoning would contribute to or result 
in a logical and orderly development pattern.  
f. Effect on natural environment. The proposed rezoning would not increase 
the probability of any significant adverse impacts on the natural environment.  
 

(5) Board Action. When the reviewing board finds from the record of the hearing 
that the applicant has presented competent substantial evidence establishing the 
required conditions, Tthe reviewing board shall recommend approval of the 
rezoning request to the BCC, unless the reviewing board determines that 
maintaining the current zoning designations shall will prevent the following:  
a. Premature development or sprawl. The land uses and development 
activities allowed by the proposed rezoning are not premature, and or the 
rezoning would not likely create or contribute to an urban sprawl pattern of 
development more than the current zoning.  
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b. Isolated districts. The proposed rezoning would not create or contribute to an 
isolated zoning district that is neither related to the adjacent and nearby zoning 
districts nor an appropriate transition between them.  
c. Intrusion of non-residential uses. The proposed rezoning would not allow an 
intrusion of commercial or industrial uses into a platted residential subdivision or 
other established residential area more than the current zoning.  
d. Property value impacts. The land uses, development activities and 
conditions allowed by the proposed rezoning would not likely result in significant 
adverse impacts upon the property values of adjacent properties or those in the 
immediate area more than the types of use, activities, and conditions permitted 
by the current zoning.  
e. Nuisance-based impacts. The land uses, development activities and 
conditions allowed by the proposed rezoning would not likely adversely impact 
the character of existing development or quality of life in the general area or 
neighborhood by creating excessive traffic, noise, lights, vibration, fumes, odors, 
dust, physical activities, or other detrimental effects or nuisances more than the 
types of uses, activities and conditions permitted by the current zoning.  
 

(6) Final determination. The BCC at its scheduled hearing shall adopt, modify, or 
reject the recommendation of the Planning Board or SRIA or return the rezoning 
case to the board with instructions for additional facts or clarification. The staff of 
the recommending board shall inform the board of all formal actions taken by the 
BCC on the rezoning request.  

 
(7) Appeals. Actions by the BCC adopting, rejecting, or modifying the recommended 

rezoning of the reviewing board are final. Any party seeking judicial review of the 
final determination shall do so according to the general provisions of Article 1. 
Additionally, written notice of the filing of any such petition for judicial review shall 
be promptly provided by the petitioner through the county to each owner of real 
property with any portion within a 500-foot radius of the rezoning subject 
property. 

 
Section 2.     Severability.  
 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 3. Inclusion in Code. 
 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the 
sections, subsections and other provisions of this ordinance may be renumbered or re-
lettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 
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Section 4. Effective Date. 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 
 
 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
       BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
       OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
  
 
                                                                        By: ______________________________ 
             Steven Barry, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:    Pam Childers                                             
    Clerk of the Circuit Court 

 
By: __________________________    
   Deputy Clerk  
 
(SEAL) 
 
ENACTED: 
 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  
 

 



   
AI-8766     Growth Management Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Schedule of Public Hearings
From: Horace Jones, Department Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of Public Hearings

That the Board authorize the scheduling of the following Public Hearings:

A. Thursday, September 24, 2015

5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing - Density and Uses Savings Clause Ordinance

B. Thursday, October 8, 2015

1. 5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing to amend the official Zoning map to include the following
Rezoning cases heard by the Planning Board on September 1, 2015.

a. Case No.: Z-2015-12
Address: 9600 Block Tower Ridge Road
Property
Reference No.:

01-1S-32-1000-070-003; 01-1S-32-1000-050-003; 01-1S-32-1000-050-004;
01-1S-32-1000-110-003; 01-1S-32-1000-080-003; 01-1S-32-1000-120-004

Property Size: 78.72 (+/-) acres
From: RMU, Rural Mixed-use district (two du/acre)
To: LDMU, Low Density Mixed-use district (seven du/acre)
FLU Category: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban
Commissioner
District

1

Requested by: Kerry Anne Schultz, Agent for The Busbee Limited Partnership and Murphy
J. Jacob Trust

b. Case No.: Z-2015-13
Address: Detailed Specific Area Plan
Property
Reference No.:

Multiple

Property Size: 950 (+/-) acres



From: Agricultural district (Agr), density of one dwelling unit per 20 acres and Rural
Mixed-use district (RMU), density of two dwelling units per acre. 

To: Low Density Residential district (LDR), Detailed Specific Area Plan
(DSAP) Land Use Conservation Neighborhood with a maximum density of 3
dwelling units per net acre; Medium Density Residential district (MDR),
DSAP Land Use Suburban Garden, with a maximum density of 10 dwelling
units per acre; High Density Residential district (HDR), DSAP Land Use
Traditional Garden, with a maximum density of 15 dwelling units per acre; 
High Density Residential district (HDR), DSAP Land Use Traditional
Village, with a maximum density of 20 dwelling units per acre; High Density
Mixed-use district (HDMU), DSAP Land Use Neighborhood Center, with a
maximum gross floor area of 15,000 square feet; Commercial district
(Com), DSAP Land Use Village Center, with a maximum gross floor area of
200,000 square feet.

FLU Category: AG, Agriculture and RC, Rural Community
Commissioner
District

5

Requested by: J. Dan Gilmore, Agent for Exit 3 Investments, LLC, Owner

2. 5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing - Comp Plan Text Amendment - OBJ CIE 1.2 Five-Year
Schedule - CPA-2015-07 (first of two public hearings)

3. 5:47 p.m. - A Public Hearing - CRA Overlay Standards Ordinance

4. 5:48 p.m. - A Public Hearing - Small Scale Amendment 2015-06 - Saufley Field Road

5. 5:49 p.m. - A Public Hearing - SRIA Setback Ordinance (first of two public hearings)

6. 5:50 p.m. - A Public Hearing - SRIA Flood Plain Management Ordinance

7. 5:51 p.m. - A Public Hearing - Height Ordinance

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-8744     County Administrator's Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Request for Disposition of Property
From: Judy Witterstaeter, Program Coordinator 
Organization: Escambia County Health Department
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Obsolete Property for the State of
Florida Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department - John J. Lanza, MD, PhD,
MPH, FAAP, Director

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the State of
Florida Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department, and authorize the
disposition of all the assets described in the list provided.  All of the assets listed are
County assets held and utilized by the State of Florida Department of Health, Escambia
County Health Department and have been found to be of no further usefulness to the
County; thus it is requested that the items be auctioned as surplus or disposed of
properly.

BACKGROUND:
Florida Statutes requires the Board of County Commissioners to declare surplus all
assets listed on the County's fixed asset inventory that will be disposed.  The surplus
property listed on the attached Request for Disposition of Property has been checked,
declared to be obsolete and/or of no use to the County and suitable to be auctioned or
properly disposed.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:



This recommendation is in compliance with FS 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1,2, Section II,
Procedures for Disposition of County Property.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Items have minimal residual value.  Recommend that items be picked up for recycling.

Attachments
Disposition equip 9 2015







   
AI-8745     County Administrator's Report      10. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Request for Disposition of Property
From: Judy Witterstaeter, Program Coordinator 
Organization: Escambia County Health Department
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Vehicles for the State of Florida
Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department - John J. Lanza, MD, PhD, MPH,
FAAP, Director

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the State of
Florida Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department, and authorize the
disposition of all vehicles described on the Request Form.  All of the assets listed are
County assets held and utilized by the State of Florida Department of Health, Escambia
County Health Department and have been found to be of no further usefulness to the
County; thus it is requested that the items be auctioned as surplus or disposed of
properly.

BACKGROUND:
Florida Statutes requires the Board of County Commissioners to declare surplus all
assets listed on the County's fixed asset inventory that will be disposed.  The surplus
property listed on the attached Request for Disposition of Property has been checked,
declared to be obsolete and/or of no use to the County and suitable to be auctioned or
properly disposed.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:



This recommendation is in compliance with FS 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1,2, Section II,
Procedures for Disposition of County Property.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Vehicles have been moved to the Escambia County Road Department.

Attachments
Disposition Vehicles 9 2015





   
AI-8746     County Administrator's Report      10. 3.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Request for Disposition of Property
From: Judy Witterstaeter, Program Coordinator 
Organization: Escambia County Health Department
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property by the State of Florida
Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department - John J. Lanza, MD, PhD, MPH,
FAAP, Director

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the State of
Florida Department of Health, Escambia County Health Department, and authorize the
disposition of all assets described on the Request Form.  All of the assets listed are
County assets held and utilized by the State of Florida Department of Health, Escambia
County Health Department and have been found to be of no further usefulness to the
County.  

BACKGROUND:
Florida Statutes requires the Board of County Commissioners to declare surplus all
assets listed on the County's fixed asset inventory that will be disposed.  The surplus
property listed on the attached Request for Disposition of Property has been checked
and is of no use to the County and suitable to be disposed.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with FS 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1,2, Section II,



This recommendation is in compliance with FS 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1,2, Section II,
Procedures for Disposition of County Property.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Escambia County Health Department will deliver the equipment to the Escambia County
School District.

Attachments
Disposition School dist





   
AI-8819     County Administrator's Report      10. 4.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Request for Disposition of Property 
From: Mike Weaver, Department Director 
Organization: Public Safety
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the Public Safety
Department - Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety Department Director

That the Board approve the three Request for Disposition of Property Forms for the
Public Safety Department, for property described and listed on the Request Forms, with
reasons for disposition stated.

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County policy establishes the procedures for disposing of surplus or obsolete
equipment. The surplus property listed on the attached Request for Disposition of
Property Forms has been checked, declared to be obsolete and/ or no use to the
County, and suitable to be auctioned or properly disposed.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with FS 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1,2, Section H,
Procedures for Disposition of County Property.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval by the BCC, all property will be disposed of according to the Disposition



Upon approval by the BCC, all property will be disposed of according to the Disposition
of County Property Policy.

Attachments
Disposition of Property Form









   
AI-8787     County Administrator's Report      10. 5.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Public Hearing to Amend the Contractor Competency Board Ordinance
From: Donald R. Mayo, Building Official/Department Director 
Organization: Building Services
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of a Public Hearing - Donald R. Mayo,
Building Official/Building Services Department Director

That the Board authorize the scheduling of a Public Hearing on September 24, 2015, at
5:31 p.m., concerning the review of Amendments to an Ordinance pertaining to the
Contractor Competency Board - Chapter 18, Article II, Division 2, Section 18-56 and
Chapter 18, Article II, Division 3, Section 18-80, of the Escambia County Code of
Ordinances.

BACKGROUND:
The Contractor Competency Board Ordinance was established to regulate licensed
contractors in construction activities for which a County Certificate of Competency or
state certification/registration is required in order to protect consumers requiring
contracting services.  The amended ordinance reduces the number of members from 15
to 9 in accordance with F.S. § 162.05(2) that sets forth requirements for a local
government enforcement board and defines the membership requirements.  The
amendment is also intended to require any Certificate of Competency expired for a
period of three years or greater to retest; and makes the ordinance more comprehensive
by clarifying certificate renewal, restoration, termination and re-examination.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Ordinance was reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Meredith D.
Crawford, Assistant County Attorney.  A copy of the Draft Ordinance is provided for
review until after the Ordinance is adopted at the September 24, 2015, BCC Meeting.  
 

PERSONNEL:



PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Chapter 18, Article II of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, enacted on August 7,
2004, establishes the Escambia County Contractor Competency Board and vests the
Competency Board with certain duties related to the licensing of contractors in Escambia
County.  
 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Ordinance 2015___Amending 18_56 and 18_80



                                                                                                                 

  

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2015-___ 1 

 2 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 3 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 18, ARTICLE 4 
II, DIVISION 2, SECTION 18-56 OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE 5 
OF ORDINANCES BY REDUCING THE NUMBER OF CONTRACTOR 6 
COMPETENCY BOARD MEMBERS; AMENDING CHAPTER 18, 7 
ARTICLE II, DIVISION 3, SECTION 18-80 OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY 8 

CODE OF ORDINANCES REQUIRING REEXAMINATION FOR 9 
CERTIFICATES OF COMPETENCY EXPIRED FOR A PERIOD OF TIME 10 
OF THREE YEARS OR GREATER; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 11 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN 12 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 13 

 14 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 18, Article II of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances 15 

establishes the Escambia County Contractor Competency Board and vests the 16 

Competency Board with certain duties related to the licensing of contractors in 17 

Escambia County; and   18 

 WHEREAS, the Escambia County Building Official has identified two areas 19 

where greater efficiencies may occur in the administration of the Competency Board’s 20 

licensing program; and   21 

 WHEREAS, the Building Official desires to reduce the Competency Board’s 22 

membership from 15 members to 9 members in accordance with F.S. § 162.05(2) that 23 

sets forth requirements for a local government enforcement board; and  24 

   WHEREAS, the Building Official also requests that reexamination be required for 25 

Certificates of Competency expired for a period of three years or greater; and  26 

 WHEREAS, both changes will require amendments to Chapter 18, Article II; and 27 

 WHEREAS, the Building Official has presented both requests to the Competency 28 

Board and they concur with the necessity of the amendments; and 29 



                                                                                                                                                       

2 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds that these amendments 1 

will result in a more efficient and expeditious licensing program for contractors operating 2 

in Escambia County, and that the amendments therefore advance the public health, 3 

safety, and welfare. 4 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 5 

COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 6 

SECTION 1.   7 

Chapter 18, Article II, Division 2, Section 18-56 of the Escambia County Code of 8 

Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows (words underlined are additions and 9 

words stricken are deletions): 10 

Sec. 18-56. – Contractor competency board. 11 

(a) The county contractor competency board is hereby authorized to perform the 12 

duties set forth in this article. The contractor competency board shall consist of 15 9 13 

members who are residents of Escambia County appointed by the board of county 14 

commissioners as follows: a general contractor, a building contractor or residential 15 

contractor, a sheet metal or specialty structure contractor, a roofing contractor, an air-16 

conditioning contractor, or a mechanical contractor, a swimming pool/spa contractor, a 17 

master plumber, an irrigation sprinkler contractor, master gas contractor, an architect, 18 

engineer, or business person and four two lay consumer members. Such consumer 19 

members are not at the time of appointment, and have never been previously a member 20 

or practitioner of a profession regulated by the board or a member of any closely related 21 

profession. The county attorney shall be advisor to the contractor competency board. 22 



                                                                                                                                                       

3 
 

The building official, or his designee shall be the ex officio secretary to the contractor 1 

competency board.  2 

(b) Members of the contractor competency board shall serve terms of three years. A 3 

vacancy on the competency board shall be filled by appointment by the board of county 4 

commissioners for any unexpired term.  5 

(c) Terms of members of the contractor competency board shall be staggered so 6 

that terms of some members shall expire each year. Members, whose terms have 7 

expired, may be reappointed to additional terms at the discretion of the board of county 8 

commissioners. Members whose terms have expired shall serve until a reappointment 9 

is made to the Board by the Board of County Commissioners.  10 

(d) Any member of the contractor competency board may be removed from office for 11 

any reason by a majority vote of the board of county commissioners. Vacancies existing 12 

on the contractor competency board shall be filled for the balance of the vacated term 13 

by appointment by the board of county commissioners of an individual meeting the 14 

same qualifications as the original appointment.  15 

(e) The chairman and vice chairman of the contractor competency board shall be 16 

elected annually by a majority vote of the competency board members voting at its 17 

October  September meeting. Members of the contractor competency board shall 18 

receive $50.00 per meeting as compensation for their services. 19 

SECTION 2.   20 

Chapter 18, Article II, Division 3, Section 18-80 of the Escambia County Code of 21 

Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows (words underlined are additions and 22 

words stricken are deletions): 23 



                                                                                                                                                       

4 
 

Sec. 18-80.  Certificate termination. 1 

(a) Expiration of certificates of competency. Certificates of competency issued prior 2 

to March 1, 2011, shall expire on the birthdate of the license holder. Certificates of 3 

competency issued on or after March 1, 2011, shall expire one calendar year (365 4 

calendar days) after issuance.  5 

 (1) Failure to renew certificates of competency during the month of the 6 

expiration date shall cause such certificates to become invalid and it is unlawful 7 

thereafter for any person to engage or offer to engage, or hold himself or herself out as 8 

engaged in, contracting under the certificate unless such certificate is restored or 9 

reissued.  10 

 (2) A certificate which is invalid because of failure to timely renew shall be 11 

automatically restored if the application for renewal and payment of the proper renewal 12 

fee are made within 90 days after the expiration date. The renewal fee for restoration 13 

within this time period shall be equal to the current application fee plus the required 14 

renewal fee set by resolution of the board of county commissioners pursuant to section 15 

18-82.  16 

 (3) If application for restoration of a certificate of competency is made 17 

subsequent to the expiration of the 90-day automatic renewal period, the contractor 18 

competency board may, prior to restoration of the certificate, reexamine the applicant's 19 

qualifications to hold a certificate of competency in the category for which restoration is 20 

requested. Pursuant to the authority granted in section 18-57 and section 18-58, the 21 

contractor competency board shall adopt regulations establishing the guidelines the 22 

contractor competency board will follow in reexamining the applicant's qualifications for 23 



                                                                                                                                                       

5 
 

a certificate of competency in a particular category, and shall thereafter apply these 1 

guidelines uniformly to all applicants seeking restoration of certificates under this 2 

section. If the contractor competency board determines, after reexamining the 3 

applicant's qualifications in accordance with the guidelines, that restoration of the 4 

expired certificate in the category of prior registration should not be approved, the board 5 

may either reissue the applicant a certificate in a lesser category for which the applicant 6 

is found qualified, or may require the applicant to take the examination required under 7 

section 18-76 in the category for which restoration of the certificate is sought.  8 

 A certificate or registration which is inoperative because of failure to renew 9 

after ninety (90) days of the expiration date, but within three (3) years of the expiration 10 

date, shall be restored on payment of a late fee in the amount of $200.00, plus 11 

payment of all annual renewal periods and required documentation to bring the 12 

certificate current. 13 

 (4) Failure of license holder to renew by license holder within two  three years 14 

after the expiration of his or her license shall result in it being revoked by operation of 15 

law. Thereafter, reexamination will be required for any such person. The contractor 16 

competency board may waive the requirement for reexamination following a quasi-17 

judicial public hearing at which the applicant shall be given the opportunity to show good 18 

cause as to 1) why such reexamination should be waived and 2) that such waiver will 19 

not adversely affect public safety. The decision of the contractor competency board 20 

shall be in writing and is appealable to the board of county commissioners pursuant to 21 

section 18-59. The board of county commissioners may restore a certificate of 22 

competency without reexamination upon the finding by it that the contractor competency 23 
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board's decision is not supported by the record and upon a determination of good cause 1 

for such restoration as well as no adverse effects on the public safety as demonstrated 2 

by the record before it. Decisions of the board of county commissioners pursuant to this 3 

procedure shall be binding on any aggrieved party; provided, however, that the rights of 4 

any aggrieved person to seek legal redress in a court of competent jurisdiction shall not 5 

be infringed. Applicants whose expired certificates are restored or reissued under this 6 

section shall pay a fee equal to the current application fee plus the required renewal 7 

fees set by resolution of the board of county commissioners pursuant to section 18-82.  8 

(b) Inactive registration:  9 

 (1) A person who holds a valid certificate of competency from the contractor 10 

competency board may go on inactive status during which time he or she shall not 11 

engage in contracting. Inactive contractors shall pay an inactive status fee established 12 

pursuant to resolution of the board of county commissioners, in accordance with section 13 

18-82.  14 

 (2) Any employee of a public agency within the county who holds a current 15 

registration or certification with state construction industry licensing board, and who by 16 

reason of his or her current employment with such public agency, is prohibited from 17 

being actively engaged in contracting because to do so would place him or her in a 18 

conflict of interest, will, be issued a certificate from the contractor competency board 19 

and be placed on inactive status without further cost to him or her until such time as he 20 

or she is not in a position of conflict. Upon termination of his or her conflicting public 21 

employment, he or she will become an active or inactive contractor upon payment of the 22 

current renewal fee.  23 
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Section 3. Severability. 1 

 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 2 

unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 3 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 4 

Section 4. Inclusion in Code. 5 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of 6 

this Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Fla. Stat. (2014); and 7 

that the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be 8 

renumbered or relettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” 9 

“article,” or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such 10 

intentions. 11 

Section 5. Effective Date. 12 

 This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 13 

DONE AND ENACTED this   day of    , 2015. 14 

 15 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 16 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 17 
 18 

___________________________________ 19 
Steven Barry, Chairman 20 

 21 

ATTEST:  PAM CHILDERS  22 
  Clerk of the Circuit Court 23 

 24 
 BY: ______________________ 25 

  Deputy Clerk 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
(Seal) 30 
 31 
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 1 

 2 
 3 

Enacted: 4 

Filed with Department of State: 5 

Effective: 6 

 7 



   
AI-8803     County Administrator's Report      10. 6.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Reappointments to the BID Inspections Fund Advisory Board (IFAB)
From: Donald R. Mayo, Building Official/Department Director 
Organization: Building Services
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Reappointments to the BID Inspections Fund Advisory Board
(IFAB) - Donald R. Mayo, Building Official/Building Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the Home Builders Association of
West Florida's recommendation for reappointment of two members to the BID
Inspections Fund Advisory Board (IFAB):

A. Waive the Board's Policy, Section I, Part B.1.(D), Appointment Policy and Procedures;
and

B. Reappoint the following two members for a three-year term, beginning October 1,
2015, through September 30, 2018:
  
1. John M. Harold, Builder, J. M. Harold Construction, Inc.; and
2.  Karen Polk Wright, Senior Vice President - Commercial Banking, ServisFirst Bank.

The BID Investment Fund Advisory Board is governed under the the Escambia County
Code of Ordinances Number 2004-56, Chapter 46, Article VI, Section 46-286.  Members
are appointed by the Board of County Commissioners with the names of individuals to be
submitted by the Home Builders Association of West Florida.  Members serve a three
year term and may be re-appointed to serve additional terms in accordance with the
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, Section 46-286(f)(2).

BACKGROUND:
The BID Investment Fund Advisory Board (IFAB) is governed under the the Escambia
County Code of Ordinances Number 2004-56, chapter 46, Article VI, Section 46-286. 
Members are appointed by the Board of County Commissioners with the names of
individuals to be submitted by the Home Builders Association of West Florida.  Members
serve a three year terms and may be reappointed to serve additional terms in
accordance with the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, Section 46-286(f)(2).



BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The BID Investment Fund Advisory Board (IFAB) shall meet at least quarterly in
accordance with the requirements of Florida's Government in the Sunshine Law with the
Building Official, to review compliance and make recommendations on the Department's
budget, service fees and costs, and other related financial matters.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
HBA West Florida_Recommendation for Reappointment of John M. Harold and Karen Polk
Wright
Resume of John M. Harold
Resume of Karen Polk Wright



From: David Peaden
To: Donald R. Mayo
Cc: Glenda S. Garrett
Subject: IFAB Re-Appointments
Date: Friday, July 24, 2015 10:54:32 AM
Attachments: John Harold Resume.doc

KPW Resume 2015.pdf

Dear Mr. Mayo:
 
The Home Builders Association respectfully requests the nomination of John Harold of J.M.
Harold Construction and Karen Wright of Servis First Bank to be reappointed to the
Inspections Fund Advisory Board (IFAB).
 
Sincerely,
 
David Peaden
Executive Director
Home Builders Association of West Florida
4400 Bayou Blvd., Suite 45
Pensacola, Florida 32503
850-476-0318
 

mailto:dpeaden@hbawf.com
mailto:DRMAYO@co.escambia.fl.us
mailto:gsgarret@co.escambia.fl.us

John Harold


J. M. Harold Construction, Inc.


P O Box 6031


Pensacola, Florida 32503 0031


Office: 850-477-8686


Fax: 850-484-4847


· President of J.M. Harold Construction, Inc.


· Certified Building Contractor since 1972


· Past President of the Home Builders Association of West Florida


· Past Chair of the HBA's Cost and Codes Committee


· Actively building in Escambia and Santa Rosa Counties since 1977













July 24, 2015 

John Harold 

J. M. Harold Construction, Inc. 

P O Box 6031 

Pensacola, Florida 32503 0031 

Office: 850-477-8686 

Fax: 850-484-4847 

 

 

 

 President of J.M. Harold Construction, Inc. 

 Certified Building Contractor since 1972 

 Past President of the Home Builders Association of West Florida 

 Past Chair of the HBA's Cost and Codes Committee 

 Actively building in Escambia and Santa Rosa Counties since 1977 

 







   
AI-8788     County Administrator's Report      10. 7.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Adoption of a Maintenance Map for a Portion of Crary Road in Century,

Florida for a FDOT Bridge Replacement Project
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Adoption of a Maintenance Map for a Portion of Crary Road in
Century, Florida - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning adoption of a Maintenance Map for a
portion of Crary Road in Century, Florida:

A. Adopt the Florida Department of Transportation Maintenance Map F.P. No. 4322881,
for a portion of Crary Road (approximately 140 feet in length), going north off of
Byrneville Road and located south of Tedder Road in Century, Florida.  This map
delineates the extent of County maintenance to define County property in areas where
the County maintains roads without having deeded right-of-way;

B. Approve said areas shown on the Maintenance Map for continued maintenance,
pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 95.361; and

C. Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to accept the Maintenance Map as of the
day of delivery of the Map to the Chairman or Vice Chairman, and authorize the
Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Map for recording at that time.

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County has maintained a portion of Crary Road (approximately 140' in length),
north of Byrneville Road and south of Tedder Road in Century, Florida, as depicted on
the accompanying map, numbered F.P. No. 4322881.

Chapter 95.361, Florida Statutes, asserts public ownership of certain rights of way
maintained by the county. The statute - Roads Presumed to be Dedicated - contains
three key qualifications, any of which may provide public ownership of the subject roads: 
(1) four years of uninterrupted maintenance, together with the proof that the county
originally constructed the road, (2) proof that the road was regularly maintained or



repaired for the immediate past seven years by the county, or (3) a map filed in the
office of the Clerk of Court reciting that the road has been vested in the county in
accordance with either items (1) or (2) above.

Map number F.P. No. 4322881, depicting the extent of county maintenance, was
produced under the supervision of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT). By
certifying the Map, the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Escambia County Board of
County Commissioners has certified that the county has maintained the road for more
than the required seven years, and that the extent of maintenance shown is accurate.
Based on archived records and personal experience, Road Division staff acknowledges
continuous maintenance for over seven years. Upon approval by the Board, the Clerk of
the Court will file the map in the Public Records, as described in Florida Statutes,
Chapter 95.361.

This is related to a FDOT Bridge Replacement Project and FDOT needs to confirm that
the local agency has retained ownership of the right-of-way for the past 4 consecutive
years.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Indirect staff costs associated with field surveys and preparation of required documents
and recommendation.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Maintenance / Right of Way Control Survey has been prepared and certified by
Jason Hill, PSM, Florida Registration No. 6008. The County Attorney's Office has stated
that because the map is a technical document rather than a legal document, it does not
require legal sign off.

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is being done in-house and no additional staff is
required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This Recommendation is based on the Board's policy of doing no public maintenance on
private property and Florida Statutes, Chapter 95.361.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon Board approval and execution, the map will be filed by the Clerk in the Public
Records with similar approved Road Maintenance Maps. The Public Works Department,
Roads Division, retains maintenance documents and has reviewed and approved the
Maintenance Map.

Attachments
Maintenance Statute
Crary Rd _ Aerial



Crary Rd _ Aerial
Crary Rd Maint Map Pg1
Crary Rd Maint Map Pg2
Crary Rd Maint Map Pg3
Crary Rd Maint Map Pg4



95.361  Roads presumed to be dedicated.--  

(1)  When a road, constructed by a county, a municipality, or the Department of 
Transportation, has been maintained or repaired continuously and uninterruptedly for 4 years 
by the county, municipality, or the Department of Transportation, jointly or severally, the road 
shall be deemed to be dedicated to the public to the extent in width that has been actually 
maintained for the prescribed period, whether or not the road has been formally established as 
a public highway. The dedication shall vest all right, title, easement, and appurtenances in and 
to the road in:  

(a)  The county, if it is a county road;  

(b)  The municipality, if it is a municipal street or road; or  

(c)  The state, if it is a road in the State Highway System or State Park Road System,  
 
whether or not there is a record of a conveyance, dedication, or appropriation to the public 
use.  

(2)  In those instances where a road has been constructed by a nongovernmental entity, or 
where the road was not constructed by the entity currently maintaining or repairing it, or 
where it cannot be determined who constructed the road, and when such road has been 
regularly maintained or repaired for the immediate past 7 years by a county, a municipality, or 
the Department of Transportation, whether jointly or severally, such road shall be deemed to 
be dedicated to the public to the extent of the width that actually has been maintained or 
repaired for the prescribed period, whether or not the road has been formally established as a 
public highway. This subsection shall not apply to an electric utility, as defined in s. 366.02(2). 
The dedication shall vest all rights, title, easement, and appurtenances in and to the road in:  

(a)  The county, if it is a county road;  

(b)  The municipality, if it is a municipal street or road; or  

(c)  The state, if it is a road in the State Highway System or State Park Road System,  
 
whether or not there is a record of conveyance, dedication, or appropriation to the public use.  

(3)  The filing of a map in the office of the clerk of the circuit court of the county where the 
road is located showing the lands and reciting on it that the road has vested in the state, a 
county, or a municipality in accordance with subsection (1) or subsection (2) or by any other 
means of acquisition, duly certified by:  

(a)  The secretary of the Department of Transportation, or the secretary's designee, if the road 
is a road in the State Highway System or State Park Road System;  

(b)  The chair and clerk of the board of county commissioners of the county, if the road is a 
county road; or  

(c)  The mayor and clerk of the municipality, if the road is a municipal road or street,  
 
shall be prima facie evidence of ownership of the land by the state, county, or municipality, as 
the case may be.  



(4)  Any person, firm, corporation, or entity having or claiming any interest in and to any of the 
property affected by subsection (2) shall have and is hereby allowed a period of 1 year after 
the effective date of this subsection, or a period of 7 years after the initial date of regular 
maintenance or repair of the road, whichever period is greater, to file a claim in equity or with 
a court of law against the particular governing authority assuming jurisdiction over such 
property to cause a cessation of the maintenance and occupation of the property. Such timely 
filed and adjudicated claim shall prevent the dedication of the road to the public pursuant to 
subsection (2).  

(5)  This section does not apply to any facility of an electric utility which is located on property 
otherwise subject to this section.  

History.--s. 110, ch. 29965, 1955; ss. 23, 35, ch. 69-106; s. 23, ch. 74-382; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 
3, ch. 88-168; s. 529, ch. 95-147; s. 54, ch. 2003-286; s. 14, ch. 2004-366.  

Note.--Former s. 337.31.  
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AI-8807     County Administrator's Report      10. 8.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Request for Disposition of Property
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the Public Works
Department - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board approve the eight Request for Disposition of Property Forms for the
Public Works Department, listing 32 items to be disposed of properly, which are
described with reasons for disposition stated.

BACKGROUND:
The surplus property listed on the attached Request for Disposition of Property Forms is
being auctioned or recycled, as noted on each of the forms. The Request Forms have
been signed by all applicable authorities.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with FS 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1, 2, Section H,
Procedures for Disposition of County Property.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval by the BCC, all property will be disposed of according to the Disposition
of County Property Policy.



Attachments
Disposition of Property forms



















   
AI-8624     County Administrator's Report      10. 9.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Conveyance of a Subordination of Utility Interests to the Florida

Department of Transportation for the State Road 95 (U.S. 29)
Improvement Project

From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Department Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Conveyance of a Subordination of County Utility Interests to
the Florida Department of Transportation for the State Road 95 (U.S. 29) Improvement Project -
Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the conveyance of a subordination
of County utility interests, to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), for their
planned improvement project for the portion of State Road 95 (U.S. 29), from Interstate
10 (I-10) to 9 1/2 Mile Road:

A. Adopt the Resolution authorizing the conveyance of a subordination of County utility
interests to FDOT, for their planned improvement project for the portion of State Road
95 (U.S. 29), from Interstate 10 (I-10) to 9 1/2 Mile Road; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Subordination of County Utility Interests and
the Resolution, related to this conveyance, without further action of the Board.

BACKGROUND:
The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) has a project designed for multi-lane
construction and roadway and drainage improvements to State Road 95 (U.S. 29) from
I-10 to 9 1/2 Mile Road. The County has an 8.00 foot wide utility easement along the
south right-of-way line of Broad Street, where it intersects the east right-of-way line of
U.S. 29. The construction of a turn lane at this intersection will impact the County utility
easement at the southeast corner of Broad Street and U.S. 29. FDOT is requesting that
the County convey a subordination of County utility interests for this portion of the
County easement.

All costs associated with the relocation of any County facilities and the recording of any
documents will be borne by FDOT.



Staff has reviewed this request and determined that the conveyance of the subordination
of County utility interests will have no adverse impact to the County and have no
objections to the requested conveyance.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
All costs associated with the relocation of any County facilities and the acceptance and
recording of documents will be borne by FDOT.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Subordination of County Utility Interests and the Resolution were approved as to
form and legal sufficiency by Stephen West, Senior Assistant County Attorney.

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is being done in-house and no additional staff is
required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
These actions are consistent with the provisions of Section 46-139, Escambia County
Code of Ordinances.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon Board approval, Staff will maintain compliance with Section 46-139 of the
Escambia County Code of Ordinances.

Attachments
Resolution
Subordination of County Utility Interests
County Utility Easement
FDOT R/W Map
Aerial Map



UTL.ESC

April 20, 2015

This instrument prepared by,
or under the direction of,
Samuel J. Henderson
Department of Transportation
P. O. Box 607

Chipley, FL 32428

Parcel 119.2

Item/Segment No. 2186031

Managing District 3

S.R. No. 95 (U.S. 29)
County Escambia

RESOLUTION

ON MOTION of Commissioner , seconded by Commissioner
, the following Resolution was adopted:

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Department of Transportation proposes to construct or
improve State Road No. 95 (U.S. 29), Financial Project No. 2186031, in Escambia County,
Florida: and

WHEREAS, it is necessary that certain lands now owned by
Escambia County be used temporarily by the State of Florida Department of Transportation:
and

WHEREAS, said use is in the best interest of the County: and

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Department of Transportation has made application to
said County to execute and deliver to the State of Florida Department of Transportation the
attached subordination of utility interest, or interests, in favorof the State of Florida, and said
request having been duly considered.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of
Escambia County, that the application of the State of Florida Department of Transportationfor
a subordination of utility interest, or interests, is fortransportation purposes which are inthe
public or community interest and for publicwelfare; that a subordination of utility interest, or
interests, in favor of the State of Florida Department of Transportation, in Escambia County,
should be drawn and executed by this Board of County Commissioners. Consideration shall
be$N/A .

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a certified copy of this Resolution be forwarded
forthwith to the State of Florida Department of Transportation at Tallahassee, Florida.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:
Steven Barry, Chairman

ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

This document approved as to fori-
By:. and legaJ-^ufficiency.

Deputy Clerk By ^&{(J(;f'
Adopted: Title A/A QM^rk /I^^U/

Date J*U I'-f ?o (S
r )• ~—... .
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April 20, 2015

This instrument prepared by,
or under the direction of,
Samuel J. Henderson
Department of Transportation
P. O. Box 607
Chipley, FL 32428

Legal description approved by:
Ron Gibson Parcel 119.2

Item/Segment No. 2186031
Managing District 3
S.R. No. 95 (U.S. 29)
County Escambia

SUBORDINATION OF COUNTY UTILITY INTERESTS

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on , 20_, by and between the STATE
OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (FDOT) whose address is Post Office Box
607. Chipley, Florida 32428, and ESCAMBIA COUNTY (County).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County presently has an interest in land that is necessary for highway
purposes and the County has facilities located on the land.

WHEREAS, the proposed use of the land for highway purposes will require subordinationby
the County to the FDOT of the interest claimed in the land.

WHEREAS, the FDOT is willing to pay to have the County's facilities relocated, if necessary to
prevent conflict with the facilities on the FDOTs project #2186031.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of the parties, the
County and the FDOT agree as follows:

1. The County subordinates to FDOT, its successors or assigns, its interest in the following
described land:

A portion of Lot 10, National Land Sales Company Subdivision of Lot 1, Section 22, Township 1
South, Range 30 West, Escambia County, Florida, as recorded in Deed Book 89, Page 280, of the
Public Records of Escambia County, Florida, being in Government Lot 5, said Section 22, Township
1 South, Range 30 West, Escambia County, Florida, described as follows: Commence at a % inch
rod and cap (illegible) marking the northeast comer of said Section 22, Township 1 South, Range 30
West, Escambia County, Florida; thence North 86836'44"West 1,705.39 feet along the north line of
said Section 22 to the centerline of construction of State Road 95 (U.S. 29), as shown on Florida
Departmentof Transportation (F.D.O.T.) Right of Way Map F.P. No. 2186031 (said map being on file
at F.D.O.T. District 3 Office. Chipley. Florida); thence South 11"3Q'3T East 707.62 feet along said
centerline of construction to a point of curve to the left (concave easterly); thence southeasterly along
said centerline of construction and said curve, having a radius of 11,486.87 feet, for a distance of
1,805.24 feet, through a central angle of 09°00'16"to end of curve; thence South 20°38'53" East
381.60 feet along said centeriine of construction; thence departing said centeriineof construction, run
North69°21'07" East 100.00 feet to an intersection of the existing easterly right ofway line of State
Road 95 (U.S. 29) with the existing southerly right of way lineof Broad Street, as shown on said
Rightof Way Map and POINT OF BEGINNING; thence South 20°38'53" East 8.79 feet along said
existing easterly rightof way line of State Road 95 to the northerly line of that certain property as
described in Official Records Book 7327, Page 151 of the Public Records of Escambia County,
Florida; thence South 86°12'06° East 56.21 feet along said northerly property line;thence departing
said property line, run North 43°41'13° East 10.43 feet to said existing southerly right of way lineof
BroadStreet, as shown on said Right of Way Map; thence North 86°12'06" West 66.53 feet along
said southerly right of way line to POINT OF BEGINNING;

Containing 491 square feet, more or less.



Theinterest ofthe County being subordinated includes, butis notnecessarily limited to, the
interest created by the following described document:

RECORDED:

INSTRUMENT DATE FROM TO BOOK/PAGE

Easement 11/30/05 7950 Pensacola Blvd.
LLC

Escambia County,
Florida

OR 5824

PG128

2. The County shall have the right to relocate its facilities within the FDOT right of wayandthe
right to receive reimbursement from the FDOTfor the relocation. Subsequent to the relocation,
the County shall have the right to operateand maintain its facilities within the FDOT right of
way, subject to the provisionsof the permitand the Utility Accommodation Manual. However,
any new construction or relocation, subsequent to the first relocation, shallbe subjectto the
approval of the FDOT. (Approval shallnot be withheld or delayed unreasonably.) Ifthe FDOT
does not allow the first relocation of the facilities within the right of way orshould the FDOT
requireany subsequent relocationof the facilities, the FDOTagrees to pay the cost of such
relocation, including the cost of acquiring any necessary easements. Allwork performed and
facilities located within the rightof way by the County, and all payments and reimbursements
by the FDOT to the County, shall be in accordancewiththe FDOTs construction plans for the
project and the rules, procedures, and Utility Accommodation Manual, which are in effect at
the time this agreement is executed by the County.

3. Notwithstanding the terms of this subordination agreement, the terms of the utilitypermits shall
supersede any conflicting provisions, with the exception of the terms providing for
reimbursement rights.

4. The County shall have the right to enter upon the right of way for the purposes stated in
Paragraph 2. Maintenance of the facilities shall include the right to trim trees, brush, and
growth, which might adversely affect the facilities, provided there are no adverse effects on the
operation and safety of the FDOTs facilities.

5. Subject to the provisions of Paragraph 2 above, the County agrees to repair any damages to
the FDOT facilities resulting from the act or omission of the County.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the FDOT hereto has executed this agreement on the day and year
first above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT
in the presence ofwitnesses: OF TRANSPORTATION

By:_
KrissyCook James T. Barfield, P. E.

Title: District Secretary
for District 3

Elsie Myrick

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF WASHINGTON

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of , 20 , by
James T. Barfield, as Secretary for District 3, who is personally known to me orwho has produced

as identification.

Deborah H. Barbee
Notary Public In and for the
County and State last aforesaid.
My Commission Expires: August 1,2018
Serial No., if any: FF 142353



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County has caused these presents to be executed in its name
by its Board of County Commissioners acting by the Chairman of said Board, the day and year
aforesaid.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

ESCAMBIA COUNTY

By:

ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

By:
Deputy Clerk

Steven Barry, Chairman

This document approved as to form
and legali^su/ficiency.

Title AlT fZTjy- fflo<~»f
Date J^ly?7 -to >S
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AI-8840     County Administrator's Report      10. 10.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: CareerSource Escarosa Board Appointment
From: Tonya Gant, Director 
Organization: Neighborhood & Human Svcs
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning an Appointment to the CareerSource Escarosa (Formerly
Workforce Escarosa, Inc.) Board of Directors - Tonya Gant, Neighborhood and Human Services
Department Director

That the Board confirm the appointment of Robert Gravley, Chairman/CEO of the Gulf
Coast Veterans Advocacy Council, Inc., to the CareerSource Escarosa (formerly
Workforce Escarosa, Inc.) Board of Directors, to serve as the replacement for Valera
Young, who recently resigned due to a change of employment.  The term of this
appointment will be for three years effective September 24, 2015, through September
24, 2018.

BACKGROUND:
The Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act (WIOA), signed by President Obama on
July 22, 2014, requires a representative from a Community Based Organization (CBO)
focusing on Veterans to sit on local workforce investment boards. The Board of Directors
for CareerSource Escarosa serves as the local governing board for workforce
development and job training activities as approved by Florida Department of Economic
Opportunity. This board serves the demographic area of Region One, comprised of
Escambia and Santa Rosa counties. All appointments must conform with the
requirements of the law, and have final approval from the local governing entity of each
county - which for Escambia County is the Board of County Commissioners.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Appointments to this Board of Directors are made in accordance with state and federal
legislation. 

PERSONNEL:



PERSONNEL:
N/A 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
All Escambia County appointments to this Board of Directors must have approval from
the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval by the Board, this appointment shall become effective for the expressed
term.
CareerSource Escarosa has coordinated with the Department of Neighborhood &
Human Services in submission of this request.

Attachments
CareerSource









   
AI-8845     County Administrator's Report      10. 11.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Agreement with FL Dept of Economic Opportunity (DEO Agreement

Number F1128) for a Community Resiliency Initiative Pilot Project
From: Keith Wilkins, Department Director 
Organization: Natural Resources
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning an Agreement with the Florida Department of Economic
Opportunity for a Community Resiliency Initiative Pilot Project to Develop a Coastal Hazards
Vulnerability Assessment and Adaptation Plan for Escambia County - Keith T. Wilkins, Director,
Department of Natural Resources Management

That the Board take the following action concerning an Agreement (Number F1128) with
the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) for a Community Resiliency
Initiative Pilot Project to develop a Coastal Hazards Vulnerability Assessment and
Adaptation Plan for Escambia County:

A. Approve the Agreement (Number F1128) with the Florida DEO for a Community
Resiliency Initiative Pilot Project to develop a Coastal Hazards Vulnerability Assessment
and Adaptation Plan for Escambia County; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreement and any other subsequent
Agreement-related documents, including no-cost extensions, pending Legal review and
approval, without further action from the Board.

BACKGROUND:
Through a grant from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), the
Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) and Florida Department of
Economic Opportunity (DEO) have approached three communities to implement a pilot
program by providing a contractor to develop a community sea level rise vulnerability
assessment and adaptation plan for each of the pilot communities.
 
As a component of project implementation, there will be a steering committee formed
and a series of public coordination meetings associated with the development of the
vulnerability analysis and adaptation plan.



BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Per section VII of DEO Agreement Number F1128, there are no costs associated with
the Agreement.  The Florida Department of Economic Opportunity will pay for the
consultant under a separate contract.   Escambia County’s responsibility is to provide
staff time and meeting space to coordinate activities as specified in the Agreement.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Agreement has been review and approved as to legal form and sufficiency by
Stephen West, Assistant County Attorney.

PERSONNEL:
This Project will be managed by Department of Natural Resource Management staff
within the Water Quality and Land Management Division.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This project is consistent with the Board’s goal to reduce the exposure of people and
property to natural hazards.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Natural Resources Management staff will coordinate with FDEP, DEO, Development
Services, and the County Attorney’s Office to implement this project.

Attachments
DEO Agrmt F1128-CoastalHazardsAssessment
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Contract # C1469 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY 
CONTRACT 

THIS CONTRACT is between the State of Florida, Department of Economic Opportunity, hereinafter 
referred to as “DEO,” and Dewberry Consultants LLC, hereinafter referred to as “Contractor” (each 
individually a “Party” and collectively “the Parties”).  

I. CONTRACTOR AGREES: 

A. Attachment 1, Scope of Work: 

Contractor agrees to provide the goods and/or services in accordance with the conditions and 
criteria specified herein, and in Attachment 1, Scope of Work. 

B. Type of Contract: 

This Contract is a cost reimbursement Contract. 

C. Contract Dates:  

This Contract shall begin on the date on which the last Party has signed the Contract and shall 
end on December 31, 2016.  DEO shall not be obligated to pay for costs incurred related to this 
Contract prior to its beginning date or after its ending date. 

D. Contract Payment: 

This Contract shall not exceed Two Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand Two Hundred Thirty-Four 
Dollars and Ninety-Three Cents ($232,234.93) which shall be paid by DEO in consideration for 
Contractor’s provision of goods and/or services as set forth by the terms and conditions of this 
Contract.  The State of Florida and DEO’s performance and obligation to pay under this Contract 
is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature and availability of any and all 
applicable federal funds.  DEO shall be the final authority as to the availability of funds for this 
Contract, and as to what constitutes an “annual appropriation” of funds to complete this 
Contract.  If such funds are not appropriated or available for the Contract purpose, such event 
will not constitute a default on DEO or the State.  DEO agrees to notify Contractor in writing at 
the earliest possible time if funds are not appropriated or available.  The cost for services 
rendered under any other Contract or to be paid from any other source is not eligible for 
reimbursement under this Contract. 

E. Requirements of paragraphs (a) – (i) of subsection 287.058(1), Florida Statutes (F.S.):  

1. Contractor shall submit bills for fees or other compensation for services or expenses in
sufficient detail for a proper pre-audit and post-audit thereof.

2. If travel expenses are authorized, Contractor shall submit bills for such travel expenses and
shall be reimbursed only in accordance with section 112.061, F.S.

DEO Agreement Number F1128
EXHIBIT A
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3.  Contractor shall allow public access to all documents, papers, letters or other materials 
made or received by Contractor in conjunction with this Contract, unless the records are 
exempt from section 24(a) of Article 1 of the State Constitution and subsection 119.07(1), 
F.S.  It is expressly understood that DEO may unilaterally cancel this Contract for 
Contractor’s refusal to comply with this provision. 

 
4. Contractor shall perform all tasks contained in Attachment 1, Scope of Work. 
 
5. Receipt by Contractor of DEO’s written acceptance of the units of deliverables specified 

herein is a condition precedent to payment under this Contract and is contingent upon 
Contractor’s compliance with the specified performance measure (i.e., each deliverable 
must satisfy at least the minimum acceptable level of service specified in the Scope of Work 
and DEO shall apply the applicable criteria stated in the Scope of Work to determine 
satisfactory completion of each deliverable). 

 
6. Contractor shall comply with the criteria and final date by which such criteria must be met 

for completion of this Contract. 
 

7.  Renewal:  If the Contract was procured by an exceptional purchase pursuant to subsections 
287.057(3)(a) or (3)(c), F.S., it may not be renewed.  If the Contract was competitively 
procured, the price of the renewal must be included in the response to the Invitation to Bid 
(ITB), Request for Proposal (RFP), or Invitation to Negotiate (ITN) and the renewal price for 
the Contract shall not exceed that as set forth in the response to the ITB, RFP, or ITN.  
Subsection 287.057(13), F.S., provides that contracts for commodities or contractual 
services may be renewed on a yearly basis for a period of up to three years after the initial 
contract, or for a period no longer than the term of the original contract, whichever is 
longer.  Renewals are contingent upon the availability of funds, satisfactory performance 
evaluations by DEO, and at the discretion of DEO.  Costs for any renewal may not be 
charged.  This Contract shall not be renewed.    

 
8. If Contractor fails to perform in accordance with the Contract, DEO shall apply the financial 

consequences specified herein. 
 
9. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, intellectual property rights to preexisting property will 

remain with Contractor; whereas, intellectual property rights to all property created or 
otherwise developed by Contractor specifically for DEO will be owned by the State of Florida 
through DEO.  Proceeds derived from the sale, licensing, marketing or other authorization 
related to any such DEO-controlled intellectual property right shall be handled in the 
manner specified by applicable state statute. 

 
F. Governing Laws: 

 
1. State of Florida Law: 

 
a. Contractor agrees that this Contract is executed and entered into in the State of Florida, 

and shall be construed, performed, and enforced in all respects in accordance with the 
laws, rules, and regulations of the State of Florida.  Each Party shall perform its 
obligations herein in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract.  
Without limiting the provisions of Section II.D., Dispute Resolution, the exclusive venue 
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of any legal or equitable action that arises out of or relates to the Contract shall be the 
appropriate state court in Leon County, Florida; in any such action, the Parties waive any 
right to jury trial. 

 
b. Contractor agrees that it is in compliance with the rules for e-procurement as directed 

by Rule 60A-1.030 F.A.C. and that if applicable, will maintain eligibility for this Contract 
through the MyFloridaMarketplace.com system. 

 
c. DEO shall ensure compliance with section 11.062, F.S., and section 216.347, F.S.  

Contractor shall not, in connection with this or any other agreement with the State, 
directly or indirectly: (1) offer, confer, or agree to confer any pecuniary benefit on 
anyone as consideration for any State officer or employee’s decision, opinion, 
recommendation, vote, other exercise of discretion, or violation of a known legal duty; 
or (2) offer, give, or agree to give to anyone any gratuity for the benefit of, or at the 
direction or request of, any State officer or employee.  For purposes of clause (2), 
“gratuity” means any payment of more than nominal monetary value in the form of 
cash, travel, entertainment, gifts, meals, lodging, loans, subscriptions, advances, 
deposits of money, services, employment, or contracts of any kind.  Upon request of 
DEO’s Inspector General, or other authorized State official, Contractor shall provide any 
type of information the Inspector General deems relevant to Contractor’s integrity or 
responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be limited to, Contractor’s 
business or financial records, documents, or files of any type or form that refer to or 
relate to the Contract.  Contractor shall retain such records for the longer of:  (1) five 
years after the expiration of the Contract; or (2) the period required by the General 
Records Schedules maintained by the Florida Department of State available at:   
http://dlis.dos.state.fl.us/recordsmgmt/gen_records_schedules.cfm. 

 
d. Contractor agrees to reimburse the State for the reasonable costs of investigation 

incurred by the Inspector General or other authorized State official for investigations of 
Contractor’s compliance with the terms of this or any other agreement between 
Contractor and the State which results in the suspension or debarment of Contractor.  
Such costs shall include, but shall not be limited to:  salaries of investigators, including 
overtime; travel and lodging expenses; and expert witness and documentary fees.  
Contractor shall not be responsible for any costs of investigations that do not result in 
Contractor’s suspension or debarment. 
 

e. Public Entity Crime:  Pursuant to subsection 287.133(2)(a), F.S., a person or affiliate who 
has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity 
crime may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or 
services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a 
public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not 
submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not 
be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor or consultant 
under a contract with any public entity and may not transact business with any public 
entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in section 287.017, F.S., for Category 
Two for a period of thirty-six (36) months from the date of being placed on the 
convicted vendor list.  Furthermore, Contractor will complete and provide the 
certification in Attachment 2. 

 

http://dlis.dos.state.fl.us/recordsmgmt/gen_records_schedules.cfm
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f. Advertising:  Subject to chapter 119, F.S., Contractor shall not publicly disseminate any 
information concerning the Contract without prior written approval from DEO, 
including, but not limited to mentioning the Contract in a press release or other 
promotional material, identifying DEO or the State as a reference, or otherwise linking 
Contractor’s name and either a description of the Contract or the name of DEO or the 
State in any material published, either in print or electronically, to any entity that is not 
a Party to the Contract, except potential or actual authorized distributors, dealers, 
resellers, or service representatives. 

 
g. Sponsorship: As required by section 286.25, F.S., if Contractor is a nongovernmental 

organization which sponsors a program financed wholly or in part by state funds, 
including any funds obtained through this Contract, it shall, in publicizing, advertising, or 
describing the sponsorship of the program, state: “Sponsored by (Contractor’s name) 
and the State of Florida, Department of Economic Opportunity.”  If the sponsorship 
reference is in written material, the words “State of Florida, Department of Economic 
Opportunity” shall appear in the same size letters or type as the name of the 
organization. 

 
h. Mandatory Disclosure Requirements: 

 
(1) Conflict of Interest: This Contract is subject to chapter 112, F.S.  Contractors shall 

disclose the name of any officer, director, employee, or other agent who is also an 
employee of the State.  Contractors shall also disclose the name of any State 
employee who owns, directly or indirectly, more than a five percent (5%) interest in 
Contractor or its affiliates. 

 
(2) Convicted Vendors: Contractors shall disclose to DEO if they are on the convicted 

vendor list. A person or affiliate placed on the convicted vendor list following a 
conviction for a public entity crime is prohibited from doing any of the activities 
listed in Section I.F.1.e. above for a period of 36 months from the date of being 
placed on the convicted vendor list.  

 
(3) Vendors on Scrutinized Companies Lists:  If this Contract is in the amount of $1 

million or more, in executing this Contract, Contractor certifies that it is not listed on 
either the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, created pursuant 
to section 215.473, F.S.   

 
(a) Pursuant to section 287.135(5), F.S., DEO may immediately terminate this 

Contract for cause if Contractor is found to have submitted a false 
certification or if Contractor is placed on the Scrutinized Companies with 
Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the 
Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List during the term of the Contract. 

 
(b) If DEO determines that Contractor has submitted a false certification, DEO 

will provide written notice to Contractor.  Unless Contractor demonstrates 
in writing, within 90 days of receipt of the notice, that DEO’s determination 
of false certification was made in error, DEO shall bring a civil action against 
Contractor.  If DEO’s determination is upheld, a civil penalty equal to the 
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greater of $2 million or twice the amount of this Contract shall be imposed 
on Contractor, and Contractor will be ineligible to bid on any contract with 
an agency or local governmental entity for three (3) years after the date of 
DEO’s determination of false certification by the Contractor. 

 
(c) In the event that federal law ceases to authorize the states to adopt and 

enforce the contracting prohibition identified herein, this provision shall be 
null and void.  

 
(4) Discriminatory Vendors:  Contractors shall disclose to DEO if they appear on the 

discriminatory vendor list.  An entity or affiliate placed on the discriminatory vendor 
list pursuant to section 287.134, F.S. may not:  

 
(a) submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public 

entity; 
 

(b)  submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair 
of a public building or public work;  
 

(c) submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity; or 
 

(d) be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, sub-contractor, or 
consultant under a contract with any public entity; or transact business with 
any public entity. 

 
i. Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation Incident Reporting:  

 
In compliance with sections 39.201 and 415.1034, F.S., an employee of Contractor who 
knows or has reasonable cause to suspect that a child, aged person, or disabled adult is 
or has been abused, neglected, or exploited shall immediately report such knowledge or 
suspicion to the Florida Abuse Hotline by calling 1-800-96ABUSE, or via the web 
reporting option at http://www.dcf.state.fl.us/abuse/report/, or via fax at 1-800-914-
0004.  

 
j. Information Release 
 

DEO does not endorse any contractor, commodity or service.  No public disclosure or 
news release pertaining to this Contract shall be made without the prior written 
approval of DEO.  Contractor is prohibited from using contract information, sales 
values/volumes and/or DEO customers in sales brochures or other promotions, 
including press releases, unless prior written approval is obtained from DEO. 
 
Contractor must notify DEO, both by e-mail and first class mail, within one (1) business 
day from receipt of all request(s) for public records, as a public record is defined in 
Section 119.011, Florida Statutes.  In accordance with Chapter 119 of the Florida 
Statutes, Contractor shall be responsible for responding to all public records requests 
per the cost structure provided for records made or received by Contractor in 
conjunction with the Contract, unless the records are exempt from section 24(a) of 
Article I of the State Constitution and Section 119.07(1), Florida Statutes.  Notice of 

http://www.dcf.state.fl.us/abuse/report/
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public records requests received by the Contractor shall be e-mailed to 
PRRequest@deo.myflorida.com and mailed to:   
 
  Public Records Coordinator 
  Department of Economic Opportunity 
  107 East Madison Street  
  Tallahassee, Florida 32399  
  Office:  (850) 245-7140 
 
Contractor shall notify DEO verbally within twenty-four (24) chronological hours and in 
writing within seventy-two (72) chronological hours if any data in Contractor’s 
possession related to this contract is subpoenaed or improperly used, copied, or 
removed (except in the ordinary course of business) by anyone except an authorized 
representative of DEO.  Contractor shall cooperate with DEO in taking all steps as DEO 
deems advisable to prevent misuse, regain possession, and/or otherwise protect the 
State’s rights and the data subject’s privacy. 
 

k. Funding Requirements 
 

(1) Contractor and its subcontractors may only expend funding under this Contract 
for allowable costs resulting from obligations incurred during the Contract period. 
 

(2)  Contractor shall refund to DEO any balance of unobligated funds which has been 
advanced or paid to Contractor. 

 
(3) Contractor shall refund to DEO all funds paid in excess of the amount to which 

Contractor or its subcontractors are entitled under the terms and conditions of the 
Contract.  

 
2. Federal Law: 
 

a. Contractor shall ensure that all its activities under this Contract shall be conducted in 
conformance with these provisions, as applicable:  45 CFR Part 74, 29 CFR Part 95, 2 CFR 
Part 215, 20 CFR Part 600, et seq., and all other applicable federal regulations. 
 

b. Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal laws, including but not limited to: 
 

(1) The Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Program (“TANF”), 45 CFR Parts 260-
265, the Social Services Block Grant (“SSBG”), 42 U.S.C. 1397d, and other applicable 
federal regulations and policies promulgated thereunder. 

 
(2) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 2000d, et seq., which 

prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin. 
 
(3) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. 794, which 

prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability. 
 
(4) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. 1681, et seq., 

which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in educational programs. 

mailto:PRRequest@deo.myflorida.com
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(5) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 6101, et seq., which 

prohibits discrimination on the basis of age. 
 
(6) Section 654 of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981, as amended, 42 

U.S.C. 9849, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, creed, color, 
national origin, sex, handicap, political affiliation or beliefs. 
 

(7) The American with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability and requires reasonable accommodation for 
persons with disabilities.  

 
(8) The Pro-Children Act: Contractor agrees to comply with the Pro-Children Act of 

1994, 20 U.S.C. 6083.  Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in 
the imposition of civil monetary penalty up to $1,000 for each violation and/or the 
imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.  This 
clause is applicable to all approved sub-contracts. In compliance with Public Law 
(Pub. L.) 103-277, the Contract shall not permit smoking in any portion of any indoor 
facility used for the provision of federally funded services including health, day care, 
early childhood development, education or library services on a routine or regular 
basis, to children up to age 18.   

 
(9) The Davis-Bacon Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. 276a to 276a-7, and as supplemented 

by the Department of Labor (DOL) regulations 29 CFR Part 5, the Copeland Anti-
Kickback Act, 40 U.S.C. 276c and 18 U.S.C. 874, as supplemented by the DOL 
regulations 29 CFR Part 3, and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 
40 U.S.C. 327-333, as supplemented by the DOL regulations 29 CFR Part 5, regarding 
labor standards for federally assisted construction subagreements. 

 
(10) The Clean Air and Water Act:  If this Contract is in excess of $100,000, Contractor 

shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued under the 
Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 7401, Section 508 of the Clean Water Act, as 
amended, 33 U.S.C. 1368, et seq., Executive Order 11738 and Environmental 
Protection Agency regulations, 40 CFR Part 15.  Contractor shall report any violation 
of the above to DEO. 

 
(11) Energy Efficiency:  Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies 

relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the State of Florida’s energy 
conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act, 
Pub. L. 94-163.   

 
(12) The Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352:  Contractors who apply or bid 

for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification (see 
Certification Regarding Lobbying Form within Attachment 2 of this Contract). Each 
tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated 
funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence 
an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining 
any federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier 
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shall also disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that takes place in 
connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from 
tier to tier up to the recipient.   

 
(13) Debarment and Suspension: When applicable, as required by the regulation 

implementing Executive Order (EO) No. 12549 and EO No. 12689, Debarment and 
Suspension, 29 CFR Part 98, Contractor must not be, nor within the three-year 
period preceding the effective date of the Contract have been, debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from covered transactions by any federal department or agency.  No contract shall 
be awarded to parties listed on the U. S. Government Services Administration List of 
Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-Procurement Programs.  
Contractor must provide a completed Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, included in Attachment 2 of this 
Contract. 

 
(14) Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circulars:  Contractor shall comply with all 

applicable OMB circulars.  Nonprofit subrecipients are subject to the cost principles 
at OMB Circular A-122; educational institution subrecipients are subject to those at 
OMB Circular A-21; and commercial organization vendors or subcontractors are 
subject to the cost principles under 48 CFR Part 31. Subrecipients and sub-grantees 
are also subject to the provisions of OMB Circular A-133.   

 
(15) Public Announcements and Advertising: When issuing statements, press releases, 

requests for proposals, bid solicitations and other documents describing projects or 
programs funded in whole or in part with federal money, Contractor shall clearly 
state (1) the percentage of the total costs of the program or project which will be 
financed with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of federal funds for the project 
or program, and (3) percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project 
or program that will be financed by nongovernmental sources. 

 
(16) Purchase of American-Made Equipment and Products: Contractor assures that, to 

the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and products purchased with funds 
made available in this Act will be American-made. 

 
(17) Equal Treatment for Faith-Based Organizations. Prohibits any State or local 

government receiving funds under any Department program, or any intermediate 
organization with the same duties as a governmental entity, from discriminating for 
or against an organization on the basis of the organization's religious character or 
affiliation.  Prohibits religious organizations from engaging in inherently religious 
activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization, as part of the 
programs or services funded with direct financial assistance.  Prohibits an 
organization that participates in programs funded by direct financial assistance from 
the Department, in providing services, from discriminating against a program 
beneficiary or prospective program beneficiary on the basis of religion or religious 
belief.  Any restrictions on the use of grant funds shall apply equally to religious and 
non-religious organizations. 
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(18) Funds awarded to and administered by the Department under the American 
Reinvestment  and Recovery Act (ARRA or the Recovery Act), must be utilized in 
accordance with all rules, regulations and guidance issued for this program by each 
awarding Agency through the close-out date of these federal funds.  Complete 
Special Conditions Addendum, if applicable. 

 
(19) Rights to Inventions Made Under Contract or Agreement:  Contracts or agreements 

for the performance of experimental, development, or research work shall provide 
for the rights of the Federal Government and Contractor in any resulting invention 
in accordance with 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit 
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contract and 
Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the 
awarding agency. 

 
(20) The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2010, Division E, Section 511 (Pub. L. 111-

117), which prohibits distribution of federal funds made available under the Act to 
the Association of Community Organizations for Reform Now (ACORN) or its 
subsidiaries.  The Continuing Appropriations Act, 2011, Sections 101 and 103 (Pub. 
L. 111-242), provides that appropriations made under Pub. L. 111-117 are available 
under the conditions provided by Pub. L. 111-117.   
 

(21) E.O. 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by E.O. 11375, 
“Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and 
as supplemented by regulations at 41 CFR Part 60, “Office of Federal Contract 
Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor. 

 
(22) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §327–333) — If this 

Contract involves federal funding in excess of $2,000 for construction contracts or in 
excess of $2,500 for other contracts that involve the employment of mechanics or 
laborers, compliance with sections 102 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327–333), as supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 CFR Part 5) is required. Under section 102 of the Act, each 
contractor shall be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer 
on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard 
work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not 
less than 11/2times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours 
in the work week. Section 107 of the Act is applicable to construction work and 
provides that no laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or 
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These 
requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles 
ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or 
transmission of intelligence. 
 

(23) Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).  Under RCRA (Pub. L. 94–580 
codified at 42 U.S.C. 6962), state and local institutions of higher education, 
hospitals, and non-profit organizations that receive direct Federal awards or other 
Federal funds shall give preference in their procurement programs funded with 
Federal funds to the purchase of recycled products pursuant to the EPA guidelines. 
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(24) Immigration Reform and Control Act. Contractor shall comply with the requirements 
of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, which requires employment 
verification and retention of verification forms for any individuals hired who will 
perform any services under the contract. 

 
G. Contractor Payments:   

 
1. Contractor will provide DEO’s Contract Manager invoices in accordance with the 

requirements of the State of Florida Guide for State Expenditures 
(http://www.myfloridacfo.com/aadir/reference_guide/) with detail sufficient for a proper 
pre-audit and post-audit thereof.  Invoices must also comply with the following:   

 
a. Invoices must be legible and must clearly reflect the goods/services that were provided 

in accordance with the terms of the Contract for the invoice period.  Payment does not 
become due under the Contract until the invoiced deliverable(s) and any required 
report(s) are approved and accepted by DEO. 
 

b. Invoices must contain the Contractor’s name, address, federal employer identification 
number or other applicable Contractor identification number, the Contract number, the 
invoice number, and the invoice period.  DEO or the State may require any additional 
information from Contractor that DEO or the State deems necessary to process an 
invoice. 

 
c. Invoices must be submitted in accordance with the time requirements specified in the 

Scope of Work.   
 

2. At DEO’s or the State's option, Contractor may be required to invoice electronically pursuant 
to guidelines of the Department of Management Services.  Current guidelines require that 
Contractor supply electronic invoices in lieu of paper-based invoices for those transactions 
processed through the system. Electronic invoices shall be submitted to DEO Contract 
Manager through the Ariba Supplier Network (ASN) in one of the following mechanisms – 
EDI 810, cXML, or web-based invoice entry within the ASN. 

3. Payment shall be made in accordance with sections 215.422 and 287.0585, F.S., which 
govern time limits for payment of invoices. Section 215.422, F.S., provides that agencies 
have five (5) working days to inspect and approve goods and services unless the solicitation 
documents or the Contract Scope of Work specify otherwise.  The Department has twenty 
(20) days to deliver a request for payment (voucher) to the Department of Financial 
Services.  The twenty (20) days are measured from the latter of the date the invoice is 
received or the goods or services are received, inspected and approved.  The Scope of Work 
may specify conditions for retainage.  Invoices returned to a Contractor due to preparation 
errors will result in a delay of payment.  Invoice payment requirements do not start until a 
properly completed invoice is provided to DEO.  DEO is responsible for all payments under 
the Contract.   

4. Section 55.03(1), F.S., identifies the process applicable to the determination of the rate of 
interest payable on judgments and decrees, and pursuant to section 215.422(3)(b), F.S., this 
same process applies to the determination of the rate of interest applicable to late 
payments to vendors for goods and services purchased by the State and for contracts which 
do not specify a rate of interest.  The applicable rate of interest is published at: 

http://www.myfloridacfo.com/aadir/reference_guide/
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http://www.myfloridacfo.com/aadir/interest.htm 

 

H. Final Invoice:   
 
Contractor shall submit the final invoice for payment to DEO no later than 30 days after the 
Contract ends or is terminated.  If Contractor fails to do so, all rights to payment are forfeited 
and DEO will not honor any requests submitted after this time period. 
 

I. Return or Recoupment of Funds: 
 
1. Contractor shall return to DEO any overpayments due to unearned funds or funds 

disallowed pursuant to the terms of this Contract that were disbursed to Contractor by DEO.  
In the event that Contractor or its independent auditor discovers that overpayment has 
been made, Contractor shall repay said overpayment within forty (40) calendar days without 
prior notification from DEO. In the event that DEO first discovers an overpayment has been 
made, DEO will notify Contractor by letter.  Should repayment not be made in a timely 
manner, DEO shall be entitled to charge interest at the lawful rate of interest on the 
outstanding balance beginning forty (40) calendar days after the date of notification or 
discovery.  Refunds should be sent to DEO Contract Manager, and made payable to the 
“Department of Economic Opportunity.” 

 
2. Notwithstanding the damages limitations of Section II.F., if Contractor’s non-compliance 

with any provision of the Contract results in additional cost or monetary loss to DEO or the 
State of Florida, DEO can recoup that cost or loss from monies owed to Contractor under 
this Contract or any other contract between Contractor and any State entity.  In the event 
that the discovery of this cost or loss arises when no monies are available under this 
Contract or any other contract between Contractor and any State entity, Contractor will 
repay such cost or loss in full to DEO within thirty (30) days of the date of notice of the 
amount owed, unless the Department agrees, in writing, to an alternative timeframe.   

 
J. Vendor Ombudsman:   

 
A Vendor Ombudsman has been established within the Department of Financial Services.  The 
duties of this individual include acting as an advocate for vendors who may be experiencing 
problems in obtaining timely payment(s) from a state agency.  The Vendor Ombudsman may be 
contacted at (850) 413-5516 or by calling the Chief Financial Officer’s Hotline, (800) 342-2762. 

 
K.  Audits and Records: 

 
1. Representatives of DEO, the Chief Financial Officer of the State of Florida, the Auditor 

General of the State of Florida, the Florida Office of Program Policy Analysis and 
Government Accountability or representatives of the federal government and their duly 
authorized representatives shall have access to any of Contractor’s books, documents, 
papers, and records, including electronic storage media, as they may relate to this Contract, 
for the purposes of conducting audits or examinations or making excerpts or transcriptions. 

 

http://www.myfloridacfo.com/aadir/interest.htm
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2. Contractor shall maintain books, records, and documents in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all 
expenditures of funds provided by DEO under this Contract. 

  
3. Contractor will provide a financial and compliance audit to DEO, if applicable, and ensure 

that all related party transactions are disclosed to the auditor.    
 
4. Contractor shall retain all Contractor records, financial records, supporting documents, 

statistical records, and any other documents (including electronic storage media) pertinent 
to this Contract for a period of five (5) state fiscal years after completion or termination of 
this Contract, or if an audit has been initiated and audit findings have not been resolved at 
the end of five (5) state fiscal years, the records shall be retained until resolution of the 
audit findings through litigation or otherwise.  Contractor shall cooperate with DEO to 
facilitate the duplication and transfer of such records or documents upon request of DEO.  
Additional federal requirements may be identified in Attachment 1, Scope of Work. 
 

5. Contractor shall transfer, at no cost to DEO, all public records upon completion or 
termination of the Contract, and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.  All electronic records 
shall be provided to DEO in a DEO-compatible format. 
 

6. Contractor shall include the aforementioned audit and record keeping requirements in all 
approved subcontracts and assignments. 

 
L.  Employment Eligibility Verification: 

 
1. Executive Order 11-116, signed May 27, 2011, by the Governor of Florida, requires DEO 

contracts in excess of nominal value to expressly require Contractor to:    
 

a. Utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the 
employment eligibility of all new employees hired by Contractor during the Contract 
term; and, 
 

b. Include in all subcontracts under this Contract, the requirement that subcontractors 
performing work or providing services pursuant to this Contract utilize the E-Verify 
system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the 
subcontractor during the term of the subcontract. 

 
2. E-Verify is an Internet-based system that allows an employer, using information reported on 

an employee's Form I-9, Employment Eligibility Verification, to determine the eligibility of all 
new employees hired to work in the United States after the effective date of the required 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU); the responsibilities and elections of federal 
contractors, however, may vary, as stated in Article II.D.1.c. of the MOU.  There is no charge 
to employers to use E-Verify.  The Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system can 
be found at:  

 
http://www.dhs.gov/files/programs/gc_1185221678150.shtm 

 

http://www.dhs.gov/files/programs/gc_1185221678150.shtm
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3. If Contractor does not have an E-Verify MOU in effect, Contractor must enroll in the E-Verify 
system prior to hiring any new employee after the effective date of this Contract. 

 
M. Duty of Continuing Disclosure of Legal Proceedings: 

 
1. Prior to execution of this Contract, Contractor must disclose all prior or on-going civil or 

criminal litigation, investigations, arbitration or administrative proceedings (Proceedings) 
involving Contractor (and each subcontractor) in a written statement to DEO’s Contract 
Manager. Thereafter, Contractor has a continuing duty to promptly disclose all Proceedings 
upon occurrence.   

 
2. This duty of disclosure applies to Contractor’s or subcontractor’s officers and directors when 

any Proceeding relates to the officer or director’s business or financial activities.  Details of 
settlements that are prevented from disclosure by the terms of the settlement may be 
annotated as such. 

 
3. Contractor shall promptly notify the DEO’s Contract Manager of any Proceeding relating to 

or affecting the Contractor’s or subcontractor’s business.  If the existence of such 
Proceeding causes the State concern that the Contractor’s ability or willingness to perform 
the Contract is jeopardized, Contractor shall be required to provide the DEO’s Contract 
Manager all reasonable assurances requested by DEO to demonstrate that: 

 
a. Contractor will be able to perform the Contract in accordance with its terms and 

conditions; and, 
 
b. Contractor and/or its employees, agents or subcontractor(s) have not and will not 

engage in conduct in performing services for DEO which is similar in nature to the 
conduct alleged in such Proceeding. 

 
N. Assignments and Subcontracts: 

 
1. Contractor agrees to neither assign the responsibility for this Contract to another party nor 

subcontract for any of the work contemplated under this Contract without prior written 
approval of DEO.  Any sublicense, assignment, or transfer occurring without the prior 
approval of DEO, shall be null and void. 

  
2. Contractor agrees to be responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurred with 

the project.  If DEO permits Contractor to subcontract all or part of the work contemplated 
under this Contract, including entering into subcontracts with vendors for services and 
commodities, it is understood by Contractor that all such subcontract arrangements shall be 
evidenced by a written document subject to prior review and comment by DEO.  Such 
review of the written subcontract document by DEO will be limited to a determination of 
whether or not subcontracting is permissible and the inclusion of applicable terms and 
conditions of this Contract.  Contractor further agrees that DEO shall not be liable to the 
subcontractor for any expenses or liabilities incurred under the subcontract and Contractor 
shall be solely liable to the subcontractor for all expenses and liabilities incurred under the 
subcontract.  Contractor, at its expense, will defend DEO against such claims. 
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3.  Contractor agrees that all Contractor employees, subcontractors, or agents performing work 
under the Contract shall be properly trained technicians who meet or exceed any specified 
training qualifications.  Upon request, Contractor shall furnish a copy of technical 
certification or other proof of qualification.  All employees, subcontractors, or agents 
performing work under the Contract must comply with all security and administrative 
requirements of DEO.  DEO may conduct, and Contractor shall cooperate in, a security 
background check or otherwise assess any employee, subcontractor, or agent furnished by 
Contractor.  DEO may refuse access to, or require replacement of, any personnel for cause, 
including, but not limited to, technical or training qualifications, quality of work, change in 
security status, or non-compliance with DEO’s security or other requirements.  Such refusal 
shall not relieve Contractor of its obligation to perform all work in compliance with the 
Contract.  DEO may reject and bar from any facility for cause any of Contractor’s employees, 
subcontractors, or agents. 

  
4.  Contractor agrees that the State of Florida shall at all times be entitled to assign or transfer 

its rights, duties, or obligations under this Contract to another governmental agency in the 
State of Florida, upon giving prior written notice to Contractor.  In the event the State of 
Florida approves transfer of Contractor’s obligations, Contractor remains responsible for all 
work performed and all expenses incurred in connection with the Contract.  In addition, this 
Contract shall bind the successors, assigns, and legal representatives of Contractor and of 
any legal entity that succeeds to the obligations of the State of Florida. 

  
5. Contractor agrees to make payments to the subcontractor within seven (7) working days 

after receipt of full or partial payments from DEO in accordance with section 287.0585, F.S., 
unless otherwise stated in the Contract between Contractor and subcontractor.  
Contractor’s failure to pay its subcontractors within seven (7) working days will result in a 
penalty charged against Contractor and paid to the subcontractor in the amount of one-half 
of one (1) percent of the amount due per day from the expiration of the period allowed 
herein for payment.  Such penalty shall be in addition to actual payments owed and shall 
not exceed fifteen (15) percent of the outstanding balance due.  

 
6. Contractor agrees that DEO may undertake or award supplemental contracts for work 

related to the Contract.  Contractor and its subcontractors shall cooperate with such other 
contractors and DEO in all such cases.  

 
7. Contractor shall provide a monthly Minority and Service-Disabled Veteran Business 

Enterprise Report summarizing the participation of certified and non-certified minority and 
service-disabled veteran subcontractors/material suppliers for the current month, and 
project to date. The report shall include the names, addresses and dollar amount of each 
certified and non-certified Minority Business Enterprise and Service-Disabled Veteran 
Enterprise participant and a copy must be forwarded to DEO’s Contract Manager.  The 
Office of Supplier Diversity at (850) 487-0915 will assist in furnishing names of qualified 
minorities.  The DEO’s Minority Coordinator at (850) 245-7260 will assist with questions and 
answers.  

 
8. DEO shall retain the right to reject any of Contractor’s or subcontractor’s employees whose 

qualifications or performance, in DEO’s judgment, are insufficient.   
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O. Purchasing: 
 
1. Prison Rehabilitative Industries and Diversified Enterprises, Inc. (PRIDE):  In accordance 

with section 946.515(6), F.S., if a product or service required for the performance of this 
Contract is certified by or is available from PRIDE and has been approved in accordance with 
subsection 946.515(2), F.S., the following statement applies: 

 
It is expressly understood and agreed that any articles which are the subject of, 
or required to carry out, this contract shall be purchased from the corporation 
identified under chapter 946, F.S., in the same manner and under the same 
procedures set forth in subsections 946.515(2) and (4), F.S.; and for purposes of 
this contract the person, firm or other business entity carrying out the 
provisions of this contract shall be deemed to be substituted for this agency 
insofar as dealings with such corporation are concerned.   

 
The above clause is not applicable to subcontractors unless otherwise required by law. 
Additional information about PRIDE and the products it offers is available at 
http://www.pride-enterprises.org. 

 
2. Products Available from the Blind or Other Handicapped (RESPECT):  In accordance with 

subsection 413.036(3), F.S., if a product or service required for the performance of this 
Contract is on the procurement list established pursuant to subsection 413.035(2), F.S., the 
following statement applies:   

 
It is expressly understood and agreed that any articles that are the subject of, or 
required to carry out, this contract shall be purchased from a nonprofit agency 
for the blind or for the severely handicapped that is qualified pursuant to 
chapter 413, F.S., in the same manner and under the same procedures set forth 
in subsections 413.036(1) and (2), F.S.; and for purposes of this contract, the 
person, firm or other business entity carrying out the provisions of this contract 
shall be deemed to be substituted for the state agency insofar as dealings with 
such qualified nonprofit agency are concerned.  

 
Additional information about the designated nonprofit agency and the products it offers is 
available at http://www.respectofflorida.org. 

 
3. Contractor agrees to procure any recycled products or materials which are the subject of or 

are required to carry out this Contract in accordance with section 403.7065, F.S. 
 

  P.  MyFloridaMarketPlace Transaction Fee:  
 

1.  The State of Florida has instituted MyFloridaMarketPlace, a statewide eProcurement System 
(System).  Pursuant to subsection 287.057(22), F.S., all payments shall be assessed a 
Transaction Fee of one percent (1.0%), which Contractor shall pay to the State, unless 
exempt pursuant to Rule 60A-1.032, F.A.C.  

2. For payments within the State accounting system (FLAIR or its successor), the Transaction 
Fee shall, when possible, be automatically deducted from payments to Contractor.  If 
automatic deduction is not possible, Contractor shall pay the Transaction Fee pursuant to 
Rule 60A-1.031(2), F.A.C.  By submission of these reports and corresponding payments, 

http://www.pride-enterprises.org/
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0400-0499/0413/Sections/0413.035.html
http://www.respectofflorida.org/
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Contractor certifies their correctness.  All such reports and payments shall be subject to 
audit by the State or its designee. 

3. Contractor shall receive a credit for any Transaction Fee paid by Contractor for the purchase 
of any item(s) if such item(s) are returned to Contractor through no fault, act, or omission of 
Contractor.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Transaction Fee is non-refundable when an 
item is rejected or returned, or declined, due to Contractor’s failure to perform or comply 
with specifications or requirements of the Contract. 

4. Failure to comply with these requirements shall constitute grounds for declaring Contractor 
in default and recovering reprocurement costs from Contractor in addition to all 
outstanding fees. CONTRACTORS DELINQUENT IN PAYING TRANSACTION FEES SHALL BE 
EXCLUDED FROM CONDUCTING FUTURE BUSINESS WITH THE STATE. 

 
Q. Nonexpendable Property:  

 
1. For the requirements of this section of the Contract,  "nonexpendable property" is the same 

as “property” as defined in section 273.02, F.S. (equipment, fixtures, and other tangible 
personal property of a non-consumable and nonexpendable nature, with a value or cost of 
$1,000 or more, and a normal expected life of one year or more; hardback-covered bound 
books that are circulated to students or the general public, with a value or cost of $25 or 
more; and hardback-covered bound books, with a value or cost of $250 or more).  

 
2. All nonexpendable property, purchased under this Contract, shall be listed on the property 

records of Contractor.  Contractor shall inventory annually and maintain accounting records 
for all nonexpendable property purchased and submit an inventory report to DEO with the 
final expenditure report.  The records shall include, at a minimum, the following 
information: property tag identification number, description of the item(s), physical 
location, name, make or manufacturer, year, and/or model, manufacturer’s serial 
number(s), date of acquisition, and the current condition of the item. 

 
3. At no time shall Contractor dispose of nonexpendable property purchased under this 

Contract for these services without the written permission of and in accordance with 
instructions from DEO. 

 
4. Immediately upon discovery, Contractor shall notify DEO, in writing, of any property loss 

with the date and reason(s) for the loss. 
 
5. Contractor shall be responsible for the correct use of all nonexpendable property furnished 

under this Contract. 
 
6. A formal contract amendment is required prior to the purchase of any item of 

nonexpendable property not specifically listed in the approved contract budget. 
 
7. Title (ownership) to all nonexpendable property acquired with funds from this Contract shall 

be vested in DEO and said property shall be transferred to DEO upon completion or 
termination of the Contract unless otherwise authorized in writing by DEO. 

 
R. Information Resource Acquisition: 

Contractor shall obtain prior written approval from the appropriate DEO approving authority 
before purchasing any Information Technology Resource (ITR) or conducting any activity that 
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will impact DEO’s electronic information technology equipment or software, as both terms are 
defined in DEO Policy Number 5.01, in any way.  ITR includes computer hardware, software, 
networks, devices, connections, applications, and data.   

 
S. Insurance: 

 
During the Contract, including the initial Contract term, renewal(s), and extensions, Contractor, 
at its sole expense, shall maintain insurance coverage of such types and with such terms and 
limits as may be reasonably associated with the Contract.  Providing and maintaining adequate 
insurance coverage is a material obligation of Contractor, and failure to maintain such coverage 
may void the Contract.  The limits of coverage under each policy maintained by Contractor shall 
not be interpreted as limiting Contractor’s liability and obligations under the Contract.  All 
insurance policies shall be through insurers licensed and authorized to write policies in Florida.   
 
Upon execution of this Contract, Contractor shall provide DEO written verification of the 
existence and amount for each type of applicable insurance coverage.  Within thirty (30) days of 
the effective date of the Contract, Contractor shall furnish DEO proof of applicable insurance 
coverage by standard ACORD form certificates of insurance.  In the event that any applicable 
coverage is cancelled by the insurer for any reason, Contractor shall immediately notify DEO of 
such cancellation and shall obtain adequate replacement coverage conforming to the 
requirements herein and provide proof of such replacement coverage within fifteen (15) 
business days after the cancellation of coverage.   
 
DEO shall be exempt from, and in no way liable for, any sums of money representing a 
deductible in any insurance policy.  The payment of such deductible shall be the sole 
responsibility of Contractor providing such insurance.  The following types of insurance are 
required. 
 
1. Contractor’s Commercial General Liability Insurance:  

 
By execution of this Contract, unless Contractor is a state agency or subdivision as defined 
by Subsection 768.28(2), F.S., Contractor shall provide adequate commercial general liability 
insurance coverage and hold such liability insurance at all times during the Contract.  A self-
insurance program established and operating under the laws of the State of Florida may 
provide such coverage.   

 
2. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance:  

 
Contractor, at all times during the Contract, at its sole expense, shall provide commercial 
insurance of such a type and with such terms and limits as may be reasonably associated 
with the Contract, which, as a minimum, shall be:  workers’ compensation and employer’s 
liability insurance in accordance with chapter 440, F.S., with minimum employer’s liability 
limits of $100,000 per accident, $100,000 per person, and $500,000 policy aggregate.  Such 
policy shall cover all employees engaged in any Contract work.   
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3.  Other Insurance:   
 
During the Contract term, Contractor shall maintain any other insurance as required in 
Attachment 1, Scope of Work. 

 
T. Confidentiality and Safeguarding Information: 

 
1.   Each Party may have access to confidential information made available by the other. The 

provisions of the Florida Public Records Act, chapter 119, F.S., and other applicable state 
and federal laws will govern disclosure of any confidential information received by the State 
of Florida.   

 
2.   Contractor must implement procedures to ensure the protection and confidentiality of all 

data, files, and records involved with this Contract. 
 

3.   Except as necessary to fulfill the terms of this Contract and with the permission of DEO, 
Contractor shall not divulge to third parties any confidential information obtained by 
Contractor or its agents, distributors, resellers, subcontractors, officers, or employees in the 
course of performing contract work, including, but not limited to, security procedures, 
business operations information, or commercial proprietary information in the possession of 
the State or DEO. 

 
4.   Contractor agrees not to use or disclose any information concerning a recipient of services 

under this Contract for any purpose not in conformity with state and federal law or 
regulations except upon written consent of the recipient, or his responsible parent or 
guardian when authorized by law, if applicable. 

 
5.    If Contractor has access to either DEO’s network or any DEO applications, or both, in order 

to fulfill Contractor’s obligations under this Contract, Contractor agrees to abide by all 
applicable DEO Information Technology Security procedures and policies.  Contractor 
(including its employees, sub-contractors, agents, or any other individuals to whom 
Contractor exposes confidential information obtained  under this Contract),  shall not store, 
or allow to be stored, any confidential information on any portable storage media (e.g., 
laptops, thumb drives, hard drives, etc.) or peripheral device with the capacity to hold 
information.  Failure to strictly comply with this provision shall constitute a breach of 
contract. 

 
6. Contractor shall notify DEO in writing of any disclosure of unsecured confidential 

information of DEO by Contractor, its employees, agents or representatives which is not in 
compliance with the terms of the Contract (of which it becomes aware).  Contractor also 
shall report to DEO any Security Incidents of which it becomes aware, including those 
incidents reported to Contractor by its sub-contractors or agents.   For purposes of this 
Contract, “Security Incident” means the attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, 
disclosure, modification, or destruction of DEO information in Contractor’s possession or 
electronic interference with DEO operations; however, random attempts at access shall not 
be considered a security incident.  Contractor shall make a report to DEO not more than 
seven (7) business days after Contractor learns of such use or disclosure.  Contractor’s 
report shall identify, to the extent known:  (i) the nature of the unauthorized use or 
disclosure, (ii) the confidential information used or disclosed, (iii) who made the 
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unauthorized use or received the unauthorized disclosure, (iv) what Contractor has done or 
shall do to mitigate any deleterious effect of the unauthorized use or disclosure, and (v) 
what corrective action Contractor has taken or shall take to prevent future similar 
unauthorized use or disclosure. Contractor shall provide such other information, including a 
written report, as reasonably requested by DEO’s Information Security Manager. 

7. In the event of a breach of security concerning confidential personal information involved 
with this Contract, Contractor shall comply with section 817.5681, F.S., through June 30, 
2014, and with section 501.171, F.S., as applicable.  When notification to affected persons is 
required under this section of the statute, Contractor shall provide that notification, but 
only after receipt of DEO’s approval of the contents of the notice.  Defined statutorily, and 
for purposes of this Contract, “breach of security” means the unauthorized access of data in 
electronic form containing personal data.  Good faith acquisition of personal information by 
an employee or agent of the Contractor is not a breach, provided the information is not 
used for a purpose unrelated to the Contractor’s obligations under this Contract or is not 
subject to further unauthorized use. 

U. Warranty of Ability to Perform: 
   

Contractor warrants that, to the best of its knowledge, there is no pending or threatened action, 
proceeding, or investigation, or any other legal or financial condition, that would in any way 
prohibit, restrain, or diminish Contractor’s ability to satisfy its contract obligations. Contractor 
warrants that neither it nor any affiliate is currently on the convicted vendor list maintained 
pursuant to section 287.133, F.S., or on any similar list maintained by any other state or the 
federal government.  Contractor shall immediately notify DEO in writing if its ability to perform 
is compromised in any manner during the term of the Contract.   

 
V. Patents, Copyrights, and Royalties: 

 
1. Pursuant to section 286.021, F.S., if any discovery or invention arises or is developed in the 

course or as a result of work or services performed with funds from this Contract, 
Contractor shall refer the discovery or invention to DEO who will refer it to the Department 
of State to determine whether patent protection will be sought in the name of the State of 
Florida.  Any and all patent rights accruing under or in connection with the performance of 
the Contract are hereby reserved to the State of Florida.  The rights to any invention 
resulting from this Contract that is for the performance of experimental, developmental, or 
research work are governed by 37 CFR Part 401 and any of its implementing regulations as 
applicable.  All data, both electronic and hard copies, created or received by Contractor 
during the Contract are the property of DEO and must be surrendered to DEO upon 
expiration, termination or cancellation of this Contract at no cost to DEO. 
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2. Where activities supported by this Contract produce original writings, sound recordings, 
pictorial reproductions, drawings or other graphic representations and works of any similar 
nature, DEO has the right to use, duplicate and disclose such materials in whole or in part, in 
any manner, for any purpose whatsoever and to allow others acting on behalf of DEO to do 
so.  In the event that any books, manuals, films, websites, web elements, electronic 
information, or other copyrightable materials are produced Contractor shall notify DEO.  
Any and all copyrights accruing under or in connection with the performance funded by this 
Contract are hereby reserved to the State of Florida. 

 
3. In accordance with the provisions of section 1004.23, F.S., a State University is authorized in 

its own name to perform all things necessary to secure letters of patent, copyrights, and 
trademarks on any works it produces.  Any action taken by the university in securing or 
exploiting such trademarks, copyrights, or patents shall, within 30 days, be reported in 
writing by the president of the university to the Department of State in accordance with 
subsection 1004.23(6), F.S. 

 
W. Independent Contractor Status:  

 
In Contractor’s performance of its duties and responsibilities under the Contract, it is mutually 
understood and agreed that Contractor is at all times acting and performing as an independent 
contractor. DEO shall neither have nor exercise any control or direction over the methods by 
which Contractor shall perform its work and functions other than as provided herein.  Nothing in 
the Contract is intended to or shall be deemed to constitute a partnership or joint venture 
between the Parties.  
 
1. Except where Contractor is a state agency, Contractor, its officers, agents, employees, 

subcontractors, or assignees, in performance of this Contract shall act in the capacity of an 
independent contractor and not as an officer, employee, or agent of the State of Florida. 
Nor shall Contractor represent to others that, as Contractor, it has the authority to bind DEO 
unless specifically authorized to do so. 

 
2. Except where Contractor is a state agency, neither Contractor, nor its officers, agents, 

employees, subcontractors, or assignees are entitled to state retirement or state leave 
benefits, or to any other compensation of state employment as a result of performing the 
duties and obligations of this Contract. 

 
3. Contractor agrees to take such actions as may be necessary to ensure that each 

subcontractor will be deemed to be an independent contractor and will not be considered 
or permitted to be an agent, servant, joint venturer, or partner of the State of Florida. 

 
4. Unless justified by Contractor and agreed to by DEO in Attachment 1, Scope of Work, DEO 

will not furnish services of support (e.g., office space, office supplies, telephone service, 
secretarial, or clerical support) to Contractor or its subcontractor or assignee.   

 
5. DEO shall not be responsible for withholding taxes with respect to Contractor’s 

compensation hereunder.  Contractor shall have no claim against DEO for vacation pay, sick 
leave, retirement benefits, social security, workers’ compensation, health or disability 
benefits, reemployment assistance benefits, or employee benefits of any kind.   Contractor 
shall ensure that its employees, subcontractors, and other agents, receive benefits and 
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necessary insurance (health, workers’ compensation, reemployment assistance benefits) 
from an employer other than the State of Florida.   

 
6.  Contractor, at all times during the Contract, must comply with the reporting and 

Reemployment Assistance contribution payment requirements of chapter 443, F.S. 
 

X. Electronic Funds Transfer: 
 

Contractor agrees to enroll in Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT), offered by the State’s Chief 
Financial Officer within thirty (30) days of the date the last Party has signed this Contract. Copies 
of the Authorization form and a sample blank enrollment letter can be found on the vendor 
instruction page at: 

http://www.fldfs.com/aadir/direct_deposit_web/Vendors.htm 
 

Questions should be directed to the EFT Section at (850) 413-5517.  Once enrolled, invoice 
payments will be made by EFT. 

 
II. CONTRACTOR AND DEO AGREE: 
 

A. Renegotiation or Modification:  
 
The Parties agree to renegotiate this Contract if federal and/or state revisions of any applicable 
laws or regulations make changes in the Contract necessary.  In addition to changes 
necessitated by law, DEO may at any time, with written notice to Contractor, make changes 
within the general scope of the Contract.  Such changes may include modification of the 
requirements, changes to processing procedures, or other changes as decided by DEO.  Any 
investigation necessary to determine the impact of the change shall be the responsibility of 
Contractor.  Modifications of provisions of this Contract shall only be valid when they have been 
reduced to writing and duly signed and dated by all Parties.   

  
B. Time is of the Essence:   

 
Time is of the essence regarding the performance obligations set forth in this Contract. Any 
additional deadlines for performance for Contractor’s obligation to timely provide deliverables 
under this Contract including but not limited to timely submittal of reports, are contained in 
Attachment 1, Scope of Work.  

 
C. Termination: 

 
1. Termination Due to the Lack of Funds:  

 
In the event funds to finance this Contract become unavailable or if federal or state funds 
upon which this Contract is dependent are withdrawn or redirected, DEO may terminate this 
Contract upon no less than twenty-four (24) hours notice in writing to Contractor.  Said 
notice shall be delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested or in person with proof 
of delivery.  DEO shall be the final authority as to the availability of funds and will not 
reallocate funds earmarked for this Contract to another program thus causing “lack of 
funds.”  In the event of termination of this Contract under this provision, Contractor will be 
compensated for any work satisfactorily completed prior to notification of termination. 

http://www.fldfs.com/aadir/direct_deposit_web/Vendors.htm
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2. Termination for Cause:  

 
DEO may terminate the Contract if Contractor fails to: (1) deliver the product within the 
time specified in the Contract or any extension; (2) maintain adequate progress, thus 
endangering performance of the Contract; (3) honor any term of the Contract; or (4) abide 
by any statutory, regulatory, or licensing requirement.  Rule 60A-1.006(3), F.A.C., governs 
the procedure and consequences of default. Contractor shall continue to perform any work 
not terminated.  The rights and remedies of DEO in this clause are in addition to any other 
rights and remedies provided by law or under the Contract.  Contractor shall not be entitled 
to recover any cancellation charges or lost profits. 
 

3. Termination for Convenience:   
 
DEO, by written notice to Contractor, may terminate the Contract in whole or in part when 
DEO determines in its sole discretion that it is in the State’s interest to do so.  Contractor 
shall not furnish any product after it receives the notice of termination, except as necessary 
to complete the continued portion of the Contract, if any.  Contractor shall not be entitled 
to recover any cancellation charges or lost profits. 
 

D. Dispute Resolution: 
 
Unless otherwise stated in Attachment 1, Scope of Work, disputes concerning the performance 
of the Contract shall be decided by DEO, who shall reduce the decision to writing and serve a 
copy on Contractor.  The decision shall be final and conclusive unless within twenty-one (21) 
days from the date of receipt, Contractor files with DEO a petition for administrative hearing.  
DEO’s decision on the petition shall be final, subject to Contractor’s right to review pursuant to 
chapter 120, F.S.  Exhaustion of administrative remedies is an absolute condition precedent to 
Contractor’s ability to pursue any other form of dispute resolution; provided however, that the 
Parties may employ the alternative dispute resolution procedures outlined in chapter 120, F.S.  

 
E. Indemnification (NOTE:   If Contractor is a state agency or subdivision, as defined in subsection 

768.28(2), F.S., pursuant to subsection 768.28(19), F.S., neither Party indemnifies nor insures the 
other Party for the other Party’s negligence):  

 
1. Contractor shall be fully liable for the actions of its agents, employees, partners, or 

subcontractors and shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State and DEO, and 
their officers, agents, and employees, from suits, actions, damages, and costs of every name 
and description, including attorneys’ fees, arising from or relating to personal injury and 
damage to real or personal tangible property alleged to be caused in whole or in part by 
Contractor, its agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors, provided, however, that 
Contractor shall not indemnify for that portion of any loss or damages proximately caused 
by the negligent act or omission of the State or DEO.  

 
 2. Further, Contractor shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State and DEO from 

any suits, actions, damages, and costs of every name and description, including attorneys’ 
fees, arising from or relating to violation or infringement of a trademark, copyright, patent, 
trade secret or intellectual property right, provided, however, that the foregoing obligation 
shall not apply to DEO’s misuse or modification of Contractor’s products or DEO’s operation 
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or use of Contractor’s  products in a manner not contemplated by the Contract or the 
purchase order.  If any product is the subject of an infringement suit, or in Contractor’s 
opinion is likely to become the subject of such a suit, Contractor may at its sole expense 
procure for DEO the right to continue using the product or to modify it to become non-
infringing.  If Contractor is not reasonably able to modify or otherwise secure DEO the right 
to continue using the product, Contractor shall remove the product and refund DEO the 
amounts paid in excess of a reasonable rental for past use.  DEO shall not be liable for any 
royalties. 

 
3. Contractor’s obligations under the preceding two paragraphs with respect to any legal 

action are contingent upon the State or DEO giving Contractor (1) written notice of any 
action or threatened action, (2) the opportunity to take over and settle or defend any such 
action at Contractor’s sole expense, and (3) assistance in defending the action at 
Contractor’s sole expense.  Contractor shall not be liable for any cost, expense, or 
compromise incurred or made by the State or DEO in any legal action without Contractor’s 
prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.   

 
F. Limitation of Liability:  

 
For all claims against Contractor under any contract or purchase order, and regardless of the 
basis on which the claim is made, Contractor’s liability under a contract or purchase order for 
direct damages shall be limited to the greater of $100,000, the dollar amount of the contract or 
purchase order, or two times the charges rendered by Contractor under the purchase order.  
This limitation shall not apply to claims arising under the Indemnity paragraphs contained in this 
Contract. 

 
Unless otherwise specifically enumerated in the Contract or in the purchase order, no Party shall 
be liable to another for special, indirect, punitive, or consequential damages, including lost data 
or records (unless the contract or purchase order requires Contractor to back-up data or 
records), even if the Party has been advised that such damages are possible.  No Party shall be 
liable for lost profits, lost revenue, or lost institutional operating savings.  The State and DEO 
may, in addition to other remedies available to them at law or equity and upon notice to 
Contractor, retain such monies from amounts due Contractor as may be necessary to satisfy any 
claim for damages, penalties, costs and the like asserted by or against them.  The State may set 
off any liability or other obligation of Contractor or its affiliates to the State against any 
payments due Contractor under any contract with the State. 

 
G. Force Majeure and Notice of Delay from Force Majeure:    

 
Neither Party shall be liable to the other for any delay or failure to perform under this Contract 
if such delay or failure is neither the fault nor the negligence of the Party or its employees or 
agents and the delay is due directly to acts of God, wars, acts of public enemies, strikes, fires, 
floods, or other similar cause wholly beyond the Party’s control, or for any of the foregoing that 
affects subcontractors or suppliers if no alternate source of supply is available.  However, in the 
event of delay from the foregoing causes, the Party shall take all reasonable measures to 
mitigate any and all resulting delay or disruption in the Party’s performance obligation under 
this Contract. If the delay is excusable under this paragraph, the delay will not result in any 
additional charge or cost under the Contract to either Party.  In the case of any delay Contractor 
believes is excusable under this paragraph, Contractor shall notify DEO in writing of the delay or 
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potential delay and describe the cause of the delay either:  (1) within ten (10) calendar days 
after the cause that creates or will create the delay first arose, if Contractor could reasonably 
foresee that a delay could occur as a result; or (2) within five (5) calendar days after the date 
Contractor first had reason to believe that a delay could result, if the delay is not reasonably 
foreseeable.  THE FOREGOING SHALL CONSTITUTE CONTRACTOR’S SOLE REMEDY OR EXCUSE 
WITH RESPECT TO DELAY.  Providing notice in strict accordance with this paragraph is a 
condition precedent to such remedy.  DEO, in its sole discretion, will determine if the delay is 
excusable under this paragraph and will notify Contractor of its decision in writing.  No claim for 
damages, other than for an extension of time, shall be asserted against DEO.  Contractor shall 
not be entitled to an increase in the Contract price or payment of any kind from DEO for direct, 
indirect, consequential, impact, or other costs, expenses or damages, including but not limited 
to costs of acceleration or inefficiency arising because of delay, disruption, interference, or 
hindrance from any cause whatsoever.  If performance is suspended or delayed, in whole or in 
part, due to any of the causes described in this paragraph, after the causes have ceased to exist, 
Contractor shall perform at no increased cost, unless DEO determines, in its sole discretion, that 
the delay will significantly impair the value of the Contract to DEO or the State, in which case, 
DEO may do any or all of the following:  (1) accept allocated performance or deliveries from 
Contractor, provided that Contractor grants preferential treatment to DEO with respect to 
products or services  subjected to allocation; (2) purchase from other sources (without recourse 
to and by Contractor for the related costs and expenses) to replace all or part of the products or 
services that are the subject of the delay, which purchases may be deducted from the Contract 
quantity; or (3) terminate the Contract in whole or in part. 

 
H. Severability:   

 
If any provision, in whole or in part, of this Contract is held to be void or unenforceable by a 
Court of competent jurisdiction, that provision shall be enforced only to the extent that it is not 
in violation of law or is not otherwise unenforceable, and all other provisions remain in full force 
and effect. 
 

I. Authority of Contractor’s Signatory:   
 

Upon execution, Contractor shall return the executed copies of this Contract in accordance with 
the instructions provided by DEO along with documentation ensuring that the below signatory 
has authority to bind Contractor to this Contract as of the date of execution.  Documentation 
may be in the form of a legal opinion from the Contractor’s attorney, or other reliable 
documentation demonstrating such authority, and is hereby incorporated by reference.  DEO 
may, at its discretion, request additional documentation related to the below signatory’s 
authority to bind Contractor to this Contract.  

 
J. Execution in Counterparts:  

  
This Contract may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of 
which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 
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K. Contact Information for Contractor and DEO Contacts: 
 

The name, address, zip code, telephone and fax numbers, and email address for: 
  
Contractor’s Payee: Contractor’s Contract Manager: 
 
Dewberry Consultants, LLC Chris Zambito  

1000 N. Ashley Drive, Suite 801 1000 N. Ashley Drive, Suite 801 

Tampa, FL  33602 Tampa, FL 33602-3718 

Telephone No.:  (813) 421-8635 Telephone No.: (813) 421-8639 

Fax No.: (813) 225-1385 Fax No.: (813) 225-1385 

Email Address:   kpatterson@dewberry.com Email Address:  czambito@dewberry.com 

 
DEO’s Contract Manager: 

 
Daniel Fitz-Patrick 

107 East Madison Street 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

Telephone No.:  (850) 717-8511 

Fax No.: (850) 717-8522 

Email Address:  Daniel.FitzPatrick@deo.myflorida.com 

 
 

In the event that any Party designates a different Contract Manager after the execution of this 
Contract, the Party will provide written notice of the name, address, zip code, telephone and fax 
numbers, and email address of the newest Contract Manager to all other Parties.  A designation 
of a new Contract Manager shall not require a formal amendment to the Contract. 
 

- Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank - 
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L. Execution: 

I have read the above Contract and the attachments and exhibits thereto and understand each 
section and paragraph.  
 

 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, and in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and in the 
attachments hereto, the Parties have caused to be executed this 52  page Contract by their 
undersigned officials duly authorized.    

 
DEWBERRY CONSULTANTS LLC  DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY 

 
 
By   By  

 Signature   Signature 
     

 Donald E. Stone, Jr.   Theresa B. “Cissy” Proctor 
Title CEO  Title Chief of Staff 

 
Date 

   
Date 

 

 
  

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency, subject only  
to full and proper execution by the Parties 
 
OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL 
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 
Approved Date: _______________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

- Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank -
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Attachment 1 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
   
INCLUSION OF SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS & VENDOR RESPONSE 
The original specifications and all addendums and responses to 15-RFP-004-LJ, and all representations, 
warranties and commitments in the response and related correspondence continue as contractual 
obligations under this Contract. 
 
CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO COMPLETE ATTACHMENT 2. 
  
I. General Description 
 
A. Definitions and Descriptions 
 
Unless otherwise expressly stated, the following words, terms and descriptions shall, for the purposes of 
this Contract, have the meanings shown in this section. Where terms are not defined in this Contract, 
such terms shall have ordinarily accepted meanings such as the context implies. 
 

a) Adaptation Plan: An adaptation plan identifies current and future coastal hazards, assesses the 
impacts of identified hazards, develops strategies and actions to best minimize these impacts, 
and establishes a process to implement those actions. An adaptation plan is comprised of four 
essential components (i.e., parts): defining the adaptation planning Context, completing a 
Vulnerability Assessment, developing Adaptation Strategies, and Implementation Strategies. 
Within each of these four main adaptation planning components are a number of supporting 
tasks that will be addressed during the adaptation planning process. 

b) Adaptation Planning: The process of developing one or more parts of Recipient’s local 
adaptation plan. 

c) Adaptation Planning Workshop: Includes one or more public workshops with Recipient to 
achieve agreed upon workshop objectives. 

d) Adaptation Strategies: The toolkit of responses that Recipient can take to adapt to coastal 
hazards. During the adaptation planning process, Recipient will identify one or more focus 
area(s) or issue(s), identify a series of adaptation strategies, and prioritize the community’s 
adaptation needs through the utilization of a Decision Making Framework. Adaptation strategies 
are often classified according to the categories of Protection, Accommodation and Managed 
Retreat. 

e) Coastal Hazard:  Include, but is not limited to: high tides, storm surge, and the related impacts of 
rising sea levels. 

f) Community Participation: Involves engaging community stakeholders in the adaptation planning 
process. Opportunities for community engagement include, but are not limited to: serving on a 
steering committee; proposing guiding principles and motivations for the adaptation planning 
process; choosing methodologies and tools Contractor will use to develop a draft coastal hazard 
vulnerability assessment; assisting in the selection or delineation of adaptation focus areas or 
issues; providing comments related to Recipient’s draft coastal hazard vulnerability assessment; 
proposing adaptation strategies, or preferences for strategies which Recipient can take to adapt 
to the findings identified in Recipient’s’ final coastal hazard vulnerability assessment; proposing 
implementation strategies; and, providing comments related to Recipient’s draft coastal hazards 
adaptation plan. 
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g) Community Stakeholder: Include any institution or individual that has a latent or expressed 
interest in Recipient accomplishing its mission and goals. 

h) Confidential Information: Information which is protected from disclosure as a public record by 
law including information which is named as “confidential” or “confidential and exempt” from 
disclosure as a public record under the Florida Statutes. 

i) Context: Refers to the preparatory activities taken by Recipient at the beginning of the 
adaptation planning process. These preparatory activities include: assembling a steering 
committee; identifying opportunities for community participation; setting guiding principles and 
motivations; and, describing the adaptation planning context. This last activity, describing the 
planning context - offers an opportunity to analyze prior related planning efforts that may have 
occurred within or near the community, information gaps related to adaptation planning, the 
available human capacity (such as coastal scientist and land-use planners), and the outside 
resources needed to conduct the locally desired planning effort. Describing the planning context 
provides Recipient with a chance to assess the scope of work and the resources applicable to 
the adaptation planning process. 

j) Contract: A written agreement between DEO and the Contractor, including all documents, 
exhibits and attachments specifying services to be performed or provided by the Contractor, 
billing rates for these services and the manner in which the Contractor shall be compensated for 
these services, executed by both the Contractor and DEO. 

k) Contract Manager: The person designated by DEO who is charged with monitoring a contract 
through the term of the agreement and who is specifically responsible for enforcing 
performance of the contract terms and conditions, and maintaining all financial information, i.e., 
payment history, payment method, payment tracking, etc. The Contract Manager serves as the 
liaison between DEO and the Contractor regarding performance issues contained in the 
contract. 

l) Contractor: The person or entity that enters into a contract to sell commodities or contractual 
services to DEO. 

m) Coordination Meeting: A webinar meeting between Recipient (Local Agreement Manager, 
Steering Committee, and Community Stakeholders), DEO staff and Contractor. The coordination 
meeting will serve to establish a working relationship between parties. 

n) Decision Making Framework: Identification of suitable adaptation strategies will be identified 
through an objective framework that incorporates qualitative and quantitative measures of 
project benefits, feasibility, acceptance, and obstacles to systematically evaluate options. The 
development of a decision making framework will consider Recipient’s risk portfolio as well as 
more qualitative dimensions of Recipient’s capabilities, including legal, fiscal, administrative, 
political, and technical aspects. Potential obstacles for implementation will be included through 
qualitative (i.e., perceived acceptance) and quantitative (i.e., cost) metrics. The end product of 
the framework, will be spreadsheet-based tool, used as scoring matrix that will support rating 
and prioritization of potential adaptation measures. The framework and resulting tool will help 
facilitate objective scoring and transparency in the adaptation strategy evaluation process. 

o) DEO: Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 
p) DEO Business Hours: Typically 8:00 A.M. through 5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday, during 

which time DEO conducts routine business. 
q) DEO Non-Business Hours: Typically holidays, weekends, and night time frames in which DEO is 

closed to conducting routine business. 
r) DEO Observed Holidays: The following holidays are currently observed by DEO. If any of these 

holidays fall on a Saturday, the preceding Friday is observed. If any fall on a Sunday, the 
following Monday is observed. 

1. New Year’s Day 
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2. Martin Luther King Day 
3. Memorial Day 
4. Independence Day 
5. Labor Day 
6. Veteran’s Day 
7. Thanksgiving Day and the following day 
8. Christmas Day 

s) DEP: Florida Department of Environmental Protection. 
t) Design Meeting: An in-person public meeting, designed to engage community stakeholders in 

order to capture input and tailor the vulnerability assessment approach used by Contractor to 
meet Recipient’s needs. The meeting will have a participatory structure that will help generate 
buy-in through participation by stakeholders. 

u) Draft: A complete deliverable, that has undergone Contractor’s internal quality assurance 
processes, and is ready for review and comment by Recipient and DEO. 

v) Exposure Analysis: An exposure analysis utilizes geospatial hazard projection data to answer the 
question “where” based on two choices – when (i.e., what planning time horizon) and how 
much (i.e., which scenario). The “where” will depend on which computer model is used (e.g., 
Florida Department of Transportation Sketch Planning tool; Sea Level Affecting Marshes Model) 
to produce the projection. The analysis can depict which areas in the community are likely to be 
susceptible to the chosen scenario. In addition, the exposure analysis may incorporate the effect 
that one hazard will have on other coastal hazards, such as the relationship between sea level 
rise and habitat migration or storm surge. The results from Recipient’s Exposure Analysis will be 
included in Recipient’s Risk Portfolio. 

w) FCMP: Florida Coastal Management Program. 
x) Focus Group: Statewide experts on adaptation and coastal vulnerability as well as stakeholders 

in the coastal area. 
y) Impact Analysis: Conducting an impact (sensitivity) analysis allows Recipient to identify the 

potential physical/economic impairment to different assets/entities located in areas that are at 
risk to a coastal hazard scenario projected during the Exposure Analysis. The results from 
Recipient’s Impact Analysis will be included in Recipient’s Risk Portfolio. 

z) Invoice: Contractors itemized document stating prices and quantities of goods and/or services 
delivered, and sent to DEO for verification and payment. 

aa) NOAA: National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration. 
bb) Premises: The entire Department of Economic Opportunity property identified by DEO’s Building 

Manager (or his/her designee) and any other property that may be added to or deemed part of 
the contract agreement. 

cc)  Project: Refers to a Recipient’s adaptation planning process. 
dd) Project Work Plan: See “Work Plan.” 
ee) Pilot Community: Also known as “Recipient,” refers to the three communities selected to take 

part in the evaluation and development of adaptation planning guidance materials. 
ff) Recipient: Recipient is used broadly in Attachment 1 of this contract to mean: one or more pilot 

communities; and, community stakeholders from pilot communities. The term “Recipient” is 
used in this singular form to reflect a paralleled use of this term in cooperative agreements (e.g., 
Memorandum of Agreement) between DEO and each pilot community, whereas, individual 
communities are referred to as “Recipient.” 

gg) Risk Portfolio: A summary of the baseline and future coastal hazard risk, presented in geospatial, 
tabular and narrative summaries. The portfolio includes summaries of risk by sector, multiple-
geographies and sea level rise conditions. Summaries of impacts by section (e.g., commercial, 
residential, critical infrastructure) will allow each community to identify the local and risk to 
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specific asset categories such as residential, commercial, transportation, and other critical 
infrastructure services. Geographic distribution of risk will be developed for multiple 
geographies – from gridded summary coverage, sub-watershed, and municipal levels. This 
information will be assembled in the form of an appendix, to be included in the adaptation plan 
for Recipient. 

hh) Special Area Management Plan (SAMP): A comprehensive plan providing for natural resource 
protection and reasonable coastal-dependent economic growth containing a detailed and 
comprehensive statement of policies; standards and criteria to guide public and private uses of 
lands and waters; and mechanisms for timely implementation in specific geographic areas 
within the coastal zone. In addition, SAMPs provide for increased specificity in protecting natural 
resources, reasonable coastal-dependent economic growth, improved protection of life and 
property in hazardous areas, including those areas likely to be affected by land subsidence, 
rising sea levels, or fluctuating water levels of the Great Lakes, and improved predictability in 
governmental decision making. 

ii) Stakeholder: See “Community Stakeholder.” 
jj) Steering Committee: A steering committee typically includes diverse representation from 

community staff and community members. Effective Committee composition will ensure that 
technical accuracy and thoroughness of Recipient’s adaptation planning process is achieved and 
whose participation and support will enhance the processes’ political acceptability. Depending 
on the size of the community and topics addressed during the planning process, the size of an 
effective steering committee generally ranges from five to twenty members. The Committee, its 
membership, and its responsibilities should be formalized through resolution or association to a 
previously adopted group. 

kk) Subcontractor: A person or entity contracting to perform part or another’s entire contract, upon 
Department approval. 

ll) Vulnerability Assessment: Measures the coastal hazard exposures Recipient is likely to 
experience, and sensitivities (e.g., populations and land uses) that may be exposed to the 
identified hazards. Assessment activities typically include: conducting an exposure analysis, 
conducting an impact analysis, and assessing Recipient’s adaptive capacity based on the findings 
from the impact analysis. 

mm) Work Plan: The work plan will serve as a cumulative record of Recipient’s planning process. 
Work plans will be developed as an evolving document during the term of Recipient’s 
adaptation planning process. Contents of the work plan will serve as a foundation of Recipient’s 
adaptation plan. Contents of the work plan are dependent on Recipient’s adaptation planning 
process, and are likely to include: major project milestones; a timeline for accomplishing major 
project milestones; interim task to be completed; actions taken by Contractor and Recipient; 
alternatives considered and chosen by Recipient; data, methods and approaches used; findings; 
relevant figures and tables; and, supplementary resources available to Community Stakeholders. 
 

B. Purpose  
 

Section 163.3177(6)(g)(10), Florida Statues, provides local governments the option to “…develop 
an adaptation action area designation for those low-lying coastal zones that are experiencing 
coastal flooding due to extreme high tides and storm surge and are vulnerable to the impacts of 
rising sea level.” Projected sea level rise impacts threaten to exacerbate the vulnerability of 
Florida's at-risk coastal resources. Adapting to and mitigating sea level rise impacts will require 
that adaptation measures be incorporated into all levels of hazard mitigation and land use 
planning in Florida. DEO, in partnership with the National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration 
(NOAA), Department of Environmental Protection (DEP), the Florida Coastal Management Office 
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(FCMO), and the Florida Division of Emergency Management (DEM), are working together on an 
initiative to integrate coastal adaptation measures into existing local planning, policy and 
budgeting mechanisms, such as comprehensive plans, mitigation strategies, economic 
development plans, special area management plans and post-disaster redevelopment plans, as 
applicable. 

 
C. Overview  
 

DEO has entered into two contracts with DEP, which allow DEO to enter into one or more 
subcontracts with vendors to complete the tasks listed in this Contract. The two contracts with 
DEP are for years three and four of DEO’s Community Resiliency Initiative (see Attachment 1, 
Section II. X). The work from years one and two of the Initiative, an inventory and comparison of 
methodology and tools available for use by local governments to conduct coastal hazard 
vulnerability analyses and scenarios, is to be used for the contractual work completed in Tasks 1 
and 2 of this Contract.  Contractual work for Task 1 includes using the information and resources 
inventoried and organized for the contractual work tied to years one and two of the Community 
Resiliency Initiative to develop coastal hazard vulnerability analyses and scenarios for three (3) 
pilot communities. Contractual work for Task 2 includes using the coastal hazard vulnerability 
analyses and scenarios completed in Task 1 for the three (3) pilot communities to complete 
coastal hazard adaptation plans for each of the three (3) pilot communities. In addition to these 
major tasks, a number of guidance tools, presentation materials and case studies will be 
completed, that clearly identify and explain all information and resources needed and available 
to Florida communities for the completion of coastal hazard analyses, scenarios and adaptation 
plans. 
 
The total maximum cost-reimbursement value of each task, as provided in Attachment 1, 
Section II of this Contract, is directly related to the values in the three contracts executed by 
DEO and DEP.  

 
II. Manner of Service Provision  
 
A. Task 1 

 
During completion of Task 1, Contractor will work directly with stakeholders from the three (3) 
pilot communities nominated by the Community Resiliency Initiative’s Focus Group to complete 
a coastal hazard risk and vulnerability analysis and produce one or more scenarios for each 
community. Prior to starting the analyses process, Contractor will review and discuss the 
available analyses methodology and tools with community stakeholders. Contractor will then act 
as a facilitator, working with each set of community stakeholders to identify all of the 
parameters and contents which will be included in each respective community’s analysis and 
scenario production process.   
 
Contractor will then complete draft coastal hazard risk and vulnerability analyses and scenarios 
for each of the three (3) pilot communities. Contractor will provide the completed draft analyses 
and scenarios to stakeholders of each pilot community and DEO. Contractor will allow 
stakeholders from each pilot community and DEO staff a minimum of thirty (30) days to provide 
comments on the draft analyses and scenarios, and then work with community stakeholders to 
address all comments. The appendix for each analysis should include a section that is a list of all 
comments received from community stakeholders and DEO staff, and provide detailed 
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narratives on how each comment was addressed by Contractor or community stakeholders from 
each respective pilot community. Contractor will then finalize each set of analyses and 
scenarios. 

 
Contractor will produce an appendix for each of the three (3) coastal hazard risk and 
vulnerability analyses. The appendix will provided a detailed overview of the methodology used 
to conduct each coastal hazard risk and vulnerability analysis and any lessons learned 
throughout the process.  The methodology section needs to be presented in a format that 
reduces most technical and scientific jargon, making it more user-friendly for local governments. 
All essential technical and scientific language and related methodologies should be described 
and outlined in a separate appendix section.  The “lessons learned” section needs to address 
challenges or obstacles experienced during the development of each coastal hazard risk and 
vulnerability analysis, and recommendations for the overall Community Resiliency Initiative 
based on each risk and vulnerability analysis pilot project. 
 

1. Detailed Task List to be completed for each Recipient: 
 
 a. Coordinate with Recipient to determine a date and time period to hold a coordination meeting. 

(1) Participate in a coordination phone call with community organizers and DEO staff to finalize 
details for the coordination meeting. 
(2) Review draft coordination meeting agenda and discuss expected outcomes from the 
coordination meeting. 
(3) Assist Recipient in identifying community stakeholders that should be encouraged to 
participate in the coordination meeting. 

b. Prepare for coordination meeting. 
(1) Complete background research on community characteristics and assemble a preliminary 
inventory of available resources. 
(2) Develop a list of community data and resources that would be helpful to have, if available 
from Recipient or other sources. 
(3) Develop presentation materials or speaking points to introduce the recommended 
conceptual adaptation planning approach used during the project. 
(4) Develop presentation or speaking points to facilitate a discussion of potential coastal hazard 
impact scenarios. 
(5) Develop presentation or speaking points to facilitate a discussion of roles and responsibilities 
of key participants during the project term. 
(6) Develop presentation materials that outline recommended opportunities and approaches for 
community participation during the project term. 
(7) Develop an example list of project milestones and an example visual (e.g., Gantt chart) to 
communicate how project milestones relate to the project timeline. 

c. Facilitate a coordination meeting. 
(1) Facilitate the introduction of Contractor’s team members, community stakeholders and DEO 
staff. 
(2) Provide an introduction to the conceptual adaptation planning approach used in the project 
and expected project outcomes. 
(3) Facilitate a discussion of potential coastal hazard impact scenarios. 
(4) Facilitate a discussion of roles and responsibilities of key participants during the project term. 
(5) Recommend opportunities and approaches for community participation during the project 
term. 
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(6) Coordinate in the development of guiding principles and motivations for Recipient’s 
adaptation planning process. 
(7) Facilitate the selection of date(s) and times for Recipient’s design meeting. 
(8) Coordinate in the development of a draft project work plan to accomplish major project 
milestones. 

d. Prepare for Recipient’s design meeting. 
(1) Coordinate with Recipient to determine and transfer available community data and 
resources. 
(2) Coordinate with Recipient to determine if any special equipment or supplies are needed to 
conduct an effective design meeting. 
(3) Develop presentation materials or speaking points that provide an overview of results from 
Recipient’s coordination meeting and the contents of Recipient’s project work plan. 
(4) Develop speaking points to facilitate a discussion that focuses on how meeting participants 
are already being impacted by coastal hazards. 
(5) Develop presentation materials or speaking points to facilitate a discussion of project 
expectations and to contrast expectations against limitations in data and/or project resources. 
(6) Develop presentation materials which review the benefits and disadvantages of available 
methodology, tools and approaches available to complete Recipient’s vulnerability assessment. 
(7) Develop presentation materials or speaking points to facilitate the community’s choice of 
methodologies, tools, inputs and planning horizons used to develop a coastal hazard 
vulnerability assessment for Recipient. 

 (8) Update project work plan to reflect available data and resources. 
(9) Participate in a coordination phone call with community stakeholders to finalize design 
meeting details. 

e. Facilitate Recipient’s design meeting. 
(1) Provide an overview of results from Recipient’s coordination meeting and the contents of 
Recipient’s project work plan. 
(2) Facilitate a discussion that focuses on how meeting participants are already being impacted 
by coastal hazards. 
(3) Facilitate a discussion of project expectations and contrast expectations against limitations in 
data and/or project resources. 
(4) Review the benefits and disadvantages of available methodology, tools and approaches 
available for use to complete Recipient’s vulnerability assessment. 
(5) Facilitate Recipient’s choice of methodologies, tools, inputs and planning horizons used to 
develop Recipient’s coastal hazard vulnerability assessment. 
(6) Update Recipient’s work plan to incorporate input and findings from the design meeting. 

f. Develop a draft coastal hazard vulnerability assessment. 
g. Facilitate a physical meeting to review the results of Recipient’s draft vulnerability assessment. 

(1) Engage community stakeholders in interactive discussion on draft vulnerability assessment 
results. 

h. Address and incorporate comments from Recipient and DEO staff into a final coastal hazard 
vulnerability assessment. 

(1) Provide Recipient and DEO staff with a minimum of 30 calendar days to provide comments 
on draft assessment. 
(2) Develop an appendix for Recipient’s assessment that list all comments received from 
Recipient and DEO staff, and provide detailed narratives on how each comment was addressed 
by Contractor, Recipient or DEO staff. 
(3) Update project work plan to incorporate input and findings from Recipient’s review of the 
draft vulnerability assessment. 
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i. Develop one or more appendix for Recipient’s assessment that provides a detailed overview of the 
methodology used to conduct the vulnerability assessment and any lessons learned throughout the 
development process. 
j. Transmit final vulnerability assessment to DEO and Recipient. 

 
B. Task 2 
 

For Task 2, Contractor will work directly with stakeholders from the three (3) pilot communities 
nominated by the Community Resiliency Initiative’s Focus Group to develop coastal hazard 
adaptation plans for each of the three (3) pilot communities based on the research, tools, 
methods and products identified during: 1) the completion of Task 1 of this Contract; and, 2) 
other research, tools, methods and products that are important for the development of each 
adaptation plan. Contractor will then act as a facilitator, working with each set of community 
stakeholders to identify all of the parameters and contents which will be included in each 
respective community’s adaptation plan.  
 
Contractor will then complete a draft coastal hazard adaptation plan for each of the three (3) 
pilot communities. Contractor will provide the completed draft adaptation plan to stakeholders 
of each pilot community and DEO staff. Contractor will allow stakeholders from each pilot 
community and DEO staff a minimum of thirty (30) days to provide comments on the draft 
adaptation plans, and then work with community stakeholders to address all comments. The 
appendix for each adaptation plan should include a section that is a list of all comments received 
from community stakeholders and DEO staff and provide detailed comments on how each 
comment was addressed by the Contractor or community stakeholders from each respective 
pilot community. The Contractor will then finalize each adaptation plan. 

 
The Contractor will coordinate with DEO staff during Task 2 of this Contract to complete an 
appendix for each final coastal hazard adaptation plan that details the methodology for the 
development of the plan and lessons learned throughout the plan development process. 
Contractor will also coordinate with DEO staff during Task 2 of this Contract to provide 
recommendations for the overall Community Resiliency Initiative based on the adaptation 
planning pilot projects. 

 
1. Detailed Task List to be completed for each Recipient 
 
a. Coordinate with Recipient to determine a date and time period to hold an adaptation planning 
workshop. 
b. Prepare for adaptation planning workshop. 

(1) Participate in a coordination phone call with community stakeholders to finalize details for 
the adaptation planning workshop. 
(2) Develop presentation materials or speaking points to provide an overview of Recipient’s 
coastal hazard risk portfolio. 
(3) Develop presentation materials or speaking points to facilitate Recipient’s determination of 
whether a stand-alone adaptation planning process should be used, or one that leverages 
existing or on-going processes such as a local comprehensive plan update process. 
(4) Develop presentation materials or speaking points to facilitate Recipient’s selection or 
delineation of adaptation focus areas or issues. 
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(5) Develop presentation materials or speaking points to facilitate Recipient’s development and 
population of a customized decision making framework to capture qualitative and quantitative 
factors to allow for prioritization of adaptation strategies for implementation. 
(6) Develop presentation materials that outline adaptation strategies for Recipient, based on 
existing and planned land uses. 
(7) Develop presentation materials or speaking points to facilitate the creation of an inventory 
of adaptation implementation activities and actors (e.g., local government staff position) 
responsible for each adaptation action. 
(8) Develop presentation materials or speaking points for the purpose of reviewing and 
recommending available options and timelines for integration of adaptation strategy 
alternatives into existing plans and regulations. 
(9) Develop presentation materials or speaking points for the purpose of reviewing and 
recommending available funding options and mechanisms to support the implementation of all 
preferred adaptation strategies. 
(10) Develop presentation materials or speaking points to facilitate a discussion on the 
development of strategies for monitoring and evaluating Recipient’s implementation strategy. 

c. Facilitate adaptation planning workshop. 
(1) Provide an overview of Recipient’s coastal hazard risk portfolio. 
(2) Facilitate Recipient’s determination of whether a stand-alone adaptation planning process 
should be used, or one that leverages existing or on-going processes such as a local 
comprehensive plan update process. 
(3) Facilitate Recipient’s selection or delineation of adaptation focus areas or issues. 
(4) Provide customized decision making framework to Recipient for review and comment, and 
incorporate Recipient’s feedback into criteria, scoring and/or weighting factors. 
(5) Facilitate a discussion of adaptation strategies for key focus areas based on existing and 
planned land uses. 
(6) Use customized decision making framework and solicit needed input from Recipient to 
execute prioritization and selection of adaptation strategies, approaches and tools to address 
key focus areas and issues identified by community stakeholders. 
(7) Facilitate the creation of an inventory of adaptation implementation activities and actors 
(e.g., local government staff position) responsible for each adaptation action. 
(8) Review and recommend available options and timelines for integration of adaptation 
strategy alternatives into existing plans and regulations. 
(9) Recommend and review available funding options and mechanisms to support the 
implementation of all preferred adaptation strategies. 
(10) Facilitate a discussion on the development of strategies for monitoring and evaluating 
Recipient’s implementation strategy. 
(11) Update project work plan to incorporate input and findings from the adaptation planning 
workshop. 

d. Participate in a post-workshop organizational call with Recipient. 
 (1) Review updates to Recipient’s project work plan. 

(2) Facilitate Recipient’s provision of additional required information or completion of 
unresolved task necessary to complete Recipient’s draft adaptation plan. 

e. Develop a draft adaptation plan for Recipient. 
(1) Provide Recipient and DEO staff with a minimum of 30 calendar days to provide comments 
on draft adaptation plan. 
(2) Address and incorporate comments from Recipient and DEO staff into final adaptation plan. 
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(3) Develop an appendix for Recipient’s plan that list all comments received from Recipient and 
DEO staff, and provide detailed narratives on how each comment was addressed by Contractor, 
Recipient or DEO staff. 
(4) Develop one or more appendix for Recipient’s plan that includes contents from Recipient’s 
project work plan not included elsewhere in the plan. 

f. Coordinate with DEO staff to complete one or more appendix for the final adaptation plan that details 
the methodology for the development of the plan and lessons learned throughout the plan 
development process and recommendations for the overall Community Resiliency Initiative based on 
Recipient’s adaptation planning process. 
g. Transmit final adaptation plan to Recipient and DEO. 
 
C. Quality Requirements 
 

This section outlines minimum quality requirements for all deliverables under this Contract. The 
quality requirements provided will be used for inspection at time of acceptance and, therefore, 
should be used by Contractor during the implementation of a comprehensive program for 
controlling quality. 

 
1. Use of Language. All deliverables need to be presented in a format that reduces most 
technical and scientific jargon, making the guidance products more user-friendly for local 
governments. All essential technical and scientific language and related methodologies should 
be described and outlined in separate appendix sections of each respective deliverable. 

 
2. Branding Guidelines. The deliverables shall also be displayed in a manner consistent with DEO 
branding guidelines (i.e., pictures, graphs, tables, sidebars, etc.), as appropriate. DEO branding 
guidelines are contained in the three (3) documents listed below, and in subsequent versions of 
each of these documents. DEO’s Contract Manager will provide electronic copies of these 
documents to Contractor. 

 
a. DEO Nomenclature & Typography: Florida Department of Economic Opportunity, Style 
Guidelines: DEO Nomenclature & Typography. Updated: Monday, October 29, 2012. 

 
b. Logo: Florida Department of Economic Opportunity, Style Guidelines: Logo. Updated:  
Friday, February 22, 2013. 
 
c. Reports: Florida Department of Economic Opportunity, Style Guidelines: Reports. Updated:  
Friday, February 22, 2013. 

 
3. Aesthetics and Formatting. The four (4) examples below are previously completed guidance 
documents that meet or exceed the minimum quality requirements for aesthetics and 
formatting: 

 
a. Florida Department of Community Affairs. (2007). Guiding the Way to Waterfronts 
Revitalization: Best Management Practices. Retrieved on August 13, 2014 from: 
http://www.floridajobs.org/fdcp/dcp/waterfronts/Files/WaterfrontsFloridaBestPracticesGB2
007.pdf 

 
b. Florida Department of Community Affairs. (2009). Waterfronts Florida Partnership 
Program: Community Case Studies. Retrieved on August 13, 2014 from:  

http://www.floridajobs.org/fdcp/dcp/waterfronts/Files/WaterfrontsFloridaBestPracticesGB2007.pdf
http://www.floridajobs.org/fdcp/dcp/waterfronts/Files/WaterfrontsFloridaBestPracticesGB2007.pdf
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http://www.floridajobs.org/fdcp/dcp/waterfronts/Files/WaterfrontsCommunityCaseStudies2
009.pdf 

 
c. Florida Department of Community Affairs and Florida Division of Emergency Management. 
(2010). Post-Disaster Redevelopment Planning: A Guide for Florida Communities. Retrieved 
on August 13, 2014 from: 
http://www.floridajobs.org/fdcp/dcp/PDRP/Files/PDRPGuide.pdf 
 

 
d. Florida Department of Economic Opportunity and Florida Division of Emergency 
Management. (2011). Post-Disaster Redevelopment Planning: Addressing Adaptation During 
Long-term Recovery. Retrieved on August 13, 2014 from:  
http://www.floridajobs.org/fdcp/dcp/PDRP/Files/PDRPSeaLeveRiseAddendum.pdf 

 
 
D. Deliverable, Tasks, Performance Measures and Financial Consequences   
 
 
 Contractor agrees to perform the following: 
  

Deliverables 
Performance 
Measure 

Due Date 

Payment 
Amount 
Not to 
Exceed 

Financial 
Consequences 

Task 1 

Deliverable 1.1. Draft Risk 
and Vulnerability Analyses 
for three (3) pilot 
communities in Florida. 

Submission of 
three (3) 
completed draft 
risk and 
vulnerability 
analyses. 

May 20, 2016 $44,969.54 

Failure to 
transmit the 
three (3) 
completed draft 
analyses to DEO 
will result in a 
$100.00 financial 
consequence per 
calendar day for 
each day beyond 
the agreed upon 
due date, until 
the three (3) 
completed draft 
analyses are 
provided to, and 
accepted by DEO 
as complete. 

http://www.floridajobs.org/fdcp/dcp/waterfronts/Files/WaterfrontsCommunityCaseStudies2009.pdf
http://www.floridajobs.org/fdcp/dcp/waterfronts/Files/WaterfrontsCommunityCaseStudies2009.pdf
http://www.floridajobs.org/fdcp/dcp/PDRP/Files/PDRPGuide.pdf
http://www.floridajobs.org/fdcp/dcp/PDRP/Files/PDRPSeaLeveRiseAddendum.pdf
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Deliverable 1.2. Final Risk 
and Vulnerability Analyses 
for three (3) pilot 
communities in Florida. 

Submission of 
three (3) final risk 
and vulnerability 
analyses. 

June 24, 2016 $56,961.42 

Failure to 
transmit the 
three (3) final 
analyses to DEO 
will result in a 
$100.00 financial 
consequence per 
calendar day for 
each day beyond 
the agreed upon 
due date, until 
the three (3) 
completed final 
analyses are 
provided to, and 
accepted by DEO 
as complete. 

Deliverable 1.3. Draft 
appendix for each of the 
three (3) adaptation plans 
(see Deliverable 2.2) that 
details the methodology for 
the risk and vulnerability 
analyses and lessons 
learned throughout the 
process. 

Submission of 
three (3) 
completed draft 
appendices. 

May 20, 2016 $2,997.97 

Failure to 
transmit three (3) 
completed draft 
appendix to DEO 
will result in a 
$100.00 financial 
consequence per 
calendar day for 
each day beyond 
the agreed upon 
due date, until 
the draft 
appendix is 
provided to, and 
accepted by DEO 
as complete. 

Deliverable 1.4. Final 
appendix for each of the 
three (3) adaptation plans 
(see Deliverable 2.2) that 
details the methodology for 
the risk and vulnerability 
analyses and lessons 
learned throughout the 
process. 

Submission of 
three (3) final 
appendices. 

June 24, 2016 $2,997.97 

Failure to 
transmit three (3) 
final appendix to 
DEO will result in 
a $100.00 
financial 
consequence per 
calendar day for 
each day beyond 
the agreed upon 
due date, until 
the final appendix 
is provided to, 
and accepted by 
DEO as complete. 



  

          
Version date: 07/01/2014 (Vendor) 
 

39 

Deliverable 1.5. A draft 
report which provides 
recommendations for the 
overall Community 
Resiliency Initiative, for 
developing and conducting 
risk and vulnerability 
analyses, based on the 
lessons learned by  
Contractor, pilot community 
stakeholders, and DEO staff 
during the development and 
completion of risk and 
vulnerability analyses for 
each of the three (3) pilot 
communities. 

Submission of a 
completed draft 
report. 

May 20, 2016 $2,509.35 

Failure to 
transmit the 
completed draft 
report to DEO will 
result in a 
$100.00 financial 
consequence per 
calendar day for 
each day beyond 
the agreed upon 
due date, until 
the draft report is 
provided to, and 
accepted by DEO 
as complete. 

Deliverable 1.6. A final 
report which provides 
recommendations for the 
overall Community 
Resiliency Initiative, for 
developing and conducting 
risk and vulnerability 
analyses, based on the 
lessons learned by  
Contractor, pilot community 
stakeholders, and DEO staff 
during the development and 
completion of risk and 
vulnerability analyses for 
each of the three (3) pilot 
communities. 

Submission of a 
final report. 

June 24, 2016 $2,509.36 

Failure to 
transmit the final 
report to DEO will 
result in a 
$100.00 financial 
consequence per 
calendar day for 
each day beyond 
the agreed upon 
due date, until 
the final report is 
provided to, and 
accepted by DEO 
as complete. 

Total amount for Task 1  - 
Not to Exceed 

  
 

$112,945.62   

Task 2     

Deliverables 
Performance 
Measure 

Due Date 

Payment 
Amount 
Not to 
Exceed 

Financial 
Consequences 
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Deliverable 2.1. Draft 
adaptation plans for three 
(3) pilot communities in 
Florida. 

Submission of 
three (3) 
completed draft 
adaptation plans. 

November 18, 
2016 

$59,329.92 

Failure to 
transmit the 
three (3) 
completed draft 
plans to DEO will 
result in a 
$100.00 financial 
consequence per 
calendar day for 
each day beyond 
the agreed upon 
due date, until 
the three (3) 
completed draft 
plans analyses 
are provided to, 
and accepted by 
DEO as complete. 

Deliverable 2.2. Final 
adaptation plans three (3) 
pilot communities in Florida. 

Submission of 
three (3) final 
adaptation plans. 

December 16, 
2016 

$59,959.39 

Failure to 
transmit the 
three (3) final 
plans to DEO will 
result in a 
$100.00 financial 
consequence per 
calendar day for 
each day beyond 
the agreed upon 
due date, until 
the three (3) 
completed final 
plans are 
provided to, and 
accepted by DEO 
as complete. 

Total amount for Task 2 -  
Not to Exceed 

  
 

$119,289.31   

         

Grand Total amount for all 
Tasks -  Not to Exceed   

 
$232,234.93   

 

 
E. Contractor’s Responsibilities  
 
Contractor’s responsibilities under this Contract solicitation are as follows: 
  

1. Assign a Contract Manager to manage the Contract. 
2. Ensure the Contract Manager provides information to DEO as required. 



  

          
Version date: 07/01/2014 (Vendor) 
 

41 

3. Provide assigned staff that is available during regular business hours Monday through Friday to 
respond to DEO staff questions regarding Contract task and deliverable status, methodology 
used to complete Contract task, and lessons learned throughout the term of the Contract.  

4. Conduct any required coordination, communication, and document distribution with any 
entities external to the firm and DEO, including stakeholders from pilot communities. 
Provide assigned staff that is able to meet with DEO staff for regularly scheduled teleconference 
briefings, at least once per month.  

5. For assigned staff, provide office equipment including all necessary computer hardware and 
software, a printer/copier/ scanner/fax machine, and locking file cabinets in which to store 
confidential information. 

6. For assigned staff, provide work space and associated utilities. 
7. Provide supporting documentation for all invoices. Supporting documentation can include paid 

bills, payrolls (to include employee name, wages, fringe benefits, hours worked on each 
individual deliverable by each assigned staff member, and payroll periods), time and attendance 
records, contract and subcontract award documents, reports, or expanded general ledgers and 
budget detail reports as deemed necessary by DEO. 

8. Expeditiously respond to inquiries or requests from DEO or stakeholders from pilot 
communities. 

9. Work with pilot communities to secure meeting sites.  
10. Ensure that all deliverables listed in Attachment 1, Section II.D meet the minimum quality 

requirements contained in Attachment 1, Section II.C of this Contract. 
11. Comply with the procurement requirements contained in 15 CFR 24.36 and 15 CFR 14.44, as 

applicable. 
 
F. Geospatial Data Collection and Sharing 
 
Environmental data and information, collected and/or created under this Contract will be made visible, 
accessible and independently understandable to users, free of charge or at minimal cost, in a timely 
manner (typically no later than two (2) years after the data are collected or created), except where 
limited by law, regulation, policy or by security requirements.  
 
The Data/Information Sharing Plan (and any subsequent revisions or updates) will be made publicly 
available at the time of award and, thereafter, will be posted with the published data. Environmental 
data and information produced under this award and which are made public must be accompanied by 
the following statement:  These environmental data and related items of information have not been 
formally disseminated by NOAA and do not represent and should not be construed to represent any 
agency determination, view, or policy. Current Federal Geospatial Data Committee (FGDC) standards can 
be found at: http://www.fgdc.gov/metadata/csdgm/.  Metadata that conforms to the proposed North 
American Profile of the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) 19115, which may be 
adopted by the FGDC, is also acceptable. 
 
NOAA may at its own discretion, use information from the Data/Information Sharing Plan to produce a 
formal metadata record and include that metadata in a catalogue to indicate the pending availability of 
new data. Failing to share environmental data and information in accordance with the submitted 
Data/Information Sharing Plan may lead to disallowed costs and be considered by NOAA when making 
future award decisions. 
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G. Publications, Photographs, Audiovisuals & Signs 
 
Before publishing or printing a final draft of any publication pertaining to this Contract, such draft shall 
be sent to DEO’s Contract Manager for review and approval. 

 
1. Publications, printed reports, audiovisuals (including videos, slides, and websites, except 
that unless required under special terms of this Contract, this requirement does not apply to 
audiovisuals produced as research instruments or for documenting experimentation or 
findings and which are not intended for presentation to the general public) or similar 
materials must include the NOAA, DEP, Florida Coastal Management Program (FCMP) and 
DEO logos (which logos can be found at the FCMP website at 
http://www.dep.state.fl.us/cmp/grants/logos/index.htm or by contacting DEO’s Contract 
Manager for a copy) and the following statement on the cover or the first page: 

 
“This (report/video/website/publication) was funded in part, through a grant agreement 
from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Florida Coastal Management 
Program, by a grant provided by the Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource Management 
under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972, as amended, National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration Award No. NA13NOS4190053.  The views, statements, findings, 
conclusions and recommendations expressed herein are those of the author(s) and do not 
necessarily reflect the views of the State of Florida, NOAA or any of their subagencies.” 
 
The next printed line shall identify the month and year of the publication. 
 
Contractor must receive approval in writing from DEO’s Contract Manager before beginning 
production and distribution of any audiovisual (e.g., video, slides, etc.) funded under this 
Contract.  Contractor must apply for approval at least forty-five (45) calendar days in 
advance.  Contractor must also provide DEO’s Contract Manager with shooting scripts and 
provide two (2) copies of the final audiovisual (e.g., video, slides, etc.) upon completion. 
 
2. Publication of the results of research projects in appropriate professional journals is 
encouraged as an important method of recording and reporting scientific information.  
Contractor is required to submit a copy to DEO’s Contract Manager when releasing 
information related to this Contract, which includes a statement that the project or effort 
undertaken was or is sponsored by the U.S. Department of Commerce.  Contractor is also 
responsible for assuring that every publication of material (including internet sites) based on 
or developed under this Contract, except scientific articles or papers appearing in scientific, 
technical or professional journals, contains the statement shown in Attachment 1, Section 
II.G.1 above. 
 
3. Contractor must complete a signed Photographer Release Form and/or Model Release 
Form (which can be obtained by contacting DEO’s Contract Manager), to be submitted with 
project photos sent to DEO. 
 
4. Acknowledgment Requirement for Interpretive Signs & Banners:  Interpretive signs and 
banners must include the NOAA, DEP and FCMP logos. The following language is 
recommended: 
 

http://www.dep.state.fl.us/cmp/grants/logos/index.htm
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“The Florida Coastal Management Program funded this project with a grant from the NOAA 
Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource Management awarded under the Coastal Zone 
Management Act.” 
 
The next printed line shall identify the completion month and year of the project. 

 
H. Record Keeping/Audit 
 

 1. Contractor shall maintain books, records and documents directly pertinent to 
performance under this Contract in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles consistently applied.  NOAA, DEP, DEO, the State of Florida, or their authorized 
representatives shall have access to such records for audit purposes during the term of this 
Contract and for five (5) years following Contract completion.  In the event any work is 
subcontracted, the Contractor shall similarly require each subcontractor to maintain and 
allow access to such records for audit purposes. 

 
 2. Contractor agrees that if any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of 

the record retention period established above, the records shall be retained until all 
litigation, claims or audit findings involving the records have been resolved and final action 
taken. 

 
 3. Records for real property and equipment acquired with federal funds shall be retained for 

five (5) years following final disposition. 
 

4. The federal funds associated with this Agreement must comply with the Federal Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) of 2006.  The intent of the FFATA is to 
empower every American with the ability to hold the government accountable for each 
spending decision.  The result is to reduce wasteful spending in the government.  The FFATA 
legislation requires that information on federal awards (federal financial assistance and 
expenditures) be made available to the public via a single, searchable website, which is 
www.USASpending.gov.  Grant recipients awarded a new federal grant greater than or equal 
to $25,000 awarded on or after October 1, 2010 are subject to the FFATA.  Contractor 
agrees to provide the information necessary, over the life of this Contract, for DEP or DEO to 
comply with this requirement. 

 
I. This section intentionally left blank 
 
J. Background Checks 
 
Contractor will be responsible for obtaining and providing Level One (1), or equivalent, written 
background checks from the Florida Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE) on all assigned employees 
and substitute(s) that will work in DEO’s Caldwell building or on-site with pilot community stakeholders.  
This documentation must be provided to DEO’s Contract Manager upon execution of the Contract.  DEO 
reserves the right to reject any employee from providing services on the basis of the background check.  
The Contractor may access the FDLE website to perform the background check and is responsible for 
payment. The address for the website is:  http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CriminalHistory.  Written FDLE 
background checks must be submitted and approved prior to staffing changes. 
 
 

http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/CriminalHistory
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K. DEO Responsibilities  
 

1. Assign a Contract Manager to manage the Contract.  
2. Ensure DEO’s Contract Manager provides information to Contractor as required. 
3. Conduct any required coordination, communication, and document distribution with any 

entities external to DEO, including the Florida Legislature, House and Senate staff, other State 
agencies, the Governor’s office, and other entities as required. 

4. Review all deliverables and authorize payments for approved deliverables. Deliverables should 
be complete and comply with the terms of this Contract. 

5. Be available for consultation and technical assistance throughout the project. 
6. Review Contractor’s invoices for accuracy and thoroughness and process them on a timely basis. 
7. Review and approve the assignment of all team members, both initially proposed and any 

subsequent changes. 
8. Maintain electronic and final archive copies of all deliverables. 
9. Expeditiously respond to inquiries or requests from Contractor. 
10. Provide meeting sites when necessary. 

 
L. Contract Document 
 
The interpretation and performance of this Contract, and all transactions under it shall be governed by 
the laws of the State of Florida.  The Contract documents shall include terms and conditions of 15-RFP-
004-LJ, any addenda, response, and this contract which was issued as a result of 15-RFP-004-LJ. 
 
M. Method of Payment 
 
Contractor shall provide no more than one (1) single invoice per month for all services rendered during 
the applicable month in accordance with the submitted Solicitation Cost Sheet.  DEO will not be 
responsible for payment for Contractor’s idle hours spent during lunch or travel time to and from DEO 
prior to, and after daily work schedule. 
 
An invoice submitted for payment must be a legible copy. Invoices shall contain the Contract number and 
purchase order number. Invoices must clearly identify the deliverables provided during the invoice period. 
Invoices must clearly identify the dates of the invoice period. 
 
Invoices for commodities must clearly reflect a description of the item or items, number of units and 
cost per unit. Numerical code descriptions alone will not be accepted. 
 
The following documents shall be submitted with the itemized invoice: 
 

1. Provide supporting documentation for all invoices. Supporting documentation can include paid 
bills, payrolls (to include employee name, wages, fringe benefits, hours worked on each 
individual deliverable by each assigned staff member, and payroll periods), time and attendance 
records, contract and subcontract award documents, reports, or expanded general ledgers and 
budget detail reports as deemed necessary by DEO. 

 
2. One (1) hardcopy and one (1) electronic copy of each completed deliverable for which work was 

completed during the invoice period. 
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Supporting documentation must evidence that the minimum performance standards were met. 
Acronyms and non-standard abbreviations for programs or organizational units within an agency should 
not be used in the supporting documentation unless an explanation is also included. 
 
DEO may require any other information from Contractor that DEO deems necessary to verify that the 
goods and or services have been rendered under the Contract. 
 
All requests for compensation for services or expenses must be submitted in detail sufficient for a pre-
audit and post-audit in accordance with subsection 287.058(1)(a), Florida Statutes. 
 
All documentation to support any reimbursements must be submitted with Contractor’s invoice for 
DEO’s review. 
 
N. Contract Extension 
 
No contract extensions will be provided under this Contract. The deliverable due dates listed in 
Attachment 1, Section II.D of this Contract are directly tied to deliverable due dates in the two Coastal 
Management Agreements held between DEP and DEO, which will not be extended beyond the provided 
ending dates listed in Attachment 1, Section II.X of this Contract. 
 
O. Staffing Changes 
 
Contractor’s staff for the project is considered by DEO to be essential to this project.  Prior to 
substituting any of the proposed individuals, Contractor shall notify and obtain written approval from 
DEO of the proposed substitution as soon as possible, but no less than five (5) business days prior to the 
substitution.  Written justification should include documentation of the circumstances requiring the 
changes and a list of the proposed substitutions in sufficient detail to permit evaluation of the impact on 
Contractor performance.  DEO, at its discretion, may agree to accept personnel of equal or superior 
qualifications in the event that circumstances necessitate the replacement of previously assigned 
personnel. 
 
P. Contractor’s Responsibilities upon Termination 
 
After receipt of a Notice of Termination, and except as otherwise specified by DEO, the Contractor shall: 
 

1. Stop work under this Contract on the date and to the extent specified in the notice. 
2. Complete performance of such part of the work as shall not have been terminated by DEO. 
3. Take such action as may be necessary, or as DEO may specify, to protect and preserve any 

property related to this Contract which is in the possession of the Contractor and in which DEO 
has or may acquire an interest. 

4. Upon the effective date of termination of the Contract, shall transfer, assign, and make available 
to DEO all property and materials belonging to DEO.  No extra compensation will be paid to 
Contractor for its services in connection with such transfer or assignment. 

 
Q. Financial Consequences for Failure to Timely and Satisfactorily Perform   
 
Failure to complete the project in accordance with the requirements of this Contract, and in particular, 
as specified in Attachment 1, Section II.D, Deliverables, Tasks, Performances Measures and Financial 
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Consequences, and Attachment 1, Section II.E, Contractor’s Responsibilities, of this Contract, will result 
in substantial injury to DEO and damages arising from such failure cannot be calculated with any degree 
of certainty.  Therefore, it is hereby agreed that if the services/items are not timely and satisfactorily 
performed, the sanctions specified in Attachment 1, Section II.D shall be assessed against Contractor 
and will be deducted from the amount due Contractor for performance under the applicable invoice.   
 
In addition, if it becomes necessary for DEO to institute a corrective action plan and Contractor fails to 
comply with the approved corrective action plan, Contractor shall be assessed the additional financial 
consequences specified in the corrective action plan.  
 
This provision for financial consequences shall in no manner affect DEO’s right to terminate the Contract 
as provided elsewhere in DEO’s Core Contract. 
 
R. Liquidated Damages upon Contract Termination 
 
DEO is entitled to completion of the services/items within the schedules fixed in Attachment 1, Section 
II.D and II.E hereof or within such further time, if any, as may be allowed in accordance with the 
provisions of the Contract.  In the event of termination of the Contract by DEO for cause, Contractor 
shall be liable to DEO for $1,568 dollars for each calendar day after termination, up to sixty (60) days, for 
DEO’s expenses for additional managerial and administrative services required to complete or obtain 
the services/items from another contractor.  Liquidated damages for this period of time, is in addition to 
the financial consequences assessed (as provided for in Attachment 1, Section II.Q) prior to termination.  
This liquidated damages provision addresses only the cost to DEO for re-procurement of these services 
and does not limit DEO’s ability to pursue other damages it incurs as a result of Contractor’s breach. 
 
S. Notification of Instances of Fraud 
 
Instances of Contractor operational fraud or criminal activities shall be reported to DEO’s Contract 
Manager within twenty-four (24) chronological hours. 
 
T. Confidentiality and Safeguarding Information 
 
Contractor may have access to confidential information during the course of performing the services 
herein. Contractor must implement procedures to ensure protection and confidentiality of data, files 
and records involved with this Contract.  All Contractor personnel assigned to this project must sign a 
confidentiality statement which will be provided by DEO upon awarding the services described. 
Contractor’s confidentiality procedures must be approved by DEO and must comply with all State and 
Federal confidentiality requirements, including but not limited to section 443.1715(1), Florida Statutes, 
and 20 C.F.R. part 603, and all Contractor employees assigned to this project will be appropriately 
screened in a manner comparable to section 435.03, Florida Statutes. 
 
U. Change of Ownership 
 
If Contractor anticipates a change of ownership during the life of the Contract, Contractor must describe 
the circumstances of such change, indicate when the change is likely to occur, provide contact 
information for the ownership change, and describe the potential impact the change may have on the 
delivery of services required under the Contract. 
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V. Ownership and Intellectual Property Rights 
 
All rights, title, and interest, including copyright interests and any other intellectual property, in and to 
the work developed or produced under the Contract, alone or in combination with DEO and/or its 
employees, under this Contract shall be the property of DEO.  Contractor agrees that any contribution 
by Contractor or its employees to the creation of such works, including all copyright interest therein, 
shall be considered works made for hire by Contractor for DEO and that such works shall, upon their 
creation, be owned exclusively by DEO.  To the extent that any such works may not be considered works 
made for hire for DEO under applicable law, Contractor agrees to assign and, upon their creation, 
automatically assigns to DEO the ownership of such works, including copyright interests and any other 
intellectual property therein, without the necessity of any further consideration. 
 
W. Equipment 
 
The purchase of non-expendable equipment costing $1,000 or more is not authorized under the terms 
of this Contract. 
 
X. Coastal Zone Management Agreement 
 
Contractor acknowledges that this Contract requires compliance with all applicable federal, state and 
local health and safety rules and regulations included in the two (2) Coastal Zone Management 
Agreements between DEP and DEO. 
 

These two (2) Coastal Zone Management Agreements include: 
 

1. Agency Contract ID: CM403; FLAIR Contract ID: CM403; Long Title: Community Resiliency 
Initiative; and, Date of Execution: 10/21/2013. Ending date: 06/30/2016. Available for review at 
the following Florida Accountability Contract Tracking System (FACTS) web link: 

 
 https://facts.fldfs.com/Search/ContractDetail.aspx?AgencyId=370000&ContractId=CM403 
 

2. Agency Contract ID: CM501; FLAIR Contract ID: CM501; Long Title: Community Resiliency; 
and, Date of Execution: 09/23/2014. Anticipated ending date: 12/31/2016. Available for review 
at the following Florida Accountability Contract Tracking System (FACTS) web link: 

 
https://facts.fldfs.com/Search/ContractDetail.aspx?AgencyId=370000&ContractId=CM501 

 
This Agreement shall terminate automatically if DEP does not continue to contract with DEO for 
services provided under the federal grant with NOAA.  DEO will provide written notice to Contractor of 
the termination on this basis upon receiving written notification from DEP. 
 
Y. Relationship of Pilot Community Participation to Contractor Level of Control 
 
Due to the nature of this Contract, Contractor success is directly tied to the participation of individual 
pilot communities. Delay or failure of a pilot community to participate in one or more of the required 
task outlined in Attachment 1, Section II of this Contract could result in Contractor’s delay or failure to 
transmit deliverables. To increase the likelihood of Contract success: 
 

https://facts.fldfs.com/Search/ContractDetail.aspx?AgencyId=370000&ContractId=CM403
https://facts.fldfs.com/Search/ContractDetail.aspx?AgencyId=370000&ContractId=CM501
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1. Contractor will be provided with opportunities to assist in developing and reviewing 
cooperative agreements (e.g., Memorandum of Agreement) and project schedules for each pilot 
community. 
2. Contractor agrees to work in good faith with pilot communities to carry out the terms and 
conditions of this Contract. 
3. When a pilot community exceeds timelines established in an agreed upon project schedule, 
Contractor can notify and obtain written approval from DEO to commence alternative actions to 
meet Contract requirements. Alternative actions should consider: 

a. All project materials, resources and Contract deliverables organized or completed at 
the time of notification to DEO;  
b. Trends in previous decision making by community stakeholders; 
c. Contractor expertise;  
d. The likelihood of the pilot community to successfully participate for the remainder of 
the project term; and, 
e. The associated impacts of an alternative action if pilot community continues to 
successfully participate after DEO approves the alternative action. 

  
 
 
 
 

- End of Attachment 1 (Scope of Work) - 
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Attachment 2 

CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES 

DEO will not award this Contract unless Contractor completes the CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES 
contained in this Attachment.  In performance of this Contract, Contractor provides the following 
certifications and assurances: 
 

A. Debarment and Suspension Certification (29 CFR Part 95 and 45 CFR Part 74) 

B. Certification Regarding Lobbying (29 CFR Part 93 and 45 CFR Part 93) 

C. Nondiscrimination & Equal Opportunity Assurance (29 CFR Part 37 and 45 CFR Part 80) 

D. Certification Regarding Public Entity Crimes, section 287.133, F.S. 

E. Association of Community Organizations for Reform Now (ACORN) Funding Restrictions 

Assurance (Pub. L. 111-117) 

F. Certification Regarding Scrutinized Companies Lists, section 287.135, F.S. 

A. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS – 
PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTION. 
 

The undersigned Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals: 
 

1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by a Federal department or agency; 

 
2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Contract been convicted or had a civil 

judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection 
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction 
or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or 
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, 
making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
3. Are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity 

(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph A.2. of 
this certification; and/or 

 
4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public 

transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause of default. 
 
B. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING – Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative 

Agreements. 
 

The undersigned Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that: 
 

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any 
Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering 
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into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement. 

 
If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person 
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employees of Congress, or employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned 
shall also complete and submit Standard Form – LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in 
accordance with its instructions. 

 
The undersigned shall require that language of this certification be included in the documents 
for all subcontracts at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants and contracts under grants, 
loans and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients and contractors shall certify and 
disclose accordingly. 

 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
Contract was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 
or entering into this Contract imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the 
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more 
than $100,000 for each such failure. 

 
C. NON DISCRIMINATION & EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ASSURANCE (29 CFR PART 37 AND 45 CFR PART 

80). 
 
As a condition of the Contract, Contractor assures that it will comply fully with the nondiscrimination 
and equal opportunity provisions of the following laws: 
 

1. Section 188 of the Workforce Investment Act of 1998 (WIA), (Pub. L. 105-220), which prohibits 
discrimination against all individuals in the United States on the basis of race, color, religion, sex 
national origin, age, disability, political affiliation, or belief, and against beneficiaries on the basis 
of either citizenship/status as a lawfully admitted immigrant authorized to work in the United 
States or participation in any WIA Title I-financially assisted program or activity; 

 
2. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), as amended, and all requirements 

imposed by or pursuant to the Regulation of the Department of Health and Human Services (45 
CFR Part 80), to the end that, in accordance with Title VI of that Act and the Regulation, no 
person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded 
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination 
under any program or activity for which the Applicant receives Federal financial assistance from 
the Department. 

 
3. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112) as amended, and all requirements 

imposed by or pursuant to the Regulation of the Department of Health and Human Services (45 
CFR Part 84), to the end that, in accordance with Section 504 of that Act, and the Regulation, no 
otherwise qualified handicapped individual in the United States shall, solely by reason of his 
handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity for which the Applicant receives Federal financial 
assistance from the Department. 
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4. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135), as amended, and all requirements imposed 
by or pursuant to the Regulation of the Department of Health and Human Services (45 CFR Part 
91), to the end that, in accordance with the Act and the Regulation, no person in the United 
States shall, on the basis of age, be denied the benefits of, be excluded from participation in, or 
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Applicant receives 
Federal financial assistance from the Department. 

 
5. Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972 (Pub. L. 92-318), as amended, and all 

requirements imposed by or pursuant to the Regulation of the Department of Health and 
Human Services (45 CFR Part 86), to the end that, in accordance with Title IX and the Regulation, 
no person in the United States shall, on the basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, be 
denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any education 
program or activity for which the Applicant receives Federal financial assistance from the 
Department. 

 
6. The American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub. L. 101-336), prohibits discrimination in all 

employment practices, including, job application procedures, hiring, firing, advancement, 
compensation, training, and other terms, conditions, and privileges of employment.  It applies to 
recruitment, advertising, tenure, layoff, leave, fringe benefits, and all other employment-related 
activities, and; 

 
Contractor also assures that it will comply with 29 CFR Part 37 and all other regulations implementing 
the laws listed above.  This assurance applies to Contractor’s operation of the WIA Title I – financially 
assisted program or activity, and to all agreements Contractor makes to carry out the WIA Title I – 
financially assisted program or activity.  Contractor understands that DEO and the United States have 
the right to seek judicial enforcement of the assurance.   
 
D.  CERTIFICATION REGARDING PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES, SECTION 287.133, F.S. 

Contractor hereby certifies that neither it, nor any person or affiliate of Contractor, has been convicted 
of a Public Entity Crime as defined in section 287.133, F.S., nor placed on the convicted vendor list. 
 
Contractor understands and agrees that it is required to inform DEO immediately upon any change of 
circumstances regarding this status. 
 
E. ASSOCIATION OF COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS FOR REFORM NOW (ACORN) FUNDING 

RESTRICTIONS ASSURANCE (Pub. L. 111-117). 
 
As a condition of the Contract, Contractor assures that it will comply fully with the federal funding 
restrictions pertaining to ACORN and its subsidiaries per the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2010, 
Division E, Section 511 (Pub. L. 111-117).   The Continuing Appropriations Act, 2011, Sections 101 and 
103 (Pub. L. 111-242), provides that appropriations made under Pub. L. 111-117 are available under the 
conditions provided by Pub. L. 111-117.   
 
The undersigned shall require that language of this assurance be included in the documents for all 
subcontracts at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants and contracts under grants, loans and 
cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients and contractors shall provide this assurance 
accordingly. 
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F. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES LISTS CERTIFICATION, SECTION 287.135, F.S.  
 
If this Contract is in the amount of $1 million or more, in accordance with the requirements of section 
287.135, F.S., Contractor hereby certifies that it is not listed on either the Scrutinized Companies with 
Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector 
List.  Both lists are created pursuant to section 215.473, F.S. 
 
Contractor understands that pursuant to section 287.135, F.S., the submission of a false certification 
may subject Contractor to civil penalties, attorney’s fees, and/or costs. 
 
If Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, Contractor shall attach an 
explanation to this Contract. 
 

By signing below, Contractor certifies the representations outlined in parts A through F above are true and 
correct. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
(Signature and Title of Authorized Representative) 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Contractor  Date 
 
 
________________________________________ 
(Street) 
 
 
________________________________________ 
(City, State, ZIP Code) 
 

 
- End of Attachment 2 – 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





   
AI-8838     County Administrator's Report      10. 12.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: ARCADIS U.S. - Permission to Enter Property_5660 Saufley Field

Road - Saufley C&DD Landfill
From: Pat Johnson, Department Director 
Organization: Waste Services
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning ARCADIS U.S., Inc., Permission to Enter Property at Saufley
Construction and Demolition Debris Landfill - Patrick T. Johnson, Waste Services Department
Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the Permission to Enter Property
Agreement, submitted by ARCADIS U.S., Inc., for permission to enter Saufley
Construction and Demolition Debris (C&DD) Landfill, located at 5660 Saufley Field
Road, Pensacola, Florida, for the purpose of environmental investigation activities by its
agents, representatives, or contractors, as outlined in the agreement:

A. Approve the Permission to Enter Property Agreement, submitted by ARCADIS U.S.,
Inc., granting access to the Saufley C&DD Landfill, located at 5660 Saufley Field Road,
Pensacola, Florida;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreement. 

BACKGROUND:
On August 6, 2009, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners entered into
a Prospective Purchaser Agreement (PPA) with The Florida Department of
Environmental Protection (FDEP) to modify, close, and monitor the Saufley Construction
and Demolition Debris (C&DD) Landfill, located at 5660 Saufley Field Road.  Per
the Terms and Conditions of the PPA, the County's primary responsibilities were to close
the facility; conduct long-term care, including ground water monitoring, in accordance
with FDEP rules; and to exercise due care with respect to any existing contamination to
prevent or abate any releases that might pose an imminent hazard.  

ARCADIS U.S., Inc., has been contracted by FDEP to perform environmental
investigation activities in relation to groundwater monitoring of the Saufley C&DD Landfill
property, for the purpose of locating contamination, determining contamination levels



and, when necessary removing and remediating contamination at no cost to the County.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
There is no budgetary impact at this time.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Stephen West, Assistant County Attorney, has reviewed the document and approved it
as to form and legal sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:
N/A 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The agreement must be approved by the Board in order to proceed with the designated
tasks.  

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon Board approval, a copy of the Permission to Enter Property agreement will be
forwarded to ARCADIS U.S., Inc., in order that they might begin monitoring services. 

Attachments
Permission to Enter Agreement
Exhibit "A"



RECEIVED
AUG 18 2015

SOLID WASTE
PERMISSION TO ENTER PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

1. Grant of Access. Escambia County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida,
("Owner") hereby gives permission to ARCADIS U.S., Inc. and its agents,
representatives and contractors to enter the Owner's property located at Saufley
Landfill (the "Property").

2. Purpose of Access. This permission is contemplated to be used for the following
environmental investigation activities that may be performed on the Property by
ARCADIS U.S., Inc., its agents, representatives or contractors:

a. Obtaining access to areas where contamination may exist.

b. Conducting soil, surface, sub-surface and groundwater investigations, including
but not limited to entry by a drill rig vehicle, support vehicles, installing
groundwater monitoring wells, using geophysical equipment, using an auger for
collecting soil and sediment samples, logging existing wells, video taping,
performing site sketches, taking photographs, and conducting similar activities
for the purpose of determining contamination levels.

c. Collecting waste, soil and water samples.

d. Removing, treating and/or disposing of contaminated soils and water.

3. Means of Access. The Owner agrees to provide ARCADIS U.S., Inc. with a means
of safely entering the Property and accessing the necessary areas within the
Property, including notifying and obtaining cooperation from occupants of the
Property, if other than the Owner.

4. This Agreement shall expire after the environmental investigation activities have
concluded or twenty-four (24) months from the date that the last party executes
this document, whichever occurs first, unless sooner terminated at the will of the
Owner.

5. Covenants of the Owner. The Owner shall notify ARCADIS U.S., Inc. prior to
commencement of any construction or other site work that may damage or destroy
any part of the monitoring well(s) installed at the Property so that ARCADIS U.S.,
Inc. has an opportunity to take necessary actions to remove, protect, properly
abandon and/or repair or replace the well(s), as applicable, at no cost to the
Owner. Such actions are necessary to ensure that damaged wells or borings are
not left to act as open conduits that may spread contamination from all sources
and violate well permits.

6. No Admission of Liability. The granting of this permission by the Owner is not
intended, nor should it be construed as, an admission of liability on the part of the
Owner or its successors and assigns for any contamination discovered on the
Property.



7. Time of Entry. ARCADIS U.S., Inc., its agents, representatives or contractors may
enter the Property during normal business hours and may also make special
arrangements to enter the Property at other times after agreement upon consent of
the Owner.

8. Conditions of Access. ARCADIS U.S., Inc. acknowledges that the access is
granted hereunder with the understanding that ARCADIS U.S., Inc., its officers,
agents, employees and subcontractors agree to not unreasonably interfere with the
Owner's operations on the Property and agree to comply with the Owner's safety
rules and procedures, provided that such rules and procedures are provided to
ARCADIS U.S., Inc. in writing within five (5) days of execution of this Agreement.
The Owner will, at its sole option and expense, be entitled to have a representative
accompany ARCADIS U.S., Inc., it officers, agents, employees and subcontractors
during any such access.

9. Subsurface Utilities and Damages. ARCADIS U.S., Inc. will utilize a third party,
non-agent utility locator company ("Utility Locator") to clear locations for soil
borings and wells. However, the Owner agrees to fully cooperate with ARCADIS
U.S., Inc. and the Utility Locator to indicate the presence of subsurface utilities and
other structures of which the Owner has or should have knowledge. Should
subsurface utilities be damaged as a result of ARCADIS U.S., Inc.'s negligent
performance of the work, ARCADIS U.S., Inc. shall promptly repair the damaged
utilities at their expense.

10. Indemnification. ARCADIS U.S., Inc. will defend (with counsel reasonably
acceptable to Owner) and indemnify Owner, its directors, officers, employees,
agents and representatives ("Owner's Representatives"), against any and all
judgments, penalties, fines, claims, liabilities, demands, actions, causes of action,
reasonable costs, reasonable damages and expenses, including, without limitation,
court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees for personal injury, death or property
loss or damages ("Claims") to the extent caused by acts of ARCADIS U.S., Inc., its
officers, agents, employees or subcontractors in conducting the Environmental
Investigation or to the extent arising out of or related to ARCADIS U.S., Inc.'s
access to the Property, except to the extent such liabilities or damages are a result
of Owner's or Owner's Representatives' negligence or willful misconduct.
Notwithstanding the preceding language, ARCADIS U.S., Inc.'s liability for
damages under this section, whether in law or equity, shall not exceed the scope
and amount of insurance required under this Agreement. While this Agreement is
in effect, ARCADIS U.S., Inc. shall procure and maintain the insurance coverage
described in the attached Exhibit A.

11. No Interest in Property. ARCADIS U.S., Inc. expressly agrees that it does not and
will not claim, at any time, any interest or estate of any kind or extent whatsoever in
the Property, by virtue of rights granted under this Agreement or its occupants or
use under this Agreement.



12. Fees and Costs. In the event litigation arising out of this Agreement is initiated by
either party, each party shall be responsible for its own attorney's fees and costs.

13. Paragraph Headings. The titles to the paragraphs of this Agreement are solely for
the convenience of the parties and will not be used to explain, modify, simplify or
aid in the interpretation of this Agreement.

14. Severability. The invalidity or illegality of any provision of this Agreement will not
render any other provisions of it unenforceable, invalid or illegal.

15. Amendment. This Agreement may not be effectively changed, modified, altered or
terminated without the written consent of each of the parties hereto.

16. Governing Law. This Agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance
with, and the rights of the parties will be governed by, the law of the State of
Florida, notwithstanding any Florida conflict of laws provision to the contrary.

17. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the final and entire agreement
between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.

This document approved as to form
and logaLsxifficjiency.
Ey Sm^r
Title

Date

L5<i£5 B n^

Awj-7< , 70U -;•

ATTEST: Pam Childers

Clerk of the Circuit Court

Deputy Clerk

(Seal)

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA by and
through its duly authorized BOARD OF
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Steven Barry, Chairman

Date:

Accepted by ARCADIS U.S., Inc., by the
following authorized agent:

- AiJ*o«.-ti
Company Representative \)iC^ fV^J'fU^-A

Date: •?-/% /T
T T
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EXHIBIT "A"









   
AI-8884     County Administrator's Report      10. 13.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Request for Disposition of Property
From: Tonya Gant, Director 
Organization: Neighborhood & Human Svcs
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the Neighborhood &
Human Services Department - Tonya Gant, Neighborhood & Human Services Director

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the
Neighborhood & Human Services Department, indicating the item to be disposed of
properly, which is described and listed on the Request Form, with reason for disposition
stated.

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County policy establishes the procedures for disposing of surplus or obsolete
property.  The surplus property listed on the attached Request for Disposition of Property
has been checked, declared to be obsolete and/or no use to the County, and suitable to
be auctioned or properly disposed.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with F.S. 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1, 2 Section II,
Procedures for Disposition of County Property.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



N/A

Attachments
Disposition of Property



REQUEST FOR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

TO: Clerk & Comptroller's Finance Department
FROM: Disposing Department: Neighborhood & Human Services COST CENTER NO: 370101

Tonya Gant

Property Custodian (PRINT FyLL NAME)

Property Custodian (Signature):

DATE: August 21, 2015

Phone No: 850-595-3123

REQUEST THE FOLLOWING ITEM(S) TO BE DISPOSED:

TAG

(Y/N)
PROPERTY

NUMBER

DESCRIPTION OF ITEM SERIAL NUMBER MODEL YEAR CONDITION

N 48502 2000 Dodge Durango 4x2 1B4HR28Y3YF268819 Durango 2002 Mint/Fair

Disposal Comments:

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT Technician):
Print Name

Conditions: Dispose-Good Condition-Unusable for BOCC

Dispose-Bad Condition-Send for recycling-Unusable

Computer is Ready for Disposition

Date: Information TechnologyTechnicianSignature:

Date: 8/27/15

FROM: Escambia County Department Director (Signature): .

Director (Print Name): Tonya Gant

RECOMMENDATION:

TO: Board ofCounty Commissioners

Meeting Date:

Approved by the County Commission and Recorded in the Minutes of:

O ^

Pam Childers, Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller

By (Deputy Clerk)

This Equipment Has Been Auctioned / Sold

by:

Print Name Signature

Property Tag Returned to Clerk & Comptroller's Finance Department

Clerk & Comptroller's Finance Signature of Receipt

Date

Date

Property Custodian, please complete applicableportionsof disposition form. SeeDisposal processcharts for direction. rev. sh 11.19.13



   
AI-8896     County Administrator's Report      10. 14.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Community Economic Development Association of Pensacola and

Escambia County, Inc.
From: Jack Brown, County Administrator 
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Board's Appointment of a Designee to the Community
Economic Development Association of Pensacola and Escambia County, Inc., Board - Jack R.
Brown, County Administrator

That the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) appoint Amy Lovoy, Escambia County
Assistant County Administrator, in place of Jack R. Brown, Escambia County
Administrator, as the BCC's designee to be a Governmental Entity Director on the
Community Economic Development Association of Pensacola and Escambia County,
Inc. (CEDA) Board, in accordance with the CEDA Bylaws, Article IV, Board of Directors,
1.2.2 Governmental Entity Director.

BACKGROUND:
The CEDA Bylaws state in Article IV, Board of Directors, 1.2.2, Governmental Entity
Director, that governmental entities that contribute more than $150,000 annually either
through the Pensacola-Escambia County Promotion and Development Commission (the
"PEDC") or directly are entitled to appoint a designee.

On March 19, 2015, County Administrator Jack R. Brown was appointed to serve on the
CEDA Board.  He now desires to appoint Amy Lovoy, Escambia County Assistant
County Administrator, as his designee.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A



N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
3-19-2015 BCC Meeting Minutes





   
AI-8837     County Administrator's Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: FFY15 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
From: Cathy White, Drug Court Manager 
Organization: Court Administration
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Federal Fiscal Year 2015 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice
Assistance Grant Program - JAG Countywide - State Solicitation – Catherine A. White, Drug
Court Manager

That the Board take the following action concerning the Federal Fiscal Year (FY) 2015
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program - JAG Countywide - State
Solicitation:

A. Approve the following Subgrant Applications which will be submitted for funding under
the Federal FY 2015 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program - JAG
Countywide - State Solicitation, administered by the Florida Department of Law
Enforcement:

1. ESCAMBIA COUNTY DRUG COURT TREATMENT PROGRAM - The Court
Administrator’s Office is seeking funding for treatment services for drug offenders.  The
amount of the Grant request is $32,976.  THE APPLICATION WILL BE DISTRIBUTED
UNDER SEPARATE COVER.; and

2. PENSACOLA STATE COLLEGE POLICE DEPARTMENT - Pensacola State College
Police Department is seeking to purchase body cameras for each patrol officer in order
to strengthen community/campus policing.  The amount of the Grant request is $11,175;
and

B. Authorize the Chairman, as the County’s representative, to sign amendments and
requests for payment or other related documents as may be required.

[Funding:  The funds are made available through the Federal FY 2015 Edward Byrne
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program - JAG Countywide - State Solicitation for the
period beginning October 1, 2015, and terminating September 30, 2016; there is no cost
to the County]



BACKGROUND:
In accordance with the Federal FY 2015 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance
Grant Program - JAG Countywide - State Solicitation guidelines, all agencies interested
in requesting grant funds were asked to submit a detailed project proposal for review. 
The grant review committee reviewed and approved the grant proposals on June 9, 2015.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The funds are made available through the Federal FY 2015 Edward Byrne Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant Program - JAG Countywide - State Solicitation for the period
beginning October 1, 2015, and terminating September 30, 2016.  There is no cost to the
County.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires Board approval and authorization to execute grant documents.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Coordination has occurred with all related parties.

Attachments
Letter to Petrina T. Herring, Administrator, Office of Criminal Justice Grants
Application - Pensacola State College Police Department















































































   
AI-8730     County Administrator's Report      10. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Agreement Between Escambia County and the First Judicial Circuit of

Florida 
From: Will Moore, Admin Services Manager 
Organization: Court Administration
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Agreement between the First Judicial Circuit of Florida and
Escambia County for the Existing Veterans Court Coordinator Position - Will Moore, Trial Court
Administration, Admin Services Manager

That the Board take the following action concerning the Agreement between the First
Judicial Circuit of Florida and Escambia County for the Existing Veterans Court
Coordinator Position:

A. Approve the Agreement for the Funding of Court Personnel between the First Judicial
Circuit of Florida and Escambia County, Florida, for the existing Veterans Court
Coordinator Position as outlined in Exhibit "A"; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreement.

[The County agrees to provide funding for the existing Veterans Court Coordinator
Position through Court Innovation Article V, Local Option portion of the $65 Court Fee
according to Florida Statute 939.185(1)(a); whereas the Court agrees to reimburse the
County for salary and benefits not to exceed the amounts outlined in Exhibit "A"]

BACKGROUND:
The purpose of the agreement is to fund the existing Veterans Court Program position
under the County's provisions providing 40 hours per week salary and all
applicable benefits, to include but not limited to additional holiday pay, FICA, life and
health insurance and retirement, effective July 1, 2015.  The Court agrees to reimburse
the County for salary and employment benefits costs as outlined in Exhibit A.

The Veterans Court Program is a specialized court established to serve veterans
struggling with treatable behavioral, mental, or chemical health problems as a result of
trauma experienced while serving in a combat zone.  The Veterans Court Coordinator
oversees veterans case files, coordinates mentoring sessions, ensures smooth operation



oversees veterans case files, coordinates mentoring sessions, ensures smooth operation
and implementation of tasks for the entire program.  

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The County agrees to provide funding for the existing Veterans Court Coordinator
Position through Court Innovation Article V Local Option portion of the $65 Court Fee
according to Florida Statute 939.185(1)(a); whereas the Court agrees to reimburse the
County for salary and benefits not to exceed the amounts outlined in Exhibit A. 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Agreement was reviewed and approved as to form and legal sufficiency by Kristin D.
Hual, Assistant County Attorney.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The County and the Court will coordinate invoicing and payment process.

Attachments
Veterans Court Coordinator Funding Agreement











   
AI-8816     County Administrator's Report      10. 3.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: SR 30 (US 98) Navy Boulevard - State Environmental Impact Report

(SEIR)
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning State Road 30 (US 98) Navy Boulevard - State Environmental
Impact Report - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning State Road (SR) 30 (US 98) Navy
Boulevard - State Environmental Impact Report (SEIR):

A. Adopt and authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution supporting the
procurement of consultant services to develop an SEIR for SR 30 (US 98), Navy
Boulevard, from SR 295 (New Warrington Road) to Bayou Chico Bridge, Project #
216830-2-22-01); 

B. Approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the Locally Funded Agreement (LFA),
between the State of Florida Department of Transportation and Escambia County,
(Project #218630-2-22-01); and 

C. Approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the Three Party Escrow Agreement

[Funding:  Local Option Sales Tax: $1,500,000 (Fund 352, LOST III; Funding Source
220102)]

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County staff consulted with Engineering and Planning Resources, who just
completed the Public Involvement Plan (PIP) phase of this project. The PIP entailed an
extensive public involvement effort to garner and incorporate public input, most
specifically the adjacent property owners along Navy Boulevard from the Bayou Chico
Bridge west to New Warrington Road.

The involvement included an initial public workshop to present the Navy Boulevard
Corridor Management Concept that resulted from the CRA’s overall Navy Boulevard
Design Guidelines and Corridor Management Plan, one-on-one stakeholder



Design Guidelines and Corridor Management Plan, one-on-one stakeholder
interviews/meetings, and a final public workshop. Prior to the PIP phase, the county
consulted with VHB, Inc., who conducted the initial Corridor Vision Plan phase and the
subsequent Corridor Management Plan phase. Both phases offered several public input
meetings and workshops as additional attempts to receive the necessary public
involvement for the project to be as successful as possible.
 
The Navy Boulevard Access Management and Beautification Project is a county-initiated
project in which the segment of Navy Boulevard from the Bayou Chico Bridge west to
New Warrington Road will be reconstructed to include additional safety features
(dedicated sidewalks, better signage, etc.), access management, and abundant
landscaping throughout the corridor segment.

Escambia County Public Works staff have, from the beginning, worked closely with the
Florida Department of Transportation, Pensacola NAS, the Escambia County
Community Redevelopment Agency, and the surrounding business and property owners
on this project, and plan to do so through construction. The project is currently scheduled
to begin the SEIR phase in Summer 2015 (cost estimated at $1.5M to be funded through
LOST III), and the Professional Engineering design phase in Summer 2017, per the
FDOT 5-Year Work Program (cost estimated at $1.65M) with construction to follow the
design phase. Construction is anticipated to begin in either Fiscal Year 2019 or Fiscal
Year 2020.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Local Option Sales Tax:  $1,500,000 (Fund 352 LOST III; Funding Source 220102).

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney, has reviewed and signed off on the Resolution,
the LFA, and the Third Party Escrow Agreement.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel will be required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Public Works Department staff will continue to coordinate with FDOT and local
stakeholders.

Attachments
Escrow Agrmnt
Resolution
LFA





















   
AI-8808     County Administrator's Report      10. 4.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Supplemental Joint Participation Agreement Number 1 for Transit

Urban Corridor Project on Davis Highway
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Public Transportation Supplemental Joint Participation
Agreement Number 1, Providing Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Funding to Escambia County Area
Transit for the Transit Urban Corridor Project on Davis Highway - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public
Works Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the State of Florida Department of
Transportation, Public Transportation Supplemental Joint Participation Agreement (JPA),
Number 1, Financial Project Number 4222601 84 01, providing Fiscal Year 2015/2016
funding to Escambia County Area Transit (ECAT) for the Transit Urban Corridor
Project on Davis Highway:

A. Approve the Supplemental JPA Number 1, Financial Project Number 4222601 84 01,
providing for Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) participation, in the amount of
$420,000, for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 funding to ECAT for the Transit Urban Corridor
Project on Davis Highway;

B. Adopt the Resolution authorizing the acceptance and application of these funds; and

C. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Resolution, Public Transportation
Supplemental JPA, and all other required documents pertaining to this JPA, including
Notifications of Funding, without further action of the Board.

With the Davis Highway north/south corridor considered one of the most
traffic-congested areas in the Pensacola area, the Florida Department of Transportation
has agreed to continue funding the Transit Urban Area Corridor Project to increase mass
transit service in an effort to alleviate the current traffic congestion.  The JPA will provide
mass transit operations funding for ECAT in Fiscal Year 2015/2016.  Funds are allocated
to mass transit systems by FDOT annually and must be accepted by the receiving
agency.



[Funding:  Funds are budgeted in Fund 104, "Mass Transit"]

BACKGROUND:
With the Davis Highway north/south corridor considered one of the most
traffic-congested areas in the Pensacola area, the Florida Department of Transportation
has agreed to continue funding the Transit Urban Area Corridor Project to increase mass
transit service in an effort to alleviate the current traffic congestion. The JPA will provide
mass transit operations funding for ECAT in Fiscal Year 2015/2016. Funds are allocated
to mass transit systems by FDOT annually and must be accepted by the receiving
agency.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
There will be no additional costs to the county with this JPA. The $420,000 funded by
this JPA is a recurring FDOT contribution and therefore is included in the Fiscal Year
2015/2016 budget.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney, reviewed and approved the resolution and JPA
as to form and legal sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Funds cannot be utilized until the Resolution and the JPA have been approved and
executed by the Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
ECAT staff will continue to coordinate with the Florida Department of Transportation staff
to complete all implementation requirements.

Attachments
Supplemental JPA #1
Resolution
BCC Action 082114































































   
AI-8693     County Administrator's Report      10. 5.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Pensacola Beach Congestion Management Plan & Pensacola Beach

Master Plan Drainage Projects
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Department Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Pensacola Beach Congestion Management Plan and
the Pensacola Beach Master Plan Drainage Projects - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works
Department Director

That the Board consider the following action concerning the Pensacola Beach
Congestion Management Plan and the Pensacola Beach Master Plan Drainage Projects:

A. Authorize the transfer of funds from the Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) Reserves
Cost Center 110267 to the Transportation and Drainage Cost Center 210107, in the
amount of $450,000, to fund the Pensacola Beach Congestion Management Plan;

B. Authorize the transfer of funds from the LOST Reserves Cost Center 110267 to the
Transportation and Drainage Cost Center 210107, in the amount of $1,250,000, to fund
the Pensacola Beach Master Plan Drainage Projects; and 

C. Authorize the Public Works staff to begin the Request for Letters of Intent (RLI)
purchasing procurement process for the Pensacola Beach Congestion Management
Plan and to begin the purchasing procurement process for the Pensacola Beach Master
Plan Drainage Projects.

[Funding:  It is anticipated that the Congestion Management Plan will cost $450,000, and
the design and construction of the Master Plan Drainage Projects will cost $1,250,000,
which would decrease the LOST Reserves Cost Center 210107 by $1,700,000]

 

BACKGROUND:



BACKGROUND:
Several studies have been conducted regarding traffic and parking in the Pensacola Beach
Core Area. In addition, the Santa Rosa Island Authority (SRIA) commissioned a professional
design and planning firm, EDSA, to complete a Beach Master Plan (dated March 2010). Now,
Escambia County Public Works staff is seeking an engineering firm to evaluate and update the
existing Pensacola Beach Master Plan (attached herein), perform design services for several
short-term congestion improvements at Pensacola Beach listed in the Scope of Services
(attached herein), and develop a long-term capital program to improve beach access and
alleviate traffic congestion.

The Master Plan offered recommendations for improvements on the entire Island, including the
Core Area. The main goal in the Pensacola Beach Core Area was to create a beach-to-bay
pedestrian connection. To accomplish this goal, it was recommended that a distinct separation
of pedestrian and vehicular traffic was of utmost importance. In February 2011, Escambia
County contracted with Baskerville-Donovan, Inc. to develop an Engineering Master Plan
based on the Beach Conceptual Master Plan approved by the SRIA. A Final Report titled:

Engineering Assessment of Pensacola Beach Master Plan: Feasibility, Funding, and Phasing
was completed in February 2012.

The short-term improvements proposed in the attached Congestion Management Plan do not
necessarily address long-term needs for intersection improvements at the signalized
intersection of Via DeLuna Drive and Fort Pickens Road; however, the improvements will offer
immediate pedestrian and vehicular traffic congestion relief until such time that the long-term
improvements are designed and constructed in the Core Area.

The Pensacola Beach Master Plan Drainage Projects are listed below with respective
approximate cost estimates:

Rio Vista, Corto, and Largo Drainage – Design = $50,000; Construction = $500,000
Via DeLuna Side Road Connection Drainage – Design = $50,000; Construction = $200,000
Calle Juela Drainage – Design = $20,000; Construction = $50,000
Calle Traviesa Drainage – Design = $20,000; Construction = $50,000
Siguenza Drive Drainage – Design = $20,000; Construction = $50,000
Casino Beach Parking Lot Drainage - Design = SRIA to fund; Construction = $240,000

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
It is anticipated that the Congestion Management Plan will cost $450,000, and the design
and construction of the Master Plan Drainage Projects will cost $1,250,000, which would
decrease the LOST Reserves Cost Center 210107 by $1,700,000.

 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel will be required.



No additional personnel will be required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the provisions of the Code of Ordinances of
Escambia County, Florida, Chapter 46, Finance, Article II, Purchases and Contracts.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Escambia County, SRIA, and local stakeholders will coordinate efforts. Upon approval of
this Recommendation, the Office of Management & Budget will transfer the funds to the
Transportation and Drainage Cost Center to begin the Purchasing procurement process.

Attachments
RLI
Master Plan



 

Escambia County Florida 
Request for Letters Of Interest 

Proposer's Checklist 
Pensacola Beach Core Area 

Identification Number PD xx-xx.xxx 
Per The Terms and Conditions of PD 02-03.079 

 
How To Submit Your Proposal 
Please review this document carefully. Offers that are accepted by the county are 
binding contracts.   Incomplete proposals are not acceptable. All documents and 
submittals must be received by the office of purchasing on or before date and hour 
specified for receipt. Late proposals will be returned unopened. 
 
The County has implemented a new Electronic Submittal Process, which requires the 
use of GovernmentForms.software®. This software, which generates and posts a 
customized version the Standard Form (SF) 330 along with the capability to upload 
other required items, can be downloaded at the following address: 
http://submittals.myescambia.com/ 

• Letter Of Interest (PDF) 
• GSA Standard Form 330 

• Part II (PD 02-03.079, Professional Services As Governed by Florida 
Statute 287.055, provide if not already submitted 

• Part I 
 
PDF1 These forms are available as editable PDF documents from the website (links to 

these and other forms can be found at the end of this document). 
 
The Following Submittals Are Required Upon Notice Of Award: 
 

• Certificate Of Insurance (provide if not submitted electronically) 

How To Submit A No Proposal 

If you do not wish to propose at this time, please respond to the Office of Purchasing 
providing your firm's name, address, a signature, and a reason for not responding in a 
sealed envelope.  This will ensure your company's active status in our vendor’s list. 
 

This form is only for your convenience to assist in filling out your proposal.  Do not 
return with your proposal. 
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Engineering Services for Pensacola Beach Core Area 
Solicitation Identification Number PD 10-11.005 

Per The Terms and Conditions of PD 02-03.079 
I.   INFORMATION PACKAGE 

Escambia County is seeking an engineering firm to begin design services for 
improvements at Pensacola Beach. The general goal is to implement a short term 
improvement program, update existing Pensacola Beach Master Plan, and develop a long 
term capital program to improve beach access and alleviate traffic congestion. 

Background: 

Several studies were conducted regarding traffic and parking in the Pensacola Beach 
Core Area.  In addition, the Santa Rosa Island Authority (SRIA) commissioned EDSA to 
complete a Beach Master Plan Study, which was adopted March 2010.  The Master Plan 
offered recommendations for improvements to the entire Island including the Core Area.  
The main goal in the beach core area was to create a beach to bay pedestrian 
connection.  To accomplish this goal it was recommended the separation of pedestrian 
and vehicular traffic.  In February 2011, Escambia County contracted with Baskerville-
Donovan, Inc. to develop an Engineering Master Plan based on the Beach Conceptual 
Master Plan approved by the SRIA.  A Final Report titled:  Engineering Assessment of 
Pensacola Beach Master Plan: Feasibility, Funding, and Phasing was completed in 
February 2012. 

Scope of Services: 

SHORT TERM IMPROVEMENTS 

Escambia County requests that the firm review the Pensacola Beach Master Plan 
produced by EDSA (attached herein), and provide an update to said Master Plan. The 
Master Plan Update will require at least 3 Public Workshops/Meetings (Kick-Off, Progress, 
and Final). Following the 3 public workshops, the firm is to present the final draft of the 
Master Plan update to the SRIA Regular Board for review and adoption, then the Board of 
County Commissioners for final review and adoption.  
 
The County understands that the short term solutions proposed herein may not meet the 
vision of the Master Plan Study or address long term need for intersection improvements.  
These activities are designed to alleviate some immediate needs and provide base 
information for long term improvements.  There are several items that will be evaluated 
and will require the firm to meet with County staff to discuss each below listed 
improvement; however, several of the below bulleted items will be conceptually designed, 
whereas others will be fully (100%) designed. The County is requesting that the firm build 
a construction cost estimate for all the bulleted items. Also, for the 100% designed 
improvements, the firm will prepare any necessary permits, prepare bid documents, 
attend pre-bid conference, respond to bidder questions and prepare any necessary 
addenda as well as evaluate the received bids as part of the short term improvement plan.  
The short term improvements may include, but not limited to: 
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 Internal Traffic Modifications and Ingress/Egree to Casino Beach (100% design) 
 Internal Traffic Modifications to Circle K Parking Lot with removal of stormwater 

pond (100% design) 
 Pedestrian Crossing enhancements along Fort Pickens and Via DeLuna including 

RRFB’s (Conceptual Design)  
 Hot Right/Extending Southbound Right Turn onto Fort Pickens (inclusion of traffic 

separators/delineators). If the extension requires the removal of the “old” Visitor 
Information Center, the consultant must discuss removal/relocation options with the 
current leaseholder for the facility.  (Conceptual Design) 

 Dual Right turns into Casino Beach Parking @ Sideline’s (100% Design) 
 Park and Ride / Tram Service from Pensacola, and/or Gulf Breeze to Pensacola 

Beach (preliminary analysis/feasibility) (100% Design) 
 Evaluate remote control of Via de Luna / Ft. Pickens traffic light. If alternate timing 

plan recommended, please produce the new timing plan.  
 Trolley Route modifications; evaluate current route system, and offer 

recommendations for other routes (i.e. 2-3 routes with 1 route solely circulating the 
Core Area, another route solely traversing Via DeLuna, and another potential route 
for entire Island) (Conceptual Design) 

 Parking: Offer recommendations on parking alternatives for beach guests and 
beach employees.  

o Trolley or tram service that travels either from Gulf Breeze or another off-
Island location onto the Island (i.e. Park East or West) that beach employees 
and/or guests can park and transport to work. (Conceptual Design) 

o Determine how many parking spaces could be generated from surface 
parking lot at the current SRIA building location, or another Island location, 
and approximately how many per floor if a deck were constructed. 
(Conceptual Design) 

 
LONG TERM IMPROVEMENTS 

The long term improvements include traffic congestion relief (Flyover at existing signalized 
intersection, possible consideration of realignment of SRIA Building egress and 
construction of signalized intersection coordinated with Fort Pickens / Via DeLuna signal, 
etc.) pedestrian access, widening and resurfacing of existing shared-use paths on the 
Island, and parking availability in the core area (e.g. parking deck on SRIA building 
location, relocation of existing SRIA building, and how many additional parking stalls it will 
provide).  The Beach Master Plan and Traffic studies previously completed offered 
concepts for intersection improvements, elevated and/or tunneled crosswalks, and 
elevated roadways with interconnected parking.  No decision has been made on how to 
advance concepts, including funding sources; however, the consultant is to identify all 
potential internal/external funding sources to develop the long term capital improvement 
program. Design fees for these tasks will be negotiated as tasks are identified and funding 
is available.   

• The selected consultant team may need to assemble and prepare a survey of 
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     existing conditions, geo-technical information, location of existing utilities, 
updated traffic and parking study, etc. 

• Include an assessment of existing and future storm drainage for the area. 
• Include  an  assessment  of  potential  storm  damage,  and  whether  existing 

building codes are sufficient for this work. 
• Prepare preliminary engineering of recommended improvements in sufficient 

detail to further refine and estimate detailed design and construction costs for 
improvements. 

• Identify and assess vehicle and pedestrian infrastructure improvements and 
any alternatives per standard engineering practices. 

• Report  the  expected  functional  “level-of-service”  for  each  infrastructure 
improvement, including for the peak seasonal time period. 

• As   part   of   this   preliminary   design,   include   an   assessment   to   the 
impact/benefit to the community for each strategic improvement project. 

• As part of the planning and design process, prioritize potential improvements. 
• Estimate a timetable for predicted infrastructure improvements as they are 

needed, per standard engineering practices. 
• Limit construction to the off-season period. 
• Prioritize and schedule all proposed improvements.   Include an alternative 

schedule that could serve as a “pay-as-you-go” plan. 
• Include a discussion of expected funding. 
• Coordinate and conduct a public meeting to discuss construction status and 

the proposed plan for future improvements. 
• Assist Escambia County in securing all necessary local, state, and federal 

permits for the proposed improvements. 
• Assist Escambia County in construction related activities for the proposed 

improvements. 
• Negotiate fees and prepare plans for later phases as indicated previously 

 
Initial Conceptual Design Estimate> $XXX,XXX.XX 
 

 

Anticipated Disciplines (Function Codes SF 330) for this project 
 

Code Description 
12 Civil Engineer 
18 Cost Engineer/Estimator 
24 Environmental Scientist 
29 Geographic Information System Specialist 
38 Land Surveyor 
39 Landscape Architect 
47 Planner:  Urban/Regional
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Anticipated Experience Categories (Profile Codes SF 330) for this project 
 

Code Description 
P05 Planning (Community, Regional, Areawide and State) 
C07 Coastal Engineering 
C18 Cost Estimating; Cost Engineering and Analysis; 

Parametric Costing; Forecasting 
 

E09 Environmental Impact Studies, Assessments or 
Statements 

E10 Environmental and natural Resource Mapping 
H07  Highways; Streets; Airfield Paving; Parking Lots 
L02 Land Surveying 
L03 Landscape Architecture 
E11 Environmental Planning 
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I. INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBMITTERS 
 

Firms desiring to provide described Professional Services shall submit one (1) 
electronic copy of your firms Letter of Interest containing all of the requested 
information no later than the date and time listed on the cover sheet.  Submittals 
delivered late shall not be accepted or considered.  No exceptions will be made. 

 
Government Forms Software:    http://submittals.myescambia.com/ 

 

All information requested must be submitted.   Failure to submit all information 
may result in a lower evaluation of the proposal.  Letters, which are substantially 
incomplete or lack key information, may be rejected by the County at its 
discretion.  The selection of the short listed firms will be based on the information 
provided in the submittal. 

 
The submittals shall be in the GSA Standard Form (SF) 330 format with two 
additional sections as described below (include in Letter of Interest).  No other 
format will be acceptable. 

 
Information submitted with your letter of interest should include documentation to 
demonstrate your firm’s qualifications and abilities to provide the scope of 
services.  The submittal should include sufficient information to permit a clear 
understanding of similar past projects, especially in Florida, staff experience and 
abilities, and any other additional, pertinent details to describe the team’s 
capabilities. 

 
A committee will review the information submitted and short-list the firms.  On- 
site presentations, interviews, and or discussions will be requested of a short list 
of three or more firms.  Once all review is complete, the short-listed firms will be 
ranked by the selection committee with the top ranked firm being scheduled for 
negotiations. 

 
Award(s) resulting from this solicitation shall be subject to the provisions of 
Chapter 1-9-5, CONSULTANTS of the Ordinances of Escambia County and 
Procedure  PP-250  VENDOR  PERFORMANCE  EVALUATIONS  of  the 
Purchasing Policies and Procedures of Escambia County. 

 
The following policy will apply to all methods of source selection: 
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Conduct of Participants 

 
After the issuance of any solicitation, all bidders/proposers/protestors or 
individuals acting on their behalf are hereby prohibited from lobbying as defined 
herein or otherwise attempting to persuade or influence any elected County 
officials, their agents or employees or any member of the relevant selection 
committee at any time during the blackout period as defined herein; provided, 
however, nothing herein shall prohibit bidders/proposers/protestors or individuals 
acting on their behalf from communicating with the purchasing staff concerning a 
pending solicitation unless otherwise provided for in the solicitation or unless 
otherwise directed by the purchasing manager. 

 
Definitions 

 

Blackout  period means  the  period  between  the  time  the  bids/proposals  for 
invitations for bid or the request for proposal, or qualifications, or information, or 
requests for letters of interest, or the invitation to negotiate, as applicable, are 
received at the Escambia County Office of Purchasing and the time the Board 
awards the contract and any resulting bid protest is resolved or the solicitation is 
otherwise canceled. 

 
Lobbying   means  the  attempt  to  influence  the  thinking  of  elected  County 
officials, their agents or employees or any member of the relevant Selection 
Committee for or against a specific cause related to a pending solicitation for 
goods or services, in person, by mail, by facsimile, by telephone, by electronic 
mail, or by any other means of communication. 

 
Sanctions 

 

 

The Board may impose any one or more of the following sanctions on a 
nonemployee for violations of the policy set forth herein: 

 
(a) Rejection/disqualification of submittal 
(b) Termination of contracts; or 
(c) Suspension or debarment as provided in Sec. 46-102 of the Escambia County 

Code of Ordinances. 
This policy is not intended to alter the procedure for Protested Solicitations and 
Awards as set forth in the Sec. 46-101 of the Escambia County Code of 
Ordinances. 

 
II.       FIRMS' EVALUATIONS AND SELECTION 
 
The County shall follow the procedures of the Consultants’ Competitive Negotiation Act, 
Title XIX, Chapter 287, Section 055 of the Florida Statutes.  The selection committee 
shall consider such factors as: 
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1.  Experience with Costal Environment roadway and drainage design. The 
firm’s experience preparing roadway, pedestrian, and designs & master 
planning for Escambia County and Pensacola Beach Development is a 
consideration. The firm should be familiar with the Santa Rosa Island 
Authority and Escambia County goals and objectives based on Past 
Planning and Transportation Studies. Does the firm have experience 
preparing coastal studies, traffic analysis and/or drainage designs for 
Escambia County or other municipalities? 

Points 
30 

 

2.  The  Firm  will  need  to  demonstrate  past  and/or  recent  experience  with 20 
master  plan  development  for  commercial  and  residential  construction 
phased projects. Ability  to  provide  construction  cost  estimates  for  each 
phase based on reliable resources. 

 
3.  The Firm must provide documentation of any minor and major projects that 

involve coastal environmental issues and solutions. (10) 
 

 
 

4.  Ability to handle permitting and utility coordination. The firm shall be familiar 10 
with Environmental Resource Permitting  requirements  of  the  Northwest 
Florida Water Management District, as well as the requirements of Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection, and the Army Corps of Engineers. 
The firm’s response should demonstrate such experience in their response. 
The firm should also be familiar with and have an understanding of the 
utility companies that may be impacted during the design and construction 
of the project. 

 

5.  Past record and performance, background experience & technical expertise 15 
of firm & individual team members. Past records of performance shall be 
considered in the selection criteria. Consultant evaluation records should 
be of a positive nature. Any negative consultant evaluations reflecting poor 
performance should be strongly considered with a low ranking. The firms 
should also be ranked based upon the record of performance reflected in 
their response. A firm without any past Escambia County evaluation records 
should not reflect a poor score. Record of performance should be clearly 
documented in their response. The qualifications of the firm and individuals 
within the firm shall be considered with respect to the GSA Codes identified 
above for this project. The primary Civil Engineering discipline (function 
code 12), CADD Technician discipline (function code 08), and experience 
category  for  designing  Stormwater  Handling  and  Facilities  (profile  code 
S13) are a requirement of the firm. Firm needs to also have the capability to 
work with survey data provided by the County’s Surveying Division having 
staff knowledgeable in surveying and CADD.  Secondary GSA codes listed 
above should improve the firms ranking scores, but not all of the secondary 
codes are necessarily a requirement of the firm. 
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6.  Ability  to  communicate  effectively  with  County  and  Santa  Rosa  Island 10 

Authority Staff, Contractors, or Residents, when required. The firm should 
have the ability to effectively communicate with County Staff concerning any 
issues that may arise during design or in the construction phase. The firm 
should have an understanding of general practices of construction to be 
able to communicate with the contractor in the event changes to the plans 
need to be made during the construction phase. The firm should have the 
ability to effectively communicate with the general public throughout all 
phases of the project when they express their concerns of the project. 

 

7.  Recognition,  understanding,  capability  and  resources  to  perform  the 5 
services specific to the project. The firm’s response should demonstrate a 
clear understanding of the scope of services for the project. The firm shall 
have the resources either within the firm or listed as a team member to 
address all aspects of the GSA Codes listed. 

 

Award(s) resulting from this solicitation shall be subject to the provisions of Chapter 1-9- 
5, CONSULTANTS of the Ordinances of Escambia County and Procedure PP-250 
VENDOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS of the Purchasing Policies and Procedures 
of Escambia County. 

 
III. SCHEDULE 

 
The following schedule shall be adhered to in so far as practical in all actions 
related to this procurement: 

 

Mailing date of proposals  

Letters of Interest due date  

Short-Listing Meeting  

Discussions with Short-Listed Firms  

Negotiations with First Ranked Firm  

Board of County Commissioners 
approval 

 

 

IV. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

The County has implemented an Electronic Submittal Process that utilizes 
GovernmentForms.software® (GFS) to generate a customized version of the 
Standard Form (SF) 330 in a specific format. Other items shall be in PDF format 
and  must  be  submitted  by  electronic  upload  via  GFS  or  manually  via  the 
County’s web site at http://submittals.myescambia.com/ 
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Required items are described below: 
 

1.  Letter of Interest (PDF format) 
Letter  of  Interest  prepared  by  a  corporate  officer  or  principal  of  the  firm 
authorized to obligate the firm contractually. 

 
2.  Standard Form (SF) 330 – Part I (GFS format) 

Generated by GovernmentForms.software®, maximum 50 pages, includes: 
• Standard Form (SF) 330 - Part I, Section A-C 

Page Limit: Typically just 1 page in length 
• Standard Form (SF) 330 - Part I, Section D 

Not required by County for this submittal 
• Standard Form (SF) 330 - Part I, Section E 

Page Limit: 20 pages/resumes 
• Standard Form (SF) 330 - Part I, Section F 

Page Limit: 10 pages/projects 
• Standard Form (SF) 330 - Part I, Section G 

Page Limit: 1 page 
• Standard Form (SF) 330 - Part I, Section H 

Page Limit: No section limit, although total form length shall not exceed 50 
pages. 

 
Requirements for this section (to be included in Letter of Interest): 
• Proposers shall include any additional information to represent your firm 

for consideration. 
• Proposers shall list any work which their organization failed to complete in 

the last five (5) years and describe the when, where, how and why of such 
failure. 

• Proposers shall list any officer or partner of their team who in the last five 
(5) years failed to complete a contract handled in his/her name and to 
discuss the reasons thereof. 

• Proposers shall list any lawsuits in which their team (firms and individuals) 
is involved relative to services performed or failed to perform over the last 
five (5) years. 
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executive summary

PENSACOLA BEACH, a unique Florida Panhandle beachfront 
community, is at a crossroads for the future.  The opportunity for 
positive change, while maintaining the overall character of the 

beach is high; consequently, public support has been overwhelming for 
the proposed Master Plan that has been developed to change the face 
of Pensacola Beach.  The Santa Rosa Island Authority (SRIA) sought a 
Master Plan to review and resolve issues related to entry to the beach, 
the toll booth facilities, traffic, parking, pedestrian access, water ferry 
transportation, landscape, lighting, nature based tourism, and signage 
throughout the study area. The Master Planning efforts addressed a 
study area that is defined to the north by the entry from the bridge to the 
toll booth, to the west by Fort Pickens, to the east by the National Gulf 
Islands Seashore and to the south by the beachfront and Gulf of Mexico. 

Public input and consensus played a heavy role throughout the Master 
Plan process. In an effort to help facilitate consensus building, the team 
advised the SRIA to form a steering committee of local residents and 
business owners.  The SRIA formed a 13 member steering committee to 
provide guidance to the plan and an extended cross section of input 
from a diverse group of residents, business owners and stakeholders 
from the area.  The team also held a series of three public workshops 
and a total of nine public meetings to gather input from the interested 
residents. In addition to the public meetings, the team also instituted 
a public survey to allow residents to express their input, concern and 
opinion regarding the Master Plan direction. Finally, in addition to the 
public meetings held as part of the Master Plan process, the SRIA held 
additional public meetings to continue to gather input on the Master 
Plan process and plan direction.
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As a result of all the public input and the Team Inventory and Analysis 
of the study area, the Master Plan has an overall emphasis on the 
core development of the study area.  The core area is defined by 
the entry road to the north and the intersection or cross roads of Via 
De Luna and Fort Pickens and from the Casino parking lot to the bay.  
This core area is dominated by residential, retail, hotel and natural 
amenities, as well as being the most consistently visited area of the 
beach.  A key issue discovered during the planning process is the 
unique attribute that Pensacola Beach has with the gulf beach to 
bay connection.  Currently, safe pedestrian access from the beach 
to the bay is difficult, at best; therefore, safe pedestrian access, while 
improving vehicular flow and pedestrian connections from the beach 
to the bay, becomes an important guiding principle for the plan.   
The Master Plan also addresses the entry components to create an 
arrival sequence and an overall review of the landscape enhancement 
opportunities associated with the Via De Luna and Fort Pickens 
streetscapes to the east and west.  In addition to these physical planning 
areas, the Master Plan also incorporates a number of intangible or 
“software” items specifically related to the plan. These items include 
eco-based recreation, market/economic analysis, water transportation, 
and traffic/mobility items. The overarching goal of the Master Plan is to 
overlay each of these elements to increase the capacity for the beach 
without compromising the integrity and unique experiences of Pensacola 
Beach that residents and visitors have grown to embrace. The Master 

Plan report creates an overview of the Master Plan process, consensus 
that was developed, and the vision that has been developed to guide 
Pensacola Beach forward. This report includes the recommended Master 
Plan Direction, Order of Magnitude Estimates, Funding Strategies and 
Next Steps for Implementation. Volume two of the Master Plan report 
includes all preliminary studies developed during the life of the project, 
project correspondence from the Team to SRIA Staff; and includes 
reports and information from the consultant team. 

executive summary
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[character of place]01
“Whether you’re seeking spectacular local dishes, special 
events, pristine beaches or surprising local peculiarities, you’re 
bound to find something on Pensacola Beach that really “floats 
your boat.” Just ask an islander about their favorites or explore 
with a fellow traveler to discover the personality of paradise.”

- Source: www.visitpensacolabeach.com
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* ALL THE PHOTOGRAPHS ON THIS PAGE HAVE BEEN PROVIDED BY SHARON SOWASH @ SHARONDIPITY PHOTOGRAPHY
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PENSACOLA BEACH IS ONE OF THE JEWELS of Escambia County 
and is thought of as the resident’s beach.  The residents 
spoke plainly about what the identity of Pensacola Beach 

was to them. The Master Plan seeks to embrace this identity and 
create a framework to creatively resolve the main challenges that 
were identified throughout the planning process. This identity was 
characterized by the natural beach environment, water activities, and 
the presence of both a Gulf front and Sound or Bayfront experience; 
all combined with the people, are the key elements that define the 
overall character and quality of Pensacola Beach. Within the Master 
Plan, a series of images from Pensacola Beach have been included 
to help further describe the character and identity of the beach.

Demographics - Residents and visitors are drawn to Pensacola Beach for 
this unique beach to bay experience. A part of this experience and draw 
is the presence of two major parks: Fort Pickens National Park and the 
National Gulf Island Seashore. Pensacola Beach is visited by two main 
groups of people, residents of Escambia County and Tourists/Visitors. The 
demographics of these two groups can be further defined to include day 
trip visitors generally from within an hour drive and overnight visitors who 
are largely outside of the area. The distribution of these visitors includes 
residents at 1-5%, Overnight Visitors at 20-25%, and Day Visitors at 70-75%. 

 [02] character of place    identity



Master Plan Report Pensacola Beach10

THE DAY TRIP VISITORS generally are located 
within the tri-county area of Escambia, 
Baldwin and Santa Rosa County. This 

area includes more than 630,000 residents 
with an average median annual income of 
$46,200. Within the Pensacola Bay area, there 
are approximately 65,000 residents with an 
average median income of over $60,000.  The 
overnight visitors generally fall within a 250 
mile radius and include a population of more 
than a million people from major cities which 
include: Mobile, Montgomery, New Orleans, 
Tallahassee, Birmingham, Jackson and Baton 
Rouge. In addition, just beyond this 250 mile 
radius, Escambia County is also served by 
Pensacola Airport which offers airlift to major 
cities and opens a window to an additional 
three million people. These cities include 
Atlanta, Jacksonville, Savannah, Tampa, 
Chattanooga, Memphis, and Orlando. While 
the overnight visitors provide a very strong 
economic support and help to strengthen 
the non-peak periods, the day visitors 
(Resident/Tourist) have the largest impact. 

Tampa

Miami

Jacksonville

Atlanta

Birmingham

~ 1h 10m

~ 1h 30m

~ 1h 40m

Orlando
~ 1h 45m

~ 1h 30m

~ 2h

New Orleans

Houston

Dallas

Memphis

Little Rock

Nashville

Charlotte

Regional Connections

50 miles

150 miles

250 miles

Pensacola

Atlanta     1:10 min
Orlando    1:45 min
Memphis  1:30 min 

REGION
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CITY OF PENSACOLA

PENSACOLA DOWNTOWN

PENSACOLA
NAVAL COMPLEX

FORT PICKENS

WARRINGTON

PERDIDO BAY

TARKILN BAYOU 
TREE RESERVE

ESCAMBIA BAY

PENSACOLA BAY

GULF OF MEXICO

GULF ISLANDS

BLACKWATER
BAY

GULF BREEZE

PENSACOLA BEACH has a resident 
population of roughly 2,800.  This 
population is limited by the self-

imposed limit to development on the 
Island. As provided to the team by 
the SRIA, this development cap allows 
for 4,128 residential, multi-family, and 
condominium units and 726 large hotel 
units to be developed, most of which 
is currently developed. The study area 
includes roughly 180 acres of public 
land between Fort Pickens and the 
National Island Gulf Seashore. The study 
area has been divided into three main 
areas; the main entry and core area, the 
streetscape east and west and the east 
entry. These study areas are identified 
on the map on page 30 and 31.

SITE

 [02]character of place   local & regional

REGION

Pensacola Beach

to Local

CHOCTAWHATCHEE
NATIONAL FOREST

 NATIONAL SEA

 SHORE
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Santa Rosa Sound

Little Sabine

Bay

Gulf of Mexico

Toll Booth

To

Pensacola

To Fort Pickens

State Park

Key Map

Santa Rosa Sound
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Gulf of Mexico

To Gulf Island 

National Seashore

 [02] character of place   study area

THE INITIAL STAGE of the Master Plan 
was an inventory and analysis for the 
study area that would develop an 

overall strength, weakness, opportunity 
and threat or SWOT analysis for the project. 

Santa Rosa Sound
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Pensacola Beach Blvd.

Little Sabine 

Bay

[01]

[02]

[05]

[04] 

[08] 

[07]

Santa Rosa  Sound

Santa Rosa

 Sound

Gulf of Mexico

Gulf Breeze

Pensacola

[NORTH ENTRY GATEWAY]

[NORTH ENTRY]

Santa Rosa

 Sound

Santa Rosa

 Sound
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opportunities & constraints

[01] The North Entry to Santa Rosa Island and Pensacola Beach is announced by the toll booth structure. Opportu-

nity to create an iconic gateway statement and enhance views to the water. 

[02] Signage elements provide character to the North Entry area and help announce arrival to Pensacola Beach. 

Opportunity to improve and create a comprehensive signage program for the island. 

[03] Opportunity to enhance entry roads towards the Core Area through landscape and site improvements. Ad-

ditional signage and stops for the Island Trolley can also be introduced for visual impact. 

[04] Opportunity to enhance streetscape character along the North Entry roadways through landscape and site im-

provements. Existing pedestrian and biking trail create linkages to the central “core district” and can be improved 

and expanded along both sides of the entry road. 

[05] The large water tanks along the North Entry road are existing landmarks that can be enhanced and incorpo-

rated into the “gateway” experience. 

[06] Public amenities such as picnic shelters and Morgan Memorial Park are located along the North Entry water-

front. Opportunity to increase pedestrian, biking, and transit access into area and enhance through landscape and 

site improvements. 

[07] Opportunity to improve access to fishing pier and enhance through landscape and site improvements. Parking 

and public facilities should also be provided for the users. 

[08] The gravel parking area is additional public parking area that is seldom used by the public. This is also a stop 

on the Canoe Trail which is also seldom used. Opportunity to enhance use by adding signage and increasing ef-

ficiency of the parking layout. 

CONSTRAINTS:
•	 Unorganized parking layout and 

lack of appropriate signage 
systems identifying public parking 
areas

•	 Lack of “entry experience”
•	 Lack of pedestrian connectivity 

to trail system and other public 
amenities.

[01] [02]

[04]

[05]

[07] [08]

[03]

[06]

 [02] character of place   site inventory
 [north entry gateway]  

OPPORTUNITIES:
•	 Create an entry gateway statement 

and arrival sequence
•	 Enhance fishing pier experience
•	 Organize and improve access to 

public amenities and public parking 
•	 Improve views to Core area and to 

the waterfront
•	 Improve pedestrian & bicycle access
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[01]

[05]
[04]

[03]

[02]

Bay Sound
Little Sabine

Bay

Gulf of Mexico

Key Map

[CORE BAY]
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[01] The public “boardwalk” along Quietwater Beach creates an internal 

pedestrian environment that is limited to the private commercial development 

area and does not link to other public spaces and commercial areas within the 

core area. Opportunity to expand the “boardwalk” experience along Quiet-

water beach and enhance public access to the boardwalk and Quietwater 

Beach. 

[02] Public parking areas are disjointed and segregated by Via De Luna Road. 

Opportunity to reorganize and connect parking areas to provide increased 

and enhanced pedestrian access from commercial areas to the beach. 

[03] Opportunities to provide pedestrian crosswalks at key points to ensure 

connectivity between developments north and south of Via de Luna as well as 

between the major public beaches (Casino Beach and Quietwater Beach). 

[04] Opportunity to reorient and enhance the central intersection of Pensacola 

Beach Blvd, and Fort Pickens/Via De Luna Road to create major entry gateway 

experience to the core area. 

[05] Opportunity to relocate and/or reorient existing Visitors’ Center to provide 

greater visibility and access to the facility. Opportunity to enhance and reuse 

existing structure.

[01] [02] [03] [04] [05]

OPPORTUNITIES:
•	 Enhancing pedestrian connectivity and linkages
•	 Reorganization of public parking and circulation 

patterns for greater efficiency
•	 Extension of existing boardwalk along Quietwater
•	 Beach and connection to Core Beach area
•	 Relocation/reorientation of Visitor’s Center to a 

more centralized and prominent location
•	 Creating a gateway and entry experience into the
•	 Core area at intersection of Pensacola Beach Blvd 

and Via De Luna+Fort Pickens Roads

CONSTRAINTS:
•	 Large unattractive parking area that lacks clear 

circulation patterns for vehicles and pedestrians
•	 Lack of shade and vegetation

opportunities & constraints

 [02] character of place   site inventory
 [core sound]  
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[05]

[07]

[01]

[03][02] [06]

Santa Rosa Sound
Little Sabine

Bay

Gulf of Mexico

Key Map

[CORE BAY]
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[01] Casino Beach currently is the largest public parking area for residents and visitors who want 

to access Pensacola Beach. However, access to the parking area is ambiguous and circulation 

to and within the parking areas is inefficient. Opportunities exist to reorganize parking access 

and circulation and to frame visual corridors towards important landmarks and the beach to 

help orient users. 

[02] The public parking lot at Casino Beach is in high use during the main tourist season, but 

remains empty for most of the remainder of the year. Opportunities exist to reorganize park-

ing areas to increase efficiency and to enhance the large asphalt areas through the use of 

landscape medians and tree cover for shade. Opportunity to also improve public access and 

safety through the use of pedestrian crosswalks and wayfinding signage. 

[03] Opportunities also exist to enhance accessibility into and through parking areas for dis-

abled users and to add landscape buffers around parking areas to provide visual screens from 

surrounding uses and circulation corridors. 

[05] Several landmarks such as the bandstand and the beach ball exist on the beach currently 

but are disjointed and lack clear access. Opportunities exist to enhance the visual landmarks 

by creating pedestrian connectivity and view corridors to the landmarks. 

[06] Hotel developments along Via De Luna lack connectivity to the core area and commer-

cial developments along Quietwater Beach. Opportunity to provide pedestrian connectivity 

from hotel areas to commercial areas and to screen private parking areas from sidewalks and 

Via De Luna. 

[07] The fishing pier offers  great water views  back to Pensacola Beach. Opportunities exist 

to  increase public access to the  pear and enhance /update the pier amenities (i.e. lighting,  

seating, etc.)     

[01] [02] [03] [05] [07]

OPPORTUNITIES:
• Enhancing pedestrian connectivity and linkages
• Reorganization of public parking and circulation 

patterns for greater efficiency
• Extension of existing boardwalk along Quietwa-

ter
• Beach and connection to Core Beach area
• Relocation/reorientation of Visitor’s Center to a 

more centralized and prominent location
• Creating a gateway and entry experience into 

the Core area at intersection of Pensacola 
Beach Blvd and Via De Luna+Fort Pickens Roads

CONSTRAINTS:
• Large unattractive parking area that lacks clear 

circulation patterns for vehicles and pedestrians
• Lack of shade and vegetation

opportunities & constraints

[06]

 [02] character of place   site inventory
 [core beach]  
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[03]   [02] [04][01]

[WEST STREETSCAPE]

Little Sabine

Bay

Gulf of Mexico

[01][02] [04]
[03]

Key Map Santa Rosa Sound
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OPPORTUNITIES:
•	 Create a comprehensive “streetscape character” with 

a palette of landscape and site elements such as site 
furnishings, signage, lighting, etc

•	 Identify existing and create new transit stops along 
main roadway (i.e. Island Trolley, bus system, water taxi) 
to provide better connectivity

•	 Improve existing community parks and create new 
“portal pocket parks” to link waterfront to public side-
walks/trails

CONSTRAINTS:
•	 Lack of shade, nodes and “character” along main 

public road system
•	 Dune crossings, parks and waterfront access areas are 

not easily recognized

opportunities & constraints[01] Historic elements such as the cross located in the dune preserve (marking the first 

Christian Services held in 1559 on the island) could be incorporated into an island wide trail 

system that highlights historic and environmental elements unique to Santa Rosa Island.

[02] Bicycle trails are not continuous and often bikers are seen sharing roadways. Where 

possible, bike paths should be incorporated into the streetscape. Dune crossings should 

also be highlighted using signage or architectural systems as “portals” for users seeking 

waterfront access.

[03] Existing trolley stops on the island are infrequently used and hard to identify. Transit ac-

cess and use on the Island Trolley can be improved by enhancing the route (provide wider 

connections with neighborhoods and public use areas) and frequency . Shelter stops for 

the trolley/bus can be enhanced with landscape, site furnishings, lighting, and more visible 

signage.

[04] Trails alongside the main roadways are frequented by bikers, joggers/runners and pe-

destrians, and so forth. Opportunity to expand and enhance pathways and trails network 

to create a comprehensive circulation network and trail system. Opportunity to make 

pathways aesthetically pleasing through landscape improvements, addition of shade 

trees, and site elements such as site furnishings and lighting. 

 [02] character of place   site inventory
 [west streetscape]  
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[EAST STREETSCAPE]

Gulf of Mexico

Santa Rosa Sound

[01] [02] [06][04] [05][03]

[03][04][01][02] [06]
[06]

[05]

[06]
[06]

Key Map
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[01] Via De Luna and Fort Pickens Road form the main access spine across Santa Rosa 

Island. Opportunities exist to enhance the streetscape with landscape and other site im-

provements (i.e. site furnishings, lighting, etc). 

[02] Overhead utility lines and utility plants (such as water treatment plant shown above) 

exist adjacent to the main roadway spine. Opportunity to buffer utility areas using land-

scape and to place utility lines underground in future improvement phases. 

[03] Opportunity to enhance existing waterfront viewing and access areas, such as the 

gazebo above, as visible waterfront entry “portals” that transition users for the street envi-

ronment to the waterfront. Opportunity to improve the Beach to Bay connection.

[04] Opportunity to enhance existing waterfront viewing and access areas, such as the 

gazebo above, as visible waterfront entry “portals” that transition users for the street envi-

ronment to the waterfront. Opportunity to improve with landscape and signage systems.

[05] Opportunity to create public access boardwalks across protected dune areas to with 

signage along the main roadway identifying the waterfront “portals”.

[06] Opportunity to supplement landscape with the use of a potential landscape ease-

ment.

opportunities & constraints

 [02] character of place   site inventory
 [east streetscape]  

OPPORTUNITIES:
•	 Create a comprehensive “streetscape character” with 

a palette of landscape and site elements such as site 
furnishings, signage, lighting, etc

•	 Identify existing and create new transit stops along 
main roadway (i.e. Island Trolley, bus system, water taxi) 
to provide better connectivity

•	 Improve existing community parks and create new 
“portal pocket parks” to link waterfront to public side-
walks/trails

CONSTRAINTS:
•	 Lack of shade, nodes and “character” along main 

public road system
•	 Dune crossings, parks and waterfront access areas are 

not easily recognized
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[EAST ENTRY GATEWAY]

Via de Luna Drive

[03] 

[04] [01] 

[02] 

Bay Sound

Gulf of Mexico

Bay Sound

Key Map
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[04][03]

[02][01]

[01] Transition from “built” environment of the Core area to natural 

creates perceived gateway. Opportunity to enhance gateway 

experience.

[02] The large expanses of open space offer dramatic views and 

opportunities for environmental education. Public access trails can 

be improved through landscape and site improvements as well as 

signage identifying natural areas and the environmental history and 

evolution of the island.

[03] Scale of buildings plays major role on entry opportunity and 

gateway experience. 

[04] Existing pedestrian and biking trails are used by joggers, skat-

ers, bikers, and multiple other users. Opportunity to connect trail 

to Florida Scenic Highway trail, and to expand and create shelter 

nodes/rest stops along trail.

OPPORTUNITIES:
•	 Create an entry gateway experience that announces transition be-

tween built and natural environment
•	 Expand existing trail to a multi-use trail with nodes and transit stops 
•	 Create an interpretive experience along trail system
•	 Improve pedestrian and bicycle access

CONSTRAINTS:
•	 Lack of transition between built and natural protected environment
•	 Harsh environment limits landscape improvements

opportunities & constraints

 [02] character of place   site inventory
 [east entry gateway]  
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02
[master plan]
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[02] master plan

THE FIRST AND IMPORTANT COMPONENT for the Master Plan is 
to attract the residents first: if the residents “win”, everyone 
“wins”. Through the inventory and analysis process, as 

described previously, the EDSA Team focused on determining what 
constituted a “win”, or project elements or conditions that needed 
to be resolved and improved.  As the opportunities and constraints 
were identified, the creative process began with establishing key 
project components.  These components include development 
of an entry statement, establishing a safe, friendly pedestrian 
environment, re-working traffic circulation and parking, examining 
opportunities for water based transportation and entertainment, 
outdoor recreation and eco-tourism activities, entertainment and 
special events/programs and overall beautification and character 
enhancements. 

In addition to these components the team developed a number 
of program goals that were driven by the input from the public 

process. These goals included; maintain the unique identity of 
Pensacola Beach, enhance aesthetic quality and beautification, 
increase public access to the waterfront, understand the carrying 
capacity for the beach, and focus on transportation; specifically, 
transportation or mobility items associated with circulation, 
congestion, and a parking shortage/need vs. parking reallocation. 

Based on the inventory and analysis, public input and direction from 
the steering committee, the team developed a series of preliminary 
planning options. These initial options sought to resolve as many 
of the challenges as possible and leverage the opportunities to 
create concepts that focused on the main project components. 
These preliminary plan options are included in Volume Two of the 
Master Plan report.  From the preliminary options and their review in 
the public, a Final Master Plan recommendation was developed.  
The next pages review the Final Master Plan recommendations by 
study area. 
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SANTA ROSA SOUND
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Core & north Entry
Streetscape-west
Streetscape-east & east entrance 

SITE components

[02] master plan  core & districts

2B 2C

1A - 1B 
2A 

2B & 2C 

GULF OF MEXICO

SANTA ROSA SOUND
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A T THE HEART OF THE STUDY AREA 
was the core beach with a unique 
opportunity to celebrate the 

proximity of the Gulf of Mexico or beach to 
the Santa Rosa Sound or bay. The Master 
Plan creates a pedestrian parkway 
that connects these two major natural 
amenities together to create a vision 
for Pensacola Beach. This emphasis on 
enhanced pedestrian connectivity is 
one element that contributes to the 
overall increased capacity within the 
core.
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CORE AREA

[01] Beach Ball Water Tower
[02] Existing Amphitheater
[03] Escambian County Ferry     
        landing
[04] Beachfront Parking
[05] Beachfront Gateway  
       & Arrival Plaza 
 

WHILE THE STUDY AREA was very large in 
overall area, the focus of the Master Plan 
was on the core area of approximately 

50 acres. This area is seen as the heart of the beach 
and characterized primarily by the presence of a 
very large public surface parking area, or the 
Casino Beach Lot.  The presence of this 
parking area provided the opportunity 
to have a major impact on the 
face of the beach and create 
a framework to build on that 
would increase the overall 
capacity to the core. This 
increase in capacity is the 
key to the future 

LITTLE
 SABINE 

BAY

LITTLE SABINE 
BAY

SANTA ROSA 
SOUND

GULF OF MEXICO

SANTA ROSA 
SOUND
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success and long term maintenance/growth to the 
area. The focus of the improvements in the core area is 
on the pedestrian mobility; however, it is also meant to 
resolve parking allocation and vehicular circulation. The 
plan additionally seeks to provide a platform for eco-
based activities, enhanced events and entertainment 
opportunities. 

The plan for the core area seeks to create an enhanced 
arrival to the beach and create a unique pedestrian 

experience that will link the two main 
assets of the Beach and Sound together. 
The driving force behind this goal was 
to modify the current circulation and 
bring the guest straight to the beach, 
as opposed to what currently exists, 
which is a right hand turn or a major 

curve to the left.  Additionally, maintaining the water 
tank “beach ball” created a visual opportunity to align 
the vehicular circulation to the beach.  By modifying the 
vehicular circulation, opportunities to improve pedestrian 
circulation can be realized.  The plan also explores an 
enhanced beachfront promenade and park area, as 
well as the introduction of a boardwalk or promenade 
along the Sound to increase pedestrian connection to 
both the east and west from the core. 

 [02] master plan  core

[01]

[02]

[03]

[04][04]

[04]

[05]

[05]

[06]

[06]

[06]

[07][08]

[09] [09]
[09]

[10]

[10]

[10]

[10]
[04]

[10]

[10]

[06] Beach to Bay Pedestrian          
        Parkway
[07] Public Safety Building
[08] Existing Pier
[09] Beachfront Park & Promenade
[10] Proposed Trolley Stops

SANTA ROSA SOUND
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[Core Area]

GULF OF MEXICO

LITTLE SABINE
BAY

SANTA ROSA 
SOUND

PENSACOLA 
BEACH BLVD

FORT PICKENS 
ROAD

VIA DE LUNA 
DRIVE

SEE PEDESTRIAN 
CONNECTION PERSPECTIVE 
PAGE 37
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[pedestrian parkway connection]

 [02] master plan  core

PENSACOLA BEACH
WATER TANK

PUBLIC ART ELEMENT

VEHICULAR BRIDGE

PEDESTRIAN BEACH TO BAY 
CONNECTION

PROPOSED NATIVE LANDSCAPE
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T HE MAIN ATTRACTION of the study area is the natural amenities 
mainly of the coastal environment and the water. The Master 
Plan creates the framework for enhanced eco-based or outdoor 

recreation activities. The three areas of focus for these activities include 
active recreation, eco-recreation (or nature based tourism), and passive 
recreation. The plan also focuses on the potential location and physical 
requirements for these activities.

Active recreation – Active recreation requires designated areas for the 
activity to take place. This may include playgrounds, beach volleyball, 
basketball, kids’ spray ground (interactive water playground) or other 
similar activities. These activities are developed as drivers to bring people 
of all ages to the beach.  After the initial start-up costs, these activities 
have limited annual expenses. 

 

Eco-Recreation / Nature Based Tourism – Linking the core area to 
surrounding natural amenities and increased eco-activities or nature 
based tourism activities are a must. The Master Plan recommends 
creating a hub for eco-based recreation in the core located at the 
current Santa Rosa Island Authority building site. In addition, a number 
of other staging areas have been identified to create a network of eco-
based or nature based tourism connections.  These activities may include 
sea kayaking, paddle boarding, snorkeling, surfing, kite boarding, scuba, 
biking, skating, and walking trails. A specific opportunity to build upon 
an existing amenity is the snorkel park that is being created through 
Escambia County near the entry to Fort Pickens. Important to the success 
of this and other programs is to provide friendly signage for safety, usage, 
direction and education.  When creating walking paths or trails, including 
mileage indictors is also important.  In addition to the signage, printed 
literature at the welcome center and hotels will provide education to the 
guests about these opportunities.  

[02]master plan - core  eco based-outdoor recreation
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Existing nature preserves & recreational parks 

Opportunity to enhance land and water recreational activities surrounding Pensacola Beach
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Passive Recreation – One of the main activities for this area is 
simply enjoying the beach. The Master Plan has increased the 
access to this public amenity. Enhancements are proposed 
to create safer pedestrian connection, parking access and 
increase aesthetic improvements to ensure residents and 
guests enjoy the experience. 

Recreation Manager – The Master Plan recommends 
that a recreation manager be designated to continue 
the development and implementation of the recreation 
opportunities for Pensacola Beach. In our experience, 
communities that have very successful recreation programs 
typically have a dedicated staff member to design, develop 
and implement recreational programs.  In addition to 
program development, this person would be responsible 
for establishing and maintaining relations with user group 
and strategic partners to add to the success. A detailed 
description of what this manager would entail is included in 
Volume Two of this Master Plan report. 

[02]master plan - core  eco based-outdoor recreation

Connections
Flow
Node
Access
Sense of Place

Core opportunities for enhanced land and water activities

LEGEND:

Major Hub  Minor Hub

SANTA ROSA SOUND

LITTLE SABINE BAY
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LEGEND:

Waterfront gateway at promenade terminus

Enhanced mid-block pedestrian crossing

Pedestrian parkway from beach to bay

Major pedestrian circulation

Minor pedestrian circulation

[option 1] [option 2] 
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[02] master plan - core  pedestrian mobility

TO SUCCESSFULLY REALIZE THE VISION  presented for Pensacola 
Beach, the area must have a multi-modal mobility system 
that accommodates getting people to and from the 

beach; providing convenient parking for their vehicles, and 
offering a multitude of mobility options other than the personal 
motor vehicle while visiting.  To that end, this Master Plan takes 
a holistic approach to overall mobility and parking rather than 
addressing singular issues such as the intersection of Pensacola 
Beach Boulevard/Via de Luna/ Fort Pickens Road.  This approach 
blends together considerations for pedestrians, cyclists, a trolley 
system, water ferry transportation, parking strategies and vehicular 
components all with an emphasis on the pedestrian realm.  

Pedestrian and Bicycle - The key component to the plan is the 
pedestrian parkway which creates an at-grade pedestrian access 
that is uninterrupted by vehicles. This park-like connection will 
provide access for pedestrians, bikes and may also be utilized by 
a trolley to create the Beach to Sound connection. By creating a 
more walkable environment, through the implementation of the 
Master Plan, there should be an increase in the overall number of 
people walking within the core area.   In order to facilitate safe 
pedestrian movements, the roadway corridor is narrowed and 
traffic calming devices implemented.  In addition to appropriate 
landscape improvements and sizing lane widths appropriately, the 

ENLARGEMENT SEE  
OPTION 1&2 PAGE 42

Pedestrian circulation diagram

SANTA ROSA SOUND

LITTLE SABINE BAY
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Vehicular circulation diagram

LEGEND:

Proposed roundabout

Beachfront drop-off

Secondary vehicular access connection to beach 
and pedestrian promenade

Connections from major roadways to parking lots

Major vehicular access

Proposed trolley stops

Escambia county ferry landing

Master Plan also recommends that textured crosswalks be 
installed along Fort Pickens Road and Via de Luna to connect 
the Bay (north side) to the Beach (south side) at the locations 
identified on the Master Plan.  In addition, pedestrian-
activated strobes mounted on the standard crosswalk signs 
can reinforce driver behavior to expect pedestrians crossing 
the street.  Reinforcement of this behavior will also allow for 
increased safety for cyclists on the roadways as well.  

SANTA ROSA SOUND

LITTLE SABINE 
BAY
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Parking – The configuration of parking throughout the core area has 
allowed for an increase in capacity for the two main parking areas: the 
“Mom’s Beach” area and the Casino beach area. With the reallocation 
of parking and the ability to flow freely from each parking area via foot, 
combined with the additional parking created by relocating the Island 
Authority and Sheriff Building, the parking capacity is increased, in spite 
of the overall parking being reduced by roughly 3%. By developing 
a walkable environment, visitors are more likely to “park once” and 
walk among the various uses and amenities.  During the Master Plan 
process it was discovered that employee parking within the core area 
may take up as much as 300 or more parking spaces. The Master Plan 
recommends the implementation of a parking plan that would free 
these spaces up for residents and visitors to the beach. This parking 
plan could take advantage of remote parking areas outside the core 
(such as Park East and Park West as well as locations in Gulf Breeze) and 
utilize a shuttle service to bring employees back into the core. Based 
on feedback received during the preliminary planning process, there is 
no parking garage included within the core. If in the future the need 
was determined to require a parking garage for an increase in parking 
supply, the plan is best suited to have a parking garage in the western 
parking area at Casino Beach, west of the Beach Ball. 

Traffic – One of the key components to the Master Plan in the core area 
is the addition of the main roadway directly to the beach. This roadway 
creates an intuitive traffic pattern that leads to the beach. This “main” 
entry to the beach will increase the likelihood that visitors will arrive at 
the beach and then have the opportunity to park and navigate the 
core area via foot. The previously completed Parking and Transportation 

Study for Pensacola Beach identified 
the intersection of Pensacola Beach 
Boulevard/Via de Luna/Fort Pickens 
Road as a critical congestion 
point for traffic today and in the 
future.  The recommendations out 
of that effort focused on adding 
turn lanes and eventually through 
lanes to address the issue, which 
results in a wider intersection and a 

longer pedestrian crossing distance than exists today.  Given the goal 
of a walkable community, this Master Plan does not recommend that 
approach; rather, the approach this Master Plan takes is one of traffic 
dispersal through a series of three roundabouts and a set of connector 
roadways.  By dispersing the traffic from a single intersection as it exists 
today to three points as shown in the Master Plan, the system can 
accommodate roughly 25% more traffic.  In addition, the roundabouts 
will move traffic more slowly while providing a clear “arrival sequence” 

 [02] master plan - core  transportation
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[02] master plan - core  water ferry
to communicate to motorists the pedestrian nature of the Core Area, 
thereby contributing to a more walkable Core Area.  Finally, the provision 
of the roundabouts affords an opportunity for an additional gateway 
feature or piece of public art along the corridor.

Multimodal - In addition to the increased bicycle opportunities and 
safety afforded by slowing the traffic on the roadways and providing the 
off road pathways, the Master Plan recommends the implementation 
of a comprehensive trolley system. To facilitate movement around the 
area, it is proposed that shuttle service be provided with target service 
headway of no greater than 10 minutes during service hours, and with 
lower headways in the range of five minutes during peak hours and 
events.  A reintroduction of the historic open-air trolleys instead of the 
closed buses would mesh better with the overall beach resort context of 
the area and would likely result in an increase in usage.  It is anticipated 
that a primary east-west spine could connect the hotels, shops, and 
restaurants along Fort Pickens Road and Via de Luna, and could also 
provide connectivity from remote parking areas at Park West, Park East, 
and another lot along Via de Luna such as the property at 14th Street.  
These trolleys will also serve to provide access for Core Area employees 
from remote parking areas on a daily basis and for visitors to major events.  

Water Ferry – A water ferry has been studied for the past 15 years with 
a main focus on three main stops; City of Pensacola, Pensacola Beach, 
and Fort Pickens. A fourth stop has also been discussed to include the 
Naval Air Station; however, security issues may limit this as a regular stop 
on the system.  The Master Plan has identified an area for the water 
ferry to land and allow for riders to disembark to the area. The plan 
also recommends that this style of boat be viewed as an opportunity 
for entertainment or generally an amusing mode of transportation.  The 
team identified several boat types for choice and review: a catamaran 
was the preferred alternative. 
Based on the previous studies developed and comparison with other 
similar or even larger markets, the suggested “ridership” for a water 
ferry in the Pensacola area is to be around 40,000 per year. All the past 
studies recommend a vessel of 1-149 passengers or a Chapter T vessel. 
Previous studies indicate that ticket cost would likely be in the range of 
$15-25 to cover operating costs. We believe that in order for the boats 
to be successful, this fee would need to be reduced to $5-10 in order 
to attract a higher volume of users. In order to accomplish this, it would 
require either a public or private subsidy to make up the variance. The 
fore mentioned trolley system would be used and time coordinated to 
allow pick up and discharge of ferry passengers to be transported to the 
various stop options at the beach.

For more detail on the water transportation component, please refer to 
Volume Two of the Master Plan Report. 
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 Market Supply/Demand - Based on the demographics, there are four 
main areas of opportunity for market demand. These areas include; 
events/music venue, banquet/social space, retail, and eco-based 
activities. There are opportunities and challenges with each of these 
components. For music and events, there is an opportunity to capture a 
broader range of local and regional events and/or activities; however, 
it is a highly competitive market within the broader region and in order 
to draw a “headline” event, a large facility would be necessary, which 
is not currently represented in the plan. Although the market indicates 
that there is a demand for an additional banquet/social facility of 
approximately 5,000 to 10,000 square feet to complement existing 
banquet/event space within surrounding hotels, the lack of a major 
corporate presence within the region somewhat limits potential demand 
for larger meetings and related events needed to support improvement 
costs.  Retail space introduced as part of the Master Plan would only 
be promoted to support the growing visitor market so that it is not to 
detract from the current base of businesses.  A more detailed report on 
the market demands has been included in Volume Two of the Master 
Plan Report. 

Core Area -Events and Entertainment - One objective in developing 
this Master Plan is to create areas for continued and enhanced events 
and entertainment opportunities. The existing music venue successfully 
functions to serve small localized events; however, the Master Plan 

provides for an upgrade in sound and lighting accessories and other 
aesthetic enhancements that should enhance the visitor experience.  In 
addition, with the inclusion and creation of the park entry and plaza 
adjacent to the theater’s current location at the beach, this flexible 
open space should adequately support increased scheduling and 
capacity as well as enhancing the visitor experience.  Importantly, there 
may be an opportunity during subsequent phases of the plan to notably 
expand the existing venue so that it can host additional and significantly 
larger events on a more regular basis.  Importantly, the Master Plan is 
focused on enhancing events and entertainment for visitors through 
improved beach access, creating safer pedestrian areas, improving 
facility features and promoting safety measures within the core. 

[02] master plan - core  market/events
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[ North Gateway]
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 THE NORTH ENTRY is the front door to Pensacola Beach and the 
Master Plan seeks to create an entry/arrival statement that sets 
the tone for the beach experience.  The elements within this arrival 

sequence seek to emulate forms and images that reflect culture and 
character of the place. These elements are seen in the lighting, paving, 
signage and art elements. 
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ICONIC ART

[NORTH GATEWAY]

ICONIC ART

ENHANCEMENT OF TOLL BOOTH ARCHITECTURE

EXISTING PARKING

ENHANCED PEDESTRIAN 
ACCESS TO PIER

NATIVE LANDSCAPE

LANE EXTENSION

ARRIVAL PLAZA

Key Map
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RELOCATED VISITOR CENTER
ADDITIONAL OVERFLOW PARKING

VISITOR CENTER PARKING

PENSACOLA BEACH BLVD

 [02] master plan  north gateway

AS GUESTS AND RESIDENTS arrive to Pensacola Beach from the 
north, the Master Plan creates an arrival sequence through the 
implementation of landscape, art, signage and special paving. 

This entry statement starts as visitors and residents arrive on the bridge and 
continue through to the core area. The importance of an entry/arrival se-
quence to the Master Plan is to create a unique transition to announce 
that you have arrived at a different location. Elements of the entry se-
quence seek to draw on the natural surroundings of the beach, sand, 

wind and waves as they are applied in both figurative and literal forms. 

A key element to the arrival sequence is the toll booth. The Master Plan 
recommends several changes for the toll booth facility. To facilitate 
movement into Pensacola Beach, it is recommended that the outer-
most lane of the toll booth be converted to an Automated Toll Collec-
tion (ATC) lane.  While a manned change lane can process approxi-
mately 450 vehicles per hour, an ATC lane can accommodate up to 
1,000 vehicles in the same time period.  The SRIA can issue the tran-
sponders to residents and business owners, and hotels and car rental 
providers could also provide transponders to visitors to use during their 
stay.  To accommodate the conversion, the approach lane for the out-
side lane would need to be lengthened and widened north toward the 
bridge and new equipment would need to be purchased and installed.  

Visitor Center – The current version of the Master Plan relocates the 
Visitor Center to an area within the north entry. This relocated visi-
tor center was thought to create a greater opportunity for visibility 
and orientation for guests as they arrive from the toll booth. The relo-
cated center would provide the opportunity for an initial orientation 
to Pensacola Beach and would also free up space within the core for 
parking. Earlier concepts had the visitor center located in the core 
area, but consensus was to move it to the north entry. To see the ear-
lier concepts, please refer to Volume Two of the Master Plan Report. 
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 [02] master plan  north gateway
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SANTA ROSA SOUND QUIET WATER BEACH ON-STREET PARKING TWO-LANE ROADLANSCSAPE / DUNE BUFFER
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section “B”
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 [02] master plan  north gateway
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The streetscape environment within the study area 
offers opportunity for enhancements mainly to 
the pedestrian realm. The Master Plan creates 

opportunity for landscape, lighting, and special paving 
treatments to enhance the pedestrian realm. To have 
the largest impact, the improvements for these areas 
need to be bold and focused. The streetscape to the 
east differs from the west by the area available within 
the rights-of-way. Also the western streetscape has 
predominant residential component where as the 
eastern has a mix of use. 

[ Streetscape]
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Streetscape [west] 
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 [02] master plan  west streetscape

West – The proposed streetscape enhancements to the west of the core 
are mainly limited to the identification of the beach access points. The 
Master Plan indicates these areas would be identified with special pav-
ing and landscape to allow pedestrians safer access and to also define 
the access points which will protect the dune environment. Additionally, 
minor landscape enhancements and lighting are recommended for the 
northern side of the roadway adjacent to the pedestrian walkway. 

LEGEND:

          Enhance Landscape elements on 
          two-lane roadway

         Opportunity to enhance minor                             
         connections to beach

         Opportunity to enhance mid 
         block connection to existing beach      
         boardwalk

Opportunity to add shade and/or 
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existing use as park or public amenity or 
future public development needs
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Typical Streetscape Improvements
section A

TO BAY

WALKWAY TWO-LANE ROAD LANDSCAPE BUFFER
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 [02] master plan  west streetscape
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[boardwalk]
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[access]

[people]

see page 67

See page 63
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 [02] master plan  east streetscape
East – The proposed streetscape enhancements to the East of the core 
would include lighting, pedestrian crossing enhancements, landscape 
and a potential landscape easement to increase the opportunity for 
planting throughout much of the street corridor. In addition, to the east, 
the Master Plan identifies a series of opportunities to enhance park areas 
and pedestrian connections from the Sound to the Beach. 

Streetscape [east] 

LEGEND:

Opportunity to create entry gateway

Opportunity to enhance mid block 
connection to existing beach boardwalk

Potential landscape easement 10-15ft

Opportunity to add shade and/or 
pedestrian improvements &enhance 
connection

Opportunity to relocate SRIA 
headquarters & police sub station

Public land with opportunity to enhance 
existing use as park or public amenity or 
future public development needs

Enhance landscape elements on two-
lane roadway

Enhance landscape elements on four-
lane roadway

Opportunity to enhance minor 
connections to beach

Opportunity to enhance major 
connections in neighborhoods from 
beach to bay
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 [02] master plan  east streetscape
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[ East Gateway]
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GATEWAY ICONIC ART 
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East - As the secondary entry to Pensacola Beach the overall scale of the 
improvements will be reduced. The improvements for this entry will need 
to blend with the surrounding architecture and natural environment, but 
also create a distinct boundary marker for the area. Similar to the north 
entry, the east entry seeks to create an arrival statement and sequence 
that will announce the transition from the Pensacola Beach area to the 
National Gulf Seashore. The elements of the entry statement include 
landscape, lighting, art elements, signage, pedestrian improvements 
and potential improvements to the roadway. Currently the Master Plan 
calls for this entry statement to occur just east of the Portofino. However, 
some suggest the entry statement should be placed further east near the 
Park East area. 

 [02] master plan  east gateway
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 [02] master plan  east gateway
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03
[implementation ]
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THE TEAM HAS IDENTIFIED a series of funding alternatives; however, 
at this point the main source of funding is to be tied to a proposed 
increase in toll revenue. In addition to this potential funding source, 

there are other sources for funding that may be obtained including 
grants, the Portofino Beach Beautification fund, private/public funding, 
and Escambia County capital improvement fund, summarized as follows:

Toll Bridge – The Toll Bridge fee is currently $1 per vehicle (not including 
reduced annual fee for transponder purchasers) which, according to the 
SRIA, generates approximately $3 million a year. A proposed increase 
in vehicle fees by an additional $1 per vehicle (and not assuming 
adjustment to transponder revenue) therefore would potentially double 
the toll bridge revenue; or added net revenue of roughly $3 million. This 
annual net revenue funding opportunity serves as a key component 
to the funding strategy given the possibility to leverage these funds to 
support a $25 to $30 million bond that can be used to cover several 
major capital improvement items identified within the Master Plan. 

Portofino Beach Fund – The Portofino Beach Fund is a source of funding 
available to the SRIA dedicated to beautification, infrastructure and 
other related improvements.  In total, the Portofino Beach funding is 
estimated to generate approximately $6,000,000, which is accumulated 
through incremental payments of roughly $500,000 per annum.  Based 

AS PART OF THE OVERALL MASTER PLAN, the team developed 
a rough order of magnitude cost estimate for each of the 
main study areas. This estimate is included in summary on the 

following pages and is intended to act as a tool to develop priorities 
for development, alternatives for funding, and if needed, refine the 
plan based on both of these elements to fit within an overall budget. 
 
  
Items Description     Total

[01] Core Area Improvements    $ 24,724,740 

[02] North Entry Improvements   $ 11,007,600

[03] East Entry Improvements   $      750,450

[04] Streetscape East Improvements  $   5,706,960

[05] Streetscape West Improvements  $   2,100,000

     Total:  $ 44,289,750

 [03]   cost & funding strategies
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upon the Portofino Beach Fund’s current funding level and commitments, 
$4,.800,000 (of the total $6,000,000 in collections) may be available 
to potentially support certain infrastructure and/or beautification 
components of the Master Plan.

Private/Public Funding – Public/Private Partnership (PPP) is generally 
structured between a government agency and one or more private sector 
entities. Depending on the proposed project, government participation 
can range from a one-time funding contribution, financial/operational 
incentives, or ongoing subsidy for development or programming.  In most 
cases, an important component to a PPP is revenue generation from one 
or more elements of the development plan that can be used to support 
at least some degree of investment return for the private sector partner 
and/or the public participant.  The revenue available to support public/
private investment may be generated from operating profit, increased 
tax revenue, user fees or other revenue producing mechanism.  Public/
Private funding for this Master Plan may be considered for activities 
related to eco-tourism and recreation/event based programs.

Grants and other – Federal and state grants offer an additional funding 
opportunity that can directly support development or supplement 
other funding resources; however, these grants are generally highly 
competitive and application period is relatively narrow. It is therefore 
important to have a Master Plan in place that is perceived as “shovel 

ready” and provides marked benefit to the surrounding community.  
There are numerous grant programs to consider in support of varying 
elements of the Master Plan; however, many grants require matching 
funds, particularly those for major capital improvements.  As a result, 
additional funding sources will need to be identified before many grants 
can be considered.  Most grant opportunities are very specific in terms 
of project eligibility; therefore, a development or event program needs 
to be in place before grant opportunities can be pursued.  In light of 
current economic conditions, the grant funding environment is highly 
competitive. 

 [03]   cost & funding strategies
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[pedestrian parkway connection]

04 [priority improvements]
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PRIORITY IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE PROJECT will continue 
to evolve through public feedback and ultimately policy 
makers decisions regarding the project. These priorities will 

likely be based on an overall budget and available funding source.  

Initially the steering committee discussed priority projects and 
identified the core area to be the number one priority. The core area 
improvements, with a heavy focus on the pedestrian realm, will have 
the greatest impact towards changing the face of Pensacola Beach 
while maintaining its overall character. 

The second priority project was to be the North Entry and Arrival. The 
focus for this area of design would be on the toll booth technology 
and increasing capacity at the toll booth, as well as overall aesthetic 
improvements to the entry sequence. 

The third priority was the east entry statement, due to its proximity to the 
main area of the beach and that it is a secondary entry to the beach 
The lowest priority was the streetscape enhancements to the east and 
the west. These areas were deemed to have the lowest impact on the 
overall beach environment. It should be noted that based on funding 
availability a portion of the streestscape may be implemented earlier to 
align with specific funds within the Portofino Beach fund. 

01

02

03

 [04]   priority improvements
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05
[next steps]
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[05]  next steps

THE SRIA WAS ASKED TO DEVELOP a Master Plan that reached 
consensus amongst the public and that could be brought 
before the County Commission for review. This Master Plan and 

Report achieved this objective, as it received unanimous support from 
the steering committee.  The other goal for the Master Plan was to 
ensure that this did not become another plan to sit on the shelf. With 
the identification of priority projects and the opportunity for phased 
development, the plan sits ready to take on the next steps of design 
towards implementation. 

Escambia County has informed the SRIA that they will be administering 
an RFQ process over the next 90 days to select and A/E firm to take 
the Master Plan through the detailed design process.  This process will 
include a more detailed look at the traffic patterns and pedestrian 
connection in the core.  The Master Plan will serve as a framework to 
any future efforts and also allow for flexibility as the plan is implemented. 
As the Santa Rosa Island Authority and County begin the next phase of 
work for Pensacola Beach, the EDSA Team would like to thank them for 
the opportunity to collaborate on this initial phase and look forward to 
the future success of the implementation. 
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AI-8780     County Administrator's Report      10. 6.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Speed Reduction on Multiple Roadways
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Department Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Speed Reduction on Multiple Roadways - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E.,
Public Works Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the filing of traffic restrictions - speed
reduction, per the requirements of Ordinance Number 2003-26, which authorizes the
County Engineer to place restrictions on the movement of traffic on County roadways
and streets:

A. Adopt the Resolution establishing the speed limit for the reduction in speed, from 30
miles per hour to 25 miles per hour, for the following roadway segments:

1.  Bucklebury Drive, from Kingsport Avenue to end of road (D2);
2.  Bradfield Drive, from Weller Avenue to Kingsport Avenue (D2); and
3.  Boxford Court, from Bradfield Drive to end of road (D2); and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution.

[Funding:  Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 211201, Object Code
53401, for Sign Installations]

BACKGROUND:
The Transportation & Traffic Operations Division received requests from citizens to lower
the speed limits on these roads. After evaluating the conditions of the roadways and the
requests for lower speed limits, county staff supports the reductions based on the
roadway geometrics.

The Board is authorized under Sections 316.006 (3)(a)(b), 316.008(1)(j) and
316.189(2)(a) of the Florida Statutes (2009) to establish regulations on county roadways
and streets. Volume 1, Chapter 94, Article I, Section 94-1 of the Escambia County Code
of Ordinances (Ordinance No. 2003-26), authorizes the County Engineer to place



restrictions on the movement of traffic on county roadways and streets. This
authorization requires the County Engineer to file quarterly, for Board ratification by
Resolution, a list of all limitation orders established under this section.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are budgeted in Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 211201,
Object Code 53401, for Sign Installations.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney, reviewed and approved the Resolution as to
form and legal sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The appropriate speed limit signs have been installed on all roadways. Upon adoption, a
copy of the Resolution will be forwarded to the Sheriff’s Department.

Attachments
Resolution
Map





SUBJECT AREA 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY 

LOCATION MAP 
SPEED LIMIT REDUCTION FROM 30MPH TO 25MPH  

Bucklebury Dr / Bradfield Dr / Boxford Ct 

ROADWAY BEGIN END
Bucklebury Dr Kingsport Ave End of Road
Bradfield Dr Weller Ave Kingsport Ave
Boxford Ct Bradfield Dr End of Road



   
AI-8853     County Administrator's Report      10. 7.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Purchase of One Truck, Cabover Style Crew Cab & Chassis, Dual

Rear Wheel for the Road Division VE 14-15.031
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Purchase of One Truck, Cabover Style Crew Cab & Chassis,
Dual Rear Wheel for the Road Division - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department
Director

That the Board authorize the county to award a Purchase Order to Ward International
Trucks, in the amount of $57,100 for one 2016 Isuzu Cabover Style Crew Cab &
Chassis, Dual Rear Wheel Truck, for the Road Division, according to the specifications
of VE14-15.031.

The Purchasing Department posted the request on the Escambia County Website for 30
days, beginning July 21, 2015.  One additional responsive quote was obtained from
Ward International Trucks, Pensacola.

[Funding:  Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 210405, Object Code
56401]

BACKGROUND:
This Cabover Crew Cab truck, upon purchase, will replace a model in the current fleet.
The current unit will be auctioned as surplus. This new unit will facilitate the continuation
of the Road Division's Right-of-Way Beautification program. A quote was obtained from
Isuzu Truck of Ocala for the purchase based on the specifications of VE14-15.031. The
Purchasing Department posted the request on the Escambia County Website for 30
days, beginning July 21, 2015. One additional responsive quote was obtained from
Ward International Trucks, Pensacola.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 210405,
Object Code 56401.



LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A
 

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the Escambia County, FL Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 46, Article II, Section 46-44, Application; exemptions; and Section
46-64, Board approval, and Award a Purchase Order.

In an effort to encourage competition from local businesses and in compliance with
Board adopted policy, this purchase was advertised on the county's website for 30 days.
One additional, more responsive quote was received.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon Board approval, the Office of Purchasing will issue a Purchase Order.

Attachments
VE 14-15.031
Isuzu Ocala quote
Ward International Quote











                                        
Isuzu Truck of Ocala 

3950 W. Hwy 326 
Ocala Fl. 34482 

407-295-3846 ext 122 
 
To:   Escambia County  
 
Regarding FSA Contract 14-12-0904 
 
Isuzu Truck of Ocala is pleased to quote the following 
Isuzu NQR via the Florida Sheriff’s Association 
contract 14-12-0904. 
 
Spec #6                                                            $37,842.00 
NQR  (17500 GVW upgrade)                             $2,549.00 
NG454 (crew cab)                                             $4,361.00 
16LSCAPE (no charge for extra 2’)               $10,600.00        
 
 
Non Contract Option 
Tie Down Rings                                                  $766.00 
Under Body Tool Boxes                                  $1,067.00 
  
 
 
Total                                                                $57,185.00 
 
 
                 
Regards, 
 
 
Bob Scharpnick 
Municipal Sales 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 





















   
AI-8851     County Administrator's Report      10. 8.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Purchase of Two 3/4 Ton 2WD Crew Cab Pickup Trucks for the Road

Division VE 14-15.033
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Purchase of Two 3/4 Ton Crew Cab Pickup Trucks for the
Road Division - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board authorize the county to utilize the Florida Sheriff’s Association Contract
#14-22-0904 and award a Purchase Order to Duval Ford, in the amount of $70,920, for
two 2016 Ford F250 3/4 Ton 2WD Crew Cab Pickup Trucks for the Road Division,
according to the specifications of VE14-15.033.

The Purchasing Department posted the request on the Escambia County Website for 30
days, beginning July 21, 2015.  No other responsive quotes were received.

[Funding:  Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 210405, Object Code
56401]

BACKGROUND:
These Crew Cab pickup trucks, upon purchase, will replace like models in the current
fleet, asset numbers 49770 and 49777. The current units will be auctioned as surplus.
These new units will facilitate the continuation of the Road Division's Road Maintenance
programs. A quote was obtained from Duval Ford for the purchase based on the
specifications of VE14-15.033. The Purchasing Department posted the request on the
Escambia County Website for 30 days, beginning July 21, 2015. No other responsive
quotes were received.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in Fund 175 Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 210405, Object
Code 56401.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A



N/A
 

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the Escambia County, FL Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 46, Article II, Section 46-44, Application; exemptions; and Section
46-64, Board approval, and Award a Purchase Order.

In an effort to encourage competition from local businesses and in compliance with
Board adopted policy, this purchase was advertised on the county's website for 30 days.
There were no responses.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Office of Purchasing will issue a Purchase Order upon approval.

Attachments
VE 14-15.033
Duval Ford Quote











ESCAMBIA COUNTY

Prepared for: Contract Holder DATE:
ESCAMBIA COUNTY Duval Ford Fleet Sales 7/16/2015

TERRY GRAY Patti Ulsch
twgray@myescambia.com (Work) 904-388-2144 

(Fax)  904-387-6816

patti.ulsch@duvalfleet.com

1616 Cassat Ave. Jax, FL 32210
PLEASE CONFIRM RECEIPT OF QUOTE VIA EMAIL

Labor Code Price
0 SPEC 53 FORD F-250 CREW CAB 2WD (W2A) 23,003.00$     

0 172" WB 8 FOOT BED STD

0 Z1, AS OXFORD WHITE EXTERIOR W/STEEL VINYL INTERIOR STD

0 99T 6.7 L POWER STROKE 4V DIESEL V8 ENGINE 8,400.00$        

0 98R OPERATOR COMMANDED REGENERATION 249.00$            

0 TOWPKG TRAILER TOWING PACKAGE 865.00$            

0 52B ELECTRIC BRAKE CONTROLLER 269.00$            

0 X3E LIMITED SLIP DIFFERENTIAL 389.00$            

0 TCD ALL TERRAIN TIRES 454.00$            

0 WBUA BACK UP ALARM, DEALER INSTALLED 130.00$            

0 85S SPRAY-ON BEDLINER 565.00$            

0 RS RAINSHIELDS - FLANGE STYLE 160.00$            

0 TBX HEAVY DUTY ALUMINUM TOOLBOX 395.00$            

0 TEMP TEMPORARY TAG 6.00$                

3 WVTX (4) WHELEN CORNER LED STROBES - WHITE 230.00$            

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 RDC Regional freight charge per vehicle for alternative zone purchasing per section 3.54 paragraph A, item 1b. INCL
0 Per terms and specifications 1.14, pre-delivery service inspection and all delivery requirements included. Not -$                   
0 applicable when agency is domiciled in same zone as the base award. Amount is computed via statistical -$                   
0 algorithm utilizing trending market sales data and median variable freight costs within certain statistical -$                   
0 mileage data points within the state of Florida. Any dollar volume credit to this unit cost, where applicable, is -$                   
0 derived per section 3.55 -$                   
3 LABOR Total labor hours per spec.  Includes wire, loom, connectors, PDI and shop supplies: $115 345.00$            

UNIT COST 35,460.00$     

TOTAL QUANTITY 2 TOTAL PURCHASE 70,920.00$     

I appreciate your interest and the opportunity to quote.  Prices are published by the Florida Sheriff's 

Association/ Florida Association of Counties & Florida Fire Chiefs' Association Automotive Contract 

#14.22.0904 chassis / 14.22.0904. (www.flsheriffs.org)   If you have any questions regarding this quote please 

call!  Vehicle will be ordered  white exterior unless specified on purchase order.

Equipment

Pr i nt ed:  7/ 16/ 2015 www. duval f l eet . com ESCAMBI A W2A. xl sx

mailto:twgray@myescambia.com
mailto:patti.ulsch@duvalfleet.com
TWGRAY
Highlight



   
AI-8758     County Administrator's Report      10. 9.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Supplemental Budget Amendment #228 - Road Prison Manhunt Field

Trials
From: Amy Lovoy, Assistant County Administrator 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #228 - Stephan Hall, Budget
Manager, Management and Budget Services

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #228,
Escambia Restricted Fund (101), in the amount of $4,500, to recognize reimbursements
the County will be receiving from the Southeastern States Manhunt Field Trial Teams,
and to appropriate these funds for related operational expenses.

BACKGROUND:
The Road Prison will be receiving reimbursements for the Southeastern States Manhunt
Field Trials.  They expect 30 teams to participate and will pay $150 per event.  These
funds must now be recognized and appropriated to cover additional operational activities
associated with this event.  These funds will be placed into the Escambia County
Restricted Fund (101).

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This amendment will increase Fund 101 by $4,500.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires increases and decreases in revenues to be approved by the Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



N/A

Attachments
SBA# 228



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2015-

  WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

  WHEREAS, the Escambia County will receive reimbursements for the Southeastern States Manhunt 
Field Trials. The Road Prison expects 30 teams to participate and each team will be paying $150 per event 
to join in the trials.  These funds must now be recognized and appropriated to cover additional operational 
activities associated with the event.

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following
funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015:

Escambia Restricted Fund 101
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Road Prison Fundraisers 101 366401 4,500

Total $4,500

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Fund Number/Cost Center Project Number Amount

Operating Supplies 101/290208 55201 4,500

Total $4,500

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution.

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
PAM CHILDERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment

# 228

Steven Barry, Chairman



   
AI-8800     County Administrator's Report      10. 10.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: SBA#231 - Sheriff's Off-Duty Officer, Insurance, Firing Range, and

Miscellaneous Reimbursements/Fees
From: Stephan Hall, Budget Manager 
Organization: Asst County Administrator - Lovoy
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #231 - Stephan Hall, Budget
Manager, Management and Budget Services

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #231,
General Fund (001), in the amount of $147,187, to recognize the Sheriff's Department
off-duty officer, insurance, firing range, and miscellaneous reimbursements/fees, and to
appropriate these funds for the purchase of computer security software to support the
Sheriff's law enforcement activities in Escambia County.

BACKGROUND:
The Sheriff's Department has received off-duty officer, insurance, firing range, and
miscellaneous reimbursements/fees associated with proving law enforcement in
Escambia County. SBA#231 appropriates these funds back into the Sheriff's FY 2014/15
Budget to purchase security software for law enforcement operations.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This amendment will increase Fund 001 by $147,187.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires increases and decreases in revenue to be approved by the Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



N/A

Attachments
SBA#231



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2015-

     WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County 
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

     WHEREAS, the Escambia County Sheriff has received reimbursement proceeds from off-duty officers
for related off-duty employment expenses incurred by the Sheriff's Department, as well as auto insurance, Firing 
Range, and miscellaneous Sheriff's Fees. These funds must now be recognized and appropriated back into the 
Sheriff's Budget accordingly.

     NOW, THEREFORE,  be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, 
         that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following

funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015:

General Fund 1
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Miscellaneous Sheriff Fees 1 369939 10,251                                         
Insurance Proceeds 1 369008 61,943
Reimbursements 1 369401 73,203
Reimbursements Firing Range 1 347532 1,790

Total $147,187 

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Fund Number/Cost Center Project Number Amount

Capital Outlay 001/540101 59704 147,187                                       

Total $147,187 

     NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, 
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution.

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
PAM CHILDERS OF ESCAMBIA, COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment 

# 231

Steven Barry, Chairman



   
AI-8820     County Administrator's Report      10. 11.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Supplemental Budget Amendment #233 - Appropriation of Road Prison

Inmate Commissary Unanticipated Revenues
From: Stephan Hall, Budget Manager 
Organization: Asst County Administrator - Lovoy
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #233 - Stephan Hall, Budget
Manager, Management and Budget Services

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #233,
Transportation Trust Fund (175), in the amount of $67,600, to recognize revenue over
budget from the Road Prison Inmate Commissary, and to appropriate these funds to
pay the food services vendor and other Commissary vendors, due to increased inmate
population for the remainder of Fiscal Year 2014-2015.

BACKGROUND:
The Road Prison has more inmates than anticipated this year due to housing some of
the jail inmates after the explosion.  The higher population has caused the Commissary
fund to exceed its budget for the year for food services and other items.  Commissary
revenues are also greater than anticipated or budgeted, so there are funds available to
cover the shortage.  This amendment will recognize those additional revenues so
expenditures can be covered through the fiscal year end.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This amendment will increase Fund 175 by $67,600.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires increases and decreases in revenues to be approved by the Board.



Board policy requires increases and decreases in revenues to be approved by the Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
SBA#233



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2015-

  WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

     WHEREAS, Escambia County Corrections Department, Road Prison Inmate Commissary, has collected 
 more revenues than anticipated or budgeted, and these funds must be recognized and appropriated to
cover year end expenditures.

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following
funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015:

Transportations Trust 175
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Road Prison Inmate Commissary 175 342301 $67,600

Total $67,600

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Fund Number/Cost Center Project Number Amount

Operating Supplies 175/290205 55201 $67,600

Total $67,600

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution.

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
PAM CHILDERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Steven Barry, Chairman
Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment
#233



   
AI-8828     County Administrator's Report      10. 12.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for Sale of Surplus Real

Property Located at 106 Brandon Avenue
From: Stephan Hall, Budget Manager 
Organization: Asst County Administrator - Lovoy
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for Sale of Surplus Real
Property Located at 106 Brandon Avenue - Stephan Hall, Budget Manager, Management and
Budget Services

That the Board take the following action concerning reduction of the minimum bid
required for sale of surplus real property located at 106 Brandon Avenue, due to the
Property Appraiser's reassessed value:

A. Authorize the sale of surplus real property located at 106 Brandon Avenue, Account
Number: 08-1223-000, Reference Number: 50-2S-30-5060-020-006, to the bidder with
the highest offer received at or above the reassessed minimum bid of $9,500, in
accordance with Section 46.134, of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, without
further action of the Board; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign all documents related to the sale.

BACKGROUND:
This property escheated to the County on March 13, 2014.  The Board declared the
property surplus and authorized its sale at its Board Meeting on April 29, 2014, with a
minimum bid set at the then current value assessed by the Property Appraiser's Office,
$43,856.  The Property Appraiser has now reassessed and reduced their value to
$9,500, because the house will require a substantial amount of repair.  The County has
no need for this property.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Sale of this property will provide revenue for the General Fund.

 



LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
All legal documents will be approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the County
Attorney's Office prior to execution by the Chairman.  The purchaser will pay all closing
costs.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Escambia County Ordinance, Section 46.134.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Backup - 106 Brandon Avenue



escpaDetail 106 BRANDON AVE 32507 http://escpa.org/CAMA/Detail_a.aspx?s=502S305060020006

1 Of2

Chris Jones

Escambia County Property Appraiser

Real Estate

Search

Tangible Property
Search

Sale

List

Amendment 1/Portability
Calculations

Navigate Mode Account Reference

General Information

Reference: 502S305060020006

Account: 081223000

Owners: ESCAMBIA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS

Mail: 221 PALAFOX PL STE 420

PENSACOLA, FL 32502

Situs: 106 BRANDON AVE 32507

Use Code: SINGLE FAMILY RESID P
Taxing

Authority:
COUNTY MSTU

Tax

Inquiry:
Open Tax Inquiry Window

ITax Inquiry link courtesy of Janet Holley
Escambia County Tax Collector

Sales Data

Sale Date Book Page Value Type

03/13/2014

12/2002

08/1998

04/1998

01/1967

7146

5041

4298

4241

357

1248

1029

1170

1071

736

$100

$19,000

$100

$11,500

$9,000

TD

WD

WD

WD

WD

Official Records

(New Window)

View Instr

View Instr

View Instr

View Instr

View Instr

IOfficial Records Inquiry courtesy of Pam Childers
Escambia County Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller

Parcel

Information

Section Map

CA207

Approx.
Acreage:
0.1500

Zoned: P
MDR

Evacuation

& Flood

Information

Open Report

Back

Printer Friendly Version

Assessments

Year Land Imprv Total CaD Val

2015 $9,500 $0 $9,500 $9,500

2014 $9,500 $37,453 $46,953 $46,953

2013 $9,500 $34,356 $43,856 $43,856

Disclaimer

Amendment 1/Portability Calculations

2015 Certified Roll Exemptions

COUNTY OWNED

Legal Description

LT 20 BLK 6 CORRY S/D PB 1 P 5 5 SEC 50/51 T
2S R 30 OR 7146 P 1248 CA 207

Extra Features

UTILITY BLDG

Launch Interactive Ma

% %
View Florida Department of Environmental Protection(DEP) Data

.&.

Buildings

Address: 106 BRANDON AVE, Year Built: 1955, Effective Year: 1965

8/20/2015 2:45 PM













   
AI-8831     County Administrator's Report      10. 13.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for Sale of Surplus Real

Property Located at 20 West Washington Street
From: Stephan Hall, Budget Manager 
Organization: Asst County Administrator - Lovoy
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for Sale of Surplus Real
Property Located at 20 West Washington Street - Stephan Hall, Budget Manager,
Management and Budget Services

That the Board take the following action concerning reduction of the minimum bid
required for sale of surplus real property located at 20 West Washington Street, due to
the Property Appraiser's reassessed value:

A. Authorize the sale of surplus real property located at 20 West Washington Street,
Account Number: 08-1479-000, Reference Number: 51-2S-30-6000-000-008, to the
bidder with the highest offer received at or above the reassessed minimum bid of
$5,422, in accordance with Section 46.134, of the Escambia County Code of
Ordinances, without further action of the Board; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign all documents related to the sale.

BACKGROUND:
This property escheated to the County on June 6, 2014.  The Board declared the
property surplus and authorized its sale at its Board Meeting on July 10, 2014, with a
minimum bid set at the then current value assessed by the Property Appraiser, $17,586. 
The Property Appraiser has now reassessed and reduced their value to $5,422, because
the house requires a substantial amount of repair.  The County has no need for this
property.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Sale of this property will provide revenue for the General Fund.



Sale of this property will provide revenue for the General Fund.

 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
All legal documents will be approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the County
Attorney's Office prior to execution by the Chairman.  The purchaser will pay all closing
costs.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Escambia County Ordinance, Section 46.134.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Backup - 20 West Washington Street



escpaDetail 20 W WASHINGTON ST 32507 http://escpa.0rg/CAMA/Detail_a.aspx?s=512S306000000008

Of 2

Chris Jones

Escambia County Property Appraiser
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081479000

ESCAMBIA COUNTY

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

221 PALAFOX PL SUITE 420

PENSACOLA, FL 32502

20 W WASHINGTON ST 32507

SINGLE FAMILY RESID P

COUNTY MSTU

Open Tax Inquiry Window

Tax Inquiry link courtesy of Janet Holley
Escambia County Tax Collector

Sales Data

Sale Date Book Page Value Type
Official Records

(New Window)

View Instr

View Instr

View Instr

View Instr

View Instr

View Instr

06/06/2014

02/06/2009

09/1999

09/1999

09/1999

11/1996

7183 1291 $100 TD

6424 1221 $100 CJ

4489 703 $100 QC

4477 1526 $100 QC

4471 492 $100 QC

4075 1934 $100 OT

Official Records Inquiry courtesy of Pam Childers
Escambia County Clerk of the Circuit Court and
Comptroller
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Information

Section Map
Id:

CA215

Approx.
Acreage:
0.0900

Zoned: "
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Evacuation

& Flood

Information

Open Report

99 88

y View FloridaDepartmentof Environmental Protection(DF.P) Data

Sale
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Amendment 1/Portability
Calculations

Back

Assessments

Year Land

2015 $5,362 $60

2014 $5,478 $13,395

2013 $5,478 $12,108

Disclaimer

Imprv

Printer Friendly Version

Total Cap Val

$5,422 $5,422

$18,873 $18,873

$17,586 $17,586

Amendment 1/Portability Calculations

2015 Certified Roll Exemptions

COUNTY OWNED

Legal Description

BEG AT NW COR OF LT 7 BLK 10 1 ST ADDN NEW

WARRINGTON S 64 6/ 10 FT FOR POB E TO A POINT
ON E LI OF LT 8 67 6/10 FT S OF N...

Extra Features

METAL SHED

Launch Interactive Ma

Buildings

Address:20 W WASHINGTON ST, Year Built: 1933, Effective Year: 1933

8/20/2015 3:15 PM















   
AI-8817     County Administrator's Report      10. 14.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for Sale of Surplus Real

Property Located at 2400 North S Street
From: Stephan Hall, Budget Manager 
Organization: Asst County Administrator - Lovoy
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for Sale of Surplus Real
Property Located at 2400 North "S" Street - Stephan Hall, Budget Manager, Management and
Budget Services

That the Board take the following action concerning reduction of the minimum bid
required for sale of surplus real property located at 2400 North "S" Street, due to the
Property Appraiser's reassessed value:

A. Authorize the sale of surplus real property located at 2400 North "S" Street, Account
Number: 06-2114-000, Reference Number: 17-2S-30-1500-019-026, to the bidder with
the highest offer received at or above the reassessed minimum bid of $4,505, in
accordance with Section 46.134, of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, without
further action of the Board; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign all documents related to the sale.

BACKGROUND:
This property escheated to the County on May 2, 2014.  The Board declared the property
surplus and authorized its sale at its Board Meeting on June 3, 2014, with a minimum bid
of $7,386.  The Property Appraiser has now reassessed and reduced their value to
$4,505, because the improvement was removed.  The County has no need for this
property.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Sale of this property will provide revenue for the General Fund.

 



LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
All legal documents will be approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the County
Attorney's Office prior to execution by the Chairman.  The purchaser will pay all closing
costs.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Escambia County Ordinance, Section 46.134.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Backup - 2400 North S Street

















   
AI-8852     County Administrator's Report      10. 15.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for Sale of Surplus Real

Property Located at 1011 West Desoto Street
From: Stephan Hall, Budget Manager 
Organization: Asst County Administrator - Lovoy
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for Sale of Surplus Real
Property Located at 1011 West Desoto Street - Stephan Hall, Budget Manager,
Management and Budget Services

That the Board take the following action concerning reduction of the minimum bid
required for sale of surplus real property located at 1011 West Desoto Street, due to the
Property Appraiser's reassessed value:

A. Authorize the sale of surplus real property located at 1011 West Desoto Street,
Account Number:  15-0429-000, Reference Number:  00-0S-00-9060-011-034, to the
bidder with the highest offer received at or above the reassessed minimum bid of
$3,622, in accordance with Section 46.134, of the Escambia County Code of
Ordinances, without further action of the Board; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign all documents related to the sale.

BACKGROUND:
This property escheated to the County on August 1, 2014.  The Board declared the
property surplus and authorized its sale at its Board Meeting on November 6, 2014, with
a minimum bid of $3,821.  The Property Appraiser has now reassessed and reduced
their value to $3,622, because the improvement was removed.  The County has no need
for this property.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Sale of this property will provide revenue for the General Fund.

 



LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
All legal documents will be approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the County
Attorney's Office prior to execution by the Chairman.  The purchaser will pay all closing
costs.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Escambia County Ordinance, Section 46.134.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
1101 W Desoto Street
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Navigate Mode - Account Reference

General Information

Reference:

Account:
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150429000

ESCAMBIA COUNTY

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

221 PALAFOX PL STE 420

PENSACOLA, FL 32502

1011 W DESOTO ST 32501

VACANT RESIDENTIAL P

PENSACOLA CITY LIMITS

Open Tax Inquiry Window

Tax Inquiry link courtesy of Janet Holley
Escambia County Tax Collector

Sales Data

Sa.eDate Book Page v*. lyp. "£*%£*
08/01/2014 7205 1089 $100 TD View .Instr

03/2006 5881 351 $100 WD View Instr

05/1980 1439 547 $4,000 OT View Instr

03/1979 1312 41 $100 WD View Instr

Official Records Inquiry courtesy of Pam Childers
Escambia County Clerk of the Circuit Court and
Comptroller
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Information

Section Map
Id:

CA106

Approx.
Acreage:
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Zoned: *^
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& Flood

Information
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Sale
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Amendment 1/Portability
Calculations

Back

12015 Certified Roll Exemptions

Assessments

Year

2015

2014

2013

Land

$3,622

$3,622

$3,622

Imprv

$0

$199
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Disclaimer

Printer Friendly Version

Total Cap V?l

$3,622 $3,622

$3,821 $3,821

$3,811 $3,811

Amendment l/Portabifrty Calculations

COUNTY OWNED

Legal Description

LT 11 BLK 34 WEST KING TRACT O R 7205 P 1089 CA

106

Extra Features

None

Launch Interactive Ma

•J View Florida Department of Environmental ProtectioniPEPLData
Buildings

None

The primary use of the assessment data is for the preparation of the current year tax roll. No responsibility or liability
is assumed for inaccuracies or errors.

Last Updated :08/24/2015 (tc.783)

8/24/2015 8:34 AM

















   
AI-8830     County Administrator's Report      10. 16.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for Sale of Surplus Real

Property Located at 240 Juniper Street
From: Stephan Hall, Budget Manager 
Organization: Asst County Administrator - Lovoy
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Reduction of the Minimum Bid Required for Sale of Surplus Real
Property Located at 240 Juniper Street - Stephan Hall, Budget Manager, Management and
Budget Services

That the Board take the following action concerning reduction of the minimum bid
required for sale of surplus real property located at 240 Juniper Street, due to the
Property Appraiser's reassessed value:

A. Authorize the sale of surplus real property located at 240 Juniper Street, Account
Number: 12-3533-360, Reference Number: 02-4N-33-4101-000-008, to the bidder with
the highest offer received at or above the reassessed minimum bid of $1,097, in
accordance with Section 46.134, of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, without
further action of the Board; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign all documents related to the sale.

BACKGROUND:
This property escheated to the County on July 7, 2014.  The Board declared the property
surplus and authorized its sale at its Board Meeting on November 6, 2014, with a
minimum bid of $7,387.  The Property Appraiser has now reassessed and reduced their
value to $1,097, because the improvement was removed.  The County has no need for
this property.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Sale of this property will provide revenue for the General Fund.

 



LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
All legal documents will be approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the County
Attorney's Office prior to execution by the Chairman.  The purchaser will pay all closing
costs.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Escambia County Ordinance, Section 46.134.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Backup - 240 Juniper Street
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

221 PALAFOX PL SUITE 420

PENSACOLA, FL 32502

240 JUNIPER ST 32568

VACANT RESIDENTIAL <P

COUNTY MSTU

Open Tax Inquiry Window

Tax Inquiry link courtesy of Janet Holley
Escambia County Tax Collector

Sales Data

Sale Date Book Page Value Type

07/07/2014 7192

04/1981 1534

01/1971 532

961

335

345

$100 TD

$4,000 WD

$400 WD

Official Records

(New Window)
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View Instr
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Official Records Inquiry courtesy of Pam Childers
Escambia County Clerk of the Circuit Court and
Comptroller
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Information
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Id:
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Approx.
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RMU
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& Flood

Information

Open Report

Sale
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Amendment 1/Portability
Calculations

Back

Printer Friendly Version

Assessments

Year Land Imprv Total Cap Va/

2015 $1,097 $0 $1,097 $1,097

2014 $1,097 $6,290 $7,387 $7,387

2013 $1,097 $6,402

Disclaimer

$7,499 $7,499

Amendment 1/Portability Calculations

2015 Certified Roll Exemptions

COUNTY OWNED

Legal Description

BEG AT NE COR OF NE 1/4 OF SE 1/4 W TO W LI
OF FRISCO RR FOR POB CONT W 578 75/100 FT TO
E R/W LI OF COUNTY DIRT RD SELY...

Extra Features

None

Buildings

None

The primary use of the assessment data is for the preparation of the current year tax roll. No responsibility or liability
is assumed for inaccuracies or errors.

Last Updated:08/21/2015 (tc.4614)

8/21/2015 4:31 PM















   
AI-8774     County Administrator's Report      10. 17.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Mosquito Control's Certified Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-16
From: Keith Wilkins, Department Director 
Organization: Natural Resources
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Annual Certified Budget for the Mosquito Control Division,
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 - Keith T. Wilkins, Director, Department of Natural Resources
Management

That the Board take the following action concerning annual Grant funding received from
the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services for Mosquito Control:

A. Approve the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Annual Certified Budget for the Mosquito Control
Division, Natural Resources Management; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Budget.

[Funding:  Fund 106, Mosquito and Arthropod Control, Cost Center 220703, State One
Funds]

BACKGROUND:
The Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services provides annual grant
funding to Escambia County to supplement the Mosquito Control Program.  The funding
will be allocated under Cost Center 220703, Fund 106.  In order to receive the Fiscal
Year 2015-2016 grant, the State requires Escambia County to provide an Annual
Certified Budget for Mosquito Control to show how the funds will be used.  The Annual
Certified Budget being approved with this recommendation is tentative because it is
based on Escambia County's proposed Fiscal Year 2015-2016 budget. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Fund 106, Mosquito and Arthropod Control, Cost Center 220703, M&A State One Funds.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
There is no legal action with this recommendation.



PERSONNEL:
Approval of this certified budget recommendation requires no additional personnel.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The following citations of Florida law and rules apply: per Chapter 388.341, Florida
Statues (F.S.), Reports of expenditures and accomplishment; per Chapter 388.61, F.S.,
Department authority and rules; administration; and per Chapter 5E-13.027, Florida
Administrative Code, Certified Budget, Filing.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Mosquito Control Division management will ensure that Escambia County complies with
the Annual Certified Budget and performs all functions required. 

Attachments
Mosquito Control Contract FY 15-16





   
AI-8568     County Administrator's Report      10. 18.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: PD14-15.073 4-H Club Toilet Building 
From: Amy Lovoy, Assistant County Administrator 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the 4-H Club Toilet Building - Claudia Simmons, Purchasing
Manager, Office of Purchasing

That the Board award Contract PD 14-15.073, for the construction of the 4-H Club Toilet
Building, to Zechiel Construction, in the amount of $78,750.

In May 2014, the Board entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with UF/IFAS
Extension Service and the Escambia County 4-H Foundation, wherein the Board
allocated Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) funds to construct a restroom facility on the
property at 5600 Chalker Road.  

[Funding:  Fund 352, LOST III, Cost Center 110267, Object Code 56301, Project
#14PF2695]

BACKGROUND:
The Office of Purchasing advertised the Invitation to Bid  in the Pensacola News Journal
on Monday,July 6, 2015. Six firms were notified on July 6, 2015.  Seven bids were
received on August 12, 2015. Zechiel Construction is the low bidder.

Escambia County purchased 108 acres in May of 2014 for the express benefit of the 4-H
Youth Development Program in Escambia County.  The BOCC entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding with UF/IFAS Extension and the Escambia County 4-H
Foundation regarding the purchase and future use of the property.  The Escambia
County 4-H Foundation reimbursed the county for the purchase price of the property
($540,000) with the understanding that the BOCC would build facilities for 4-H Extension
animal-related programs and other appropriate 4-H Extension activities.  The BOCC
allocated $250,000 in LOST funds to build 4-H barns and a bathroom on the property at
5600 Chalker Road.   The 4-H Barns were completed in Spring of 2015.

The 4-H Club toilet building  was remaining and placed out for bid.  The remaining funds



from the original LOST funds of $250,000 is $92,366.06.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funding: Fund  352 LOST III, Cost Center 110267, Object Code 56301, Project
#14PF2695.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Attorney's Standard Form of Contract will be used.
 

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the Escambia County, FL, Code of
Ordinance, Chapter 46, Article II, Purchases and Contracts. The Office of Purchasing
advertised the Invitation to Bid PD14-15.073  in the Pensacola News Journal on Monday,
 July 6, 2015. Six firms were notified on July 6, 2015.  Seven bids were received on
August 12, 2015. Zechiel Construction is the low bidder.

 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Office of Purchasing will distribute the Contract and Purchase Order.

Attachments
C:\Users\jfpillit\Desktop\MOU 5-15-2014.pdf
Bid Tab

















   
AI-8683     County Administrator's Report      10. 19.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Main Jail ACR Modifications PD 14-15.076
From: Amy Lovoy, Assistant County Administrator 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Main Jail Admission, Classification, and Release Modifications -
Claudia Simmons, Purchasing Manager, Office of Purchasing

That the Board award Contract PD 14-15.076, for Main Jail Admission, Classification,
and Release (ACR) Modifications, to Berkshire Johnstone, LLC, in the base bid amount
of $171,000, including add Alternate #1, Cased Opening at $2,400, for a total award of
$173,400.

[Funding:  Fund 352, LOST III, Cost Center 290407, Object Code 56201, Project
#14SH2728] 

BACKGROUND:
Due to the displacement of Admission, Classification and Release (ACR), functions that
were previously administered in the Central Booking and Detention Facility and are now
performed at the Main Jail. Modifications at the Main Jail are now required in order to
better accommodate these functions and improve security elements of this area. The
space in question is in the Intake and Release area of the Jail. Sound corrections
practice calls for these functions to be separated to allow for security and efficiency in
the intake and release of inmates. The proposed work with accomplish this.
 
The project entails renovation work inside the first floor of the Jail facility. The work will
install a sally port door system in an existing wall with demolition of a concrete block to
allow for the door and upgrade of two existing exterior detention doors with operational
controls and finishes. Interior work will consist of limited finishes where alterations are
done. Mechanical work will be revising of the plumbing in the affected rooms and the
HVAC ducts and grilles in this location. Electrical work will be the installation and
coordination of additional surveillance cameras, intercoms, and lighting. Cameras and
other security features shall work with the existing systems. One additive alternate for
the installation of a cased opening in an existing masonry wall is included.
 



These alterations will greatly improve Public Safety by improving the operations in these
two critical areas. 
 
The solicitation was advertised on July 22, 2015 in the Pensacola News Journal. A total
of four bids were received and one no bid.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
[Funding:  Fund  352, LOST III, Cost Center 290407 Object Code 56201, Project
#14SH2728]

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attorney standard form of contract will be used.

PERSONNEL:
NA

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the Escambia County FL, Code of
Ordinance, Chapter 46, Article II, Purchases and Contracts.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Office of Purchasing will issue the Contract and Purchase Order.

Attachments
Bid Tab Recommended Award_076





   
AI-8812     County Administrator's Report      10. 20.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Change Order #4 to Purchase Order No. 141508, PD 13-14.038 for

Professional Services to Provide Title V Compliance Reporting for the
Perdidio Landfill

From: Pat Johnson, Department Director 
Organization: Waste Services
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Change Order #4 to Purchase Order No. 141508, for
Professional Services to Provide Title V Compliance Reporting for the Perdido Landfill -
Patrick T. Johnson, Waste Services Department Director

That the Board approve and authorize the County Administrator to execute the following
Change Order #4 to Purchase Order No. 141508, Stearns, Conrad, and Schmidt,
Consulting Engineers, Inc., (d/b/a SCS Engineers), in the amount of $79,794, per the
Terms and Conditions of the continuing Contract PD 13-14.038, Professional Services to
Provide Title V Compliance Reporting for the Perdido Landfill, and per Florida Statute
Chapter 287_055:

Department: Waste Services
Division: Engineering & Environmental Quality
Type: Addition
Amount: $79,794
Vendor: SCS Engineers, Inc.
Project Name: Professional Services to Provide Title V

Compliance Reporting for Perdido Landfill
Contract: PD 13-14.038
Purchase Order (PO)#: 141508
Change Order (CO)#: 4
Cost Center for CO: 230304
Original PO Amount: $102,400
Cumulative Amount of Change Orders thru #4: $91,418
New PO Total: $193,818



[Funding: Fund 401, Solid Waste Fund, Cost Center 230304, Object Code 53101]

BACKGROUND:
On June 26, 2014, the Board voted to award and authorize the County Administrator to
sign the Standard Professional Consulting Services Contract Documents for an
Agreement between Escambia County and SCS Engineers per the terms and conditions
of PD 13-14.038.  This is a continuing contract which will allow SCS Engineers to
perform Professional Services to Provide Title V Compliance Reporting for the Perdido
Landfill.  SCS Engineers was selected based on their qualifications in accordance with
the Consultants Competitive Negotiations Act, CCNA.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funding: Fund 401, Solid Waste Fund, Cost Center 230304, Object Code 53101

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the provisions of the Code of Ordinance of
Escambia County, FL 1999, Chapter 46, Finance, Article II, Purchases and Contracts
and Florida Statute 287.055, Competitive Consultants Negotiation Act.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval of the recommendation, a Change Order will be transmitted to the Office
of Purchasing for processing.

Attachments
SCS Change Order
PO No 141508
Expenditure Analysis
Chapter 287_055
Board Mins. 06_26_2014
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PUBLIC FORUM WORK SESSION AND REGULAR BCC MEETING MINUTES – Continued 
 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT – Continued 
 
 II. BUDGET/FINANCE CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 
 

 2-43. Approval of Various Consent Agenda Items – Continued 
 
 24. Awarding a Contract, PD 13-14.047, for the Southwest Greenway 3rd Extension, to 

Birkshire-Johnstone, LLC, in the base bid amount of $265,291.50 (Funding:  Fund 110, 
Other Grants & Projects Fund, Cost Center 221017, Recreational Trail Southwest 
Greenway, Object Code 56301 – $200,000; Fund 352, Local Option Sales Tax III, Cost 
Center 220102, NESD Capital Projects, Project 11NE0878, Object Code 56301 – 
$65,291.50). 

 
 25. Awarding a Contract, PD 13-14.058, for the Central Energy Plant Contract, to 

Engineered Cooling Systems, Inc., for a period of three years, with the option to extend 
for two additional one-year periods, for basic bimonthly services, and add Options 1 and 
2, for an annual amount of $107,400, and approving the Agreement for Central Energy 
Maintenance and Repair PD 13-14.058 (Funding:  Fund 001, General Fund, Cost 
Center 310203, Object Code 54601 – $100,000; Fund 113, Library Fund, Cost 
Center 310203, Object Code 54601 – $7,400). 

 
 26. Awarding a Contract, PD 13-14.057, for the GPS-Automatic Vehicle Loading Systems 

Options APS, and approving the Agreement for GPS Automatic Vehicle Loading System 
Options APS for Escambia County Area Transit PD 13-14.057 between Escambia 
County and Doublemap, Inc., in the amount of $487,210 (Funding:  Fund 320, 
FTA-Capital Projects, Cost Center 320410, “2009 FTA FL90X701,” Object Code 56401 – 
$117,666; Fund 320, FTA-Capital Projects, Cost Center 320415, “2010 FTA FL90X728,” 
Object Code 56401 – $369,544). 

 
 27. Approving the Agreement for Employee Assistance Program Services PD 13-14.019, 

between Escambia County, Florida, and Behavioral Health Systems, Inc., in the amount 
of $34,000, for a period of 12 months, with an option to extend for two additional 
12-month periods, with an effective date of August 1, 2014 (Funding:  Fund 501, Internal 
Service Fund, Cost Center 150106, Object Code 53101). 

 
 28. Awarding, and authorizing the County Administrator to sign, the Standard Professional 

Consulting Services Contract Documents for Agreement between Escambia County and 
Stearns, Conrad and Schmidt, Consulting Engineers, Inc. (d/b/a SCS Engineers), per the 
terms and conditions of PD 13-14.038, Professional Services to Provide Title V 
Compliance Reporting for the Perdido Landfill, for a lump sum of $102,400 (Funding:  
Fund 401, Solid Waste Fund, Cost Center 230304, Object Code 53101). 
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AI-8843     County Administrator's Report      10. 21.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Humana Specialty Benefits Vision Care Contact
From: Thomas Turner, Department Director 
Organization: Human Resources
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Humana Specialty Benefits Vision Care Contract - Thomas G.
"Tom" Turner - Human Resources Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the renewal of the Humana
Specialty Benefits Vision Care Contract:

A. Approve the adjustment to the present Contract with Humana Specialty Benefits
Vision Care at reduced rates and added additional benefits; and 

B. Authorize the County Administrator to sign the Humana Specialty Benefits Annual
Renewal Information letter. 

BACKGROUND:
Vision Care (Humana Specialty Benefits) has been the Escambia County Board of
County Commissioners ' voluntary vision plan since March 2000.  Our present Contract
runs through December 31, 2016.  Humana has reviewed our group benefit and has
agreed to reduce our premiums by 14.2% and add additional benefit coverage to our plan.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The Vision Care program is voluntary.  Employees having coverage will pay the
premiums through payroll deductions.  The administrative cost to process deductions will
be minimal.  No County contributions are made.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The County Attorney's Office has reviewed the Humana Annual Vision Renewal
Information Letterand deemed legally sufficient.

PERSONNEL:
The Human Resources Department will process enrollment applications.  Payroll will



The Human Resources Department will process enrollment applications.  Payroll will
make the deductions and forward payments to the appropriate company.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval, the County Administrator will sign the Humana Specialty Benefits Annual
Renewal toextend the Contract. The Human Resources Department will coordinate with
the Office of Purchasing, the Clerk of the Courts, and the appointing authorities to
ensure the are aware of the extension and changes.

Attachments
Vision Care Renewal Docs











   
AI-8844     County Administrator's Report      10. 22.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: CareerSource Escarosa FY 2015-2016 Resolution
From: Tonya Gant, Director 
Organization: Neighborhood & Human Svcs
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Approval of the Workforce Escarosa (d/b/a CareerSource
Escarosa) Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget - Tonya Gant, Neighborhood & Human Services
Department Director

That the Board take the following action:

A. Adopt and authorize the Chairman to sign a Resolution supporting CareerSource
Escarosa's request to waive the ITA/Training Expenditure requirement of 50% and to
establish the ITA/Training Expenditure requirement at 35%.  Due to the requirement of
an indirect cost rate and the method used to determine the rate funds for Fiscal Year
(FY) 2015-2016, training fund allocations will be significantly impacted as to what
services may be reduced or no longer available for the approximately 500 students per
semester, projected to be served with program funds; and

B. Approve the CareerSource Escarosa FY 2015-2016 Budget, in the amount of
$6,474,286.

BACKGROUND:
The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) was signed into law in July 2014
by PresidentObama as a measure to provide a renewed commitment to workforce
development and is designed to increase opportunities, decrease barriers to
employment, and invests in education and career preparation. One primary focus is on
the economic growth in the US to enhance global competitiveness as a country. The
Regional Workforce Board Accountability Act (RWBAA) amended the Florida Workforce
Innovation Act which requires 50% of WIOA Adult and Dislocated Worker funds to be
used for tuition, books and training provider fees, but allows for a waiver if supported by
the Chief ElectedOfficials. The RWBAA requires the Chief Elected Officials to review and
approve the budget for Workforce Escarosa, Inc., dba CareerSource Escarosa.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:



N/A 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A 

PERSONNEL:
N/A 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
CareerSource Escarosa Resolution for the FY Budget 2015-2016 and request for waiver
must have approval from the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval by the Board, this Resolution shall become effective for the expressed
term. CareerSource Escarosa has coordinated with the Department of Neighborhood &
Human Services in submission of this request.

Attachments
CareerSource Escarosa







   
AI-8857     County Administrator's Report      10. 23.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Purchase of One Cabover Style, Regular Cab & Chassis, Dual Rear

Wheel Truck for the Road Division VE 14-15.032
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Purchase of One Cabover Style, Regular Cab Chassis, Dual
Rear Wheel Truck for the Road Division - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department
Director

That the Board authorize the County to award a Purchase Order to Ward International
Trucks, in the amount of $53,400, for one 2016 Isuzu Cabover Style, Regular Cab &
Chassis, Dual Rear Wheel Truck, for the Road Division, according to the specifications
of VE14-15.032.

The Purchasing Department posted the request on the Escambia County Website for 30
days, beginning July 21, 2015.  One additional responsive quote was obtained from
Ward International Trucks, Pensacola.

[Funding:  Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 210405, Object Code
56401]

BACKGROUND:
This Cabover Regular Cab truck, upon purchase, will be an additional model in the
current fleet. This new unit will facilitate the continuation of the Road Division's
Right-of-Way Beautification Program. A quote was obtained from Isuzu Truck of Ocala
for the purchase based on the specifications of VE14-15.032. The Purchasing
Department posted the request on the Escambia County Website for 30 days, beginning
July 21, 2015. One additional responsive quote was obtained from Ward International
Trucks, Pensacola.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in Fund 175 Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 210405, Object
Code 56401.



LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A
 

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the Escambia County, FL Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 46, Article II, Section 46-44, Application; exemptions; and Section
46-64, Board approval, and Award a Purchase Order.

In an effort to encourage competition from local businesses and in compliance with
Board adopted policy, this purchase was advertised on the county's website for 30 days.
One additional, more responsive quote was received.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon Board approval, the Office of Purchasing will issue a Purchase Order. 

Attachments
VE 14-150.32
Isuzu Ocala quote
Ward International Quote











                                        
Isuzu Truck of Ocala 

3950 W. Hwy 326 
Ocala Fl. 34482 

407-295-3846 ext 122 
 
To:   Escambia County  
 
Regarding FSA Contract 14-12-0904 
 
Isuzu Truck of Ocala is pleased to quote the following 
Isuzu NQR via the Florida Sheriff’s Association 
contract 14-12-0904. 
 
Spec #6                                                            $37,842.00 
NQR  (17950 GVW upgrade)                             $2,549.00 
NF354 (127’CA)                                                    $624.00 
16LSCAPE (no charge for extra 2’)               $10,600.00        
 
 
Non Contract Option 
Tie Down Rings                                                  $766.00 
Under Body Tool Boxes                                  $1,067.00 
  
 
 
Total                                                                $53,448.00 
 
 
                 
Regards, 
 
 
Bob Scharpnick 
Municipal Sales 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 





















   
AI-8818     County Administrator's Report      10. 24.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Contract 13-14.072 Blue Springs/Crescent Lake April 2014 Flood

Emergency Repairs
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Contract for Blue Springs/Crescent Lake April 2014 Flood
Emergency Repairs - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the Contract PD 13-14.072, Blue
Springs/Crescent Lake April 2014 Flood Emergency Repairs:

A. Approve June 5, 2015, as the date of Substantial Completion for this project; and

B. Approve assessing liquidated damages to the contractor, Hewes and Company, LLC,
in the amount of $21,000, per the terms of Contract PD 13-14.072, Blue
Springs/Crescent Lake April 2014 Flood Emergency Repairs.
 
[Funding:  Funds are available in Fund 112, "Disaster Recovery Fund," Cost Center
330492, Object Code 56301, Project #ESCPW17]

BACKGROUND:
The April 2014 flood event in Escambia County created substantial damage on Blue
Springs Drive in the Crescent Lake Subdivision. Meeting in regular session on August
21, 2014, Escambia County awarded Contract PD 13-14.072, in the amount of
$499,923.43 to Hewes and Company, LLC, to perform the necessary repairs to this street.

A Notice to Proceed was issued to Hewes and Co, LLC on September 2, 2014. The
contract timeline is as follows: 

09/02/2014 – Notice to Proceed
09/17/2014 – Stop work order was issued to allow for utility work
11/13/2014 – Resume work order
05/12/2015 – End Contract Date
05/13/2015 – County began to assess Liquidated Damages at $1,000 per day
06/05/2015 – Substantial Completion as agreed upon by the county and Hewes and



Company, LLC – county ceased assessment of Liquidated Damages
08/18/2015 – Final Completion

The contractor, Hewes and Company, LLC did not complete the project on time, not
reaching substantial completion until June 5, 2015, and not completing the project wholly
until August 18, 2015. As a result, Escambia County began assessing liquidated
damages on May 13, 2015, at a rate of $1,000 per day; the county also agreed to a
substantial completion date of June 5, 2015, at which time the assessment of liquidated
damages ceased. The total amount of liquidated damages assessed is $21,000
($18,000 for May and $3,000 for June).

It should be noted that it appears the largest factor in delaying completion was that there
were 135 days with three or fewer workers on-site, and 81 of those days there were zero
workers on-site. Additionally, during creation of the 2nd change order, extensive
collaboration was held with Hewes to determine a reasonable and very attainable new
completion date. Furthermore, throughout construction, on-site workers expressed their
frustration to staff over the lack of sufficient manpower, equipment, and materials being
available for them to do the work.
# of
workers
on-site 

0 1  2 3 4 5  6 7 8  9  10
19

(Paving
crew)

*201 Total
work 

# of
days 81 0 15 39 20 2 25 11 5 1 1 1

days
considered 

*NOTE: Only Monday through Saturday was considered between September 2, 2014
and July 31, 2015. This breakdown did not include: the 58 days between September 17,
2014 to November 14, 2014, when the “Stop Work” order was in effect, approved rain
days, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, New Year’s Eve, New Year’s Day, or approved
delay/recovery days.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in Fund 112 "Disaster Recovery Fund", Cost Center 330492, Object
Code 56301, Project #ESCPW17.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the provisions of the Code of Ordinances of
Escambia County, Florida, Chapter 46, Finance, Article II, Purchases and Contracts.

 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
08212014 BCC Action
Original PO_Hewes
CO_Hewes
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AI-8849     County Administrator's Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Discussion             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Reappointment/Appointment to Escambia-Pensacola Human Relations

Commission
From: Jack Brown, County Administrator 
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Escambia-Pensacola Human Relations Commission - Jack R.
Brown, County Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning the Escambia-Pensacola Human
Relations Commission:

A. Waive the Board’s Policy, Section I, Part B 1. (D), Appointment Policy and
Procedures, and reappoint Ebbin Spellman, for a two-year term, effective retroactively
August 17, 2015, through August 16, 2017; 
  

OR

B. Appoint one of the following applicants for a two-year term, effective September 3,
2015, through September 2, 2017;

1. Brandon J. Hollins;
2. Kathleen Nolde-Martin;
3. Megan N. Walters; or
4. Ava Abney.

BACKGROUND:
Mr. Ebbin Spellman has expressed the desire to continue to serve on the
Escambia-Pensacola Human Relations Commission (HRC).  Mr. Brandon J. Hollins, Ms.
Kathleen Nolde-Martin, Ms. Megan N. Walters, and Ms. Ava Abney have expressed their
desire to be considered for appointment to the HRC.  Resumes of the candidates are
provided for review.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A



N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
In accordance with Section 2, Governing Board, of the Interlocal Agreement between the
City of Pensacola and Escambia County creating the Escambia-Pensacola Human
Relations Commission, Board approval is required for all its appointments /
reappointments to the Escambia-Pensacola Human Relations Commission.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Ebbin Spellman
Brandon J. Hollins
Kathleen Nolde-Martin
Megan N. Walters
Ava Abney
Ballot



EBBIN SPELLMAN  
                                               PO Box 141495 ● Gainesville, FL 32614 

Phone (850) 232-0498 ● E-mail ebbin@att.net 
 
 

  OBJECTIVE 
An accomplished manager and leader with over 15 years of experience as an Emergency Management 
Coordinator, Crisis Management Specialist and Environmental, Health & Safety Advisor with the ability to 
analyze operations to improve organizational resourcefulness and target areas in need of  redesign and 
implement progressive plans that benefit the community. 

 
 

AREAS OF STRENGTHS & EXPERIENCE 
                       EMAP Assessment  Weapons of Mass Destruction Trainer 
Quality Control & Compliance Program Implementation           Emergency Response Systems Coordination           
     National Incident Management System Execution                           Emergency Management Operations 
                          Health and Safety                                                              Emergency Preparedness  
        Threat and Risk Assessment Coordination              Incident Command System  
                                                               Critical Infrastructure Asset                                                                                 

 
EDUCATION & PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

 
Bachelor of Arts Degree, Southern University, Baton Rouge, LA 

Major:  Political Science 
 

Certified Public Manager Leadership Institute, Florida State University, Tallahassee, FL 
Certification: Certified Public Manager for State and Local Government 

 
Certified Emergency Manager, CEM 

International Association of Emergency Managers 
 
 

Developing a State/Regional (CBRNE) Task Force  
Emergency Operations Center (EOC) Management and Operations (G-275) 

Homeland Security Planning for Local Communities (G-408) 
Critical Infrastructure Asset Protection 

Professional Development Series (PDS) 
Advance Professional Series (APS) 

Incident Command System (ICS) Curricula Train-the Trainer (L-449) 
GPS/GIS and USNG Multilevel Technician  

Principles of Emergency Management  
Community Emergency Response Team Trainer 

Department of Homeland Security and EMS Concepts for Weapons of Mass Destruction 
Florida Emergency Management System Operations & Planning 
Texas A & M University Strategy & Tactics Incident Command  

Emergency Medical Technician  
Hazmat Technician  

National Firefighter Association Incident Safety Officer 
Wild Land Fire Behavior  

Mass Casualty  
  

SOFTWARE  
WEB EOC,  HURRVAC, CAMEO, MARPLOT 

ALOHA Code Red, EMnet, EMwin 
ARC GIS – Advance and Basic 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
 

Commissioner of Escambia-Pensacola County Human Relations Commission 
Promote fair treatment and equal opportunity for all Escambia County citizens regardless of race or color, 
sex (gender), religion, age, national origin or disability.  Assist emergency response agencies by 
disseminating information to the public during the time of natural or man-made disasters and provide 
assistance to individual, state, local and other agencies, both public and private, including agencies of the 
federal government during disasters. 
 
 

Escambia County Expressway Authority Commission 
Member of the Commission that reviewed various engineering phases of project development and 
environmental studies, public information and public involvement meetings, determination of roadway 
alignments, interchange modification report and Traffic and Revenue Report.  
                       

EMPLOYMENT CHRONICLE 
 
2007-Present    Emergency Management Operations Manager and Coordinator ~ Alachua County 
Gainesville, Florida 

 
REP Planning - Lead for Nuclear and Radiological Preparedness for Alachua County which 
includes Progress Energy, Crystal River Nuclear Power Plant as well as various other 
programs which would present a radioactive threat to the citizens of Alachua County. 
Hazardous Analysis -   Perform the bi-annual Hazardous Materials Hazardous Analysis of 
EPCRA SARA Title III Section 302 chemical sites located throughout the County in 
accordance with the Inter-local Agreement. Identify and analyze the effects of potential 
hazards present in the community in order to develop effective emergency/disaster 
preparedness plans. Review emergency plans from outside agencies, businesses and other 
governmental jurisdictions, providing recommended revisions and additions to those plans.  
ESF Branch Director – Responsible for direct, lead and coordinate the activities of County 
staff assigned as Core Emergency Support Function personnel in the Emergency Operations 
Center which includes determining work procedures and schedules; issuing instructions and 
assigning duties; reviewing work; and conducting departmental training and orientation. 
Confer with staff and citizen groups to explain program and individual responsibilities for 
functions and phases of the emergency management program. Modify and/or change 
program methodology as required to redirect activities and to attain program objectives. 
Exercise and Training Coordinator- Oversee multi-agency coordination and volunteer 
programs to include Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) program and Fire 
Corp.  

 

 
1994-2007 Industrial Firefighter Lieutenant, Hazmat Technician, EMT, Confined Space   
                  Rescue Technician ~ Solutia 
Pensacola, Florida   
  

Hazardous Analysis – Identified potential hazards in order to develop effective 
emergency/disaster preparedness plans. Reviewed all emergency contingency plans and 
proposed revisions and additions as needed. Mitigated control of hazardous industrial waste 
materials through analysis and removal of materials and prepared EPA required documents. 
Counter- Terrorism -Trained in gathering information and immediately disseminating 
critical counter-terrorist intelligence information to federal, state and local 
authorities/agencies. Coordinated and directed law enforcement and initial emergency 
respondents with respect to counter-terrorism and domestic security during emergencies.  



Emergency Planning -Trained to streamline and consolidate coordination procedures 
between federal, state and local resources to reduce fragmented/duplicated counter-terrorism 
efforts and information and provided domestic security training for police officers, public 
safety employees and emergency medical technicians on standard safety operating 
procedures, emergency management crisis, trouble shooting techniques and environmental 
policies. 
Industrial Firefighter- Applied firefighting techniques and rescue plans for chemical plants 
and Escambia County to contain hazardous materials.  Trained in mass casualty to 
administer first aid and life saving measures for victims of minor and major disasters.  
Received Firefighter of the Year Award.  
Safety and Health Inspections - Directed and organized over 300 safety and health inspections 
consisting of a comprehensive cross-section of operations that would be conducted at a facilities 
such as  major military bases, which included but not limited to; rail & port operations, trenching 
and roofing projects, confined space operations,  motor pools, childcare facilities, military 
housing, office environments, power plant operations, carpentry/maintenance shops, firing 
ranges, painting, welding & fueling operations, electrical installations & repair, pipeline 
installation and repairs, asbestos removal projects, demolitions and major facility renovation 
projects. Directed and organized over 500 hours of safety and health training classes for over 250 
personnel.  Training included but was not limited to field/tactical safety, risk management, motor 
pool safety, accident investigation and reporting, The Army Safety Program, hazard 
communication, lockout/tagout, confined space entry and hearing conservation. 
 

 
2006-2007 Emergency Medical Specialist ~ Escambia County 
Pensacola, Florida  

 
Recorded patient care data and information obtaining demographic data from patients, 
information regarding medical conditions and/or illnesses, current prescription use; documents 
patient reactions to treatment; and/or other related information .  

 
2006 HAZMAT Instructor and Neo-natal EMT ~ Sacred Heart Health System 
Pensacola, Florida 
    

Conducted classroom training and directed hospital staff in emergency response procedures for 
hazardous materials, area decontamination, patient decontamination, incident command systems, 
recognition of health signs and symptoms and risk communications.  

 
AFFILIATIONS & LEADERSHIP 

                           
State of Florida Radiological Task Force 

State of Florida Regional Domestic Security Task Force Infrastructure Sub-committee 
Board Member of Escambia County Home Inspector Licensing 

Board Member of Escambia County Expressway Authority Commission 
Contributing Editor of Book Entitled “Industrial Fire Fighting for Municipal Firefighters” 

Instructor for Incident Command System (ICS) Classes 
Instructor for Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) and Emergency Preparedness 

Member of Alachua County Emergency Response Team (CERT) 
Member of the State of Florida Emergency Response Team (SERT) 

Commissioner of Pensacola-Escambia County Human Relations Commission 
Firefighter of the Year 2007 

   









































 BCC:  09-03-2015 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Escambia County, Florida 

 
 
 
 

BALLOT 
 

ESCAMBIA-PENSACOLA HUMAN  
RELATIONS COMMISSION 

 
 

      ____ Ebbin A. Spellman 
 
 
  ____ Brandon J. Hollins 
 
    

 ____Kathleen Nolde-Martin 
 
 
  ____ Megan N. Walters 
 
 
                   ____ Ava Abney           
 
 
 
 Signature _____________________________ 



   
AI-8889     County Administrator's Report      10. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Discussion             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Donation of Dodge Durango to Healthy Start Coalition
From: Steven Barry, District 5 Commissioner 
Organization: Board of County Commissioners
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Donation of a Dodge Durango to the Escambia County
Healthy Start Coalition - Commissioner Steven Barry, District 5

That the Board adopt and authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution authorizing the
donation of a 2000 Dodge Durango, Vin #1B4HR28Y3YF268819, to the Escambia
County Healthy Start Coalition, a not-for-profit Florida Corporation.

BACKGROUND:
The Dodge Durango has been approved for disposition and is in fair condition but is no
longer usable by the County.  The Escambia County Healthy Start Coalition offers a
number of programs, such as grief support, safe sleep initiative, FIMR (fetal and infant
mortality review), and baby showers.  These programs help educate Moms on proper
care for not only their infants but also themselves.  In June of this year, Healthy Start
opened a new clinic in Century where these programs are available, as well as the WIC
program being offered on the second Tuesday of every month.  Transportation is a major
concern for these women and children in this area and therefore this donation would be
an asset to the Healthy Start Coalition and the Community.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Resolution was prepared by the County Attorney’s Office and has been approved
by the County Attorney, Alison Rogers.
 

PERSONNEL:
N/A



POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Resolution
501(c)(3) Verification









   
AI-8858     County Administrator's Report      10. 3.             
BCC Regular Meeting Discussion             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Two Parcels of Real Property (With Improvements) Located at 6511

North "W" Street and 952 Marcus Pointe Boulevard 
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Two Parcels of Real Property (With Improvements) Located at
6511 North "W" Street and 952 Marcus Pointe Boulevard - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works
Department Director

That the Board authorize and direct staff to obtain appraisals, environmental site
assessments, surveys, title insurance commitments, and to complete all other
requirements in Section 46-139, Escambia County Code of Ordinances, in accordance
with Board of County Commissioners (BCC) Policy dated June 2, 2011, regarding Real
Property Acquisitions, in anticipation of purchasing two parcels of real property (with
improvements).  The two parcels are located at 6511 North "W" Street (owned by McVay
Motors, Inc.) and 952 Marcus Pointe Boulevard (owned by William Harvey Cardwell). 
These parcels could be utilized by the Public Safety Department for additional vehicle
repair and storage space.

[Funds for meeting the requirements of Section 46-139, Escambia County Code of
Ordinances are available in Funding Source:  Fund 408, Emergency Services, Cost
Center 330302, EMS Operations, Object Code 53101]

BACKGROUND:
Two separate owners of two contiguous parcels of real property, which abut the property
where the county's Public Safety Building is located, are both interested in selling their
individual properties and they have approached the Public Safety Department and
asked if the county would be interested in acquiring these properties. 

The property at 6511 North "W" Street, being utilized as a used car dealership, is
approximately 2.1 acres, and has two commercial structures located on it. One structure
is a two-story office and garage building (8,496 square feet); the other structure is a
one-story metal, modular office building (2,300 square feet).



The property at 952 Marcus Pointe Boulevard is approximately 1.52 acres, has a
one-story residential structure (1,204 square feet), and a separate garage structure
(2,000 square feet) located on it.

The Public Safety Department could make use of these properties for additional vehicle
repair and storage space. They are asking the Board to authorize staff to pursue
appraisals and all other requirements in Section 46-139, Escambia County Code of
Ordinances, in accordance with Board of County Commissioners (BCC) Policy dated
June 2, 2011, regarding Real Property Acquisitions, in anticipation of possibly acquiring
these properties.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funding for completion of requirements of Section 46-139, Escambia County Code of
Ordinances, is available in Fund 408, Emergency Services, Cost Center 330302, EMS
Operations, Object Code 53101. 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The County Attorney's office will approve any contract or other documents required for
Board approval of this proposed acquisition.

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this proposed acquisition is being done in-house and no
additional staff is required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Staff will comply with Section 46-139 of the County Codes.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon Board approval, staff will move forward to comply with Section 46-139, Escambia
County Code of Ordinances.

Attachments
Parcel Information / McVay Motors
Parcel Information / Cardwell
BCC Policy - June 2, 2011
Aerial Map



escpaDetail 6511 N W ST 32505

http://www.escpa.org/cama/Detail_a.aspx?s=391S301107003001[8/20/2015 12:49:33 PM]

General Information
Reference: 391S301107003001
Account: 040871120
Owners: MCVAY MOTORS INC
Mail: 6511 NORTH W ST

PENSACOLA, FL 32505
Situs: 6511 N W ST 32505

Use Code: AUTO SALE, REPAIR 
Taxing
Authority: COUNTY MSTU

Tax Inquiry: Open Tax Inquiry Window
Tax Inquiry link courtesy of Janet Holley
Escambia County Tax Collector

Assessments
Year Land Imprv Total Cap Val
2015 $249,375 $329,519 $578,894 $578,894
2014 $249,375 $331,460 $580,835 $580,835
2013 $249,375 $330,948 $580,323 $580,323

Disclaimer

Amendment 1/Portability Calculations

Sales
Data

Sale Date Book Page Value Type Official Records
(New Window)

05/2003 5134 1872 $824,000 WD View Instr
12/2001 4812 948 $750,000 WD View Instr
12/1997 4205 1137 $665,000 WD View Instr
08/1997 4161 735 $543,700 WD View Instr

Official Records Inquiry courtesy of Pam Childers
Escambia County Clerk of the Circuit Court and
Comptroller

2015 Certified Roll Exemptions
None

Legal Description

BEG AT SE COR OF SEC N 14 DEG 16 MIN 02 SEC W
ALG ELY LI 199 9 56/100 FT S 71 DEG 24 MIN 17
SEC W 825 29/100 FT N 00 DEG...

Extra Features
ASPHALT PAVEMENT
CHAINLINK FENCE
CONCRETE PAVING
CONCRETE WALKS
LIGHTS

Source: Escambia County Property Appraiser     

      Navigate Mode   Account Reference      

Parcel
Information Launch Interactive Map

Section
Map Id:
39-1S-30-1

Approx.
Acreage:
2.1000

Zoned:  
HC/LI

Evacuation
& Flood
Information
Open Report

 View Florida Department of Environmental Protection(DEP) Data

+
–

 

Buildings

Address:6511 N W ST, Year Built: 1984, Effective Year: 1984
Structural Elements
DECOR/MILLWORK-ABOVE AVERAGE
DWELLING UNITS-0
EXTERIOR WALL-METAL-MODULAR
FLOOR COVER-CARPET
FOUNDATION-SLAB ON GRADE
HEAT/AIR-CENTRAL H/AC
INTERIOR WALL-DRYWALL-PLASTER

http://www.escpa.org/cama/GenericGrid.aspx?m=dorcd&v=
http://www.escpa.org/cama/tc_redir.aspx?a=040871120
http://www.escpa.org/files/Misc/faqs10cap.pdf
http://www.escpa.org/cama/genericform.aspx?m=Disclaimer
http://www.escpa.org/cama/hscalcdefault.aspx?ref=391S301107003001
http://74.174.28.39/or_1.asp?ubook=5134&upage=1872
http://74.174.28.39/or_1.asp?ubook=4812&upage=948
http://74.174.28.39/or_1.asp?ubook=4205&upage=1137
http://74.174.28.39/or_1.asp?ubook=4161&upage=735
http://www.escpa.org/cama/FullDscr.aspx?m=l&s=391S301107003001
http://www.escpa.org/CAMAGIS?s=391S301107003001
http://www.escpa.org/snapshots/sectionmap/39-1S-30-1.pdf
http://www.escpa.org/cama/GenericGrid.aspx?m=cnz&v=
http://maps.roktech.net/Escambia_SearchBar/propertyappraiser.html?reference=391S301107003001
http://ca.dep.state.fl.us/mapdirect/?focus=propertyappraiser&zoom=latlon&latDD=30.48165597977164&lonDD=-87.25983198481145&scale=5000&view=escambia
lwgoodwi
Line

lwgoodwi
Line

lwgoodwi
Line

lwgoodwi
Line

lwgoodwi
Line

lwgoodwi
Line



escpaDetail 6511 N W ST 32505

http://www.escpa.org/cama/Detail_a.aspx?s=391S301107003001[8/20/2015 12:49:33 PM]

NO. PLUMBING FIXTURES-8
NO. STORIES-2
ROOF COVER-METAL/MODULAR
ROOF FRAMING-STEEL TRUSS/FRM
STORY HEIGHT-20
STRUCTURAL FRAME-RIGID FRAME

  Areas - 8496 Total SF
BASE AREA - 3360
GARAGE UNFIN - 3120
UPPER STORY FIN - 2016

Year Built: 1984, Effective Year: 1984
Structural Elements
DECOR/MILLWORK-AVERAGE
DWELLING UNITS-0
EXTERIOR WALL-METAL-MODULAR
FLOOR COVER-CONCRETE-FINISH
FOUNDATION-SLAB ON GRADE
HEAT/AIR-NONE
INTERIOR WALL-UNFINISHED
NO. STORIES-1
ROOF COVER-METAL/MODULAR
ROOF FRAMING-RIGID FRAME/BAR
STORY HEIGHT-12
STRUCTURAL FRAME-RIGID FRAME

  Areas - 2300 Total SF
BASE AREA - 1700
OFFICE AVG - 600

Images

The primary use of the assessment data is for the preparation of the current year tax roll. No responsibility or liability
is assumed for inaccuracies or errors.

3/16/15

http://www.escpa.org/cama/GenericGrid.aspx?m=sar&v=
http://www.escpa.org/cama/GenericGrid.aspx?m=sar&v=


escpaDetail 952 MARCUS POINTE BLVD 32505

http://www.escpa.org/cama/Detail_a.aspx?s=391S301109000000[8/20/2015 12:43:29 PM]

General Information
Reference: 391S301109000000
Account: 040872000
Owners: CARDWELL WILLIAM H
Mail: 952 MARCUS POINTE BLVD

PENSACOLA, FL 32505
Situs: 952 MARCUS POINTE BLVD 32505

Use Code: SINGLE FAMILY RESID 
Taxing
Authority: COUNTY MSTU

Tax Inquiry: Open Tax Inquiry Window
Tax Inquiry link courtesy of Janet Holley
Escambia County Tax Collector

Assessments
Year Land Imprv Total Cap Val
2015 $28,880 $50,111 $78,991 $76,713
2014 $28,880 $49,056 $77,936 $76,105
2013 $28,880 $46,101 $74,981 $74,981

Disclaimer

Amendment 1/Portability Calculations

Sales
Data

Sale Date Book Page Value Type Official Records
(New Window)

11/1991 3086 545 $65,000 WD View Instr
09/1988 2606 428 $54,000 WD View Instr
01/1974 847 840 $10,000 WD View Instr

Official Records Inquiry courtesy of Pam Childers
Escambia County Clerk of the Circuit Court and
Comptroller

2015 Certified Roll Exemptions
HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION

Legal Description

BEG AT SE COR OF SEC N 14 DEG 16 MIN 2 SEC W
ALG E LI OF SD SEC 1999 56/100 FT S 71 DEG 24
MIN 17 SEC W 825 29/100 FT N...

Extra Features
METAL BUILDING
METAL SHED

Source: Escambia County Property Appraiser     

      Navigate Mode   Account Reference      

Parcel
Information Launch Interactive Map

Section
Map Id:
39-1S-30-1

Approx.
Acreage:
1.5200

Zoned:  
HC/LI

Evacuation
& Flood
Information
Open Report

 View Florida Department of Environmental Protection(DEP) Data

+
–

 

Buildings

Address:952 MARCUS POINTE BLVD, Year Built: 1958, Effective Year: 1970
Structural Elements
DECOR/MILLWORK-AVERAGE
DWELLING UNITS-1
EXTERIOR WALL-ALUMINUM SIDING
FLOOR COVER-CARPET
FOUNDATION-WOOD/SUB FLOOR
HEAT/AIR-WALL/FLOOR FURN
INTERIOR WALL-DRYWALL-PLASTER
INTERIOR WALL-PANEL-PLYWOOD
NO. PLUMBING FIXTURES-6
NO. STORIES-1

http://www.escpa.org/cama/GenericGrid.aspx?m=dorcd&v=
http://www.escpa.org/cama/tc_redir.aspx?a=040872000
http://www.escpa.org/QandA.aspx?m=gi&x=soh
http://www.escpa.org/cama/genericform.aspx?m=Disclaimer
http://www.escpa.org/cama/hscalcdefault.aspx?ref=391S301109000000
http://74.174.28.39/or_1.asp?ubook=3086&upage=545
http://74.174.28.39/or_1.asp?ubook=2606&upage=428
http://74.174.28.39/or_1.asp?ubook=847&upage=840
http://www.escpa.org/cama/FullDscr.aspx?m=l&s=391S301109000000
http://www.escpa.org/CAMAGIS?s=391S301109000000
http://www.escpa.org/snapshots/sectionmap/39-1S-30-1.pdf
http://www.escpa.org/cama/GenericGrid.aspx?m=cnz&v=
http://maps.roktech.net/Escambia_SearchBar/propertyappraiser.html?reference=391S301109000000
http://ca.dep.state.fl.us/mapdirect/?focus=propertyappraiser&zoom=latlon&latDD=30.48144659394331&lonDD=-87.26049323277068&scale=5000&view=escambia
lwgoodwi
Line

lwgoodwi
Line

lwgoodwi
Line

lwgoodwi
Line



escpaDetail 952 MARCUS POINTE BLVD 32505

http://www.escpa.org/cama/Detail_a.aspx?s=391S301109000000[8/20/2015 12:43:29 PM]

ROOF COVER-COMPOSITION SHG
ROOF FRAMING-GABLE-HI PITCH
STORY HEIGHT-8
STRUCTURAL FRAME-WOOD FRAME

  Areas - 1204 Total SF
BASE AREA - 1008
OPEN PORCH FIN - 196

Year Built: 1975, Effective Year: 1975
Structural Elements
DECOR/MILLWORK-AVERAGE
DWELLING UNITS-0
EXTERIOR WALL-METAL-MODULAR
FLOOR COVER-CONCRETE-FINISH
FOUNDATION-SLAB ON GRADE
HEAT/AIR-UNIT HEATERS
INTERIOR WALL-UNFINISHED
NO. PLUMBING FIXTURES-4
NO. STORIES-1
ROOF COVER-CORRUGATED METL
ROOF FRAMING-RIGID FRAME/BAR
STORY HEIGHT-12
STRUCTURAL FRAME-RIGID FRAME

  Areas - 2000 Total SF
BASE AREA - 2000

Images

The primary use of the assessment data is for the preparation of the current year tax roll. No responsibility or liability
is assumed for inaccuracies or errors.
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY PUBLIC 
WORKS  DEPARTMENT   
LWG   08/20/15   DISTRICT  3 

TWO  PARCELS  OF  PROPERTY  (WITH  IMPROVEMENTS)  LOCATED  
@  6511 NORTH  “W” STREET AND 952 MARCUS  POINTE BOULEVARD 

CARDWELL  PROPERTY @ 952  MARCUS  POINTE  BOULEVARD 

MCVAY  MOTORS,  INC.,  PROPERTY@  6511  NORTH “W” STREET 

COUNTY  PROPERTY  / PUBLIC  SAFETY  BUILDING @  6575 NORTH  “W” STREET 



   
AI-8821     County Attorney's Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Action             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Financing Programs -

Florida Green Finance Authority
From: Stephen West, Senior Assistant County Attorney 
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Financing Programs -
Florida Green Finance Authority.

That the Board adopt a resolution authorizing the creation of the Florida Green Energy
Works program pursuant to the Party Membership Agreement with the Florida Green
Finance Authority.

BACKGROUND:
On July 23, 2015, the Board approved and authorized the Chairman to execute a Party
Membership Agreement with the Florida Green Finance Authority. Subsequently, the
Florida Green Finance Authority related that it also requires a resolution authorizing the
Florida Green Energy Works program pursuant to the Party Membership Agreement.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



Attachments
Resolution



RESOLUTION NUMBER R2015-

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, EXPRESSING THE COUNTY'S
SUPPORT AND INTENTION TO CREATE WITHIN THE

UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, THE "FLORIDA
GREEN ENERGY WORKS PROGRAM" A VOLUNTARY PROGRAM

PROVIDING INTERESTED COMMERCIAL PROPERTY OWNERS WITH
THE OPPORTUNITY TO FINANCE ENERGY EFFICIENCY

IMPROVEMENTS ON THEIR PROPERTY BY REPAYMENT THROUGH

NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS ON THEIR PROPERTY TAX BILL;
AUTHORIZING THE CHAIR OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY BOARD OF

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS TO EXECUTE AN INTERLOCAL
AGREEMENT WITH THE FLORIDA GREEN FINANCE AUTHORITY
FOR ADMINISTRATION OF THE FLORIDA GREEN ENERGY WORKS
PROGRAM IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF ESCAMBIA

COUNTY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, home and business energy consumption accounts for a large
portion of the overall usage of energy in a community; and

WHEREAS, there is a vast quantity of existing structures with many years
of remaining life before replacement, and these structures are not as energy efficient as
today's standards, nor do many existing buildings have renewable energy systems
installed to provide some or all of their electric energy needs and many buildings are in
need of improvements to protect them against damage from storm events; and

WHEREAS, installing energy efficiency, renewable energy and wind resistance
improvements on existing structures can provide significant progress towards increased
energy conservation and protection of properties in the unincorporated areas of the
County and statewide; and

WHEREAS, the upfront costs of these improvements are a hurdle to installing
them and existing financing options may be insufficient for property owners to access
cost-effective financing for energy-saving or wind-resistance property improvements
due to requirements associated with traditional debt or equity financing options; and

WHEREAS, the expected life of energy efficiency, renewable energy or wind
resistance projects may require a longer term payback period than offered by traditional
financing, which may necessitate alternative options to fund installation of the
improvements; and

WHEREAS, local governments within Florida and nationally have either formed,
or are contemplating the formation of, programs to provide alternative financing options
allowing a property owner to voluntarily finance energy efficiency and renewable energy
improvements through payment of non-ad valorem assessments; and



WHEREAS, the State of Florida has declared it the public policy of the State to
develop energy management programs aimed at promoting energy conservation and
protecting properties from wind damage; and

WHEREAS, the financing provided to these participating property owners will be
repaid though non-ad valorem assessments and only those property owners who
request to participate will be levied the assessments; and

WHEREAS, the benefits of these energy financing programs include improved
air quality, lowered fossil fuels use, creating energy independence and security,
promoting the creation of jobs and economic development by stimulating "green
industries" and saving citizens money by reducing energy consumption; and

WHEREAS, Section 163.08, Florida Statutes authorizes local governments in
Florida to either form individually, or in partnership with other local governments,
programs to allow property owners to voluntarily finance energy efficiency, renewable
energy or wind resistance improvements; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Lantana has formed the Florida Green Energy Works
program which is an energy financing program created pursuant to Section 163.08,
Florida Statutes; and

WHEREAS, other local governments in the State are able to partner in the
Florida Green Energy Works program by executing an Interlocal Agreement with the
Florida Green Finance Authority to administer the program, thus eliminating the costs
and reducing the efforts to form an energy financing program by individual local
governments; and

WHEREAS, the Florida Green Finance Authority is already creating the
financing, levy and collection process to implement the Florida Green Energy Works
program through the local government partners; and

WHEREAS, the Florida Green Energy Works program will provide significant
benefits including property owner cost savings, enhancing property values, economic
development and job opportunities and Escambia County believes that it is in the best
interests of the health, safety and welfare of its citizens to participate in the program and
authorize the County Administrator and County Attorney to finalize the Interlocal
Agreement with the Florida Green Finance Authority and begin the steps to create the
Florida Green Energy Works program for commercial properties in the unincorporated
areas of Escambia County.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, THAT:

Section 1. The above declarations are true and accurate, and are incorporated
herein.



Section 2. The Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, a political
subdivision of the State of Florida, hereby authorizes participation in the Florida Green
Finance Authority to implement the Florida Green Energy Works program for
commercial properties.

Section 3 The Board of County Commissioners hereby directs the County
Administrator and County Attorney to finalize the Interlocal Agreement with the Florida
Green Finance Authority, and further authorizes the Chair of the Board of County
Commissioners to execute the Interlocal Agreement on behalf of the County.

Section 4. The Board of County Commissioners hereby directs that the County
Administrator and County Attorney to begin creating the levy and collection process for
the voluntary non-ad valorem assessments with the Florida Green Finance Authority
and Escambia County Property Appraiser and Tax Collector.

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

ADOPTED this day of

ATTEST: Pam Childers

Clerk of the Circuit Court

Deputy Clerk

(Seal)

,2015.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Steven Barry, Chairman

Ind8|SSarovedastoformana 'eg^s)6f(V,e^cy



   
AI-8854     County Attorney's Report      10. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Action             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Authorize the Scheduling of a Public Hearing to Consider Adopting the

Santa Rosa Island Authority Buildings and Building Regulations
Ordinance

From: Alison Rogers, County Attorney 
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of a Public Hearing to Consider Adopting the
Santa Rosa Island Authority Buildings and Building Regulations Ordinance Creating Sections
14-61 through 14-65 of Chapter 14, Article III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances 

That the Board authorize the scheduling of a Public Hearing for September 24, 2015, at
5:32 p.m. for consideration of adopting an Ordinance creating sections 14-61 through
14-65 of Chapter 14, Article III, Buildings and Building Regulations, applicable to
Pensacola Beach under the control of the Santa Rosa Island Authority.

BACKGROUND:
Pursuant to Chapter 553.73(5), Fla. Stat., the Board will be making local amendments to
the Florida Building Code, by adopting a requirement to (1) regulate the area within the
jurisdiction of the Santa Rosa Island Authority (SRIA) as coastal high hazard areas and
(2) require accumulation of costs of improvements and repairs of buildings, based on
issued building permits, over a 10–year period, for the purpose of participating in the
National Flood Insurance Program’s Community Rating System.  The SRIA  has
requested the Board amend both the floodplain requirements for Pensacola Beach (by
separate ordinance) and amend the Florida Building Code in order to help improve the
Pensacola Beach CRS rating.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The proposed ordinance will advertise in the Sunday Edition of the Pensacola News
Journal on September 13, 2015. 



PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-8855     County Attorney's Report      10. 3.             
BCC Regular Meeting Action             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Adopt the Local Option Fuel Tax Resolution and Authorize the

Chairman to Sign the Letter to the Department of Revenue
From: Alison Rogers, County Attorney 
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Adopting the Local Option Fuel Tax Resolution and Authorizing
the Chairman to Sign the Letter to the Department of Revenue

That the Board take the following action:

A.  Adopt the Local Option Fuel Tax Resolution listing the distribution formula for
dividing the proceeds of this tax as allowed under section 336.025(4)(a), Fla. Stat.; and

 B.  Authorize the Chairman to sign the letter to the Department of Revenue with a copy
of Escambia County's Ordinance 2015-26 and the Resolution adopting the distribution
formula.

[RESOLUTION AND LETTER TO BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER]

BACKGROUND:
On July 23, 2015, the Board adopted Escambia County Ordinance 2015-26 renewing
the $.06 Local Option Fuel Tax from September 1, 2016 through December 31, 2026. 
Pursuant to section 336.025(5)(a), Fla. Stat., the purpose of this letter is to notify the
Department of Revenue of Escambia County's continuing levy of $.06 of the local option
fuel tax and the distribution formula to be used.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
TBA

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The County Attorney's Office drafted the Resolution and letter to the Department of
Revenue.

PERSONNEL:



PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-8883     County Attorney's Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Information             
Meeting Date: 09/03/2015  
Issue: Scarbrough and Banta v. Escambia County Board of County

Commissioners, Case No.: 17 2015 CA 000399
From: Charles Peppler, Deputy County Attorney 
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Helen P. Scarbrough and Linda H. Dunson Banta v. Escambia
County Board of County Commissioners, Case No.: 17 2015 CA 000399

That the Board accept the following informational report concerning Helen P. Scarbrough
and Linda H. Dunson Banta v. Escambia County Board of County Commissioners, Case No.:
17 2015 CA 000399.

BACKGROUND:
Ms. Scarbrough and Ms. Banta were applicants for rezoning several acres in the River
Road area of Perdido Key who sought an up-zoning from the R-2PK, Residential District
(Perdido Key) to CGPK, Commercial Gateway District (Perdido Key) which would allow
for commercial development of primarily residential property. The Planning Board
granted the rezoning applications, but the Board of County Commissioners (BCC)
overturned the determination made by the Planning Board.

Ms. Scarbrough and Ms. Banta filed a joint petition for certiorari with the Escambia
County Circuit Court arguing that the BCC’s decision to deny the applications for
rezoning was not supported by competent, substantial evidence because residential
property owners on River Road opposed the rezoning. After briefs were filed, Judge
Terry Terrell, sitting in an appellate capacity, denied the petition for certiorari holding that
the neighboring property owners’ testimony was competent, substantial evidence to
support the BCC’s decision while citing several authorities cited by the County in its
response to the petition for certiorari. A copy of the ruling is attached.

Under the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, Ms. Scarbrough and Ms. Banta would
have 30 days from the date that Judge Terrell’s ruling was filed with the Clerk, which is
August 21, 2015, to file a petition for certiorari with the First District Court of Appeal in
Tallahassee. Should Ms. Scarbrough and Ms. Banta seek this type of review, it will be
limited to two issues: (1) whether Judge Terrell followed the law, and (2) whether Ms.



Scarbrough and Ms. Banta were given adequate procedural due process. This is known
as second tier review. Should Ms. Scarbrough and Ms. Banta proceed with a petition for
certiorari in the First District Court of Appeal, this office will vigorously defend Judge
Terrell’s ruling.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
No file(s) attached.
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